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OVERVIEW

At the heart of our community

Fuller's pubs and hotels have been at the heart of their communities for over
175 years and the coronavirus pandemic has brought the special place that pubs
hold in the nation’s heart to the fore. During the past year, cur pubs and the
amazing teams that work in them have fed key workers, looked after the homeless,
run community stores and helped out at vacaine centres.

But communities are not just your local neighbourhood. Our team members
are a community of their own, as are our customers, our supghers and our
shareholders. All are of equal importance ana throughout this report we want
to show you how we work with those communities.

Never has the enduring appeal of the great British pub been so strong and,
across the Fulier’s estate, we are looking forward to continuing to serve
our communities for many years to come,
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I’m not sure that even the most robust

of business continuity exercises could have
prepared us, the industry or the country,
for the year that we have just endured.
Being Chairman of a closed hospitality
business has been challenging throughout,
frustrating most of the time, and yet often
very rewarding due to the amazing team

of people that work at Fuller’s.

i am delighted to see the way Simon and the
Executive Team have used this extraordinary
period of enforced clasure ta review, plan
ﬂﬁd Imp‘ement naw \V:i)/‘\ GFworkmg, V’V'H\Ch
Fas erabled the Company to emerge from
the pandemic an even stronger business

The roll out of d\g\tai initdtives such as
Crder & Pay improve the experience for
our customers and are developments that
add value to the business.

Meanwhile, the investment we have made
in provid ng stunning beer gardens and
outside trading space has increased the
number of covers in some of our most
popular pubs and will moke the alfresco
experience mare appedling for our
custemers throughout the whole yoar

We have kept all our people at our heart
during the last year  Lhosc in our pubs
and hotels, the support centre team, and
our Tenants - providing suppartin a wide
variety of forms. | am proud of the actions
the team have Laken durmg the year from
the decivion to top up rur|ough payments
to ensurc averyone recoived 80% of their
wages and the salary sacrifice madein the
first lockdowr by the Board and Executive
Team, to the suspension of cammercial
rent for aur Tenants

Qur People Team has provided access to
emotiondl and {irancial sopport for team
rmembers who need 1t and access to online
trairming for those team members who
wanted an additional stimulus during the
lang months of lockdown. Meanwhile
Sirmon has previded regular video blogs to
keep the entire team informed, up to date
and, frequently, entertained whi'e our
team members and Tenants have played
active roles in their communities prowiding
meals for the homeless, warking in vaczine
centres and undertaking numersus

\/D\untcormg opportunitics.

During the year, we announced the
departure of our Finance Director
Adam Councell, who will be returning
to the services sector later in the year.

“Fuller’s is a company
that has always prided
itself on its long-term
strategy and vision, and
that continues to stand
us in good stead and
remains unchanged.”

Equity raise net of expenses

£572m

Covid Corporate Financing Facility
accessed

£100m

Adam has made an impertant and valued
contributior to Fuller’s during one of the
most difficult chapters in its history and
we thank him and wish bimoweli in his new
role. Post year end, we were delighted

to announce that Neil Srith, a highly
expenenced Finance Director wha has
spent much of his career in the pub sector,
will be joimng us later in the year. Neil will
be an oxcellont addition to Fuller’s, the

Fxerutive Team and the Board und we luok

forward 1o welcorming him to the Fulfer’s
larmily and working closely with him in
the future

Fuller’s 1s s comparny that has always pr.ded
isell onits long term strategy and vision,
and that contnues to stand us in good
stead and remains unchanged. Cur
predominately freehold estate provides
the base for cur business and, while we
may Lweak the tactics in the short term

Lo reflect ever changng situations, we are
excited about getting back on track to
conunue to deliver our long term strategy
and return to growth,

Tradmg with sacial d\stamcmg 15 like

trading with are arm behind your back snd,
in bght of the year we have just endured,
we have had to take actions that are
outside the norm. These include the equity
raise undertaken at the start of the now
financial year ard the decision nct to
propese a dividend this year I'realse the
latter is disappainting for our sharcholders
and | thank them for their ongeing
understanding n thewe difficult times.

The Board recognises the importance

of dividends to our shareholders and hopes
to resurne dividend payments once the
businass s again trading profitably an

a sustained basis.

s would hke ta thank sl my colleagues at
Fuller’s for their loyalty and perseverance
in the face of this unprecedented
pandemic, and their enthusiasm to get
back to their rale of welcom'ng and
entertaining Gur CUstOMErs once dgain.

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

8 July 2021
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STRATEGIC REPORT

At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR CUSTOMERS

Creating beautiful, future proof
spaces so families and friends can
reunite and relax

The various restrictions imposed during the year on our
business have been difficult to negetiate for both our teams
and our customers — but out of adversity comes innovation

and adaptatien. Gardens have become more important
than ever and we've carried out a wide range of investments
in our pub gardens and outside spaces during the year with

gazebos, purpose built structures and jurnberellas making
these beautiful spaces even better — like this one at

The Mayfly in Stockbridge. Going out and staying out

has never been more enjoyable.
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OUR PURPOSE:

Happy teams serving
happy customers

OUR VISION:

We create exceptional
experiences full

of style and spirit —
characterful pubs and
hotels where everyone
feels they belong...
and where people
leave happier than
when they arrived

The Antefope, Belgravia
Doing the right thing has never been mare
important and our teams have strived to ensure

that we keep our customers - and ourselves - safe

and secure with additional cleaning. face masks
and fashings of samitiser.

STRATEGIC REPQRT

At a Glance

OUR VALUES:

1. Doing things
the right way

Deep pride and genuine enjoyment
for the business we're in

Integrity, quality, care and attention
to detail in everything we do

+ Total dedication and passion far
everything we do

Also about doing the right thing, not
just doing things in the right way
Bringing 2 positive ‘can do’ attitude to
any challenge, always going above and
beyond for cur customners,

3. Celebrating individuality

« Nurturing the individuality, spirit
and unique character of each person,
pub and bedroom, because that's
what makes us special

Believing that it's the individuals

wha create 2 great experience...
and make that experrence come alive

+ Embracing the freedom of thought,
creativity and diverse personalities
that make us who we are

« Where everyone ¢an be who they are..
and make a real difference.
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The Alice Lisle, Ringwood
The FU”EF,S fﬂmfry 150 huge CD”eCtV—Qn Uf:ma”&r
formilies - in each one of our pubs and hatels

2. Being part of the family

+ A'family business’, in the
broadest sense
« Bringing a family ethos and feeling
to how we work ~ one team pulling
together, in each puk and hotel, and
also together across Fuller’s
« Awarm sense of belonging - everyone
together, including cur customers
= Where every member of the family is
valued for bringing something special
« Looking out for each other, in
a warm environment built on trust
and empowerment
+ Supporting and respecting each other..,
and challenging when needed
Taking the long-term view, not always
about short-term gain.
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Managed Pubs and Tenanted inns (%)

4, Always asking

what’s next? _ o

FUHET‘S Mﬂnaged Pubs and Hotels within 32%
- Always asking what’s next?. for the M25
our peaple, for our customers, Fuller’s Tenanted Inns within the M25 13%
for aur pubs and hotels - .
+ Avrestless passion to continuously Fuller’s Managed Pubs and Hotels 23%

improve, experiment and make sutsdethe M25 .

things better Fuller's Tenanted Inns outside the M25 32%

Encouraging new ideas and
creativity in our people
Outward looking, in touch with

Revenue by division (%)

our market and customers

Always changing for the better,

but never changing for change’s sake
Embracing the best from our past,

thinking creatively about our future. ——
Fuller's Tenanted Inns 13%

Fuller's Managed Pubs and Hotels 87%

Number of employees at year end
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3 B Analysis of Managed revenue - Rural/Suburban/Urban (%) 2
i
o 777R;a\777 - 30%
The Swan, Cotsweld Inns & Hotels —_— — - - — =
Qur purchase of Cotswald Inns & Hotels included Suburban 48%
The Swan at Bibury, one of the area’s true gems. VUrb;n o S 92%
-+
5
5
Our geographic reach throughout the South East 2
o
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The Bear, Oxfard &
Well, we do encourage people to celebrate their =
individuality. as con be seen here at The Bear in S
Oxford - whoever the masked bear is, we promise -
the welcome will be friendly. ES
S
3
5
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SUPPORTING OUR NEIGHBOURHGCODS

Keeping doors open to serve
and support the local community,
and to provide more than just
a place to eat and drink

When the Government closed pubs in March 2020,
The Red Lion, Ealing decided to find a way to keep the doors
open. Licensee Edin Basic, acutely aware of his role in the
community and his reputation for great [talian food, decided
to build on this with a community stere, in the pub,
majoring en outstanding ltalian produce. With rosemary
focaccias, freshly baked by Edin every morning, Parma ham,
antipasti and a wide range of Italian cheeses, fo dolce vita

remained very much present inthis quiet corner

of West London.
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As | write this, the country is still awaiting
the start of the return to normality, and
we look back on a year that started and
ended with our entire pub estate closed.
During the year, we have traded for the
equivalent of just 29% of the financial
year - and this is reflected in our fiscal
Performance with revenue' down 77%

to £73.2 million (2020: £316.0Q million).

/\gain-\l 1his har}r‘lrcp‘ ['want to start thes
review of the year by paying tribute to the
incredible team of peaple that work at
Fuller's From my Executive Team to all
our team members in our pubs, hotels and
supporl cenire, and our Tenants, al have
dealt with the ups and downs of the past
yeoar with positivity and optirisr - filling

“ .

Looking after our
their tme durning the many perods of teams aﬂd Teﬂaﬂts
lurlough by working at vaccine centres, v
as delivery drivers, in food banks or serving haS been d Pr'o“ty
and supporung their local communizes. . [
AL various imes, we have had 98% of the durlng the pandemlc
whole team rur\oughed and whenever we
have been resdy to open up again, they
have been match fit and deliverad a great
Fuller's experience in the most challenging

of cireumnstances. [ would iike ta persarally

and communication

of that.”

thark them all most whole-hearted'y for

has been at the heart

heir non mmitrment a E .
their dedication, co trnent and loyalty Revenue and other income
We have now recpened the entire astate,
albe't with contirued social distancing srd
zable service restrictions, and have usad the
pastyear w sery - investing in our pubs and
h_otels, accelerating d\glta\_ projects and
rightsizing cur teams, While it May have

£73.4m

Capital investment

£16.5m

been an unusual year in terms of revenue,
we have emerged in the best possible
posiuon operationally as the country stands
ready to begin shaking ofF the spectre

of coronavirus,

We started the yesr with a clear strategy,
purpase and vision, Whils the pundemic
may have altered the short-tarm tactical
activity that delivers the strategy, the
OVE‘rdrCh\ﬁg pﬂnclp‘ei dare U”Chrﬂﬁged_
This clear focus, aimed at delivering
sustainable returns for the |ong Lerm,

15 a5 relovant as ever and with our pubs
ana hotels reopened and erdmg agan,

W dre optlmlst\'c ahaut the future.

1 From centinuing operations.
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Prudent approach to navigating

the pandemic

During the year under revicw, we have
accessed tho varnious Governrment relief
Dr\d COFONAavITLLS SUPPOrt Modsures
available For much of the year, we have
had 98% of cur team rembers on the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
("CJRS"), with the Company topping up
all salanies to 80%. We also put in place
£100 milhon of Funding through the Coud
Corporate Financing Facility (“CCFF)
and have benefited from the vanious grants
that have been an offer, the suspension
of business rates and the hospitality VAT
reduction. We are grateful far all of thesc
measures, but despite this our average
cash burn dunng the periods of total
closure has been £4-5 milien per montn.
\lAJllth the per\Ddﬁ DF enFDrCed :|CSU|‘G
lasting longer than anyone could have
anticipated and a comnutment to exit

the panderic in a position of strength,
wo decided at the end of the financial
yoar to undertake an equity raise,
successfully generating £52 millhon

of met proceeds in Apnd 2021,

Lookirg after our teams and Tenants

has been a prionty during the pandemic
and commurnication has been st the
heart of that. We led the industry in
cancelling commercial rent ahesd of the
Government's enforced closure and this
was very well recerved, For our Leams

ir our Managed Pubs and Hotels, and

in the support centre, the Fuse digital
communication system we implemented
back in 2017 proved to be a popular and
useful toal, providing 4 quick and nstant
way to share infarmation and video
messages, which have been really well
received. We alvo hosted a mumber of
webinars when we had more detailed
information to impart and these became
arepulr Fxture prior to each reopening,
The success of these wobinars has cemented
their place in our commurmcations toclkit
and 15 anotner positive learmng that we wi'l
take forward,

One af the areas we have paid particolar
attertion tos the heslth and wellboing
of cur teams during the pandemic
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive’s Review ccntinued

Through Fuse, we have shared hints, tps and
couTses on coping and regularly prometed
the wide range of suppart on offer from

the Licensed Trade Chanity We provided
supermarket vouchers for those most
mpacted during the tough third lockdown,
The resporse from our team members

has been very positive. We also provided
Fuller's vouchers to tearn members who
volunteered ir thair local communities while
furloughed for them to share with therr
fellew volunteers by way of thanks

On reopering cur estate, we took

a rational approach. Decmions were taken
@n 1 site by site basis and were based on
the dats available from o range of sources
an approach
which allowed us to mimimise losses for the

both internal and external

peniads inwhich tne estate was part aily
reopenea. Tollswing the last lockdown,
we reopened 121 Managed Pubs and
Hotels on or sacn alter 12 Aol 2021 with
cutside trading only, with the remainder
cf the estate apening or 17 May 2021

Positioning the business

for long-term growth

At the start of the year, we completed the
iniegration of the suppert functiens for
both Bel & The Cragon and Cotuwold
[rns & Hoteh‘ and the de\wery af the
Teansitional Services Agreernent ("TSA™
with Asani We slso cormpleted the sale of
the Stable Pizza sand Cider Limited ("The
Srable”), a leasehsla business, ta Three
Joes This streambined the business and
allows us to focus on the areas that wil
drive our growthin the future,

These actions, combined with the sale of
rhe Fuller's Beer Business in Apnl 2019,
provided an apperturity to make further
changesin cur zentral functions - crest'ng
3 leaner, more ef icient. support centre
ream desigred Lo assist a deq cated pubs
and hetals busiress,

This exercise was comp eted ir the frst kalf
of the year and wg acg corf demt we haue
the rgnt peoplz in the right plices to
£ONLIPLE 1 griw the bus ress ¢ the futurs,
botk orgarical y ard through accu st ons
srd doalzpmaonts 4t tne sppropr ate ime,
We slvo reviewed the size and composnon
of curtear. st bouse lewe 3rd. although

nerrade a nomper of reduncancies. thase

nerekeptio g~ arrum Aspariaiths

cxoroise, ue 2 s succensfUly redep oyed
A rumber o7 pECE € 1o tner pubs and

natels stk tbo Fol'er’s estan

“The onset of the
coronavirus pandermic
forced us to rethink
our customer journey,
removing contact points
and improving our use

of digital technology.”
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Duning lockdown we introduced a new
range cf online learming opportunities 1o
help our teams develop both persenally
and professionaly The courses were

del vered through Fuse and focused on
we'llbeing and developing important hfe
skills, everything from acquinng new digizal
skills to learning a new language. During
the yoar 1,616 courses were completed
with the most popular courses bemng
around managing Time, Managing
emotions, and wellbeing

Fmal\y, to underpm the rlghL Ledam, we
need the nght systems ard we have used
the downtime duning the year to identify
an appropriate, first class central finance
syster. As g result, we will be rolling out
our aew Microseft Business Central
soflware package n Octber this year
simplfying aur ordering ard accounts
processes and crucilly Improving the flow
and understanding of dats Lo the business,

Innovative solutions for a digital future
The onset of the coraravirus pandemic
forcad us ta rethink our customer jaurnay,
remaving contact pents and improveg
aur use of digital technology. While thase
weore implemented as 4 solution to an
mmediate problem, the learnings we have
taker and the success of these prajects,
Rave naw made them a permarent featare
of sur busirass,

Tre pre-visit journey is now key to cur
customer, Fram \c-irchlng and viewmg to
bocking and ordering This encompasses
amyrad of digital touch ponts for the
consumer in both pubs and hotels that,
to achieve optimal efficency and
africtionless jpurmey, sl need to be
seamlessty interhinked. This work s on
schedule and initial enhancements n
centraised bookings and Order & Pay

ae workmg well

The Order & Bay solution was put i pace
For the imitis reoper.ng of the estate in
JJ), st year The syste, which al ows
custamers i scar 3 R code to v ew the
e, pACe Srdets 3o pay - 3l entnoat
hiangtzleq.o tne tabe, wa tforateam
reToen, ordonrlsad an app - prowed
bozm successful and popular weth team
memoens and customers, We kae
suzeessfuly radec this ot acrass the

st4ie amd customers that use it haLe

]

g .er Fgher Net Proroter Szores bester
; .

psFor the team smd migrstea to rrare

premurm ar rks



The impravements ta our booking platform
shorten the customer journey and

auto -confirmed bookings now accoun: for
nearly twe thirds of all reservations made.

Meanwhile, the central salos team has been

instrumental in CNCOUTdgiNg customers (o
look outside our peak penods and, where
necessary, conwider dlternatve Fuller’s
venuas ta dedl with demand broaden;mg
our pedk trading times and reducing last
uales Durmg Ju|y and /\USUSL last YEar,
our central sales team delivered over

one milicn covers.

At the ta’ end of 2019, we adapted our
accommadat-on markeling strategy to
focus on the domeslic tourism marset

a decivion that has been vindicated w'th
the uphlt in staycauons since the outbreak
of the pandemic Access to this market
has beer further bossted by search engine
opbimised hotel finders, focusing on
acquiring new customers around key
domestic heliday activties such as dog
Fricrdly hotels i the New Forest. This
drave bookings n our hotels and pubs with
rooms and 15 of our accommodation sites
had record accommodation weeks despite
the pandemic. | the Catswold Inns &
Hote s business, which we acquired in
October 2019, we worked particularly
hard to buld a good digital customer
Journey for people booking and aur
success s reflected in the website
conversion rate rising 28% wath a 19%,
rise in direct website revenue.

This digital customer journey underpins
aur marketmg strategy and key to this

15 our single customer view database.
During the year this dutabase has grown
by 42% to 1.6 millon people, of which
over 500,000 ure opted in and fully
contactable. The largest dats sources were
cur booking engine, Design My Night,
and Wireless Social, our wifi prov{der
The Cotsweld Inns & Hotels database
also saw strong growth, increasing by
103%, and we have grown the Fuller’s sacial
medid sudierce toa duning the yoar walh
Incredsas across Ficebook, Twitter

and Instagram of 12%,15% und

20% respectively.

Yhi'e cur pubs may have beer closed for
much of the year. our website was very
much open for business. We had mare
custarmer cngagement than ever on qur
new pub flndor\ with wvisits up 55,7%
aganst the prior year, largely driven by
aur Pubs Reopering finder,

Tempestuous Times

Even coranavirus couldn’t stop our ever popular
Shakespeare in the Garden from toking place.
Never has The Tempest, performed here at The
Windmiil in Portishead, been more oppropriate.
(@weoreapenbar

Instagram followers

18,300

Number of people on our database

1.6m
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At all digita points of interaction, we
collect data - which helps us understand
what consumers are buying and how they
are behaving, This gives us the ability to
communicate casily and efficiently with
aur customers and potential customers
and continues to succeysfully convert

to incrensed baokings. It is supparted

by incredible in pul:\ activily mc\udmg
Shakespeore in the Garden and the
fortheoming Comedy on Tug

This mix DFdlg\tdl commumcation-s
prometing exciting in-puk aetiaty drives
spend per head, atlracts now customers,
and pravides more reasans for exisling
custcmers to visit. YWe will cantinue to
man tor which digital levers tramslate into
the highest proFlt and constantly review
and revise cur online cormmunications, while
rot jeopardiung the legendary personai
hospitality for which Fuller's s famous.

Well-invested pubs in

stunning locations

The foundation of our business is our
predominately freehold pub estate and
investrment in the estate 1s a key tenet

of Fuller's success, White many of our
competitors suspended thair capex
programmes during the pandeeic, we did
the opposite - MAKIFISING this oppor[unity
to complete planned investments and
brmg\ng farward cthers to Luke advantage
duriﬂg the enforced clasure

During the year, we have completed alarge
number of investment schemes mc\uding
10 transformational refurbsshments at sites
ncluding The Coach & Horses in Soha,

The Elephant in Finchley, The Fox & Pelican
at Grayshottin Hampshire and The King's
Armis Hotel in Woodstock. We have two
further ongoing schemes that began inthe
last financial year - The Kingswood Arms
in Kingswood near Banstead, which opened
towards the end of June, and The Red Lion
ir Wendover, which cpened on 7 Juty 2021
as our seventh Bel & The Dragon ate We
also opened one brand new wite during the
year - The White Horse at Wembley, in
the shadaw of the iconic Wembley Arch
and perfectly poised to benefit from the
delayed Eurcpean Championships,

We have also used the closure period

to undertake smaller schemes acrass

a number of Cotwwold nms & Hotels

ard Bel & The Dragen vites, completing
works to further enharce these already
wonderful properbes
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive’s Review continued

The pandeuz bas put o firm facus on
outside spaces and pub gardens - which
have scen amincregsed level of avestmen:
Weinvested heavily in “wirterisation”
projects during the year and we wil be
investng a further £4 milhon in over 90
schemes durng this financial year, ready
for the autumn. Outside spaces can now
e pre booked snd cur custamers are
more accustormed te beingin the open air.
With a huge range of innovst ve solutions,
including stretch tents, gant tecpees,

huts, sheds and pergolas to keep custormers
warrn and dry, we expect Lo see this trend
continue. There is no doubt that the status
of the pub garden has been elevated and the
development of, and investment im, these
outstanding areas will ensure that the pub
gorden s now a yaar round assel, not ust

for emjey ng on the August Bank Haliday

Tenanted Inns

Our high quality Teranted Inns cant nug
to play animportsnt sirategc rale m our
talinced estate and, at the very start of
the pandemic, we Loo< the dec’wion to
suspend commeraial rent for our Tenants
during per’ads of closure. The benefits
o this decision are now being ~ealised as
our Teronts used the savings to smprove
tneir pubs ard have emerged from the
pardemic debl fres and 11 pole positizn
for reapening. When trading has been
possible, we nave teken a bespoke vicw
by pub Lo ensure 4 fair and appropriate
rent has been charged

Threughout the lackdown, we have kept
our Tenants infermed with tips snd traiming
rnaterials to kelp therm through the ciosure
periods and to reopen safely and profitab’y
We have also provided suppert on mental
nealth and refunded unopened kegs

ard casks ta further help with cash o,

Inreturn, our Temants have been qu ck to
reapen whenal cwed All opered r Jui,
2020, alker some were alittle cautinus
ang openee a few weeks a‘ter lockdown
anded, but the puns traden sery sl

durrathe surmmer, making -he most of
tre Gesarnmerss Ear Dot fo Helg Our
scheme Like the fAaraged estste, trading
stovied as restr shimes t ghtened in the
utuma, and Tost pubs strugaled througn
tre staggered opering ana clowng of

tne ter systeT ard were aread, ¢ oscd

5
when the fUll cokdown was re niroducec

i Janiaary lamplaasec to confirr kot

a p'ab(\ Are e OFE"T ard 'f:idl"g

During the lockdawn, we progressed with
plans to mprove the traming and induction
pracess for Tenants with the additien of
3 new tear member, whose sole lozus

15 around recruiting new Tenants and
ensuring they are fully inducted and
supported as they start thew partnership
wth Fuller’s, This has been well recoved
ard has beer instrurnental inreducing
vacancies in our lenanted Inns. tam
delighted tc say that s Rippon bas
preved to be an excellent leader for our
Tenanted Inns business ard when our
Tenanted pubs started te reopen from
Apriowe did not have 3 aingle vacancy.

An evolving and engaging

ESG strategy

This year has seen 2 major change in cur
approach to corporate soc al responsibilicy
wath 1n cvolved Ervronmenta’ Social
Governance ("ESG”) programme now
irtegral 1o aur business strategy Under
the banner of Life s too geod to woste,

we have three work streas covering the
emviranment, our communitics and our
people. We arc i the process of recruit ng
adedicated Head of Susta natility to drive
the ESG progrzmme - and in particular

the envirenment and commurity elements,

@

Eat Out to Help Out

The Government's Eat Qut ta HE\p QOut scheme
definitely helped encournge customers to come
back to the pub last August — and it gave us lots
te shout about on sociof medra.

£EotOutToHelpOut
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Qur rew approach to addressing ESG vall
see our commitment to these three areas
underpin our strategy, our decision making,
and our vison. We have always looked to
reduce our carben footprint, and now it

will be a reguirement In our investment
case, We have always played a rolein

our communiies — and we will brmg the
community more inte the business and
ensure that our support 5 not just “inancial,
but 5 helistic and integrated approach to
workmg with aur charlty partners.

Under the framework of Qur pecple ore too
good to waste, we wil focus on three are 1y
wellbe'ng, genuine carecrs and belonging
Unclusion). This farms part of the wider
people plar o create a compeling people
prepcsition under the barner True ta You

Looking forward to the future

The end o roste ctions 15 now ust 11 days
avay and our pubs and hotels ars pe-fectly
pliced to benehit from growing consumer
confidence and the return of normal life
Pubs sre social spaces that thrive on
soentaneity - o quick pot, staying for
ab'tlenger to chat lo semeonc al tne bar
orjust walking past & beaunful pub gardenr
and deaiding to step for 5 biie to eat
without pre booking a table. | knew that,
41095 our estate, our teams are excited Lo
see those behaviours returm.

The boom rstaycations and desire Lo gt
back out with friends has led ta strorg
trading in parts of our estate - particular’y
Cotswald Inns & Holely and cur rural pubs
with roorns - and there is an incredio’y
DUSy 324500 2 come with numerous
weddingsand a high level of advarce
bockmgs With our eritire estate open,

lice far hke sales for the 12 weeks 1o 3 July
2021 3re runring st /6% of 2019 leuels,
casn gencration is SUrong and our net

debt levels are halow whare they ware
pre-pandermic Thewnporiance of cur
perfectly ba'anced estate nas comein to
play with a-fferent parts of the bus ress
show ng different recovery trajaciores
3nd wic 372 very comfortab e wib the

Company's currert pos tior.

Wehaeacearerol pric-tes o the
next 12 months We vl cortinue to deler
our strategic goals, neestin cur estate,
snd mplermont our fgw cenirs finarce

system. Cther projects, such as aur

emp oyer brand and further weark arcund

our dwgw:a’ CUSLOMOr JGurney, vl ne



progressed and we will, as ever,

keep a watching brief on appropriate
opportunitiesin the rmarket | the

short term, we will contimue to addross
challenges around recruitment and supp\y
chain, which are having animpact right
across the hospitdlity sector.

The clements that combine to make
Fuller's such an smaz ng company have
been reitcrated many Limes belarc and are
d\w.iys worth rcpcn-stimg The foundat ors
are our iconic, predominately freeheld,
weil invested eslate of stunnng pubs srd
hotels, which are goographically southern
based and cover aity, town, vilage and
rurat locations. At our hesrt are the
aMmazing tedm memoers and entreprancurial
Tenants that make up the Fuller's Famﬂy,
and we are driven by a cledr, consislent,
|Dng-term strategy. Combined wath aur
strong Ba'ance ShCCL, acash gcnc'rrsLivc'
business and the fact that the erdunng
apped| of the high quality British pub has
never been ~tranger, we look to the future
with canfidence

(Semon

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

8 July 2027

{@TheAngelAndCrownRichmond

The Ange! & Crown in Richmond did en
amazing job of feeding the homeless during
fockdown, providing a takeawsy meal and,
fater, essentials including clothes and toiletries.
The pub was widely recognised for this amazing
contribution to the community.

Thanks to
you, this
year we have
achieved...

@onfy,akpavement_away / @Fu”ers

A team from Fuller’s was delighted to
participate m a 48 hour relay for the charity
Only a Pavement Away, which finds careers in
hospitality for peaple who are, or gre in danger
of becoming, homeless.

{@elephantinn / @NoahsArkHospice /
@NLondonHospice

With some remaining stock ot The Elephant
in Finchley nearing the end of its shelf fife
during the first fockdown, generaf manager
Bart Stachecki and his cofleagues decided to
sefl it off for charity to local residents, raising
valuable funds for twa local hospices.

15

@EpilepsyAction

Leah Murrell, our deputy manager ot The Mill
at Elstead, ran an onfine fundraiser for Epilepsy
Action to sy thanks for all the help she had
received from the charity since being diagnosed.

[@Pennies_orguk

We are proud to be o supporter of Pennies

and delighted to see this excellent initiotive hit
a real milestone when it celebrated 100 million
micro-donations made by customers across its

retail partners.

({@beehivepub

The BEG”INE ;n Eghﬂm DPEnEd a fDDd mﬂrkf‘t

in its car park with o delivery service for those
who couldn’t make it. In a further step to
maintain finks with its requlars, the pub also ran
a virtual pub quiz through its Facebook page
during lockdown.

([@ploughinnealing

Many of our pubs showed their support for key
workers with picture displays in their windows.
They also joined in when the nation clapped for
carers - hke Richard Cavenagh, the general
manager at The Plough i Ealing, and his famly
seen here an their balcany,

N\()!/\JO!‘\D

y

G
Q
<
o
=
o
o
2
o]
™

‘S]UOL,UO']U]S ‘UDUL’U}j

UQIELLIC U} [CUIIPPY



STRATEGIC REPORT

Qur Business Model

DESCRIPTION

Customer Offer

We are famaus for delicious, fresh, seasonal
food and ar extensive range of bears, wines,
spirits and soft drinks dx well o5 over 1,000
boutique bedrooms. We have ¢ clear vision to
deliver memaorable experiences that ensure our
customers leave nappier than when they arnved

Iconic Properties

Owr predomuinantly freehsld estate is mainly
located in the South and South East of Eng'a”d,
It sa grejt balance with rur3|‘ suburban and urban
sites. it includes serme truly iconiz sites such

as The Stli & Westir Old Partsmeuth and

The Churchiil Arms in Nottng Hill,

Tenanted Inns Estate
COur Tenantcd estale s an \mpor:‘mt part of aur
balsnced pusiness and 15 mghly cash generative.

People

Qur people make the rea difference Lo cur
Eusiress. Whother dca’ing with consumers or
colloagues. they deliver autstanding service from
nar ic boordreow. Our purpose is happy te+ms.
happy customers - and we strive to ensure tnat
everyone knows the key rale they play in delivering
thal purpese. wision and strategy.

Digital Technology

This encompassen a myriad of d'gital touck pointy
for the consumsr in both pubs and hote's that,

0 schigse optimal e*ficlercy and 5 friction'ess
Jourrey, shineed to be seamlessiy inter! nked

'n addition, cartiruec develooment of our aigitsl
rechno'cgies and systems further arnance our
cusiomer ;c'wg-uledge and und{'rs[ancmg ard oreste

o ficiencies ir our irta-nal procesies

Financial Strength

Our strorg Salarze Skest and prucert app-aach

to cask marsgemert ensure that we are we ' placed

w0 grow both organica yand trrsugn scgumuion
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HOW WE CREATE VALUE

Managed Estate
Tne purchases made by the customer are tne
ma,ority contribution to our revenue snd prof t

Tenanted Inns

The revenue streams from th s part of the
business mclude rent and incomic from the sa'c
of beers, winas and spiits to our Tenants,

Supplier Collaboration

We viark wizh our suppliers for muty s berefit,
creaurg dist retwe products that can on'y oe

en oyed st Fuller's 7ms rodudes bespoke food ke
sur Lordor Parter Srsced Salmer ancice-

des
i ourouts - Goth

argsr From Caverstoke Park Far~ talscirz

beer; Elate) Ty [Ir'.’][ re JnoGul
thro.gh the _ong Term Supply Agraement stk

A-aboand theough sal suppl er co''sborsuons



QOUTPUTS

Revenues

We penerate reverues from the day to day
operatons in our Managed Pubs and Hotels, a5 well
an from cur Teranted Lo eslale. in addition, we
generate some rentdl revenue From unlicensed
properties. Anather scurce of income 1s rebatas
from trurd party supphers, which wa receive by
achieving purchasing targets through higher sales
in our Managed and Tenanted pubs

Cash Flow

We have a highly cash generative business and

a careful approach to our financial management
By ensuring that we always preduce mare than
enough rovenue Lo Covar our costs, we mantain
our hguidity which allows us to expand both
organically and through acquisitions.

Reinvestment and Refurbishment

By mantaining h\gh standards in terms of both
structure and décor, we protect our assets, We also
regularly irvest in upgrading our properties with
transfarmational schemes that reflect changing
markets and customer behaviour. In addition,

we Invest in new properties - both single and,

f appropriate, group acquisitions in ine with our
stratepy (see page 18).

THE YALUE WE SHARE

Customers
Cur customers leave napprer than they arrrved,
Tollowing a memorable, premium experierce

(sec our purpose and vision, page &),

Shareholders

Prior to the recent pandemic, our progressive
dridend policy had shown increasing returns for
over seven decades. The Board hopes to resume
dividend payments once the business s agan
trading prefitably on a sustained basis.

People

Cur tearm members tell us that they enjoy being part
of the Fuller’s family and that they appreciste our
investment in their wellbeing, We prawvide best in
class traiming and develepment programmes and
genuine opportunities to develop through internal
career progression. Our policies ensure thal we Fave
arespectful and inclusive working envirenment and

a consistent approach to supparting our people

Communities

We strive to play a key role in the communities and
neighbourhoads in which we operate with support
for iocal events and groups. We support a number
of chanties, including Special O'ympics GB

at a corporate level and, where possible, offer

matched funding for our support centre employees

and general managers where they are undertaking
Il;ndr.awxmg Acbiibics

MOWIDAY
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While it may have been a strange year,

we have continued to pursue our strategy
~ with the addition of a fifth key element,
focused on E5G. Here we review the steps
we have made over the past year.

To deliver a distinctive
customer experience across
the whole Fuller’s estate

Building genuine partnerships

while sourcing the right range of
authentic products to give Fullers
competitive advantage

Optimising the customer's journey
digitally, both at central and local level
to drive a seamless interaction and
improve conversion rates

Broadening the appeal of our pubs and
hotels to new and existing customers
through a targeted offer and relevant
omni-channel marketing

Surprising and delighting our customers
in our venues by managing their
experience, pre, during and post visit.

Progress:

This year has been funoamental'y
mpacted by estate closures and
aperational restrictions due to the
carsravirus pandeic ond asscciated
lockdowns. However, we have conlinued
Lo work wth our suppliers Lo ensure we
have tha best and mast relevant products
in our portfolio ang are in the best possible
pasition aswe return to busingss as usual,
We have also worked 1o ensure cur
customer journey and offer s relevant,
well presenied and communicated.

We have continued to deliver memcrable
expeniences - wth our ever-papuar
Shakespeare in the Garden programmic
taang place ina Cavd securcenaronment
durng the pandemic, wnch received

a fantastiz reception from sudierces
ATross our esiate

lmorg.ementy have noluded restrerts n
cur auts de spaces, whick have become key
1z tradimgoost-panderic, tre dociopent
cf dpitat processes o Impro e tne cusiome-
Joangy ard ennancements o tha Wiy we

<

ax, rescrye and cortiree tables 4l
suppertad by mnavat.e social medi ard

digita commumications.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Strategy

Priorities:
Buld on aur single customer vew
database to further improve the success
of our targeted e-rmal compaigns

- Map the role of technology i the
custormer journey and maximsse the
use of digital toals in bulding sales and
mprovirg the customers d\gl(dJJourr\cy

- Cortinue to deliver innovative and
exciting customer expenences -
in a safe and secure envirorment
Measurement of gur success through
invested ke for like sales grc\wth and
Net Promotar Score

influences:
Customers need an experience
that cannot be repicated at home
We need Lo adapt our operation to
reet changes in behsvour and
expectations following on from the
corenavirus pandemic and changes
Lo workihome Wife balance
Monitor and respond ta changes
consumer trends, parucularly around

nealthier lifastyles

(2

To grow by carefully
targeted acquisitions and
developments that enhance
our premium business

. To maintain the fabric of the
estate, ensuring high standards
and legal compliance for both
colleagues and customers
Streamlined project process,
utilising skills within the team
and pool of designers, delighting
customers and enhancing our offer
Maximise the potential from our
exceptional estate, impreving
operational efficiency,
premiumisation and stand out
Keeping appraised of potential
acquisition opportunities to add
value and by continuous assessment
of our estate.

Progress:
Dunirg ke yoar wo corpletad the 20

mregransa of Corswaid lars & Hagls,

acquirad durrg the proacas fininos' yoar

Cotsvealalnre & —otals 5 an exce
Frarh oor existng bus ness, add rg 20

ont

bedracms o gur cstate, and this ares
gerfor—eg camparati.e'y well caring tre

SO0 et any

25t ons be ng ver s in sogue
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We also opened The White Harse at
Wembley - a great now pub in the shadow
of the icome Wembley Arch, amidst a new

develogrment of 6,000 homes,

During the periods of enforced closure
this year we have taken the opportunity

to complete a large number of investment
schemes, including 10 transfermational
refurbishments. We have also invested
outside spaces and pub gardens in order to
maxunise the use of these spaces outside
of the summer manths

Priorities:
To complete further outdoor projects
to maximise the garden Lrading area
To cantinue with cur progremme af
INvestment In our estate to ensure we
atways have the best pub i the ares
To seek further acquisitions that
enhance qur estate and increase our
customer base

Measwremaent of our success through

OpEI’dUQﬁS revenut amd PrOF\t ngWCﬂ.

Influences:
Availability of g quality wites
and opportunibies.

3]

To build a leaner cost
base by investing and
Emproving processes

Building genuine partnerships that
keep input cests in check and give
Fuller's competitive product advantage
Drive collaboration by creating
effective cross-functional teams

A relentless and agile approach to
continuous improvement and efficiency,
with decisions backed by data

Taking responsibility for our future

by putting a value on sustainability

in every decision.

Progress:

Thicyeashas been haasly impacted by
corande rus and Lne assoc 312¢ rostr ot ars
and pracedares that ba.c been necessary
dunng ine penods pubs ba.e becn able

ta trade Wa >UCCES)‘:\4“>/ impementsd

3 range of new pracesses dnd orocedures,
suchas Order & Pay, wnch slows tae
Castommes to peruse tne menu, place

2 order arc piy the bl withoat les.ing
o - table. Lo 2nsurs tne safet, of our

customers and tearr members in ight



of the coronawirus outhreak Thewe
procasses are now embedded i our
operdt:ons and have stood us 1n good
stead as we move through the reopening
phases during the new financial year,

During the year, we have a'se enhanced
the way we use our central backing systemn
and tearm. This has further improved the
customer jeurney and ncreased auto
mnﬂrmpd reservatimng W\Eh hetter
scheduling of bockings, ard ensuring we
offer suitab'e alternative venues within the
estate where sites are fully booked.

Following a full review of the supply chair,
we have moved toa new ordermg system,
that sees erders placed twice weekly ard
delivered two days later, driving better
plannirg and forecasung, whistimproving
elficieney for our supphers,

Dur rg the year we have identified,
planned and are already well underway
with the project to transition to o more
suitable finance system for a focusad
pubs and hotels business, which will
both simplify our erdering and aceounts
processes and improve the flow of data
to the business.

Priorities:
Complete implementstion and roll
out of the new Microsoft Business
Central software package during
auturmn 2021
Build om our single view customer
database by identifying key interaction
points in the custemer journey and
digital solutions to improve the
customer journey

- Measure our success through
gross profit margins, Net
Pramoter Score, contactahle
database numbers and marketing
CAMPAIgN return an Investment,

Influences:
Changes in consumer behaviaur due to
the impact of the coronairus pandomac
« Increased customer use of digizal
technolopy
Impartance of suteguarding persanal data,

o

Supporting these
objectivesiy recruiting,
developing and investing
in the Eest people

A modern, transparent and fair
reward package that attracts

and retains the right people and
incentivises high performance
Aninclusive workplace where
wellbeing is taken seriously, and
everyone has a place and a voice
Genuine oppertunities for a career
and a strong talent pipeline with
the right skills for the future

A compelling and differentiated
employment brand coupled with

a best-in-class recruitment experience.

Progress:

Durirg the pandemuc, the health and
wellbeing of our teams has been supported
in severdl ways We have shared hints,
tps and courses, provided access to
rescurces, regular video updates and
more targeted supportin the form of
supermarket vouchers for those most
impacted. During the year 1,616 online
courses were completed on a range of
subjects as diverse as managing tme
and learmnag a new language.

We supported our Tenants dur'ng the
panderric in a vanety aof ways, including
suspending cormnmercial rent during
periads where they were unable to trade
and by signpasting sources of financial and
emotional support. As a resuit, our Tenants
have been in a posit'on of sirength as they
reopened their pubs

Prionities:

Continue to find the best peaple
through a strong employer brand -
work 15 well underway 11 this arca
Ensure we are fit for the future with
the rught orgnnistituoml sLructure,
capability and roles

Ersurs our people expenicnce ergages
cur team mermbers, fulfils the'r needs

and ambitions, and encourages the best
people 1o stay ar Fuler's

Undertake an employee satsfaction
survey during the current full year
Cortinue to rol out our new empbyer
brand - Truets You  and support this
with engoing personal development and
Career progression

19

Measure our success through staff
turnover, applicalion numbers per role,
number of successful apprenticeships
and staff engagement

Influences:
Impact of potential changes to the size
and composition of our workfarce in
the hght of coronavirus and chonging
consumer behav.our
Imipact of Brexit on the labour markel
pool within the hospitality industry
Avalability of labour with appropriate skills.

©

A clear ESG strategy under

Life is too good to waste

A road to net zero delivered through
energy and waste management
reducing our carbon footprint
Supporting the communities in which
we operate through charity links and
community-based initiatives
Supporting our teams through training
and development, health and weltbeing,
and a sense of belonging.

Progress:

ESG has a'ways been important to us,

bul this year we have added this as our
fifth strategic prionity to recognise its
importance at the heart of tne business
and will report progress on thisin our

next Annual Report, We sre in the process
of hirmg a dedicated Head of Sustainability
who will be responsible for implementing
the programme and setting and delivering
KPls against it. Further details on the

Life s toa good to waste imibialive can be
found in the Carporate Social
Responsibility Report o page 34

Priorities:
Establishing o read to net zero through
energy and waste management,
reducing our carbon footprint

- increasing aur support for our
chzir\ty partners
Creutmg anirclusive workplace,
continuing our range oFWcIfbcmg
intiatives and career planning

Influences:
Impact of Government regulation ond
incentives cn environmental initiatives
Media and consurmer focus on
ESG related issues
External influences such as caronavirus
or Brexit provide add-tional chailenges
to the wellbaing of our Leams.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR EMPLOYEES

Feeling like a team even though
we couldn’t be together -
keeping our people connected,
motivated and engaged

With our team members spread across the South of England,
regular communication during the pandemic was essential.
Our digital learning and communications platferm, Fuse, was
used for frequent informative and entertaining videos fram
the Chief Executive and for online learning to keep our
teams engaged. At a house level, it was much the same.
Take The Victoria in Paddington, where Chris Cochrane and
Helen Wilson kept in touch with their team through
a combination of WhatsApp, quizzes and even a collaboration
video with all the team submitting their contributions
individuslly to create samething unique for The Vie.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review

ADAM COUNCELL
FINANCE DIRECTOR

“The focus during the long periods
of closure was to ensure that the
Group emerged strongly once the
estate reopened, with continued
investment in capital projects and

our digita| oFFering.”
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Financial Position and Performance
All figures below are for the continuing
operations of the Group

Group revenue and other income felt by
7%, sipnifying the detrimental impact

that the enforced closure of our busines
Lmsurprl%mg‘y h'id an Lhe re'ﬁd“.\‘. Oﬂ
average our pubs were only open to trade
for 2G% of the days w.thin the FY21
Ciaricial year and even whilst open they
were trading under severe restrictions.

The significant decl'ne in revenue resulted in
an adjusted loss befare tax of E4R 7 million
(FY20, profit of £19.4 million) and statutory
loss before tax of £578 milhon (FY20
profit of £8.4 millian}. In periads where

we have been able to trade, albet with
restrictions, trddihg has been CRCOUraging
with poswt:ve cash ger.crdtwoﬁ ard like for like
sales in Mdndged Pubs arnd Hotels at 80%
durmg the period between 4 July 2020

and 5 September 2020 Since then the
restrictiors became more orerous. resulting
in Lhe eventual closure of cur entire estate
around the end of December, unt’l those
pubs with autside space could reoper an

12 April 2021,

The focus during the lang periods of
closure was ta ensure that the Group
emerged strongly once the estate
recpened, with continued investrment

r capital projects and our digital offering
However, it glso meant ersuring we
protected our financial position and kept
cash burn to a minimum, The Group
implementad a number of mitigating
actions to reduce cash cutflows and
maintain iquidity, including the decision
not to pay a dividend for FY20 and FY 21,
no bonuses for FY20, a voluntary salary
reduction by the Board and Exccutive
TEdrﬂ rﬂE‘mbeF\ DFQS\J/A H'—Td 20%
rEHPG‘CtIVe|y, dﬂd Carry\ﬂg out an exercise
to rightsize teams across tho entire pub
estate and stresmiine the support function.

Aswell as reducing costs intarnally, the
Group dalso part|cwpdted In Sovernment
initisbives to protect the viability of Lthe
business, mc|ud|ng the CJQS, Fot Cut to
Help Out scheme and Business Rates grants.
Thraugh the vanous scherres the financial
results benefited by £479 millon. The Group
was aso confirmed as an cligble ssuer under
LhC CCFF \Chem[‘ |1nd |'\‘1UC‘d COmrﬂC‘rCld‘
paper of £100.0 mithon, Even wath sl the
measures put in place and the assistance
rece ved fram the Government. cash bun
WS drour\d £4 5 ml”i@r‘ Per mCr\L"T.

Like for like sales when open

307

Net debt excluding leases

£218.1m

Snortly after the end of the financial

year the Group raised [52 million, net of
expenses, through the issue of new equity.
This lesves the Group in a strong financial
position with sensible levels of debt given
our asset rich Balance Sheet It s from this
pasition of strength that the business will
be able to maximise the opportunities apen
to it as the economy reopens and trading

gans mamentumm.

Cn 7 June 2020, the Group sold The
Stable ta Three Joes for an enterprise
value of £0.5 millian, which resulted
inaloss on disposal of £0 9 million

A5 The Stable was sold duning the peniod,
the results have been reported vathin
discontinued cperations, The armounts
showr as discontinued operations within
the financia’ statements are an operating
lose of EO % milion as well as the ioss on
disposal. As part of the transaction,
Fuller's retained ownership of the five
freencld properties associated with

The Stable business

23

Finance Costs

Total net finance costs (before separately
disclosed items) have increased by

£0 8 million o £8.4 million. The increase
s driven by the interest cost recognised on
the urwind of the lease iabilitics. This has
ncreascd by £0 & mllon because of rent
congessions receved during the cousse of
the financial year which have beer treated
as lease mad fications and rerncasured gt
aningressed neremental borrowing rate
(“IBR™) from the IBR used al irception.
Interest on loans has remaned in line with
prIOF year dC‘\Pke th(‘ dVErdgC‘ mOﬂ[h‘y
bOrrmeg% mCFCds’\'r\g by E74 F‘HIHIOH,

as this was of fset by the lower interest

rates on e CCFF.

The net interest experse on our defined
benef't persion scherme s showr w thin
separately disclosed items as the charge i
driven by market conditions at an arbitrary
point in time and 15 not associated with our
undcr\ymg erding

Separately Disclosed Items

The ret positian on separately

disclosed items of £91 million expense
(2020 £11.0 millien expense) comprises
principally £12.9 million of impairment on

a number of properties, night of use assels,
lease recewable and goodwil Additionally,
£12 million cFreorg-ammtlor\ COsbs wore
recognised in the pcrlod which include
redundancies as aresult of Lhe pandemic
as well as costs associated with the hive

up of Bel & The Dragon and Cotswald Inns
& Hotels These costs were marginally
offset by £5.8 milion profis on disposal
recognised in relation to seven properties
mast of which were unlicensed properties.

Tax

Afull analysis of the tax charge for the
year s set ot in note 7 to the finsancial
statements. Tax has been provided for

at an effective rate of 18.3% on adjusted
losses (2020 restated: 371% on adjusted
profits) from continuing operatians, The
overall effective tax rate of 16.6% s due to
the separately disclosed iterns being taxed
at an effective tax rate of 7.7%,.

Avprior yesr adjustment to the net deferred
tax ablity has been recogrised e the year,
inrespect of an understatement in the
base cost of property, plant and equipment
recoverable on a sales bosis, This has
resulted inan increase of £4.0 milion in net
asscts at 31 March 2019 and a reduction
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Financia' ReVieW continued

52 weeks -
endad E
27 March - A
20N
Revenue 3nd ather income fm cr
Managed Pubs and Hotels 64.0 286.3
Tenarted Inns 9.2 297
Unaliocated 0.2 37
Group revenue and other income from continuing operations 73.4 319.7
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 oo
Adjusted (loss)/profit by segment £m B
M-m-;g-:-c Pubs ane Hatels (26.1) 306
Tenanted Inns 1.2 1.8
Jnslocared (15.4) (15.4)
Operating (loss)/profit from continuing operations (40.3) 27.0
Frares costs (8.4) (7.6)
Adjusted (loss)/profit from continuing operations (48.7) 19.4

24

of 1.0 milben Lo the profit after tax
for FY20. The net deferred Lax habily
at 28 March 2020 has reduced by
£4.0 milliarn from E17.1million te

E13.1 million

Duning the year the significant Lax revenues
the Group generates for the Government
fell by 82%. During the 32 weeks ended

27 March 2021, the total tax conmnbution
aof the Group to the UK Excheguer was,
E15.9 raillion (2020: €879 million) in

taxes porne and Laxes collected on behalf

of coileagues, customars and suppliers. This
sigrificant reduction comprises 4 reduction
ir VAT payments of [31.7 millon to just
0.2 millicnin the year {(FY20 E319 mullion)
and a corporation tex receipt of £3 4 million
due to the losses incurred. The Business rates
ho?lddy resulted na savng of £13.6 rrillion,

Pension

The definad benelit persion scneme
deficit has decreased by £1.2 milier to
(3.5 million (2020 £4.7 million) with both
the fair value of scherre ussets ard present
value of pension abligations increasing
substamtia'ly The present value of pension
Db‘\gdL\DmS \ﬂcreﬁged by E“\88 (‘ﬂl”lcﬂ

to 147 3 milvon, which was driven by
adecresse in the discount rate from
240% 10198%% This was of fset by an
ncrease of the far value of scherne ussels
oy £20.0 millon from £123. 8 mill on to
E143.8 millior. Standard deficit recovery
payments of £2 3 million wera alsg made
dunirg the Francial year.

Shareholders’ Return

Ir hight of the closure of the estare for
the maiorty of tne financial year the
3oard is not proposing the payment
of & final divderd.

Durmg the period no A ordnary 40p
sdres were purenased imto treasury
(2020 28700 A ord rary 40p shares
for £Q 4 mllor) Tre rridale -market
quotaucn of the Company's ordimary,
shares atthe 2nc of tne francial year wns
260p. The ﬁ=gf*e%t price aunng the year

vz 820, anls b lenost was S30p

The Company’s markel capralisation
32 27 Maron 2021w £474 8 mull o

(2020 2358 Hmrhan;



2021
Cash flow tm
EBITDA (13.1)
Interest {4.5)
Tax 3.4
Warking capital (5.1}
Fension contributions and share transactions (2.6)
Cash available for discretionary spend (1.9
Caoital expenditure (16.5)
Separately disclosed iterms h .5
Property disposals 10.8
Dividends (0.1
Disposal of Stable {0.2)
Cash flow (29.4)
Non-cash mavement 13.2
Net debt movement 16.2)
2021
Saurces of finance £m
Bank debt 207.7
Orther debt 27.5
Cash (17.1)
Total net debt excluding leases 2184
Lease habilities 899
Total net debt 308.0

Cash Flow and Net Debt

Cverall net debt at 27 March 2021 has
inereased by £39.2 milion to £218.1 mill.oa
excluding leases, due to the enforced
closure of the business far a substantial
part of the financial year. Including leases,
net debt has increased by £16.2 million to
£308.0 million, reflecting a reduction in
lease fiabihnes of £23.0 million driven by
the sale of The Stable {£10.5 rmillicn) and
a number of rent concessions receved in
the year that were treated as lease
modificatians (£10.0 milhon).

Working capital cutflow of £51millon

was partly due to the amounts outstanding
from the Government for the CJR5 as
well as the reduction in the VAT labiliey
compared to the prior year

Sources of Finance

AL27 March 2021 the Group bas

£319.5 million of available facilit es, of which
£292 millon was scheduled to mature
Wlth\q [he next “2 rﬂoﬂths_ OUr Uﬂdrdwﬂ
committed facihties at 27 March 2021 were
£82 0 mullion, with a further £17.1 million
el cash held on the Balance Sheet

InJure 2020, the Group increased its
available facilities by accessing the CCFF
programme and issuing £100 million

of commercial pager.

Since year end, the CCFF was repaid in
May 2021 and the Group agreed an Amend
and Extend R‘eFln.’mclr\g of its existing

debt facilities with its relationship banks,
extending the maturity of the £192 millen
of debt facilities to 19 February 2023 and
amending the finaneial covenants to o
rmiriraum hquidity level to 31 March 2022
The Group also raised a further £52 million,
net of expenses, from an equity rdise in

/—\pri| 2021

£20 mitl-on of our borrowangs at

27 March 2021 were hedged usng

swaps at a blended interest rate of 2.30%
(excluding bank margin). The interest rate
swap agreements in place will allow us to

continue to borrow a portion of our bank
debt at a fixed nterest rale until 2022

The Group's Fmancmg 15 mix of bank
debt, debentures, curulative preference
snares, overdralt, cash and short-term

deposits, as disclosed in notes 24, 26 and
28. Other financial assets and habilitics
such as trade receivables and payables
arise throuph the Group™s operating
acuvites. The Group does not trade in
financial instruments.

Financial Risks and Treasury Policies
The Group operates a centralised Lreasury
function, which contrals cash rranagerment
and borrowings and the Groups hinancial
nisks. The abjectrves of the function are

to manage the Group's finarcial risk,

to secure cost effective funding for the
Group's operations, and to rimimise the
adverse effects of fluctuations in the
financial markets on the value of the
Group's financial assets and habilities,

on reported profitability, and on the

cash flows of the Group,

Transactions of a speculative nature are
prohibited. The Group's treasury activities
are governed by pohcies approved and
monitored by the Board.

Going Concern Statement

The Group's business aclivities, Logether
with the faclors likely to affect s future
development, performance and posinior
are set out in the Strategic Report on
pages 4 to 38 The financial position of
the Company. its cash flows, net debt and
borrowing faciities and the maturity of
those faciities are set out above and on
pages 136 to 141,

In addition, there are further details in
the financial statements on the Group's
financial nisk management, objectives and
policies in nate 28, The Directors have
outhned the assessment approsch for
going concern in the accounting pelicy
disclosure in note 1 of the consolidated
francia’ statements.

Thereis a material uncerta nty that under

3 downside scenario the Group would
breach its covenants within the going
concern period to 27 December 2022

and this may cast significant doubt about
the Group's abhity to continue as a going
concern as d scussed in note 1; however,

the Bodrd has 4 reasonable expectation that
the Compdny has ddequato TOSOLICES O
cont rue In operational existence far the
foresesable future. For these rensons, they
continue to adopt the go-ng concern basis in
prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts
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Viability Statement

The Carparate Sovernsnce Code requires
that the Directors have considered the
viability of the Group over an appropriate
pencd of tire selected by them The
Directors bave chosen to assoss this over
three financial years through 1o March
2024 as this ahgns with the Group's
strategie planming eycle and 1s supparted
by the forecasts that are presented and
approved by the Board. It takes into
consderation the Group's current position,
the potentisl impact of the principal risks
documented on pages 28 to 3Cin the
Strategic Report as well as the uncertainty
regafdmg continuing irnpacts of the
coronavirus pandernic, Given the
contirued uncertainty over the trading
conditions n the UK, the Directors believe
that any \:mger tarm forecasts are difficult

te determine al present.

The Group's base case assumes that even
though the estate was fully open from May
2021, sales in FY 22 wall still e impacted
by reduction in nlernaticral travel, slow
return ta offices and continued rapact on
consumer canhidence In FY23, the sales
will continue Lo be impacted by the
pandermic but tc a lesser degree with sales
returnirg to pra-pandermic levei by FY24,

The Group's 'orger-term farecasts

take nto account the principal nisks and
uncertaint es os det aled on pages 28 to
30. The most signif cant nisk continues
o be the pandernic snd the continued
IMBACE L imposes on trading, especially
on nternaticndl toursm and the shift

in pacple warking mare frorm home.
Longer-term risks nc’ude Ninancing as
the Group's current funding arrangements
exp re in February 2023 and the Group
will reed to be able to source sutable
:mamcmg at similar evels to tnose
currently sgreed Otherlcnger Lterm
sources of rscinclude costinflation
caused oy marcet uncertanty impacting
costs such as wages, ul it es and foad.
Consurer demand shiftz inzlud ng 3 mave
o working from hore ang a zentirued
rrond owoards neathy [fastyles, as well
as the UK econamry ard s abiliny to
rcog.onomoact the lorger-term
success of the Comrpany

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review continued

The Group has alse modelied o "downside
case” which assumes there will be three
months of full lockdown in FY22, being
December 2021 through to February
2022, and a further throe manths with
severe restrictions akin to those
experienced in October 2020 In the
downside it will take longer to recover
from the pandemic and therefare under
this seemane, without additional mitigatng
actior, the covenants in Jure 2022
through to December 2022 would

be breached.

As anncunced on 31 March 2027 the
Group agreed an Amend and Extend
Refinancing of its existmg debt facihities
wnth its relatiorship banks, extending the
maturity of the 192 million fuzilities to
19 February 2023 and amanding the
financial coverants to a minmum hgquidity

ovel to 31 March 2022

Cnthe same day it was also announced
that the Group propesed placing new '
shares up to appropr ately 20% af exnt rig
issued ‘A ordinary share capital. The

ref nancing of the facilities was condizional
on the successful equily rase On 20 April
the equity raise was appraved by the
sharenolders at Lthe Extraordinary General
feeting ("EGM”) and the ret proceeds

of E52 mulian were receved the same day.

Ir June 2C20, the Greup ncreased ts
ava lable facilities by accessng the CCF-
prograrnme whechissued £100 milien

of commercial paper. The CCFF was
repayable in May 2021 and was repaid
using the Group's avaitable facilitics and
the proceeds of the eguity rare.

Other actions that have been
imzlemented 1o reduce the cash
expenditure 2ach manth incude
:ur|oug)"mg trie deor\ty of the stdI-F,
temporany pay cuis for the Man
Board ard Execut ve Drrectors. tax ng
advantage of business rates holdays
15 agreed by tne Goverrmant 4 we
asapoly' rgter grantincome and thz
cancellstion of the fina geaderd for

bain 20235 5nd 2021 yeareras
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In the “base case”, the mimmum Lquidity
requiremnents are not forecesl to be
breached, nor are the covenants when
they revert ta mimimum leversge and
interest cover in June 2022 The
“downside case” shows that when the
cowvenants revert they will be breached
unless suflicient alternate sirategies
could be implemented. Gven the Greup
would breach covenants under the
“downside case” and although severe
itis still plausible, this gives rse to

a mateaal uncertainty over the going
concern assumptian.

Taking sccount of the Group’s current
poaition, the matoril uncertainty
descrived sbave, the principal risks facing
the business and the sensitivity anatysis,
a5 well au the potenusl mitigating actions
that the Campany could take, and tne
experience that the Cempany hasin
adapting the busiress to change, the
Board has a ressonable expectation tnat
the Campany wal be able to continue ir
oparation and meat ity habilitiey v they
fall due over the penad of the

viability assessmant

Gt Larncell

ADAM COUNCELL
FINANCE DIRECTOR

2 July 2021



At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR SUPPLIERS

Always working with our suppliers
to develop new ideas for mutual
benefit that give the customer
something to smile about too

Laverstoke Park Farm already supplies our very popufar
range of ice-creams and our buffale mozzarella. But halloumi
- now that has always had to come from Cyprus. We love
UK-based produce though, so undeterred we set out
together ta take this popular Eurepean cheese and give
it a very British twist. The result is our unique buffalomi.
This fun, delicious and innavative new addition to our menus
is made from the high quality milk of the Laverstoke Park
Farm buffalo and Hampshire cows' milk, and is already
proving to be very popular with our customers.

27

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPORT ANO ACCOUNTS 2021

N\OV\JO!\O

0]
Q
Z
g
3
S
o
2
I}
o

STUILII TS |E_’!Z)UL’UI:J

UO\]L’LUJOJU\ ‘UUO\],IP‘DV



STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

RISK MANAGEMENT

and strategic risks, These risks are then Respondfng to the
Coronavirus Pandemic

During the course of the last year the rsk

Risk Management

Managing risks effectively s key to assessed and appropriate mitgation ind
maragerment plans are implemented to
reduce the po[enud\ lkelhood and
impact The sutability o these actions

' rewvicwed through robust reporting and

moenitoring which creates a feedbacx

ensuring thal we achreve cur strategic
objectives in the long term and relabing to coronavirus was proactively
continue to deliver the high standard managed on a weekly and samatimes
our custorers, people and daily basis by the Executive Tearm.

shareholders expect

The risk management process s
ranaged by the Executive Team and
s averseen by the Audin Commitice
whichis further supported by the
axternal audit process Both the
Exccutive Team and the Audn

Risks,

Comrittes report Lo the Main Boad.

Risk Management Process
Bisks arc dentif.ed, convdered and
observed at all levels of the business

Taarn

Agdie

ncluding operational, adrministratise

Emerging Risks

Deseriptian

lacp cnab'\lng 4 Cortinuus IMmprovernant
process tobe ir place regarding nisk
miandgemaent. This includes reviewirg
ownersnip and secountability of risks
and controls across the Exocutive and

Management teams

throughout the year, Rogular risk

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The following sets out the principal
risks the business faces al present

that may impact future performance
This analysis 15 not intended to be

a comprehensive list of all risks actively
‘ mansged by the busimess The key

are preactivey managed “nancial nisks are detaled in note 28
Lo the financial statements

reporting 1s made Lo the Executive

and then reported te the

Commitiee

Risk mitigstion

UK ECONOMY

There has been 4 severe impact to the UK (ara
globa'l economy frem coronaviras the full impact
of which bas yel to be understaed. In add-nion,
the meassures which tne Goverrmert bas put

i place have cost bl ons of pounds, ali oF whicn
wll esertually be recouped through taxaton.

Strategic Risks

Descnpuun

The risk 15 kept under review as we implorment our strategy |t informms the love
of iquidity we target Lo kaep in the buwiness, the way ' which we invest 19 our
diversifind estate to Marge fluctuations in different parts of the economy
and the fexibility we lock for i future leasing arrangements.

Risk mitigation

CORONAVIRUS AND

FUTURE PANDEMIC

Tha corona arus cutbreak has had a seismiz impact
on our industry This has most ohrously been
through the clasure of al' aur pubs ard hotels te help
Lrut the spread of the wrus, “ollowed by the enfarced
social distancng and other restrict ons as we have
recpared The gudelines fnow laws n some cases?
and Government restnzions ba.e changed regulary
']Pd‘ are flkC[y’ tocontnue to :naﬁge Ther{:‘ ares
charges i tne beha aour ef sur custarmers and in

e pattes in  sinrg our different sitas

Tne heaitn and satety of our team merbess s
crtcy and we haseiplemented appropr ate

rigdsuras for them Lo carry cut the releos safely

Tnerc s arircrased ke hasa of subseguen:
c-—’mdermcs, ethorentrn J e sty of g,

oress’utioes of the corrent slran TR mpsc

arcthes pande~icis ke'y toBa s mia o tne

erpengnce of tre currertor oy

Wo hase undertaken a S'gmf’ canl r\ghtmzmg activity across our estate and central
support ofice to reduce our ongoing cost base. We nave taker advantage of

the Govermment support for business through the jab retertion scheme, business
rates hoiday for the hOiPI[r}“ty sector, made use of the Bank of England Coud
rporate Finarcing Faclity and increased cur hquianty lzvels through snequ ty

rase. We continue to partake in discussions with Goverrment and trade bod e

toinfluence the future impesing ana lifung of any restnctions.

We continue to moniter our cost base on a marthiy and weekly basis. On 3 site
‘evel wie reaew wockly profitabity and rev ew the cost of ¢ osure and suosequent
recpering o75us dlowar trad rg peninds to muke the opt mat decisons

We kavcirtroduced clear coronsuirus procecures “or all our aites which ara
" agwsd regalarly

Gongforaara we are c'osely monitanng sur Cask flos to ensure we mariun

wtate ard e mew the

sppropniate el ot hiqudic,. cort nue te keep 1

ComEast onn bae haht of current csorts, ragotating =3 Tax bty 10z '2ases
-
g rgforesra keepng sirorg Les aoth Gosernment bulding or our current

cardermic response pan, and marimn rg and snhanoing sur flecbi ty in

costomer offer ng srd operst oral procedures

28



Description

Risk mitrgation

CONSUMER DEMAND SHIFTS
The business's success s attributable toits ability
to dnticipate and react to consumer demand,

There have been accelerated changes caused
by the impact of coronavirus including, but

nol imited to, working from home, cashless,
people buying aleohol for consumption in the
horme, demand shift in city venues versus rural,
and a continued trend towards healthy and

Ifestyle chues,

Management moniLor and research consumer trends snd run trials of new techr\obgrcs

We gather consumer feedback through Net Promoter Score surveys, customer

compiants and online and social media reviews.

We analyse retal pricing and market share data to ensure we are competitive but

stlf premaum

In addition, through the expenience of deal ng with coronavirus, the busmess has
become mere [iexible in deabng with changes in oparat-onal measures, product snd

service of ferings.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
The health and safety of our ermployees and
customers is a key priority for us,

Operating a large number of sites incraases
the chd“engc orensurmg the h\ghost health
and \'dF‘ET,y standards are adhered to.

Thereis a risk of a customner suffenng from falure
Lo deliver our allergens policies and procedures,

We have a comprehansive trairing programme in place for cur employees covering
all aspects of health and safety

All sites complete a risk assessmant and ara required te undertake detalled weekly
and montkly comphance checks which are then subjcet to review by ourin heuse
health and safety team. Live risk gssessments and appropriate adjustments to sites
to comply with Government guideiines and restnictions in response Lo coronavrus
arein place. The allergen procedures we have implemented to manage the risks are
over and above what is legally required, and are continuously reviewed, to ensure

COntrD“; remdir. approprlate‘

We continue to utilise the services of expert third party health and safety auditors
to undertake annual audits on sll our sites and perform detaled investigations in

instances where sanoincident does occur.

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION
OF EMPLOYEES

The reeruitment and retention of ligh calibre
empioyees s fundamental to our ability to getiver
a distinclive experience for our customers, and
to support our growth agenda. In particular this
applies to the roles held by the suppart office
staff, wha may view 3 career within hospitality

as less attractive than other parts of the
econormy currently,

We have succession plans in place for key sen.or management roles and have drawn
upan these when select ng an Exccutive Team to delver the Board's strategy for
the new pubs and hetels focused business.

Given the competition for hgh quahty candidales acrass our sites, we have plans

in the year aheaa tc significantly improve the process and systeras surrounding

our recruitment strategy to ensure that our offer Lo ali employees is atrractive,

We provide support for staff from the EU and have increased the number of chef
apprentice positions for UK candidates. By investing in our employees and offerng
them reai career paths, we are able Lo differentiale ourselves from the competition
and ensure that we remain the employer of cheice in a challenging market.

We comtinue to review and improve the enure reward scheme to ensure that it s
competitive in bath pay and benefits for all team members

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group s increasingly reliant onaits information
systems Lo operate, and trading would be affected
by any sigmficant or prolonged failures and/or
dataioss Inaddition, the sophistication of cyber
atlacks continues to Increase.

Our IT function has a range af fachities and contro's in place to ensure that in
the event of an issue normal operation would be restored quickly, These include
a formal IT Recovery Plan, online replication of systems and fallover datacentres,
and external support for hardware and soltware. We continue to intraduce more
preventive meusures to reflect the increased risk.

FINANCING

The current funding arrsngements of the
business are cue to expire in 2022 and there s
arisk that we are unable to find sutable financing
In addition, Interest rates May Incroase, adverscly
irpacting profit, andfor there could b a risk

of breaching firancial covenants.

We have a good relationship with our current bankers and, given the predominantly
freehold nature of our business, we have the ability to of fer more certainty than
mary v oour sector when raising finance. Alternative Fmdncmg approaches are
awailable, mcluding equity, as evidenced by the recent funding

Interest rate costs have been managed through cur leng term financirg
arrangements and we have successfully waved covenants and agreed now
measures that have mimimised any nsk of breach
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Description

Risk mitigation

COST INFLATION

Marker uncertainty arid {ncredirng demand leads
Lo Cost pressures In several areas, such as food
and dr nk production, vbilities and staf costs

The Long Term Supply Agreement with Asahi
Europe L1d i mow embedded in our business madel
and the iropact of Brex t Broadly understood.

SUPPLY CHAIN

There s a nsk that poor performance by our
supoliers may darrage custermer satisfaction and
could impact the profitability of the Company,
Any large scale swue with qut of stock items

could nave 4 big impact on trade in eu” busiresses,
This risk .nciudes any impact from Brexit that bas
yet Lo Fully, emerge due 1o hospitality closure
esther in the UK or EU,

SUSTAINABILITY

There s risk that the fallure to manage cimate
change rise could impact orofitabilicy through
taxhtwo’_w, regu‘dt\or\ and Supply chain uncertanty,
radditicn ta reputanonal damage.

WAGE COST INFLATION

Future lsbeur cost ncreases may impact the
prorltabl\‘yty of the business The prmcipa\ drisers
of such ncreases are pro cctiors for future
increases in the Nationa: Living Wage, couplad
with any potent.al for a ughtening of labour supp'y.
The risk Lo the busness remairs despite the
pandem ¢, as unemployment, which although
hign during the last year of lockdewns, has already
begun to fal

Our preference s to bave lang term agreements in place with our suppliers inking
ary price rises o CPL We have a Long Teran Supply Agreement i place wath Asahy
Europe Ltd for the supply of beer, cider and other beverages, which limits increases
to CPI Other supshers are also inked to CPiwatn long term agreements.

We regular'y mariior prices using relevant commodity databases, review forward
focking inflatior: and alf contracts are compelitively tenderad

The margin s monnored intesnally and our retal pricing v manitored quarteriy,
compared to cur competitars,

The implementat.on of a new property mantenance system has impraved controls
on property Costs,

We have a Long Terrm Supply Agroement in place with Asshe Europe Lid for the
supply of beer, cider and other beverages. This ensures that products will meet
certan brand performance metnies, and the supply servica s subrect to key
pe-formance indigators (KPS

All cther key supphers are subject Lo serace and quatty KPPl which are monitered
on a mentnly pisis,

Qur preference s for long term egreement. and strong relatonsnps The
relatorship with Asakbiand Fuller's s acw more mature, and we work with smailer
sappliers ta ensure that they grow healthy, sustanable businesses cutside of ther
dgrecmemt with Fu”er‘s, The supp}y chdm hd; 5uccehsfu'1y sutvived :he Cowd RIS,
which gises us confidence 'n 'ty angong robustness

We Fave Jeveloped a Su?tmﬂdbwhty programme and continue ta enbance this.

We conwder the ‘mpact of ESG as part of customer, people, supplier and Tananted
strategies ard policies going Forward,

Tor more detals, see the Corparate Socs' Resporsibilty statement on nages 34
o 35

We am (o mitigute the risk of such increases thraugh o combination of impraved
cperatignal efficiency and passing the cost on through the orices we charge
Without these oppertunities, the busiress would suffer a reduction in profiabilicy
across both pubs ard hoters.

Cperationa’ effcency measures inciude the nghtsizing exercises, use of
technology (Order & Pay appl and rrodelling labour per t me of day to optimise
staffing levels. The imtroduction of pay banding as part of the reward review wil
ensure consistency of pay and pro~de an effective way to manage costs
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This statement has been prepared in
compliance with The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018.

In order to comply with Section 172 of the
Comparies Act, the Board s required te
take into consideration the interests of
stakeholders and include 4 statement
RE'ttmg out the Wty 7Y which Dircctors
h.ave d\schdrged this duty duﬂr‘\E the

year. More inforration about our key
stakeholders and how we cngage with
them car be found ir the Stratege Report
on pages 32 and 33

The Beard considers that, in complying
with its statutory duties, it has acted

n good Fa\th to promote Lhe success
of the Company for the benefit of its
shareholders as @ whote and considered
the interests of all its stakehoiders, and
in doing 5o had regard to

a) the likely consequences of any
decision in the long term. For Fuller’s
ard its Board of Directors, this has
dlways beer am integral part of the
culture of a very long established
business. The iong term for Fuller's
medns much more than aormal
business modelling entai's, |tis at the
heart of all decisions taken by
the Board.

o
i)

the interest of the Company’s
employees. Details of the normal
engagement process with emnployees
can be found in the Stakehalder
Engagernent section on page 32 and in
the CSR section on pages 37 and 38;
in addition, more information relating
1o speaific engagementin relation to
the coronawrus can be found on pages
3,11-12, and 19,

e

c) the need to foster the Company’s
business relationship with suppliers,
customers and others. The Board
believes that delivening the strategy
»ucce\\h“y requires \tromg mutua”y
bene;‘lc\dl FE“dthﬂRhlp'\ W|th ‘;upp‘ler\
and gustomers and indeed with
‘ndustry badies that further the
interests of the sector as a whoe.
More detals of engagement can

be found in the Corporate Socal
Reﬁpomwbl\\ty report on page 34

Section 172 Statement

d) the impact of the Company’s
operations on the community and
the environment The Board has
develaped its commitment Lo
corporate social responsibility and
sgreed a new Environmental, Socisl
and Governance programme. Detsils
can be found on page 34

3 the desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high

M

standards of business conduct Fuller’s
;5 '\NeH regﬂrded b d bU\\ﬂE\,‘s bCCdUSC
it has a consistent record of doing the
rig'nt thmg - one of the most Cmdurmg
key values of the business This forms
part of the Fuller’s culture.

f1 the need to act fairly as between
members of the Company. The un.que
capital structure of Fuller’s as o partly
‘IStE‘d Cor‘ﬁp‘]ny h[‘]‘x d‘Wl‘]Y'\ Fequﬂ‘t‘d U’WO
Directors ta balance the interests of
i diverse sharehaolder base The focus on
the long tarm s well understood by the
Company's sharchaiders themselves

Principal Decisions

13 Impact of coronavirus
As detailed im the Chairman'’s and Chief
Executive’s Stalements on pages 2 to
15, the linarcial year ended 27 March
2021 has been an extraordinary year
far the business both starung and
c‘ndmg with the temporary closure
of the catire business due to the
coronavirus pandemic.

The Board maved quickly ta a routine
of weekly video conference calls and
recewved regular updates from the
Exccutive Directors regarding the
impact of the pandemic on the
business and its employees, and was
able to act quickly with crivcal dec’siens
required in the period. The response

to the coronavirus crisis 1s set out on
pages 3, 1112, and 19, The actities
taken throughout the crisis have shown
the Board has paid due regard to al!
stakeholders and ensured the businass
15 well poaitioned for lang-term growth,

2} Equity raise
The decision tolaunch the equity raise
was considerad very carefully by the
Board. The long periad of closure was
very expensive (or the Campany, and
cvery other company in the sector.
The Beard concluded that taking
ML gccount short term funding
requirements (e such as repaying the
E100 rllion commerzial paper fram
the CCIT by el N\:jy 2021]‘ Lhe
structure of 4 non preemptive pldc(ng
was the most ef iaient route andin the
best interests of shareho!ders It wis
=1grecd that successiul Comp|eLion of
the p'acing would equip the Comp.—my
with maximum Ninencial flexibility to
exit the pandemic strongly and be in
the best possible pestior Lo exeeute
ity growth and recovery strategy.

The aquily rase was approvod through
aseries of genersl meetings, and all
resolubions were passed with greater
than 99% of votes in Tavour.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Stakeholder Engagement

OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Our sharehalders range from

OUR PEOPLE

Our people are akey asset and

OUR TENANTS

Cwur Terarts are an extenson of the

critical to the success of the business. Fuller’s team, although they have founding Family members to retad
autonormy in running thair awn

Eusincss. We aim to recruit Tenants

shareholders and large insttutional
investors. They own our busingss and

They make the exoenience for tne
customer ana debiver cur busingss
wha share aur vaiwes and ph losophy.

stralegy ot every level. provide uy with the capit 3l that

F_’ﬂrib‘(‘% us Lo progress our xtrategy,

How we Engage

During the pandernic, we had
to review and Cvo‘\«e the way
WE COMIMUNICALE with our
errpoyess  and we focused
on using our digital learmng and
communications platform,
Fuse, to deliver updates, digizal
traning Lo keep people mentally
stimulated, and wgrposung for
emnctional and menta’ wellbeing
suppcrt. {Morein the Chiel
Exccutive’s Review, page 111

Further Information

We vl be undertaking a review

of cur employes engagementin
the current financial year We
have also strengthened cur facus
on Biversity and 'nelusion and @'l
report further pregress in nexl
year's Annual Repart. We have an
Equal Spoortunities Policy, which
s designed ta ensure ail colleagues
are treated equilly i terme of
rrnning, caresr developrient and
promotign, All tege mermrbers are
given an fandulgence card which
g.os e a cleague d scount
nowr fanaged Pub and —ota s
Quanfy rgemployecs are alse
irated Lo particinats roour
Sa.rgs Relarea Sk ire Optica
Scheme, Sharelrcertie Flan
ard 3 sam oty of perfarmarze

velited bonus arrangements

How we Engage

We have a team of Business
Deveclopment Managers led
by an experienced Head of
Tenanrtaa Cperations whe
omsure tnat our Tendants are

in the best place to operate

a suczessful business that
delisers 1 good return for both
partes During the panderic,
we suspended commercial ren:
n cckdowns to ensure thay
emerged strongly

Further Infarmation

This year has bighlighted the
entrepreneunal nature o our
Tenants, They nave opered
their pubs a5 commurity stores
{see page B) and served the
hormelass, They are very wisible
w'trin their commurities and we
Figh'y «a'ue thar contabution

to our busingss.
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How we Engage

We maintam a regular dialogue
with all our shareholders We

act vely engage with them as
part of ourinvestor readshows
Fallow ng results presental ons
ﬂﬂd WE Are Sds [y -jcceﬁﬁlble o
d[‘d‘ 'J\”tlﬁ qUC\t'Ons '!Pd {‘C’edbif,k
throughout the year

Further Information

During the year, we spcke e
mvestors about our oropesed
rew Remunerdtior Palicy whicn
was submitted 1o the 2020
Annual Genersl Meat ng and
we launched sr equity rase

to ensure we exted the
pandernic in the best poss b e
posituion. Both propasals were
undamnmmogs y’ dpprOued G370 we
thank sur sharche'ders for their
Suppertin this process



OUR SUPPLIERS

An excellent supply chainis a key

tenel of cur ousiness and we ook for

genuine partnerships that provide
areal point of difference.

How we Engage

We build a solid relationship with
our supphers that allows for

rMutua enehicia! collsboration,
tually beneficial collaborat

This results in a range that s
=)

avallable Only at Fuller’s.

Further Information

We work with our supplers to
rmonitor consumer trends and
changing tastes. This allows

us to evolve and adapt our offer
and menus to reflect these
macro trends.

LEGISLATURE

We operate in 3 highly regulated
sector and, especially during the
recent pandemic, we have had
increased dislogue at both local
and national ‘evel.

How we Engage

We regularly meet with both our
local MP and other legislative
stakchalders, including thraugh
membership of both the British
Beﬁ:r L‘]ﬂd pUb /\h‘uOCIdT.IDF. dr\d
UK Hosp.tality We regularly
contribute Lo consultations an
Issues Lhat IMpact our sector

Further Information

The work and engagement that
has been carried out during the
pandermic has strengthenad our
relationships and contacts
among, particutarly, national
policy makers and we will
maintain these relationships
going forwards.

OUR COMMUNITIES

The Great Briish pub has always been
at the heart of the community and we
strive to uphald that pesition by being
a good naighbour, supporting worthy
causes and providing employment

How we Engage

We have recently launched an
ESG programme as a key Llenet
of our overall business stralegy
Thenitiative, Life s too gead

te woste, includes our
COMmMUnity programrme,

Further Information

ke Life 15 toc good to woste
programme alsc covers
Sustainabwhty which s more
important than ever to gur
customers, our team membaers,
and all our stakeholders. See
page 3£ for further .nformation
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Corporate Social Responsibility

STRATEGIC REPORT

This year, we have further developed our

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR’) strategy under the

Qur environment

This cxziting presect covered three

KOy Areads:

We believe gur environment 13 too
good to wasze

We beeve gur commumitios are
too gosd ta wiste

We beleve our people are too
good to waste

Altnough the busine-s nas been closed

For mucn o7 this year, we kase ronetheless
srogressed with this prograrmme andir tnis
sachicn we w ‘ cesCr b: our :'JC"'\\E-’G"‘-'"E‘H'CQ

nthase thres greags

While Sulter’s has lorg taken actans that
b g}* gntrne

scommuteent ts
CSE the externa ercrormonl bas mosod
anard wie are taarg beld —ove o

rede bleour 2

e ERrTOTI NS Ly are s
wiharew 230 programme This i be
ykeyplank of the ouerirch ngsirategy
fsee page 190 andwl ses tne prac ples

of sustaran’ ty empedded rth it sirateg,
Croancoerstimrailzoel, twi connnas 19

ce delierad tirsgn the Life is roc good to
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Life is too good to waste banner.

Our communities

As part ol this process, we are recruiting
a dedicated Head of Sustainasbiity who va
be resporsible for delivering cur ESG plan
They will take ownership for setung,
monitoring and reporting on the goals set
and targets met.

We will now take a lsak at same of those
goals and targets ard repert back on our
achievements cuver the last year

Qur environment is too good to waste
Avrood to net zerc delivered through energy
Oﬂd wiaste mﬂnc‘gemeﬂt, FEdUCWg our

zarbon faotanint

We Ra.o mmade 5 romber of strdes in
th= ared orer recent years.incloding
the fallow ng

Ve nowbae LED hghtrg tnrolgneut
our Managed Pups ard Hote s - uarg
_pta 754 leas erergy srd tast ng around
Large mes -onger

We base sert zero wasie L2 landfi

~nce 2012

34

Qur people

16 of our Managed Pups ard Hotels row
nave charging points for clectr ¢ vehicles
("EW"), with more i the pipeline

We have started to rocyele our cooking
oil, wh.ch has the added kenefit of
reducing our refuse costs ard
generating an incame from the sale

of that ail - this process s set to

rse and will be delwering revenue

of aver £100,000 per annum by

the end of 2021

Sach year, we save the equra'er:

cf ower 75 OlyleC SeMMING Bos

of yiater by ueng water ess urrals

By wsing Ecelab cleaning matenia’s,

v tnrecyclable packaging we have
recuced aur use oFsmg'e USE P oESICh
Ouer 30 tennes o cardbaard per
annm mgs been rerro.ed from our
supp y cha througn the use of

e usable plastic erazes sro we oxpect
tcrermro.e 1 furtner 1570 tornes

Dy 2027



While the achievements above focus on
erergy consumption and waste 1ssues,
work undertaken in partnership with our
suppliers alse plays arole in reducing our
environmental impact.

Previously, food was ordered for next

day delivery, leading to multiple deliveries
during the week, poor load planning for

aur supphers and, consequently, vehicles
covering a lot of miles. Today, we have
changed this process and our head chefs
and kitchen tearns naw order less frequently,
with delvenes armving two diys fater.

The results of this process are quite
amanng, Without any comprormise an
freshness, over 60,000 journeys have
been taken oft the road by reducing the
frequency of food deliveries through
better planaing and forecasting. Suppliers
can load plan and route more effectively
and it has the added berefit of creating

a mare structured process in the kitchen.
The Strengthemed relatignship also
mitigates supply issues and helps to
reduce our expasure to price volatifity
due to both the pardemic and Brexit

When it comes to m\mmismg faod waste,
we have also used the ime during lackdown
to further improve on the way we use the
food we buy. A grest example s the use of
whale carcasses with regard Lo our meat
supphiers  wath all cuts being incarporated
inte dishes en our menus, the fat being used
for dripping and the bones being sold at the
ond With our vegetables, we look to use
the leaves of celeriac, beetroot and cetery
msalads  again ensuring that minimal food
waste is created in the kitchen

While we are proud of our achievements to
date, we have a long way to go. Under the
stewardshup of the Head of Sustanability,
we will plot our road map to net zero We
have already joned the industry’s Net
Zere Carbon Forum, which is another
step on this road. We have also appointed
a specialist third party, Hospiality Energy
Saving, to camplete our annual carbon
reporting and help set the strategy and
road map Lo net carbon zero

We wil start by ]demtiFy}mg further
quick wirs that can delver immediate
reductions in energy saving. To facilitate
this, we will be roling out an energy and
waste dashboard to aur managed sites,
which connects to existing smart
meters, and will be used to drive changs.

Modern Slavery

We are commitled to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business dealings

and relaticnships and taimplementing and enforcing effective systems and controls

to ensure madern slavery s not Leking place anywhere in our own business or in any

of our supply chans.

Further deluils can be found on our website:

v Full L/ velcarimodern - sl et
Wwww I Lelers co UK:COFPOI’G\.E#;‘:WH’]O 2rn-Savery statement

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions and Energy Consumption

52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
The annual quantity of energy consumed in kWh
from (1 the combustion of gas and (i) the
consumption of fuel [or the purposes of transport,
togethor w.th the annual quantity of energy
cansumed in kWh resulting rom the purchase
of clectrieity 42,296,045 83,555,406
tCO e emissions from the combustion of gas and
fuet at cur Facilities as well as flect vehicle use
(Scope Temissions) 5,114 8,436
tCO:e ermissions fram purchased electrncity
(Scope 2 emissions) 4,314 8902
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1and Scope 2) 9,428 17,338
Group's chosen intensity measurement:
tCOse emissions per £1m of turnover 128.8 527

1 tCO.eare tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

The followng methodologies were used to calculste the above quantities:

The kWh consumptien figures relevant to gas snd clectricity were caleulated

using invoices received by the Group and simple unit rates

The consumption figures relevant to transport were ealeulated based on

employee business mileage claims and fugitive emissions are based on

contractor records.

The Group daes not have responsibility for amy emission sources that are not
included in the consolidated financial statements and are outside the boundary

of operatonal control.

Year on year companson is not possible due to the impacts of coronavirus as well as

the sale of the Brewery in FY20.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility continued

That will be our first goal
UnNacessdry energy CONSUMELIaN Lop
of rmind in our tcam members and to

to put

replace energy heavy equipment. The site
dashboard will alsa include waste to ensure
a holistic energy in/waste out approach to

aur carbon rootpr\nL

Owur enviraarmental plan for the next year
and beyond, on which we will report back
next year, includes the FoHowmg goals.
We willaim to

+ establish our starung oot for each area
S0 we can set out our road map to net zero
mcarporate ESG in every tender as
part of our assessment criteris
undertake a behawiour change project in
our Managed Pubs and Hotels to
reduce erergy consurmpt on and waste
expiorc— SOUrLIng Al of aur e\ectrwcity
from green scurces
ansurc dll food wasts is separated
and recycied
explere packaging altern stives with
our suppl ers
ensure every hotel twith parking]
nas at least one EV charging pont.

Our communities are too good to waste
Supgorting the communitres in which
we ogerate through chority inks and

community-based intiatives

In hight of the extensive closure of our pubs
and hotels for so much of the year, our
ability to fundraise - especially through
the Pern'es scheme that has proved «o
generous In recent ygars — nas been much
curtailed. But that has not stopped our
tean members frorm being active in

thair communities,

Throvgheat the pandem c, our team
mermbers volurteered in food banks and
dt sacminaticr centees, 3949 cocked maa's
for key wiorkers Meanwbile our Tenant.
ha.o fed tne home e3s a0d vu'eras e, ara
apened ther pubs 4w communty stores
It's that can-da spint that nas kept the
Fulicrs famt!, busy. matratad ard at the

Nearts 6% cur commymi &y

:‘uf:r‘g Lne panods w
cur custore-s coruinued to skow ther
gomerout, ard, desorie the pandem.c. ne
stltrased £35,600 [hrOugl'“‘ Penaizs,

“hisamazrgdglalenart, Eox conninles

rode erfor our corporite channes
-

wn

uoparting both Sacoting Star Cnldrer’s
2

—250 ¢y and Soec s Clymocs GB

Special Olympics GB: Inclusion in Action
Special Qlympics GB s pert of o globa!
movement of people creating a new world of
inclusion and community, where every single
person is accepted and welcomed. regardless
of Dblh!y ar disabihi ty.

Special Olympics GB s the largest provider

of year-round sports coaching and athletic
campetition in summer and winter sparts for
children and adults of all ghdities with intellectual
disobilities in Great Britain. The charity provides
a competition pathway designed to nurture

and progress othletes from local competitions
thraugh to occessing elite level competitions.
Special Olympics uses the power of sport to
change attitudes and encbie oppoartunities for
people with intellectual disabilities to live active,
hem’thy. and ful‘f{i'fung lves. In Great Britain there
are 105 accredited programmes across England.
Scotland and Wales, impacting the lives of 11,361
individuals with an intellectual disability, 5,194
volunteers and 2,787 cooches. The charity of fers
28 sports for all ebility fevels including those

with profound, multiple learning disobilitres and
complex health needs through its Motor Activities
Iraining Progromme (“MATP").

Intellectual disabiity s the UK's biggest disobility.
There are o total of 1.5 million individuols in the
UK with an intellectual disability - a number

that ts expected to rise to 1.7 million by the end of
2021, Speciol Olympics athletes ore emong some
of the most vulnerable tn society ond have been
disproportionately negatively offected by the
Covid-19 pandem.c. With no Special Olympics
trating. competitions or activity, fife has been
very different with reduced physical actrvity and

mn¢reased isolation.

36

The stotistics around intellectual disabilities are
shocking - 81% of disabled peaple would like to
be more active, 77% of young disabled adults
(18-34) feel lonely, ond eight out of 10 children
with an intellectual disability are bullied. These
storthing figures, combined with the foct that
most people with an intellectual disebility suffer
social exclusion, highllghl‘s the fmportanf role and
potentv‘crl of Specvai Oiympi'cs GB

The chcrityjs wark cantinues to be made pnssibf&
through the support of our Fuller’s partnership,
whieh could not be more importont as recent
research has stn::fied that 36% ufadults have
@ connection of ore aware of someone with

an intellectual disabitity. This equates to nearly
18 million people in Great Britain - far higher
than was previously estimated.

Finally, it should be noted that 94% of people
with an intellectua! disability are not in pard
employment. However, one i twa people beheve
that Special Olympics GB and its sponsars need
to improve this and help f{ndjcbs for people
with an intelfectual disability. This is o great
opportunity for the Speciaf Olympics GB and
Fu”ef‘s Paftﬂership - WE can muke a ng"lf‘ccnt
difference in transforming the hives of those
peopie with gn inte”eciuofdisubi“ty,

Together we are helping to make the world

a better, healthrer and more joyful place

— one othlete, one volunteer, one family
member at o time. For more information visit
www,specialolympicsgb.org.uk.




We can now also take Pennies donatiors
as contdctless payments and this will
r.‘ﬂorth,f be activated on trarsactions mmade
through Order & Pay. In cur Bel & The
Dragon sites, Pennies rased £2,274 for
the Heads Togather mental health charity,
while at Cotswold Innes & Hotels, which
wi'l ke adopting the Penmies mitialive

this year, £8,275 was raised through
custormer donations for Acorns

chuldren’s hospices.

We have alss raised £33,051 for Special
Olyrnpics through the sale of Ale & Pie
Tasting Boards and through a denation
on our children’s menus dur ng the
perods we were open

Our furdrasing endeavours have
contnued during lockdown, with

a number of team members raising morey
for Special Olympies through the 2.6
Challenge last April, and through vaniaus
persanal endeavours including running,
walking and sefhing bottled beer that was
due te expire dunng lockdown, Tne tearm
3l Bel & The Dragon raised [2.000 for
the Injured Jockeys Fund and Hampshire
Air Ambulance weth an online Cheltenham
Preview, and the marketing team at Frer
House rased over £2,000 through a 48
Four relay far Only 9 Pavement Away,
which fings jobs in hospitaty for hormneless
paople and those who are in danger of
becorning homeless. Thisis a charity we
work with on a regular basis both to raise
money and to provide job oppor tunities
We have also donated a further £50,000
to Onside - the Hammersmith & Futham
Youth Zone project. This is our secord
year of invalvement and we are committed
to danating £150,000 over a four

year period.

Finally, we bave continued to support

a plethors of ather chanties through our
Chanves Aid Foundation budget. Over
£70,000 has been donated ta 3 range of
good causes including s number of alcohol
related charities such as Drinkaware and
the Alcohel Educ stion Trust We have alse
donated an average of uround €800 cach
morth in matcned Fundmg through our
Give as you Ean scheme.

Wnat we have missed this yearis the
pensioners Chrtmas dinners and those
specidl events we nold, In our pubs, o rase
monay for local good causes. With our pubs
ard horels reopened, we expect to see this
in abundance in the new firancial year

Heads Together

In January 2018, Bel & The Dragon started
supporting this valuable chority - and since 2019,
Pennies has helped rorse even more. Throughout
Bef pubs, greot impartance is placed on the
individual wellbeing of the team members at each
site, 5o it's a natural tie up.

@HeadsTogetherCampaign

Money raised through Pennies

3790

Adults in the UK with an
intellectual disability

1.o0m

Going forwards, we will be fozused on
three key areas:

Central chanty  building awareness

of Special Olympics through fundrasing
initigtives driven centrdlly

Local chanty inks  building
relateansh.ps in the community

through local charity inks

Community based imtiatives

making the pub the hub and bullaing

relationships at a local fevel
To do this, we will:

hold regular events driven centrally

to rase the profile of Special Olympics
promote Penmes throughcut our
estate and through all forms of card
and digital transactions

wark with Special Olympics athletes

to tell therr stor es

SNCouUrage our team members LG
volunteer at Special Olympics events
hold a series of char'ty events at o local
level to engage our customers and
address 1ssues at the heart of our
commun.tes and naighbourheods
reinvigerate the Give asyou Earn
scheme and promote matched funding
allocate a day a year for emplayces

to work or a community project.

Qur people are too good to waste
Crearing an inclusive workplace, toking core
of aur teams’ wellbeing and prowding genuine
career opporturtties.

We are a people business - there s no
doubt about that - and we very much
nave people at our heart. Throughout

the recent pandemic and the various
fockdowns, we have focused on helping our
Learm members deal with unusual and often
difficult situations - whether they have
been working throughout or on furlough.

One of the best ways we did this was through
our Fuse digital learning and communications
platlorm. Tris provided an excellent way to
connect with our tearm members while they
ware away fram the workplace Cneof the
most successful elerents wis a senies of bite
sized courses focused or wellbeing ind
developing importart [fe sk lls - everything
from acquinng a new language to lesrning
new digita' ski'ls. Take up of these courses
was ncredible, with team members
completing 4 tols! of 1,751 hours of frec life
skills traming during lockdown and furlough
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility continued

We a0 used Fuse as g vehicle for regular
v\ogs from the Chief Executive to keep
everyone informed, up to date and
entertained, and we supported ths
communication Flow with webinars sy we
approached the various reopering dates

Mental heatth cont nues to be a well
discussed topic for cur team members -
and the wider commurnity - and we have
built on the initiatives we put 1n place last
year. During the toughest third lockdown,
over 2,000 team members tuned into
our weekly Wellbeing Podeast Tris was
also hosted on Fuse. We also launched
Wagestrearn - a system that allows

early uccess to wages earncd  andg over
1,000 tesm members signed up to the
Wagestream flinancial wellbeing app.
Durning the third lockdown we also
provided supermarket vouchers to those
team rmermbers most affected by the
orgong situatian.

We are in the process of relaunching our
employer brard urder the mantrs True

to You, ind as part cf this Drocess we arc
alsg Focusing or better understanding the
dversity of cur tearn. We have appointed
an nlesnal person 1o head up this waork ard
our goal s Lo ereate ar inclusive workplace
where e aryone can thr ve, in line vath

our values

Gong forwards, we val be focusea or
supporting our team members’ physical,
mental, financial and social wellbeing
Toachigve tris, we wil

invclve our people in creating our first
Civersity ard Inctus-on action plan

- identfy appropriate actions to embed
an .nciusive culture in all aress of our
pecple experience

- map our “emale ta'ent and croate
besocxe traning nterventons to
ercourage thar development
intreduce 4 wellbaing module as part
of burinduction Erogramme
rrair "JC~ marts health first a.ders

« embed we'lbe ng rall ourleadersmip
dovecoment orograrmes

- prasdezsnte of free, onire
#elpeng traming
st stardares fer back of bouse
GOICT T P derdxo r L oyurments

- ersure real de.alopmert

opporiant es through cur
s

‘
Designed far Life career patk aa,

Gender Diversity
Asat 27 March 2021

Board of Directors (%)

Female 2 22%

Male 7 78%
Senior management (%)

Female 7 50%

Male 7 S0%
Other employees (%)

Female 1,630 43%

Male 2,134 57%

work w.ih external partrers and trade
bodies to raise the profile of haspraliny

43 d great place to have a career.

Life is too good to waste

This is the most progress ve strstegy we
h3.e aver mplemented in tne CSR/ESG
fie d and we are sething stratching and
reasurable rargets We locx forward to
de.eloping the r uatves cutined sbo.c
uncer the d ract ar ofcur rew Head of
Sustanablty and v tn the support of cur

Erecunve Tear and all cur tear memoers

ofthis programime and we ook faresed o

upd;', g YU G LT pragressr the“uure,
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Reporting requirement

Non-Financial Information Statement

Key policies/standards/framewarks

For sdditional informatian

ENVIRONMENTAL COSR Strategy - Our enviranment C5SR Report from pape 34
MATTERS
EMPLOYEES C5R Strategy - Our people, Alcohol and Drugs TSR report from page 34

Palicy, Attendance and Absence Pobey, Bulying
and Harassment po\\cy, Communications pohcy,
COmpasmonate and Beresvernent pohcy, Dats
Protection Policy. Disciplinary Policy, Equal
Opportunity Palicy, Family Friendly Policy.

Anti-Bribery Peliey (covering gifts and hospitality),

Grievance Palicy, [T Policy, Mobile Phone Policy,
Other Employment Palicy, Pareniing Policy,
Recruitment Palicy, Redundzney Policy,
Rewdental Accommedation Palicy, Right to Work
Policy, Smoking Policy, Socal Media Pohicy, Staff
Accommodation Policy, Stop and Search Palicy,
Stress Policy, Tution Policy, Whistleblowing Pohicy

Strategic Report on pages 18 and 19

SOCIAL MATTERS

CSR Strategy — Our communities, Gender Pay
Gap reporung

TSR Report from page 34

HUMAN RIGHTS

Madern Slavery Statement

CSR Report  page 35 in particular

ANTI-CORRUPTION
AND ANTI-BRIBERY
MATTERS

Anti Bribery Policy (covening gifts and hospitality),

Whistleblowing Policy

Corporate GOVEH’M‘].HCE REPOFt FFO"T\ Pdg[’ 46

HAudit Committee Report from page 51

PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND IMPACT ON
BUSINESS

These are sel out on pages 22 to 30

BUSINESS MODEL

At glance page 6
See our vis.on and purpose on page &

Strategic ReporLon pages 16 and 17

NON-FINANCIAL

KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

Strategic Report on pages 18 and 19

39

By order of the Board

(Semon

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

B Juiy 2021
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Driving our strategy

is the Board - a team
of people who each
bring expertise and
experience in different
areas. [hey set the
strategic direction for
the Company and add
their contribution to the
Fuller’s growth story.

Board structure as at 8 July 2021

Chairrean "%
Exzcutive Directors 34%
Non Exccut se Directors 22%
|PdcpChdem - 33%

Mon Execut ve Directars

GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

MICHAEL TURNER [N
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Date appointed to the Beoard: Januar, 1355

Experience: A Chirtered fccountant with
intern stion sl expenerce, -‘V‘.le"‘JeUOmed Fuller's
n 1578 vl runming the Wire Diasien s 'Wine
Biractas Apoonied Markeung Direcior n 1988
Managing Dhrecter in 1952, Chief Exscutiven
2002 snd Charrrarnin 2007 Charrman of the
British Beer and Pub Asscoiation 2008 2010
Moastor of the Worshipful Comp any, of Vintrers
2017-2012

Key external appcintments: None

My lockdown: With my wife, Diono, staying mainly
in London while I wos in Suffolk, I've had to learn to

cook. Through the pawer of YouTube, I can now defiver
¢ mean rack of famb and a fobster thermidor,

ADAM COUNCELL"
FINANCE DIRECTOR

gl

Date appeinted to the Baard: Augast 201

Experience: Jainad from A1 listed Resiore ple
whers bo sy Group Finsnce Directar Starred
s career atWhithresd plo e t-2 sccounts

department of Tna Sencsm Group restsurart

srasion befare maang to the Miivord Braan
Preziy sobad . of VPP p o Jaired Rentckil

Irutislpic in 20030 whera he held 3 Lanet, of
firance pastsinciadimg Camr el Zire

o
;:lhe BU'} T e Jr'd |"\du‘,if ¢ d\y'ilor‘ F maAnoe
Cractor of Taierngardtro combinad Crtanirg

sedespirs s dier ara finoll, Forarze Drecter

shrme UK Busiress Services d s on Cuaified

Crarteraa 2osaurtsng

Key external appointments: Mane

My lockdown: {'ve spent much of fockdown trying
to get involved 1n hame schooling my chifdren.
Turns out I'm na match for English homework.

40

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Date appointed to the Board: Ma, 1592

Experience: Joined in 1994 from B sy ple where
he held 3w iret, of senicr operstionil and siritegic
plirning roles Apponted to the Board = Retal
Diractor m Als, 1988 Mansgie s Director, Fuller's
Ines nJul, 2006 Group Managing Director in
MNo.ember 2010 snd Chiel Executvein Jul, 2013
Fraoousl, Sermor Independent Director snd Char
af the Rerryreration Committes of Cunelm
Group ple An econorucs graduate and slumnus
of Hir.ard Business School

Key external appointments: Non-Executi.e
Crectur of The Nt oral Gallery Compan,
Lirutad and Semor Indzperden: Direczar
of WH Sm th PLC

My lackdown: My wife, Sefino, and I took the
stoycotion opportunity to complete the Coast
to Caost cycle ride - 155 miles from Whitehaven
to Tynemnuth.

FRED TURNER
RETAIL DIRECTOR

Date appninted to the Board: Jure 2019

Experience: jored the Comparin 201335 1
Operstans Mariger for Fu 2rs Inns Agpairted
Hed of Tersrted Operst orsie 2019 374
Ternted Zeracter in 2578 Suanfiad 3¢

1 Chirtered Aczountirt ath Grart Thernton
L LL? Crlengreenng aradusts

Key external appointments: Nane

My lockdown: [ turned our house nta a crazy golf
course, which the children laved - but it did neurfy
resuft in divorce!




Key to Committee membership:

A Audit Comnatlen

JULIETTE STACEY
SENIOR INUEPENDENT
NOMN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ANR

Date appointed to the Board: AMorch 2018

Experience: Former Chief Executive of Mabey
Ho\dmgs Limited Former ChlerOperjtlng Cfficer
(LUK and Eurepel snd previously Finance Directer
(Commercial U< of Sl ple Quabified s

1 Chartered Accountant with Ernst 8 Young

Key external appointments: Mare

My 'Dckdnwﬂ.' " resurr?cted my :OVE Df l‘ﬂlE‘fl‘Or ﬂ‘E’SJgn
and dealt with some long overdue projects - | made
two sets of curtains, four Roman blinds, @ aumber
of scatter cushions ond reupholstered eight

dining chairs.

HELEN JONES ANER
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: At arch 2019

Experience: Farmenl, Group Executve Director 3t
Caffe Nero and Mansging Direcver of Zizz, the tshan
casusl dining chain and Non Executive Director of
mternationsl fast-drmg restaur et groug Vapino SE

Key external appointments: Senior Independent
Dhrectar and Char el the Ervrenmentsl Social
snd Governsnce Cormmittez of Hilfords Group ple.
Other appontments nclude Naon-Executrie
Drrector and Chair of the Remunerstien
Cormmittee of Virgin Wires UK P ¢ snd

Mon Eszcutive Drector of Prermier Foods Ple

My lockdown: ! took my fitness regime on the rood
and reconnected with nature during lockdown with
o daily walk or cycle ride around the beautiful
Buckinghamshire countryside. Less Twitter and
maore Twitcher!

N MNuomunstion Committee

R Remuneration Cemmittee

5IR JAMES FULLER, BT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appainted to the Board: June 2010

Experience: Servedin Tha Life Gusrds frem
1997 10 1998 Emploved by the Compny from
1998 o0 2003 wark ngin the Tied and M snaged
Pub estsle and has wince been runmng his

own busiress

Key external appeointments: None

My lockdown: [ renovoted the half acre Victorion
walled garden during fockdown, including the creation
of a huge vegetable potch to serve the local area.

ROBIN ROWLAND OBE ANR
INDEPEMDENTNON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Beard: March 2020

Experience: Pre.iously Churman and Chief
Executive of YO! Sush, Non Executwe Drrector
of Marstars PLC and Tortlls Awarded an OBE
n 2015 for outstinding servizes to hospitality

Key external appointments: Currently European
Operst ng Partner of TnSpan Private Equity satn
Chiirman and Men-Evecutinve Director roles with
threa partfol campanes. Ross Than, Thurderbird
and Ross Meacano (USA) lndependent

Maon Exocutve Duectar roles anh € athos (Gulf)
ind Caffe MNero

My lackdown: | have taken up bee keeping for the first
time ever and have over 5,000 bees in my new fuve.
I'm olready getting honey - but | stilf con't identify
which one is the gueen.

. Coramittee Char

RICHARD FULLER
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: December 2009

Experience: Joincd the Compan, n 1384
Appoirted 3 Diasional Director in 1992 and to
the Board in Decernber 2009 with responsibilit
natially for sales then, sddiwomilly, persornel,
corporite sffars and government rebsticns
Became Mon-Execotive Director in February
2020. A GMP graduate of Harvard

Business Schael

Key external appeintments: Churman of Kempton
Park Ricecourse snd Master of the Worshipful
Compiny of Brewers

My lockdown: I'm in the middle of loying 0 100 yard
hedge - it's o very intricate process of cutting and
staking a combination of Howthorn and Hazel to
make a thicker, tidier hedge.

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date appointed: January 2021

Experience: An expenenced company secratary
haang held positions 2l a number of ather bsted
compames ncluding Invens ;5 PLC, Aldermore
Group PLC (both the listed onbity and the
regulated bank) and, most roccnt\',f‘ Clarkson PLC
Fellow of the Instivute of Charterad Secretaries
and Admumistrstors

My lockdown: I've spent lockdown trying to house
train my new puppy. She is o black Springadar colled
Winnie ond has mode a reol impact an our fives

- and on our corpet!

As announced on 26 February 2021, Adam Councell informed the Board of his intention to step down from his current position as Finance Director. Adam will
remain with the COW‘PEF‘Y 1 order to ensure an orderly handover, and his leaving date will be confirmed in due course. Neil Smith will join the Board 35 Finance
Directar at a date to be confirmed, but no later than 1 Decemnber 2021,

41

N\GI/\JBAO

1i0day 288808

Ry
2
5
]
EN
w
14
=
=
&)
3
n
3
2
o

UOI]QLUJO}U| |PUOI1IPP\/



The Cirectors present their report to
shareholders logether with the aud ted
financial staterments for the 52 wecks
ended 27 March 2021 The Derectors
Report and the Strategic Report

(pages 4 to 44]) together canstitute

the managerment report for Lhe purpase
of Rule 4.1.8R of the Disclosure
Gudance and Transparency Rules

Other information relevant ta the repo-t,
including information relevant pursusnt Lo
the Companies Act 20060 and LK Listing
Rute 9.8.4% 15 ncorporated,

As permitted by legislatan, sore of the
marcters required to be included 10 the
Directors’ Repart have instead keen
included 'n the Strategic Report as the
Boasrd cons ders them o be of strategic
importarce. Specifically, these are:

Infermation Reported in Page(s)

Qur Str«lmév 18

Future busimess
de.elopments

Empley ment of Stakeholder 32

Ew’sab\od persons Engagement .
Employee Stakehoider 3224
engagernant Engagement and
(mc\udmg SR

part cipatian

in share pline

Erzigerent Stakenolder 32 33
with supplers Engagement

CURTO™Iery 1ﬂd

cthers

Emiaians CsR 35
repart.ng

Annual General Meeting

The 2021 Anrus! General Meeting
CAGMT) will be held at Tam on Thursday
23 September 2021 at The Gearge IV,
185 Chisw'ck H gh Road, London, W4
25X The Notce of Maeting whicn sets
aut the reso'utions to be proposed has
been posted e shareho ders and <
Foalable on tae Company’s webs te

At wwew fulers oo ue.

Articles of Association
TWC Cor"p}r; ‘S Hrricles O:/\sscc hion
eadapred - 2014 naczordamce itn

“te Corrpan'e- Act ZOTE, tna Artizles

27 ay 00y BE amerded by
1 spec al eszluton of <hirenc ders n

1 genoral maeting,

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report

Directors

The names ard biographical details of the
Drectors who serven on the Board and
Board Committees during the francial
year and up the date of this report are
given on pages 40 and £°.

Appointment and Retirement

of Directors

The Articles of Asscaiation ("the Articles™)
state that the Beard may appo'nt D rectors
and that at the subsequent AGM,
shaceholders may elect any such Duecior
A'ternatively, the Compary may directly
acpaint a Director. The Articles also
contain tne power for the Company to
remave any Derector by specia’ resolution
and appoint someonc in his or her pace by
erdinary resolution. There are various other
cicumstances under the Articles which
wou'd medn that the of Fice of 4 Directer
wouia he wacated, inc|udmg ifhe o she
resigns, or becomes of ursound mind

or bank-upt

At evary AGAM one-third of tae Directors
who are subject to ret rement by rotation
or, if their number s nol three or any
rultiple of three, ther tre number nearest
1o but not exceed ng one -third shal

reure frem office bur, - there 1k arly one
Chrectar who s subject te retirernent by
ratat on, he or she shall -etire In adatior,
Fany Director has at the start of the AGA
peen .n office far more thin three years
sirce h s or her last appomtment or
re-appointment he or she shall recre

at thar AGM,.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Cormpany's Mermarindum
and Art cles of Asscaistion and WK
legisiation, the busirass of the Corpary
r mangged by tne Baard wh cmmay
cxercise 'l the oowers of the Company.
The Arzicles of the Company have
asection entitfes “Powers and Dut.os

of the Boarg” which sets cut povers sLch
albcards, to
appoint agerts, 1o de egate ard to appair:

a5 tha ripghts to establisk loz

parsars vath the des graton "D rector”
s roanimplyng that tre nersons

1D rectorof the Cormrpary “nercare
farthersact ans o  tho Aruc esent t'eg

“hziment of Shames” sett oz cus the

ra's power Lo vsag shares and

curzhase the Companys ownanares

ang ‘Borroa rg Powsry” et maaut the

F-"-'J/“'S S5 ZONIerm ng e ,Q’TPG”" bl

FOwCr 1D D0rrow 4rc @2 SeCurily,
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The Directors have been autherised

to al'ot and issue ordinary shares.

These powers are exercised under
authonity of resolutions of the Company

pissad at s AGM,

Directors’ Indemnities and Insurance
The Articles of Associstion prowide the
Directors with ndemmities i relation
to their duties as Directors, sncluding
qushlying third party indemn ty
provisions [withun the mc-dmng af the

Comparies Acts)

The Company purchases Directors and
Officers haoil ty insurance which give
appropriate cover for any legal action.
bfought i!g-jiml its Directors. This insurarce
also covers the Trustees of the Company’s
aeninad borefit pensian scheme.

Directors’ Interests

Detals of all Directors’ interests a5 at the

erd of the financial year are set out in the
Cirectors’ Remureration Report on pages
6o 78

Dividends

Inwiew of the coronawirus pandermic the
Compary pad no interinm dividerds and
the Direclors decided net to recommend
a firal dwicend on the ord nary shares far
trie linancia’ year ended 27 March 2021

Total div dends of £120 000 relate ta the
cumulative preference dviderds which

have beer pad

External Auditors

The auditors, Ernst & Yourg LL7, were
appointed by the Direciors during the
year ’CoHowur‘g a formal terder process as
det+led further in the Audit Commitzee
Repert or pages 9110 55 Ernst & Yeung
LL= have rocated ther wilhingress to
continue m o fice, and g resslution that
they bo apsointed wil b2 prosasen

at she AGR,

Information Required under the
Listing Rules
Forthe oarpose of RS.8 47R . the

mfareeancn fogu red o oe dsc'ased by

Zena-t roehe follnwing locators and
.
neveby ircorporated by refersmze s

ts O rzcrors Report



tnformation about larg term incentives
15 disclosed in the Directors'
Remuneration Repart on page 60

+ Any waiver of emaluments by a Director
of the Cormpany or amy subsidiary
undertaking s disclosed in the
Directors’ Remuneranon Report

on page 56,

Palitical Donations
The Group does not make politcal donat ons

Purchase of Own Shares

At the AGM held on 10 September
2020, the Company was gven an annual
authonity to purchase up to 4,851,096
‘A ordinary shares to be held as treasury
shares to be used in carnection with,
among other purposes, the Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“LTIP") and/ar other
share option schemeas. Sharehalders will
be asked to gve a sirmilar authority to
purchase shares up to 15% of the ‘A’
ordinary capita’ at the 2021 AGM.

The Compary's maximum issued

ardinary share capital during the year was
£22,793,726 compnising 33,619,834 A
ordinary shares, 89,052,625 8 ordinary
shares and 14,459,218 °C" ardinary shares.

During the year the Company did not
purchasg any shares.

6,515 A ordinary shares held in treasury
were dllocated Lo participants of the Srsvmgs
Related Share Optlor\ Scheme, the Serior
Exccutive Share Optlon Scheme and the
Executive Share Option Scheme on
cxercise of Optiom, gencrating net cash
proceeds of E14,011 As aL 27 March 2021,
2 total of 1,273,146 ‘N ordinary shares and

a total of 4,558,009 "B ordinary shares are
held as treasury sharcs

Share Capital

Informat.on an the Company's financ al
instruments, caprial structure and related
restrictions is given in notes 28 and 29

ta the financial stateements Detals of
significant sharehasldings are set out below.

Cemputershare Trustees Limited holds
atotal of 186,337'A ordinary skares or
behalf of employees of the Cormpany who
are participants in its SIP. This regreserts

0 48% of the ivsued A ordinary share
captal (excluding shares held i traasury).
Inrespect of the shares that have been
allocated. Computershare Trustees Limited

exercises voling rights in relat-on to less cost-. In conunction with the
Plicing, the Company also transferred
230,094 B ord'nary shares (nclud ng
132,528 B ordinary shares to satisfy

apphications from the D rectors),

those shares, having consulled with the
parbicipants about ther voLIng intentions

Subsequent to the year end, on
31 March 20271 the Company completed
anon pre emptive placing of 6,455,447

gencrating net cash proceeds of
E109,998.24 less costs General
Mectings convened on 20 April 2021
approved the ssuance of this add tional

now A ordinary shares at 330p per
share {the "pldCU‘\g“] and satisfied
share capital and the ‘A ordinary shares
were subsequently admitted to the
main market.

\ubscr\ptwons from Directors aver 13,853
new ‘NN ardinary sharos, generating net
cask proceeds of F53,580,210 10

Substantial Shareholdings
The Company had been notified under the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
or is aware of the following holdings of voting rights of its listed issued share cap-tal:

‘A’ ordinary shares of 40p each

B

bt Tl el N3 gt
Asat Ay
27 March Sy
20 P
BlackRock, Inc 13.47 13.43
Lansdowne Partrers (UK LLP - 8.40
Columbia Threadneadle 5.37 5.06

The Company s also aware of the following interests in 3% or more of the voting nghts in

the two classes of its unlisted share capital:

‘B’ ordinary shares of 4p each

As at As st

27 March T

2021 2%z

Mr AW M Mitchell & Burges Salmon Trustees Ltd 14.85 14.85
Mr RHF Foller & Mr R | Turner & Mr P A Sheils 7.66 -
MrRHF Fuller & Mr P J Turner & Mr P A Sheils - 766
MrAGF Fuller 572 5.74
Mr R HF Fuller & Mr P A Sheils & Mr P J Turnar 4.62 4.62
Dunarden Limited 3.60 3.60
MrRD |nverar|ty 3.52 3.48
Mr G F lnveranty 3.48 3.37
M M Turner 3.32 3.37
Miss 5 M Turner 333 3.33
fr R HF Fuller 3.08 3.08
P T J M Turner 3.00 3.00

MO\AJG!\O

Big

4

110day 2132

o
2
ot}
2
=8
=
U
e
jo¥]
=1
5]
3
5]
2
2
Pl

UOHPUIIOJU| [BUDIpPy



GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report continued

‘C’ ordinary shares of 40p each

Asat
27 March

201
Me AWM Mitckell & Burges Salmon Trustees Lid 31.02
MrT J M Turner 6.20
Miss S M Turner 5.25 "
Mr 2 AR Carter & Sir ) H F Fuller 430
MW G F Fuller 7 - -
MeAGE Fuler & Mr PAR Carter 412 412
Mrs DM St C Turner 3.09 3.09
Mr C D W Willarms 302 302
Mro EA Crisp 3.02 3.02
Post Balance Sheet Events By order of the Board

Post Balance Sheet events are disclosed

in note 33 to the Nnancial statements. IQJ_GW
-~ LN
Significant Agreements

THD GFOUP hd‘i Eﬂtered into 4 Wumber

of agreements with the major brewers RACHEL SPENCER

COMPANY SECRETARY
g1y 2021

operating in the UK under which it beth
Buys and sells beers, and these agreements
may be terminated by the other party

should the Group undergo a change _
“uller, Seith & Turrer BLLC

Pier House
%6 93 Strana-on the Creen
Lardar Wd 3NN

of control.

In the evert of a change of contral,
the Company s obl god to netify its man

bank lenders of such, The fenders snal!
Registered im England under rumber

rot be ablged to fund any now borrowing
201852

requests and the faciities will lapse afrer
3C days from tha change of centrol i
terms on whicn Lhcy car continuae have
not been agread. All borrowings including
accrued interest will become repayable
wikim ten days of such a lapse

The service ogreements of the current
Executive Directors snd the incamirg
rew Finance Birecter include pravsions
regarding a charge of cortrol Further
details areircluded ir the Direciory
Rerrureranon Poizy set out on

pages 560 /2,

44



Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in Respect

of the Financial Statements

Tre Dhrectors are resporsible for preparing
the Strategic Report, the Annual Report,
the Remuneration Report and the Group
and Company financial statements

in accordance with apphcable Lnited
Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial staternents for each
finarcial year, Undar that law, the
Cirectors nave elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with
interrational accounting standards in
conflormity wilh the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, Under company
law, the Direclors must not approve the
financial stalerments unless they are
sausfied that they give a true and lair
view of the state of affars and profit or
loss of the Group and Company for the
firancial penad.

Under the Financial Conduct Authority's
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules, Group financial staternents are
required to be prepared in accordance with
international financial reporting standards
("IFRSs") adopted pursuant to Regulation
(ECYNo 1606/2002 as it apoles in the

European Umicn.

In prepanng the Group and Corrpany
financial statements, the Directors are

required to.

select sutable accounting pohcies in
accordance with |AS B Accounting
policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors and then apply
thern consistently;
present information, including
accountmg poflmes, ind manner that
pravides relevant, retable, comparable
and understandable information,

+ provide sdditional disclosures
when compliance with the specific
requiremonts in IFRSs 15 insufficient
to ensble users to understand the
pdact ofpdrticu?.‘ir transactions,
other events and cond tions on the
group ard company financial positon
and financial performance;
make an assessment of the Comrpany’s
ab lity to continue @5 4 going concern,

state that the Group and Company

have complied with internationsl
accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Comparies Act
2006 and IFRSs adopted pursuant to
Regulation (ECY No 1606/2002 as it
applies in the European Union), subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and
make judgements and estimates that are
reasonabie and prudent,

“ne Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to snow and explain the Group's
transactions and disclose with reasonsble
accuracy at any tme the financial position
of the Group and Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Remuneratior Report
comply with the Companies Act 2006
and appiicable regulations, including the
requrements of the Listing Rules and the
Disclosure and Transparercy Rules
("DTR™)ardin the case of the Group
financial staternents, with Article 4 cfthe
IAS Regulation. They are slso responsible
for szaFeguardmg the assets of the Grcup
and hence fcr taking reasonable steps for
the PrEVentiOn dr]d detectl@ﬂ DF Frdud

and other irregularitios

The Directors are respons ble for
preparing the Annual Report in
aceardance with applicable law and
regulations. The Directors are responsible
for the maintenance and integrity of Lhe
corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and drssemination
of financial statemerts may differ from
legislation in other jursdictions

Statement as to Preparation
of Financial Statements

The Directors canfirm, to the best
of their knowledge:

that these financial statements,
prepared in accordance with
nternational accounting standards in
conform.ty with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and *FRSs
adopted pursuant to Regulat.or (EC)
MNe 1606/2002 as it apples in the
European Union, give a truc and {ar
view of the assets, labilities, financial
position and profit of the Group and
Cornpany taken as a whale;

« that the Annual Report and the
Strategic Repertincludes a fa'r review
of the development and performance
of the business and the pasition of the
Group and Company Laken as s whole,
together with a deseripton of the
principal risks and uncerLainties that
they face; and

- that they consider the Annual Report
and the financial staterments, taken
as a whele, provides the information
necessary to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and
strategy and is fair, balanced and
understandable.

The Directors of Fuller, Sruth & Turner
PLC arelisted on pages 40 and 41,

Directors' Statement as to Disclosure
of Infarmation te Auditors

The Directors wha were members of

the Board at the time of approving the
Directors’ Repert are listed on pages 40
and 41 Having made enquines of fellow
Drrectors and of the Company's auditors,
cach of these Directors confirms that:

to the best of each Director’s
knowledge and belief, there is no
information relevant to the preparation
of this repart of which the Compary’s
auditors are unaware; and

- each Director has taken all the steps
a Director might reaserably be
expected to have taken to be aware
of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information

Cn behslf of the Bourd

Aas/ T/

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

S July 2021
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MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

“The Board recognises
that good corporate
governance is critical to
delivering our strategy
for the long-term
benefit of all
our stakeholders.”

GOVERNANCE

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present our Corporate
Governance Report for 2021, The

Board recagnises that good corporate
governance is criscal 1o deliverning our
strategy for the long-term berefit of

all our stakehelders, while remaining
cognisant that arrangements need to be
spproprate for the business. Wth a strong
heritage and as primarily a Fm‘m\y awred
company, there are some prowisions in the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
(the "C@de")l which we believe are not
agpropriate for Fuller's. In the spint of the
Code and lor transparency we have
surnmansed these im Lhe table on the

facing page.

As describedinmy Charman’s Revew,
this year has been unprecedented and
consequently the workings of the Beard
rave had to adapt. Giver the exceptiona
crcumstances we faced, it was cntical
as g Board that we met more frequentiy,
In Apri 2020, we moved guickly to
aweekly routine of wideo conference
cals to discuss operational, financial and
hguidity matters so that we could assess
the impact to the business, and previde
oversight to the Executive Team.

Inthe Sprirg of 2027, the Baard spent
cons-derable time evaluating the decision
tolaunch an equity raise. Ensuring the
nght balarce of debt and equity capital in
abusiness 15 animpaertant part of ensuring
long-term sazcess, and after very caraful
and deralled discussions, the Board
cencluded that equity was the correct
route and in the best interests

of shareho'ders

Meetings hsve cont.rued to be held
remotely for most of the year and ! would
lke ta thank my fellow Bosrd members
for emnbracing this new way of working
ard for their sign ficant coniroution
during the year. Soscial recogriticn ilse
goes to tne Execute Team for s
response to the Cond crisis

Our Beard Commm ttees have alse beer
sery acti.e duning the year and melped as
r3cgate througn these extraordirary arc
chslenging tirmes. Further asta of ther
workis reperied on pages 4710 78,

46

Corporate Governance Report

Through the Nominations Committes,
which | chair, we have conducted the
<earch for a new Finance Drrector to
replace Adam Councell, wha has decided
to return to the service sector. We are
dehghted to have anrounced the
appointment of Ned Smith, wheo will join
us later in the year. On behalf of the Board,
I would also like to express our appreciation
for the contribution Adam has made
during hus tenure, which covered the most
remarkable period in the Company’s 176
year history. He has nisen well te the
challerges, and we wish lim every success
in ks future endeaveurs

We had intended o conduct an externally
faciitated Board evalustion this year but,
i the strange times of work ng remotely,
it was unanimously agreed that this shouid
pe deferred until the Directors could
rmeet in persen, Consaquently, our Seriar
Independent Director (Julette Stacey)
ran an interral process this year which
corcluded, despite the chalienges
presented by caronawirus, that the Board
kac performed very of fectively Our
intention is that the external evalustion
will take place during the currert Nnancial
year, and mysell and Juliette are currently
conducting 3 selection process with
potential firms to support this exercise.

l'was disappainted that our AGM in 2020
had to be held a5 a closed meetng, but
snarehaiders wll hopetully understand that
this was entirely necessary to ersure the
safety of all concerred We very much

lock farward to welcorming sharehoiders

to our AGM on 23 September 2021 which,
s‘ubje:t to dny Government guidance

‘n place at that bime, will be held at

The George W in our Chiswick heartland,

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

8y 2027



Statement of Compliance with the
UK Corporate Governance Cade 2018
The Board 1s committed to mmntdmir\g
eFFeCtI\/e COrpGrd[G govermiﬁce E]r\d
integrity, en.Jb\mg us to deliver our

our stakeholders With thes in mind, the
Company ha~ appited the main principles
of the Code throughout the year

Mowever, given the structure of the Group
- we are a public listed company but sull
very much a family-controlled concern

- there are some provisions of the
Code where we do not comply but
where we do consider our governance
framework remains appropriate. These
are summarised n the table below

strategy for the long term benefit of ol

Cade Provision  Detail of non-complhance

Further information

PRINCIPLE 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY PURPOSE

5 For engagement with the workforce, the Company
does vot have o d recior uppointed from the workforce
3 farmai workfaree advisory panel ora designated

non-oxecutnve director

Fuller's has 1dopted 4 peop's first appraach in its response to the pandemic
by enzaging effectively thraugh strong communications & thits staff, The
Board receives regutar updates from the CEO and Diroctor of People to
ensure employes matters are understeod Normally there is also regular
engagement with employees through visits to our pubs and hotels, although
this has understandably beer curtaled with the estate closed. Over the next
year. the Board will canwider whether the designation of a Non-Executive
Directar te provide a formal dink to the Board w required.

PRINCIPLE 2: DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

1 At least half of the Board, excludmg the Chairman,
are not indeperdent Naon Exccutive Directers

The Board considers that membershipis well balanced with the night mix
of skilts and expenence The presence of Non-Executive Directars who are
\Dr\.g Stdr'd\né Fﬁnﬂ\, sharchalders i important in Lis pror’e-mona-ly run

family busingss

PRINCIPLE 3: COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Assocation, all Directors are
subject to election by shareholders at the first AGM after thair appairtment
and ta re-election at three yearly intervals As part of the annuat Board
effectivencss rewicw, the performance of the Directorsis eva uated and
forms the recommendation in the Notice of AGM as to why the Company
belie sos an individual director should be re elected In rnew of the
Company’s size 1ts ownership structure and its history, the Board s not
minded to move to annual re-election of Diractors but will keep this

r-:‘quwrcmr:—mt undsr (=it

18 Directars are not subject to annua’ re-election
15 Tre Chairman has beerin post for more than
nine years

The Board considers that the Charman's knowledge and understanding
of this long -established family business and its requirements 1s

extrernely valuable

PRINCIPLE 5: REMUNERATION

33 The pension contribution rates for the current Executive
Directors zre not aligned with those dvailable to
the workforce

The pension rate far the current Executive Directars represents an existing
cantractual commitment and their overall pay 1s towsrds the lawer end of
market practice The Board wishes to honour these contractual entitlements
and doos not conwder it approprite to make a reduction Under the
Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders in 2020, the pension
oppartunity for new Directars lwhich includes Neit Srith, the NCOMING e
Firance Directoriis im ine with the pahicy for the msjority of the workiarce

Further informaticn on the Code can be
found on the Financial Reperting Councll’s
website at www fre.org uk,

The Board

Role and Workings of the Board

Led by the Chairman, the Board 15
ccllectively responsible Lo the sharchaolders
for the perlormance and leng term
success of the Group, as wel ta other

stakeholders for the wader IMpact we have.
Its rote includes the establishment, review
and monitaring of the Campary's strategy,
approval of majer acquisitions, disposals
and capital expenditure, setting the
Companry’s purpose and values, overscoing
the Group's systems of internal contrals,
governance and risk management, and
ensunng that the approprisie resources
arein place to deliver these,

A formal schedule of matters reserved

for the Board 15 1n place. The Board Fas
delepated some of its responsib it es to
mandated Committees, each of whick
operates urder written terms of reference
approved by the Board ard wh chare
J\/']l‘;lb‘e ar thc Corﬂpdﬂy‘% WC‘meC. /\H
Committee Chairs report orally on the
proceedings of therr Committees at the
next meeting of the Board, and the

MalAL DI\O
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GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report continued

muinutes of the mect.ngs of all Board
. -

Committees (with same exceplions on
remunaratior matters) are provided to
Board members

The Board delegates all operational
matters and execution of the >'.rdtegy jta)
Lhe Executive Team (which includes the
Executive Dircctors, the Marketng
Director, the People and Tuiert Director,
and the Property Director) The Chairman
ensures that the Executive Committee
prevides accurdte and timely infarmation
for Board meelings which s then cper to
debate ard challenge by all.

Board rmestings enjoy open din'ogue ard
censtructive challerge on all insues 1s
cncouraged. With a good information
fiow between ond prior to Bosrd mestngs,
decisions are made in g timely manner
after appropriste questions are dealt with.
The Board has adopted A pracedure, in
accordance wath the Company’s Articles,
to consider and, if it sees N1t to authorise
situabions were 4 Diractor Lo Rave an
irterest that conflicts, or may possibly
corflict, witk the interasts of

the Company,

Board Meetings and Activities
Normally the Board mecls Formally at
least six bmes, but additioral rrest ngs
had to be ke d th s year to review the
impact of the coronavirus AL the start
of the pardemic, the Board met weekly
ana meetings moved to an oniine format.
Meetings have continued to be held online
throughout the year but going forward
with restretions Furg it s intended that
meetings w |l be held at the Group's new
registered affice, Pier Hause, and also
withir the retad estate

The process for agreeirg the agorda s
managed by the Company Secretary in
corsultation with the Charrman Papers
are distr buted a weck 10 agvarce via
asecure arhne portal IFreguired. the
Board considers matters or 41 ad hoc

Dasis botwesn sencauled mestings.

A: Boa-o meetrgs, the agerdaq e

projacts, sral,es sl *be markor A wmich
the Gf':up Sperates aro peri.'arrrwar*:b
Zack oftho Execitive D -octars and the

Company Secretary o s proy de updates

to the Boacd e rmattees far whuch the. are

respomable Tre Board s respons pee for

appro. ngihe rrud oooget and the

snual and Ralf year results Of course,
much of the discussian this year has
focused on the impact of tne coronavirus
parderric and Lo addresy the challenges
posed by the enforced closure of the
busness, Considerable ime was spent
mealuatog the decision o launch ae
squity raise and Lo deal witn the
Company’s reﬁnar\cmg

At the start of 2021, a programme

of presentations from members of the
Executive Tearm ard senior management
wd resumed. The programme gres the
Board exposure to ta'ert in the business
while also providing an opperturity to
engage in the key areas being worked

an und the agreed siralegic projects
Sresentators have included infarmaticn
sbout the custormer journey and digitan
transrcrrrﬂtlon‘ ouJr pecp\c stre.tegy and
our £9G strategy These sessons also
enab.c the Board (o pronde feedback
ard guicance to the indwidual present-rg

maddition to scheduled meetings,

te Board alse meets every year fer ar
in-depth review of the Group's stratogy
wh.chircludes, among otner things,
discussions about market treads,
consumer markel, competiter landscape
and zapital structure. This sesman is
narmally held offsite within ane of cur
wenues in the Sstate but in [ ght of the
pardemic this was not possibie, Members
of the Execunie Tea joined the Board
o prowde their views an the straiegy and
whlo the pandem ¢ may have altered some
short-term tactica’ actity that delvers
s strategy, the Board agread tnal the
oversrching prinaiples were urchanged

The Nan-Exccutive Directors fram tme
te L me meet vitk membors of the scnior
managerment tosm ard s so spend days
culin the trade wtk indradaal members
of that team. This helps to keep Nor-
Exccutive Direciors up Lo aste mitk re
cperanicns of the Greup and alse prov ass
the Exacutve Direcrars arg semioe
ma~agerert with Laluzble feeakack about
t~e Company's pecple sne s operat ars

As wmoh 3 tre duispue wihin the

Beardroom, the hon Sxecut w0 Birzctors

Qe Qf

pricstely under tno ea

Seniar Independent Diractor, witncy: e
Erzzuuiz Dractor prasect Tray aha
-

meat etk tre Chg cman and the Cn f

Exccutiiz onzregular base Trese
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meetings allow for the review of 1nsues
faced by the business, the contimuation
ofdmbgue on strategic iwsues, the

d scusyon of Board appoiniments when
appropriate, succession planairg, and
the provision of suppoert to the Chairman
and the Chiel Executive in their rales

Board Committees

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee mantars the
integrity of the Financ al reporting for the
Compaﬂy, manages the re\atlonshlp with
the external auditars, and ovecsces the
effectiveness of the nsk managerment and
nterndgl contro! systerrs. Its members are
aill independent Nan-Executive Directors,
The Audit Committee’s report for the year
s sel out on pages 3" to 55.

The Remuneratien Committee

Tre Remuner stion Committes sobs the
Remuneration Policy for the Chairman
and the Executive Directars, and .t also
revicws the rermureration framework for
other senior managerrent. ity members
are allindependent Non Executive
Directors The Remuneration
Committee’s repert for the yearis sel
out on pages 56 Lo 78.

The Nominations Committee

"he Mominaticns Comrmittee 15 chaired
by Michas' Turner and the othe- members
are allindependent Non Executrie
Cirectors. Julette Stacey and Freler
Jones have served durng all of the year
and, rroHowimg approwﬂ by the Board,
Ropin Rowlaind joined the Committee

on 25 January 2027

The Committee 15 respensible for leading
the precess for sppaintment of Directars,
for appro sl by the Beara, although

the full Board w ll alis tyo zally

‘niormaily discuss Board arg senor

mdndgemenL Appainimeants,

Aller g compebitie croce s the
Mormnanons Committee approsed

the sppointmert of Spencer Stuartto
suppc-t the search fora Sinance Director
Patenteal card aates were dent Ned
srdthe CEO snd Besple and Ts ert

D rectar mes wirh shom foririmial
irtersen Short-lsted candid ates were
therin, tec to mee: the Charman 2na
other rnemzers of the Norinaticns
Comrmtes. 3y wel 35 the Executive Tesm

Fanng cors aered foedosck from Lthose



meetings and his breadth of financial
and sector experience, the Naminations
Committee recommeoended the

appointment of Neil Smith to the Board.

Whilst the Board s alert to the

need to ensure diversity im sl its forme
15 promated, the Board believes
dppointments should be mads on marit
and does rot wart to adopt targets that
may af fect its sbility to make the nght
decision for the business and all its
,‘:lﬁkEhG‘dC‘r,‘:, /\"J dnd \th‘ﬂ BOdrd
vacancies arise and, should the support
of an executive search firm be reguired,
the Board and the Nominaticns
Committee will ersure that it only uses
firms that have signed up Lo ther
ndust-y’s Voluntary Cade of Conduct
Further infarmation an gender diversity
across the business can be found in the
Corporate Social Responsibility report
en page 38

Attendance at Board and
Committee Meetings

The table above shows the atterndance
of Dircctors at Board and Commitice
mectings held durimg the yedr

under review.

The Beard be'ieves that al. of its members
Rave sufficient me to dseharge their
duties e fectvely. All Directors are
regurred to seck permission before
accepling any external appontments,
therefore Board members are kept

fully aware of their colleagues’

other commitments,

Composition and Balance

of the Board

The Charman s responsible for leading
the Board and ensurng its effectiveness
and openness, and that shareholders are
kept well informed. The Chairman does
not have any commitrents which
constrain his ability to fulfil his role Simar
Ermeny, the Chief Executive, 15 responsible
far all eperationy’ aspects of the Group,

Dunng the pericd, Adam Councell
announced be would be leaving the
Cempary lster this year following an
orderly handover, Ned Smith will join as
the new Findnce Director no fater than

1 December 2021,

On sppointment, new Directors
underlske s talored induction programme,

Attendance 2020/21 Audit Nominations  Remuneratian
Director Board'  Committee Committee’ Committee
tuchaer Turner 28/28 - 11 -
Simon Emeny 28/28 - - -
Adam Councell 27/28 - - -
Fred Turner 27128 - - -
Sir James ~uller 28/28 -

Richard Fuller 28/28 - - -
Helen Jores 28/28 1nm 11 8/8
Robin Rowland 28/28 1M - 8/8
Julietre Stacey 28/28 1nm 7 8/8

1 Includes scheduled and ad hoc meetings, including weekly meetings held in respense to the

Covid-19 pandemic.

2 Robin Rowland was appointed as a member of the Nominations Committee on 25 January 2021,

The Cor‘np;my has six Non-Executive
Directars of which three  Michae! Turner,
Sir Jarmes Fuller and Richard Fuller -

are farmily members The other three
Non-Executive Direczors, all of whom

are deerned independent under the Code,
are experienced business leaders, and
collectively all of the Non -Executives
bring a wide range of skills and exper.ence
to the Board. Althcugh the Board
{excluding the Chairman) does not
comprise at ieast hall independent
Non-Executive Directars, the Board
considers it1s well balanced as it has the
nght number of members for tne size of
the Group with representation of the
founding families on the Boord being
considered very important in a company
with a high proportion of family sharehalder,
The Directars agree that no cne individual
dominates discussions and that each makes
afulland positve cortribution.

The Directors’ biographies are on pages

40 and 43 juliette Stacey s the Senior
Indeperdent Director. The Senior
Independent Director of fers support and
advice to the Chairman and all the other
Soard memnbers, 1sin regular dialogue

\N‘th ']H BOJ rd member:\ Outﬁlde DF BO;‘] rd
meetings and co-ordinates the views of the
MNon-Esxecutive Directors oy and when
required, Al' of the independent Non-
Executive Directors are determined by the
Beard to be independent in charscter and
Judgement and there are no relationships or
arcumstances which could affect ar uppear
Lo sffect their judgement; all are appornted
Tor speeified terms The details of the

MNen Executive Directors’ respective
darrangemants dre as set cut in the Dircctors
Remuneration Report on piges 56 to /3

and are avallable lor inspection at the
Company's registered of fiee.

Succession Planning

The Board cont'rues to see succession
planming as a key ssue for a business that
has very low turrover amongstits senigr
management and i1s still very much

a famly -controlled concern whilst alse
peing 4 public histed company

Succeswon planring and the develapment.
of talent 15 snongeing actvity regularly
discussed by the Board and Lthe Exccutive
Tearn and there s o clear plan in place for the
seccession of key roles Talented and “erit.cal
toretain” ndividusls are identil% ed and cach
indridual has their own development plan,
owned by the individual and supported and
overseen by their leader and the People &
Talent team. Development plans are
grounded in data from assessments and
fecdback, and external partners and experts
are engaged to support developrment

where required.

Advice for the Board

There 1s a procedure in place under

which Directors can abtain independent
professional adwvice, The Directors alse
Fave access to the advice and services

of the Company Secretary whose
sppointment and removal 15 a matter for
the whaole Board. The Companry Secretary
s responsible te the Board for ensuring
that Board precedures are complied

with. The Directars are satisfied that any
concerns they raise at Board meetings

are recorded in the minutes. The Company
mamntans dpprODﬂﬁte INSUr4nNce Cover in

respect of legal act on agamstits Directors

and Officers
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GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report continued

Professional Development

Directors are emcouraged 1o uttend
training courses, mduﬁtry forurms and
specialist briefings relevant to therr role
throughout the year. Occasionally,
specialists such as the Company's legal
advisors join 3 Board mecting to brief the
Board on a particu'ar topic. Executive
Directors are permitted Lo hold one other
pad directarship, with the Board's consent,
3% the Board believes that Cxperience of
how gther boards wark enharces the
Diractors contribution to Fuller’s,

Board Evaluation

The Cornpany was due to urdertake on
externally faciitated evaluation this year
but, in hght of the impact of Covd 19,1t
was decided that an interndl process would
be cenducted by the Senicr Independent
Director. An externally-facintated
evaluation will tuke place next year and

a process to seiect a firm to help wth

this exercise 1s current'y underway

This year, the Directors campleted

4 questionnaire covering Lhe per‘ormance
of the Boad as 3 whole and the Bourd
committeas, the offectivercss of the
Executwe Directars and Mon - Execut ve
Dhrectars, key learnings from the year

in question ard consderatiers for future
areas of focus The Sen or Indepengent
Director also met with each Director
individually te discuss their feedback and
perfarmance aver tne year and. following
review with the Chairman, the £ ndirgs
were presentad to the Board

Overal, feedback wis positive and
demaonstrated that the Board and

each of ts committees had performed
effectively in dealng with both day to-day
and angaing strategc issues dunng a very
challerging periad The Soard recognised
the contr bution and afferts of the
Executive Team through the caronaarus
pardemic. Aress b arlighted for
ennanzemeart included.

Cortng rg etk more frecuantirfarmal
contict betvear Board meet rgs
established rresporse 1o the

corgna, fus pardames

ds 7este cUons ease and irorads

zortact beteezn Boord ek

Supporting succassion planning below
Board level and developing 5 strong
diverse talent pipeline

Board Re-election

Trne Articles of Awsociation of the
Compary ensurc that afl Directors are
subject Lo electior by shareholders st the
lirst AGM after their appointment and
tore-election at three yearly intecvals

Relations with Sharehalders

The Company has an OMEGING BTOEFAMME
of individual mect.rgs with institut cnal
shareholders, allowing it ta update
shareholders on the performance of the
business and the strategy for the future,
and to give them an opportunity to discuss
corperate governarce matters, The
Company's brokers a'so conLact kay
shareholders to establish if they would ike
to sec the Chief Execative and Finance
Directar in the days following the
presentanion of the preliminary and haif
year results, The Chairman, Rickard Fuiler
snd Sir James Fuller are the key cortacts
wih the Company's farmuly shareholders
snd Sir James Fuller has 2 spec.fic rale
tokeep in touch with those sharehslders.
The Sen or Independent Director and

the other Non-Executive Directors

are all will ng to attend meetings with
snarchclders or to be contacted by
sharcho.gers skould they have ary
concerns which have nat been resolved
through the narmal channels. The

MNen Executive Directors have had ro
such requests during the last financial year
All Board members receive feedback from
the results presentations and meet ngs
with sha~eholdars, enabling them to keep
intouch with shareholder op nior

The Board supports the use of the AGM

to communicate, © partculan, with private
inses:ors, dnd the Chairran and Chief
Execunie make a deta ed presertation

to sharebo'ders updating them on the
Company’s performarce and progress.

The 3oard s keen te encourdge nsbitutonal
19.C5E0rs 0 atiend the meatira, n ine with
rne danies sctout rtne Stewsrdship Code
for msttuticral smacchalgers. Skoulz the,

ba.g concerns over any ssues being sotea

.oz atthe AGHM they can ther moet al

the Directors ard descuss themin persar,
oarticalerly ftne, have decined ar
1 tatan foranind adual meerng

Tre Charrar srranges for the Char

-

izh ot the Compary's Board

>0

Committees to answer relevant questions
at the r‘r‘eﬂ-hng and CUCDUT RS all Directors

to be present

Inlight of the angoing nsks of Cowd, we
Feld the 2020 AGM as a clased mecting
to ensure the safety of all concerned.
Sharchalders were invited £ submit
questiom o any matters related to tne
NG prer to the meet'ng and answers
were postad on the Comrpany's website
afterwards The Board plans to held the
2021 AGM a5 rormal this year on the
basis that all restrictions wall have been
Iifted by the tme of the meeting, and
preparatans are being made far a1 physical
rmecling to be held en 23 September 2021
at The George IV, subject of course to any
Government gudance in place at the trre

Detals of the engagement process with
shareholders regarding the new Directors
Remuneration Policy 2an be found in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on

page &6,

By arder of the Board

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

8 July 2021

Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C
Pier House

86 93 Strand-on theo-Green
London Wa 3NN



JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

“The fundamentals
of our risk management
and internal control
framework have been
subject to close scrutiny
during the ongoing

closure of the estate.”

Audit Committee Report

Staternent of the Audit
Committee Chair

Dear Shareholder,

Vo pleased to present the Audit
Committee Report for the year ended
27 March 2021,

Asrepor led last year, we identified
coronavirys as an emerging risk and

whilst our core duties have remained
unchanged, it has been necessary to

Flex our programmme of activities and
consequently mest more frequently than
normal. In particular, the fundamentals of
aur risk maﬂagement and internal contreol
framework have been subject to close
serutiny during the orgoing closure of the
cstate and given the uncertanty of the
impact of the pandermic on our business
During the year, we were pleased Lo
welcome a new Head of Finance
Trarwsformation and Risk, lan Namey

lar has helped us implement changes ta
strengthen our approach to the annual risk
assessment, and supported a comprehensive
review of aur risks, as well asimplementing
a framework wh ch we can use to assess
and enhance the control eavironment.

Akey arsa of work for the Audit
Committes this year has been the

audit tender process which resulted in

the appointment of Ernst & Young LLF.

| led this process an behalf of the Audit
Committee, but would like to thank my
fel'ow Committee members and the wider
finance team for their support. Given

the engagement of a new audit firm, 1t
seemed an appropriate time ta summanse
arrangements arcund independerice

and ebjectivity, and this has now been
formalisad into s written policy. The formal
appontment of Ernst & Young LLP will be
proposed at the AGM, but we have been
delighted with their support during the
year end and lock forward ta developing
th's relatienship.

During the year, we receved a letter from
the Financial Reporting Councail notng
that the Cempany's 2020 Annual Report
and Accounts had oeenincluded in ther
thematic review of corporate reporting
an cash flow statements and \lquwdﬂ_y

disclosures. We were pleased to note

that the FRC had no specific
questions to rase but, inresponse

to paints they highlighted, we bave
reviewed our disclosures and for those
areas which are sull relevant this year
we have made a number of changes to
cnharce reporting <o that it cledrer

and more concise,

Locking ahead to the next year, we wall
marutor closely the roll out of the new
finance system which the Company
hasidentfed as more suitable for

the business following the sale

of the Brewery, reviewing both the
robustress of financial reporting

from the system and simplification

of nterral cortrals maragement.

IT security will also be an arsa of focus
given the increased risk from cyber
attacks, and we intend to conduct

a deap dive into the contral in this
area to help mitigate these thraats

lwill be attending the AGM on

23 SeptEWEE‘r 2027 and | loak
FOFW:i“’d el dﬂ\wer-ﬂg d'j)/ qUCSUOr‘\
about the work of the Audit

Commitice then.

J

JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

8 July 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee Report continued

Committee Membership

The Committee comprises Lhree
independent Non-Executive Directors
and has o good balance of shlls anth
competence and exporence in the sector
inwhich Fuller's operates The Chair of the
Committee s a Chartered Accountant
and has a broad range of expenence in
senior finance roles, and she s therefore
consdered to moet the requirement
urder the Cade that at leasl one member
should have receat and relevant financaal
cxperierce, The Comm\ttec B ddvlsed
internaly by the Company Secretary,
Rachel Spencer (Séverine Béquin untll

8§ January 2027, wha alse acts as
sceretary to the Committee,

Meeting Attendance

Actendarce of Comeristes memrhecs at
scheduled rreetings throughout the year
15 selout on page 49 The Committee
rormally meets fours time a year but,
gven the unprecedented year, we b e
heid elever meetings. As we'l as the
additiznal rgour needed arcund risk
management w th the entre closure of
ke business, the formalives of the FY20
audit process regured added attention

Al meetings aro attonded by the exterral
guditors and the Cerpany Seeratary,
ard rog.a.ar attendeos include the
Chairrnan, Chief Exccutive and the
Finance Director Members of the
F'nance and <isk managereent team

alse attend relevant mest ngs st the
Commirtee Char's request, and reports
arc received on accasion from other
rrembers of the minogement team

as required by the agerda

The Audit Committee mects dt least once
ayear with the external aud tors, without
MANdgement prasent, Lo a>cuss any
matters thoy may wish te case. The Audit
Cerrrnitter Chair also meets separately
with the Finance Jirector and auditors
outsde of the farmal mecting programmre
which helps to dentfy key arcas af facus
and ermerging issues that may need to be
added to the Audil Comariztee’s agenda

Responsibilities

The Audit Committee’s rosponsibilities

are outlined im ity terms of reference
These were raviewed Fo lowing the year
end, Including ar assessment af how tne
Audit Committec had discharged ity
responsibilives durng the year The revised
terms of reference car be found on the
Corﬂpdny‘s websito.

The principal respansibilibes of the

Audit Cammitize are to review the
imtegrity of the financial reporting for

",hE' GrOUP IClmC:Ud Fg maﬂdg\’"g the
relationship wth the auditars) and te
oversee the effectveness of the risk
managemert and internal contral systems.

Key Activities

The Audit Cormruttee has g detailed
mecting panner which sets out the key
iterns to be covered atizs seneduled
meehings which includes <evicvang the
linancial statemeonts ard arrcurcaments,
momtcrmg char’gea Inaccourting pracuices
and policies, and reviewing decisions with
asgnificant elermert of judgerment

A zach scneduled meeting an update on
sk mandgement s presented, together
with reparts on compliarce with anti-
bribery procegures and data protection,
lalghtof Covid 19 ard the entire clowure
of the busiress. thoro has been even
grealer nigour around potential risks arising

from the orgoing uncertairty 10 2027, the

Aodt Comrrittee recersed a7 update
regatoing tnercreasing rsk of atergens
37G was plosseg o note tha continued
adnerence to proceduras sready in place
to miugate tris © sk, Logether stk tho ne s

s of enhance~ent baing consdarad

ol s P ot S (Ko TRl ul B Wall: o fa et a el
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The Audit Committee keeps sbreast of
reguldtary and governance developments
as part of ongsing reporting from the
auvditars. Speailic ares ol interest

are schedu-ed separately and in 2021
amermber of the auaitors’ Regulatary &
Public Policy tear gave a presentation to
the Cammuttee an audit reform prepasa’s
being corndered by the Gavernment

The effectivencss of the Audit Commitieoe
lcrmed part of the Bosrd evaluation
process describad in the Carporate
Severnance Report on page 50.

Financial Reporting and
Significant Judgement

The Audit Committee menitors the
integrity of the finarcial rformation
publisned in the rtenm and annual
Financia' statements and considers the
extert ta which suilable accounting
pol s have been adepted, presented
and disclosed

Churingits review of the Group's financial
staternents for the perod to 27 March
2021, ~he Aundit Cormittee has reviewed
the l(E‘yJJdgGI“PC'Wt'i dppwed in the
preparazon of the corschdated financia’
stalements, including those communicated
by the auditors during their reporting,
These are descrbed rthe aceountrg
palc.es actaled ir note 1 ko the finincidl
statements The Board was made

faly aware of any sigri.cant Financia
reporting ssues adeudgementi rmade

In connection with the preparation of

the financral statements
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The key 1ssues and judgements considered by the Audit Committee are detailed in the accompanying table:

Keopanian mg algerenl Howtn2 ssuowssadoosios

Going Concern The Audit Cammuttee conudered the appropriatencss of the poing concern sssessment and
assaciated judgements around matenal uncertainuies. The Audit Committee reviewed the
scendrios and miligalions avdllable 1o the Group as d'sc’osed in note Tand is satisfied

the disclosures arc appropriate

tmpairment Testing of Intangible The Audit Committee considered the proposed impairment of property assets, nght-of use
Assets, Right-of-Use Assets and assets and goodwill for both the Half Year Repert and the Annual Report, The Audit Cammittee
Property, Plant and Equipment was salished with the appraach presented by management and the judpements made for those
properbes at risk of imparment,

Deferred tax Deterred tax accounting on property, plant and equipment 1s & corrplex area and & number
of judgements are required to determine the value, Deferred tax can be recognised on pubs
based on dispesal, in-use or a dual basis and a number of differert inputs need to be considered
to caleulate this such as Tair value upiler‘ relled over gams and indexation A prior yoar
adustment Lo deferred tax hability has been recognined in respect of an understatement in
the base cost recoverable on 4 sales basis. The Audit Committee is satisfied that after the
adjustment was made to the openirg balance, the judgements that management applied in the
current year are appropnate. The Audit Commutiee has also considered whether suficient

w
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disclosures have been made in the Anrual Report for the prior year restatement and 1s satisfied
they have been

Separately Disclosed Items The Audit Committee consigered the nature of items classified as "separately disclased items”
in the hinancial staternents. The Audit Committee was satisfied that the iterns management
proposed to be shawn as separately disclosed items were not hnked to the underlying trading
of the Group. Separately disclosed items include

Costs re|atmg to the corparala reorgdnisdtion of the Group, 5pecwrlca{|y the hive up
of the trade and assets of Be! & The Dmgon and Cotswold Inns & Hctels, the Cndﬁg
of the transitional services arrangement with Asabi and restructuring due to the
CoronavIrys pandermic

- prof tarloss on property disposals
Impdrment an properties, right of use assets and goodwll
net interest expense or the Grouph defined benef L pension plan.

In addition, the Audit Comrmitiee reviewed these disclosures within the 2021 Annual Report

|
and Accounts to ensure they clearly identified and reconciled to the relevant GAAP measure. 2
Pension Accounting The pension hability 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions applied in measuring future cash §
outflows. The use of assumptions such as discount rate and inflation. which have an impact o
on the valuation of the defined benefit pension scheme, was assessed by the Audit Committee. Z
The Audit Committee was satished with the proposed accounting treatment and disclosures 3
of the Group's defined benefit planir the financial statements. 3_
v
Going Concern and Fair, Balanced and Understandable - Each section of the repart was preparcd
Viability Statement The Audit Committec reviewed whether by a member of management with
The Audit Committee assessed the the 2021 Anrual Report, taken as 4 whoie, appropriate knowledge and experience,
going cancern ard viability reviews was fair, balanced and understandable and inciuding representatives from finance,
undertaken by management as detaled alno whether it provided the infarmatian COMMUNICatoNs, company secretanat
in the Financial Review on pages 25 and necessary for shareholders to assess the and risk z
26 This involved lecking st potential Company's povtior and performaree, - Management’s views on each of the key =N
revenues, costs and cash flow modelling business model and strategy. [n making Judgerrents which were then discussed 5
on heth a prudent base case and stress its assessment the Audit Committee tock by the Audit Comrmittee =
case scenanio where there was much the following irto account, - Reports and feedback from the %
greater uncertanty. The Cammittee vias auditors which were presented to the 3
satished with the sppraach presented by - Aumetable for the productior of the Audit Committes g
mansgement including the judgements 2021 Annual Report was agreed by the - Boird members receved drafe of tne g
made in the estimation of Tuture cash flows Cinance Team and the auditors, with report for review which provided an
and the Group’s Financing, and considenng overdll e ordinguan of the reporl beirg Opportunity to provide camments and
the high propertion of freehald property averseen by the Finanee Cirector gsure messdging was cohesive.

that underpms the eslate



GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee Report continued

Fo||owwng its review, the Audit Committee
confirmed to the Board that the 2021
Annual Report was fair, batanced and
understandable, and the Board's
staterment iy set out on page 45

Internal Control and

Risk Management

The Board has averall responsibility for the
Graup's system of internal cantrol and
managerment of risks and reviewing «ts
C{Fecti\/cness The Sy')tem WS de‘:\gmed
o provide reasonable bur not absolute
assurance of:

the mitigat:on of risks which might
caune the fauure af busiress objectves
ra materidl misstaterments or lossos

o the safeguarding of assets aganst
unauthorised use or disposal
the maintenance af proper accountng
records and the relability of financial
information used within the busness
or for publcation
complance with apphcable laws
and regulat.ors

Tre Directors statement on Lhe
Company's system af internal controls
15 sel out below

E srly in the year the Committer d scussea
the Cormpany's nisk management process
ard took the oppartumty o do 3 [N
refresh of the risk regiater. Th s included

a battom up review of risks across ol
departments, revising or reconfrming
owrershin and UPdr‘lf’,'ng m\tlgdtlr\g actiang
and contrals. This gave the Commitiee
increased confidence in the risk processes
woithin the Group Any signifizant
changes te risks were discussed in each
subsequert Cormrittee meeting

‘'naddition, durng the yesr 2 scisction

of key risks were presented to either the
Audit Corrmitiee or the Soard. This has
meluged risks around pusiness contru ty
vith the closure and reopering of the
Busingssdue to Cova, assessmen: of riaes
arourd our people and the approsch to
arpifyngand s’ aifpirg aor supply chan

Loneirg forward, tha de'egation

of authernes s oeng updated for Tull
mplerrertation o th the res fnarce
wyste and the comman cerment

of 3fzcused revicw on cyber secuny

s bengirivated

The Group maintains busincss continuity
plans and tests these plans an an annual
basis, usually towards the end of the
frnanciaf year Due Lo the corenavirus
pandemic and the closure of the estate
for much of the year, it was not possible
1o carry out the annugl exercise for the
financial year ended 27 March 2021

The Board and Audit Commitiee consider
the rapid and thorough response to the
pandemic by the Executre Team, and
the braader management Leam, as solid
evdence of the effectivenays of exsting
disaster recavery and busingss

continuity p\am,

Managerment within the Finance
Department arc responsible for the
appropriate maintenance of financial
records ard pracesses that ensure all
financial information s relevans, reliable,
i secordance with the appiicable lows and
regulations, and distributed both internally
and exterrally in @ umely manner.

The scoping, tendening and implermentation
of a new central finance system, whizk will
go ve during the new financial year has
been an area of lacus for the Fingnce
Department dunrg this financial year.

Throughout the penod, the Executive
Directors provided relewant and limely
finanzia! commentary to the Board to
suppierment the financial reportng, ensJring
the Board and the Audi: Committes were
irformed of the financial position and
results of the Group.

The Board and Audt Committee have
considered the effecuveness of the Group™
system of internat control, taking account
af materal changes in the operatons of the
Group fellowing the coronavirus pandemic,
the i plementation of the Cerenaviras Job

2tent on Schome ard the Group's vanous
reopering plans that have been required

4t sanous pants dunirg the yeas and sgan
afzzrtne year end,

Koy glements of the sy siem of intere 4
cortes desigred to address s gnihican:
fs and LEEETUI rhics, 4k doturnentad
snpages 25tz 20, r2llae

cearly gefined levels of resparsibilty
srd gelegat or throughsut the Group,
togethor sath weli-siructurad reper

“rasup o the Board the proparaton
cfsrroatbudgers foreach dinz am,

54

including commentary an key business
opportunilics and r.sks, approved by the
Executive Team and further revicwed
by the Board on a consolidated baws
the reviews by the Executive Team

of actual monthly results against
hudgcl7 toge{her with cormmentary

on sigmﬂcaml varances and updatcs

of both profit and cash Flow
expectations for the year

i addbion, due to the exceptional
circurnstances of this year, weekly
reviews of performance of both
profit and cash Fiow duning period-
of reapening

adetarlded investment dpprovdl process
requring Board authorisation for all
major prolects

post-implementation appraisals

of major caprtal expenditare projects

regular reporting of legal and
accounting developrnents to the Board

regular reviaw of the Group's risk
register and discuswon of sigrificant
risks by the Board and Audit
Commiztee, whch amorg other things
take account of the sigrif cance of
cnvironmentat, social and governarce
mdtters to the business

moritening of accident statstics and
the resulis of health and safely audits.

Tre Group does rot hwe a forrmal .nternal
audit fungtian The Group empiays 3 team
of retall bus'ness auditors who monitor,

in particular, the contrals over stock and
cashin the Managed Pub estate, Bel &
The Dragon sites, Cotswold Inns & Hetels
and, until their sale, The Stabie sites.

Relevant management attend meetings of
the Audit Committee to discuss the issues
be ng addressed Clearly, with the business
closed, these reviews were curtaled but

a programme of act-ilizs has now been
resumed After consderatior, the Audis
Committes has corfirmed that the
existing arrangeants for internal audic
“erma N appropriate. Mandgement may
From tme to tme sugmert the nternal
auditrescurce vt special st external
rescurocs Cxterna exporiise s #59 used
i asaurance s regued on any areas of
risk 97 cortrols whare tre Camreitice
cans ders the busiress may be axposed.
Trsyoarthsincuaed anexternzl res 2
ofthe CIRS ctimara ccking forvard
externd' axpertise wil be Leed 1o support

DUT CYDET s22U7 Ly T8I0



Whistleblowing

The Audit Committee is responaible for
rovicwing the adequacy and security of the
Company's arrangements for employees
and contractors Lo rase cancerns sbhoul.
any pessible improprieties relating to
financial reporting or other matters

Since the year end, the Audit Committee
bas reviewed and updated the Company™
WhistleBlov ng Policy. To complerrent
the internal processes a|ready in place,

a mechanism far concerns to be raed
ananymously, rather than just in
confidence, has been implemented
through the appointrent of an
indeperdent whistleblowing service
operated by Safecall. Emp‘c;yees dre
being notified of the new arrangements
through the Company’s enline training
and communications platferm

Aﬁy W|’\\St‘eb|OWIﬂg reports are rcportcd
to the Audit Committee and, at least
;jrmu-a”y, to the Baard FOH()Wimg the
reopen'\ng of the business, 4 gldnding
report to the Audit Committee on
employea relation matters has been
resumned to provide insight to any
trends within the businegss.

External Audit

As reported last year, the Audit Committae
deaided to review the external audit
appontment and conducted 3 competitive
audit tender process. A number of firms
were invited to tander, and shartlisted
firms presented their proposals to

the Audit Committee Chair and the
Finance Director. Before the final
recommendation to the Board, all

other members of the Commuttee, the
Charman and the CEO met the potential
engagement partner of the preferred firm.

Following careful consideration, the Audit
Comrittes recormnmended the appontment
of Ernst & Yeoung LLP (*EY™) to conduct
the sudit of the Group’s financial staterents
for the financial year to 27 March 2021
Their sectar expenence was recognised as
D(irtlcuhr\y vatuable. Grant Thornton UK
LLP subsequently resigned.

The auditors are nvited to atrend 4l
meetings of the Audit Corrrmittee and
report on the plan and approach for the
full year audit and halfl year veview.

The Audit Committee Chair meets the
auditors on a regutar basis during the year
and the Audit Committee meets with tha
external suditors, without managerent
present, at least annually in order to allow
bath Audil Committee members and the
auditars Lo raise any issues directly and ta
discuss Lhe duditors remut

The Audit Commitiee reviewed the
cffectvencess of EY's performance of the

exiernal audit process taking inte account.

the quality and scope of the audit plan,
and evaluation of delivery and
perflormance against the plan

qualifications, efficiency and

performance of the gudit team

+ the communication between the
Company and EY

- EY's understanding of the Group's

business and ndustry sector

the results of the FRC's Audit Quality

Inspection Report on EY.

After considenng these matters, the
Auvdit Committee was satisfied with

the effectiveness of the year end audit
process and recommended to the Board
that EY should be proposed for format
appointmert at the Company's AGM
or 23 September 2021

During the year, the Company complied
with the provisions of the Statutory Audit
Services for Large Companies Market
mvestigation (Mandatary Use of
Competitive Tender Process and Audit

Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014,

Auditor Independence

and Non-Audit Services
HAuditarindependence and objectivity
are safeguarded by a number of cantrol
measures and, in hght of the appemtment
of EY, the Audit Committee decided it
was an appropriote time to summarise
arrangements inta a formal written policy
(the “Policy”). The Policy was approved in
January 2021 and sets cut processes for
assessing independence and objectivity,
including disclasure requirements of the
auditors, restrctions on the employment
of the auditors' former employees ind
the circumstances in which the suditors
may be permitted to undertake

nan-audit services.

The Policy s line with the
recommendations set out in the FRC's
Guidance on Audit Committees and the
requirements of the FRC's Revised Ethical
Standard 2019 (the “Standard ™). In respect
of non audit services, only a very short

list oF non audit services is now perm\Lth
under the Standard, which are detaled
inthe pahcy, prcwous[y, duLhoriLy was
delegated to the finance Lear to authorise
spend with the auditors (or non audit tems
up to £50,000, but under the Palicy all
spend now has Lo be approved by the Audit
Commuttee which ensures Tull visibility.

In 2021, the fees pard to EY for audit
services were £E405,000 including
FG5,000 for non recurning audit services.
There were no non audit services fees paid
during the year.

J

JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

8 July 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Directors Remuneration Report

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

“After careful
consideration
the Remuneration
Committee is planning
to grant a one-off
Recovery LTIP Award
in 2021 to incentivise
management to re-build
the business and profit
levels following the

Covid-19 pandemic.”

Statement of the Remuneration
Committee Chair

Dear Shareholder,

Onbehulf of the Beard, | am pleased to
present the Remuneration Repart for
the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021,
which includes cur revised Directars'
Remuneralion Po\\cy ["Do\icy"] which
will be put to shareholders for rjpprovaf

a7 the AGM cn 23 September 2021,

The last year has boon an extremely
difficult one for the hospitality sector

Trne autbreak of Covid 19 bas had
angnificant impact or Lhe business with
pubs closed for a cons derable portion

of the last financial year and the early part
of this financia’ year From the startof the

fiest lockdown untf 12 Apr 1 2021 ur pubs,

on average, wil have beer apen or only
275% of the 328 days During lockdewn
cash burn was .64 5 miflior per manth
Alof our sites are now open bul we dre
operabing st a much reduced capacity
mhine with government guidance

Inhight of the impact of the panderric

sn the business and to suppert the
management of costs, the Execut ve
Directors and olher Boird members
wolunteered Lo reduce their silanes by
25% between TAprl 2020 und 30 June
2020 and a5 | reported tast year ro annual
Eorus was pad for FY2020, despite part

&7 the performance targels being met

Tre Remuneration Committee

{("the Cammittze”) and the Executive
Directors agreed that, given the closure
of the bus-riess and cur rel ance an
goverament suppert, no annual banus
plan weuld operate for FY21 Stretching
ad usted =25 growth targets wot for 2078
_TiP awards were not met and taercfore
this awiard wal [apse

o6

Fuller’s s premarihy a fami'y awned business
and this ethos s integra’ to our dacsion
making. Throughout the closure of

the business, the physical and mental
well-being of aur people and their families
has been of paramount importance

to the Board and all our decisions have
been made vath them at the centre of
our thinking. We were the lirst company
L& suspend rert for our Tenants during
peried- of closure whicn was very well
recewed. For our teams 1n our Managed
Pubs and Hotels, and in the Support
Centre, our People Team has provided
access to emotional and financial support
for team members. This has been cascaged
through cur digtal communicaticr system
ard hasincludea regular videa messages
from the Chief Executive, a3 well 44
aceass to support on offer from the
Licensed Trade Chanty. We alsa provided
supermarket vouchers for those of cur
teams mostimpacted durirg the tough
thi-d ockdown and provided Fuller's
vauchers to Ledrm rmombers who
volunteerad in ther 'ozal cemmunities
whi'e fur cughed by way of thanks.
Anumber of webinars have also been
hosted to rrpart more detaled informat-on
and these became a regular fixture just
priar tc each reopering The success of
these weninars has cemented ther place
i our commuricat.ons taoldit and s

& positee learring that we wil take for ward

Recovery LTIP Award

[ igh: of the challenges the business
faces, the Board s concarned about the
motivation and retention of the Execut ve
Directors and 1s therefare intending to
grant a one-of f Recovary LTIP Award

in 2027 to incentiine rr.aﬂ.agemerwt i
reould the ousiress and proftle.els.

This award wil pen addition to the
rormal LTIP award.



The Recovery LTIP Award will vest based
upon the achievernent of stretching
EBITDA targets for FY24 which are
aligned with delvering ¢ full recovery

of the busuncss The Committee has
sclected Group EBITDA (C‘xc|udmg IFRS
16} a4 the sole measure of performance for
the Recovery LTIP as 1t strongly incertiviaes
aperational recovery throughout our
bus.ness and provides strong bne of sight
for management. Following the end of the
performance perod, vested shares will be
subject to 3 holding period for twe years.
For Executive Directors, the award

will have a value of 250% of base salary
Orther senior execulives will also participate
in the plan receving lowes levels of award.

Itis intended that the Recavery LTIP
Award will be granied under the existing
LTIP rules and will be subject to the

sarme terms around discretion Lo override
Formulaic outcomes, malus and clawback
and leavers. We will be seeking sharcholder
approval for a revised Cirectors’ Rermuneration
Pohcy and for an amendment ta our LTIP
Rules to enable us to grant this Recovery

LTIP Award following the AGM.

Other reward elements

Base walanes for Execut ve Directors
will be incredasca by 2% 0 ire with the
INCroase F‘Or Lhe W\d[‘r WDrkFOrCE. FOr
FY?Z Lh[‘ TLAXIMUrm dﬂﬂud! bOr\U\ V‘H”
contimue to be 100% of base 5d\dry with
the annual bonus based 70% on Group
EBITDA performance and 30% based
on ndimdusl strategie performance.
For FY22 the maximum LTIP award

will conunue to be 125% of basc salary
[or the CEQ and Retal Director based
on the achievernent of EPS performance
for FY24.

Finance Director's

Remuneration arrangements

As announced on 11 Juae 2021, Nell
Sruth wll be joring us as our new Finance
Director at a date to be canfirmed, but
nolater than 1 December 2021, His salary
has been setat £352,500 per annum,
We appreciate this salary is above the
salary for the former Forance Director,
however, 1L is positioned some way below
the salary he received in bis previcus role
of £430,000. Nen wll receive a pens.an
of 5% of base salary in line woth the
persion recerved by the majority of

our wider workforce ana in line w th

aur Directors’ Remuneration Palicy.

His maximum annual bonus apportunity
will be 100% of base salary and he will

be eligible to receive an annual LTIP
award of 100% of base salary. He will
alvo be e\lg\b\e to participate in the
QE‘CDVEr\’,’ LTlp ana prD-r-*.td bEiSl\,

Addl’ﬂ CDUV—]CCH Wl” step dGWH FFDH’] thC
Board and his role of Finance Director
laterim the year He will nat recove any
paymantin hies of notice Adam will mot
be entitled to participate inincentive
arrargements inrespect of FY22 and
althis outstandirg LTHP and ESOS awards

will lapse.

The Committee strongly beleves

that the Recovery LTIP Award s critical
to suppart the business.n recavery from
the significant impact of the pandemic
and we hope that you will support our
revised Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
the amendment to the LTIP Rules and our
Annual Remuneration Report at the 2021
AGM on 23 September 20217,

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

8 July 2021

N\OF/\JG!‘\(}

110doy 013310 g

n
]
i)
]
o
2,
%2
I
=
o
3
a
3
2
v

UOI']PLUJOJLJ‘ IUUOI],\ppV



GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Report on Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The following table sets out our Remunerat.on Policy for Directors (the "Policy ™). This policy wili be put forward to shareholders for
their binding approval at the Annual General Mesting to be held on 23 September 2021 and wll apply to payments made fram this date.

In developing this Palicy, tne Committes has considered the key prnciples set outin Provision 40 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code. The Committee believes that our Policy is clesr and transparent and aligned with cur culture In normal years we operate d simple
incentive framewark of an annual bonus and a LTIP enly. Award levels are capped wiin payout hinked to performance against a mited
nurnber of measures which are we'l linked to cur sirategy. Stretching but fair targets are set. This ensures that patential reward outcemes
are clear and algned with performance achieved, with the Committee having the dscretion to adjust pay -outs where this is not corsidered
to be the case.

Pay 'avels are set taking into account external markel levels as wel asirternal practice to ensure pay remains compebitive while boing
equitdble within the Company Malus and clswback and discretion provisians, LTIP helding periods and shareholding guidelines. including

post employment, are 1n place to mitigate reputatonal and ather riska.

Further details regarding the operator of the Palicy for the current financisl year can be found on pages 64 10 68 Detals of how the
previous Policy was applied for the financ al year ended 27 March 2021 ¢an be found on pages 68 to 78.

Executive Directors (“Executives”)

Pt RAFERLE R el s Lemasi o

EE

Bse Salary  Torecruit, reta’n and The Committee sets base salary taking Whilst there s no Not applicable.
reward high calbre INto dccount maximum salary,

Executive Directars to increases will norma by

- the indiidudl’s skills, expenence and

deliver the Company's ba . limg with the

their performarce

strategy The salary wil typical mereases

salary lavels at other companies of 4 similar

reflect each -olg, the swdarded ta other

size and complexity

importarce of that employees in the Group,

) - pay ana canditions elsewhere in the Group
role to the busiress o
QWEET, INCTR35C
and the experierce the  Any salary rereases are nermrally effective b L b lecl
; may be akove this leve

individual br ngs to L, fror 1 Junc 4
N certain crcumstancosy

SUCh as

where an Executive
Director has been
appainted to the Board
at alower than typical
market Sd\dry ter allow
for growth i the rele,
larger increases may be
awarded to move salary
posiicning cioser Lo
tymizal maret level as
the Executive Director
g Ns experience

- where an Exczut o
Direczor has beer
promoted of Fas
Pad achamge in
responabiities

- wherc trere has beer
1 g zant change
N mAreet praciuce or

the « zo and corploat
P ¥

Q

F:he Crgriﬂ SATCn
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Benafity Te recruit and retain
Executive Direetors by
prowdmg competitive
benefits which also
proic—cl Execuuves and
prowdo preventative
care for therm.

The Company offers Executives 3 range
of benefits which include:

car allowdnce

[ife assurance

private rncdical iInsurance
\ub‘;Crlpthﬂ\ Lo profcxmond\ bodics
or other relevant Orgrmi‘..-]tlom‘.
regular medical check ups
permanent health insurance.

Executive Directors Mdy p.—srL\c{pate inthe
Share Incentive Plan or Savings Related Share
Optlcn Plan or any other sil -employee plans
on the same basis as other ehgible employees
up to HMRZ -approved imits.

The Committee may intreduce other benefits
i1t 1s considered appropriate to do so.

Executive Directors shall be reimbursed for
all reasonable expenses and the Company
may settle Ary bax ncurred

Where an Executive Director 1s required to
relocale to perform their role, the appropriate
one ofl or ongoing benefits may be provided
(e.g housing, schooling, etc.),

The cost of the provision

of allowances and benefits

varies [rom year 1o year
depending on the cost to
the Company and there

15 Mo praser bed maximurm

limit Hewcver, the
Comrmittee monitors
dr\deHy the overall cast
of the kenefits provided,
Lo ensure that it remans

appropriate.

Mot applicable.

Aﬁﬂu:)l TD incentrsise

Bonus Executive Direciors
to deliver performance
in hne with the Group
strategy and to ahign
ther intorests with

those of sharchaldeors

Any bonus carned of up to 75% of salary
will normally be paid in cash folloving
the yCar end.

Any borus earned in excess of 75% will
normally be deferred into shares urder the
Bonus and Deferred Bonus plan {or three
years suliect to continued employment

The Committee may decide to pay tne entire
bonus in cash where the amount to be deferred
inte shares would, in the apinion of the
Committee, be so small it is adrministratively
burdensorre to apply deferral,

Bonuses are not pensicnable.

Bonuses are based on annual
performance tarpets.

The Committee may, in iLs discretion adjust
annudl bonus payments it considers that
the outcome does not reflect the underlying
financial or non Nnancial perflormance

of the particpant or the Group aver the
relevant period or that such payout level is not
dpp"opr\ate in the context of circurnstances
that were urexpected cr urforeseen when the
Largets were set, When makmg th\judgmom
the Committee may take into account such
fictars as the Commuttee considers relevant.

Malus and clawback previsions apply, dstaried
on page 63,

Maximum anaual bonus
opportunity of 100%
of base salary.

Normally 50% of the
bonus shall pay out
foron target levels of
perfermance. The annual
bonus normally starts

te accrue for meeting
threshold levels of
performance.

The Commuttee retains
discretion Lo vary the
level ofpdyouL for
threshald and Larget
performance if it
considers it Lo be
dpperrleC

The Committee

shall determine
perfarmance measores
for the bonus cach year,
These may irclude
fimancial sneasures (For
exarnple profitabity)
and other metncs hnked
to the delvery of the
business strategy.

No less than /0%
of the annual benus
will be based on
financial measures

The Committee has the
diseration in exceptioral
circumstances to ddpast
the performance
targets and/or set
differert measures

{ events occur outside
of management’s
control or where the
tdrget no |omgc'r
satisTies its original
purpose to ensure

that pay 1s ahgred

with performance.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

X

Sigeant e WL 0z atia Ty s a3 res
Share Plans

Long-Term Torewsrdthecfforts  Awards can be in the form of conditional The max mum annual Aswards granted in
incentive  of Exccutive Directors  shares orin such other form that the award in respect of 2021122 will vest
Plan in hne with the Commitlee determines has the same a4 Financial year 15 125% subject te pre -tax
CLTiPT) Company’s objective  econemic effect. Awards can be over ‘A of base salary. adjusted EPS

of ereating shareholder
value and support
ahgnment with
shareholder interests

Tre LTIF alwo acts

ds aretention tool,

(listed), and ‘B and "C’ (unlisted) ardinary
vhares and the Committee may slter the
distribution batween the different classes
of shares, provided that there s no increase
in the aggregate market value of the award

Awards normally vest based or
perflormance assessad over 4 per od
not snerter than threc years

Awards gracted from 2020/21 onwards
will normally be subject to a holding period
of two yoars follovang the end of the

erformance period,
P P

The Committee may, inits discretion,
adjust LTIP vesting levels it conudess that
the outeorme does not reflect the underly rg
firancial o non-f nanc sl performance

of the part ¢ipant cr the Group over the
relevant peniod ar that such vesting level

1s not appropriate I the context of
circumstanges that were urexpected

or unforeseen when the targets were

set or ntrc conioxt of the exper.ence

of sharebclders o- otner stakeholders
When makirg Lhis judpment, the Committos
may take nto account suck fuctors 4y

the Cammitiee considers re evanrt

Malus and clawback provisions apply,
as detaled on page 63.

Normuly 25% of awards
vesr for threshold levels

of performance.

performance which wil
normally be measured
over a pericd of three
years.

The Com"mttcf:—

may use diflerert
performance measures
for future awards it s
decered aporopriate.
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Recovery
Long term
Incentive
Plan Award
("Recovery
LTIP
Aoweara’]

Note -1t 1s
intended that
the Recovery
LTIP will be
granted under
the terms of
the LTIP Plan
subject to
shareholder
approval of
arevised
approach

to individual
award Iimits
at the 2021
AGM

cavery LTIP
Award will be granted
onacne-off baws in
FY22, desgned to
support the recovery
of the business
fol'owing the
COVID 19 panduena
by :nconiw'\mg
mdﬂdgcmer\t te
rebuild the business
and profit levels

Awards can bein the form of conditional
shares or in such other form that the
Commillee determines has the same
economic effect. Awards can be over 'A
(Isted), and ‘B and "C’ (unlisted) ordir’mry
shares and the Committee may slter the
distribution between the dfferent clussoy
ol shares, providad that there 1s nG incraase
in the aggregate market value of the award.

It s ietended that awards will vest based an
PEFFOrmdFCC over the three financial years

2021122 10 2023424,

Aowards will be %ubject tod holdmg pemod
of two years following the end of the
performance period, other than in
exceptlor\a| circumstances

The Cammittee may, in its discretion,
adjust the Recovery LTIP vest.ng levels if it

considers that the outcome does not reflect

the underlying finarcial or agn-financial

performance of the participant o the Group

over the relevant peried or that such vesting
level s nat appropriate in the context of
circumstances that were unexpected or
unforescen wher the targets were set orin

the cantext of the experierce of shareholders

or other stakeholders. When making this
Judgment, the Committee may toke into
acceunt such factars as the Committee
cansiders releyant

Malus and clawback provis.ons apply,
as detalled on page 63.

The Recovery LTIP
HAward will be pranted
ora are-off basis
with awards intendad
to be granted in FY22.
The maximum award
15 250% of base salary.

25% of the award will vost
for threshold levels of
parformance, 5C% o the
award will vest for target
levels of performance,
75% of the award will vest
for very strong levels of
performance and 100%
of the award wil vost for
excephomﬂ pc-rformance

Iz 15 interded that

the Recovery LTIF
Awards will be based
on EBITDA (excluding
IFRS16) performance.

Executive
Share
Option
Scheme
(“ESOS™

Toalign the interest
aof Executive
Directors with those
of shareholders.

A tax advanteged market value share
option plan.

Executive Directors may be granted market

value opltions up to @ maximum total value
set by HMRC.

Options vest based on performance aver
a three-year peried.

Once vested, options must be exerziscd
before the tenth anniversary of grant

Executives may be
granted ard hold
options up to the
maximum value

set by HMRC
(currently £30,0005

at any one time.

An ESOS option

will vest in Full f the
threshold performance
level is achieved.

The vestmg of ESOS
DPUOH,‘: 15 SUbJJOCt

to the achiovement
of performance
conditions which wail
rarmally be measured
over 4 period of ot
less than three years,

The Committec
ntends to use

adjusted EPS as the

performance condition

The Committee

may, however, uwe
different pe-formance
rmeasures «f it is
deemed sppropriate.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

tper st oo

U VL BT T TR R B IV

Pension

To provide Executive
Chrectors with
long-term pension
Provisions on

a compeattive basis

The Company operites a vaniety of pansian
benefits. Executive Directors are either
deferred members of the deflined benefit
pensian plan now closed to future aceruals
- or the Cempany™ defined contribut’on
pensian plan or receive a salary supplemenrt

or a rmixture of these,

The

pension contribution or

maximum dnnual Nat applicable.
cash allowsnce 15 17.59%

of base salary. Executive

Directers will normally be

expected to make a net

contribution of % of

base salary themnselves.

The Chicl Executive 15
a member of the main
section of the dofined
benefil pension plan
which s clased to
future accrudl.

For any new Executive

Director to the Board
from TApnl 2020, the
pension opportumty
will be in line vatk the
poicy for the majanty
of the workforce

Sharc
ownership

gu\de‘\ﬂE\

Augn the interests

of Executive Directors
and shareholders and
encoursge Jong torm
sharekolding and
commitment to the
Cemoary bath in and
post-employment,

Exccutive Directors are expectea Lo buld and
maintain 4 bolding of shares in the Campany
equal to at 'east 200% of base ~alary.

Exccutive Directars are expected (o retair
50% of any post tax shares that vest unaer
ary share rcentie arrangerents until this
sharenclding s reached.

Tne Committee alve has o poley 1o promote
interests in shares fallowing cessat on of
employment to erable the interest of former

Executve Directors to remain alignad with the
interests of sharehclders far an extended per od

after leawng ermployment,

Foligwng ceasing to be 2n Executve Directar,
Executive Directors wail normally be expected
to mainta na rmimmurm shareholding of 200%
of base salary {or actua shareholding if lower)

for the First 12 months follewng departure from

ke Boare 3nd 1007% of base sa'ary lor aciua
sharehald g Hower) For the subscquent

12 months. “ne Committee ~etans discretion
wawae this guide e b icis met carswdared
appropriaie in the speafic arcumstances

Mot applicable. Net spplicable
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Non-Executive Directors

Basic and To attract and retain The fees are paid in cash, There is no maxmum Not applicable.
Additional  high calibre Non ) ~ feo lovel other thar as
Foes Efccutlve Directors The [OC,E paidto che Charrman are . provided by Article 112
by offering market determined by the Remuneration Cammittee Fthe Com Y ricles
y artefing ma of the Lompany s arucles
competitive feeleve's  The fees paid to the sther Non -Executive of association.
that recognise the ime - Direclors are determined by the Charman
that the Mom Cacculive and the Exceutive Comeriites.
Directors commit to
their various roles. Fees are set taking into accaunt the tirne
commitment required to fulfl the role and
typlcnﬂ prnct\ce 4t other similar companies.
The policy in relation to Nan-Executive
Directors [ees is io pay a basic fee far
mermbership of the Board, and additional
fees far the Semor Independent Directar
and for chairmanship of a Committee to take
ints account the additional responsibilities
and tirme commitment of these rowes.
Additional fecs may be paid to
reflect additioral Board or Committee
responsibilities as appropriate such as
liaising with family shareholders),
Benefits To provide suitable Reasonatle costs in relation to travel and There 1s ne maximum Not applicable.

arrangementx to

allow Non-Executive
Cirectors to d\schdrgc;
their dutios erreclwc!y

accommadation are reimbursed to the
Chairman and Non-Executive Oirectors.
The Campany may meet any tax habilit os

that M3y ar1se 0N SUCH exparsos

The Chairman and Nen-Executive Directeors
do nol participale ir incentive schemes
Nene of the Non-Executive Directors are
members of ary Group pension scheme with
the exception of Michael Turner and Fichard
Fuller who are both pensioners of the
director’s section of the defined benelit
pension plan. Both also receive lfe
assurdnce cover,

The Chairman also receives private

medical Insurance

Addivonal non-significant beneflits may
be introduced if cansidered approprate

benefit opportunity.

Information Supporting the Policy

Malus and clawback

Cash annual benus payments may be clawed back for a perod of three years from the date of payment Ma'us and clawbace provisions
apply under the Bonus and Deferred Borus Plan (“BDBP™} and LTIF (ircluding Recovery LTIP Awards) from award to the thirg
anriversary of the grant date in the case of BDBP awards and sixth anniversary of the award date for LTIP awards The circumstances in
wh ch malusiclawback may apoly are a matenal misststement of linsncial results, an error 'r assessing perfarmance or in the information/
assumptions used, a materal falure of risk managemeant. senaus reputational darmage, serious miscorduct by the participant, or any other

SIMiar circurnstances
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Share plan operation
The Committee vl operate the annual bonus, BDBP, LTIP and ESQOS in accordance with the Rules of the pians Awards under any of the
CDVW)P:‘}T

share plans may:

have any performance conditions apphcabie to them amended or subsututed by the Committee ir cicumstances where the Comm Liee
determines an amended or substituted performance condition would be maore appropriate and not materuly less difficuit to satisfy
incarporale the nght to receive an amount equil to the value of dividends which would have been paid an the shares under an award that
vents up to the tirne of vest ng (this provision does rot apply to the ESOS). This amount may be calewlated assuming that the dividends
have been reinvested in the Company's shares an a curmulative bass

be settled ir cash at the Committee’s discration (this provision does not apply te the E50S). For Exscutive Directars, this provision

will only be used in exceptional circumstances such as where for regulatory reasons it s not possible to setrle wwards n shares

be adjusted in the event of uny vaniatior of the Cempany's share capital or any demerger, densting, special div.dend or other cvent

that may affect the Company's share price.

Summary of Decision-making Process and Changes to Policy

Duning 202G tne Commttae undertook a full review of the Polcy to ensare that our approach remains appr coriatz to supoort our
strategy af achieving leng-term sustainable shareholder vilue creation The Commitice continues to believe that n normal years the
O\A'erﬁ]” Frdﬂ'w@‘h‘ork OF an ﬂr‘wn\_l;—l‘i bc]ﬂl‘ﬁ Gmd LT‘D I ﬂppf‘Dpﬂd[e FOV' the COmP-aﬂy

The Cowid 19 panderric has, hevewer, had 4 signif cantimpact ar the business and n light of this the Committee conudered that ¢
would be appropniate to grant o Recovery LTIP Awasrd durng FY22 Lo incentvise management to re -burd the business and prefit levels,
The Rermunerauon Palicy has therefore been revised o allow for the grart of such an award, Minor sther changes have been made 1o
the warding of the palicy to increase flexib lity, to ad operation, toncrease transparency and to reliect typ.cal market practice.

In determining the new Remuneration Folicy, the Commttee followed a robust process which included discussions on the contem
o' the Do‘n\:y at Remuncration Cammittes m eu"g; dur ng the Yoar. The Committee considered npat from N\:maéemem and aur
independant advisars, as woll 3« cons.derning best prict ce and gudance fram majer shareholders. The Committee aico zonsultad
with moajor shareholders when considering the structure of the Recovery LTIP Award.

Approved Payments

The Commitiee reservas the rgnt Lo make any remuneration payments andfar payments for loss of office Gnerding exercisirg any
discreuens availsble to it n connecton w th such paynents) notwithstanding that they are noLin ine with the Policy set out above
whers the terms of the payment were agreed L) before the pobicy set out above came into efect, providad that the terms of the sayrnent
were consistent with any apolicable sha-eholder approved direciors’ remuneratian palicy in force at the urme they were agreed or where
otherwse dPPT’JJed b)« sharchalders, er (0} at 3 bme wher the relevart indiadual was not 5 Director of the COﬂ’\pa’Wy (cr other persons
Lo whom the Pelicy sct oul above appies) and. in the coinian of the Committee, the payment was rotin cansideration for the individua!
becomirg a Dhrector of the Compary or such ciher person For these purposes paymenis” includes the Committes satisfying awards
of variable remuneration and, in rewtion ta ar award over shares, the terms of the piyment are "agreed” no later than the time the award
is granted This Policy applies equaily 1o any ind vidusl who is required to be trested a5 a drector under the applicable regulauions

Selection of Performance Measures
Annual benus
The srnual bonus perfarmance measores are intended 76 neentvse Sxeculve Directors to achieve the finarcial obectives
p )
of the Group and desver the business strategy The particular banus metrcs are selected by the Committee 2ach year (o ansure
B aY F ¥ ¥

that Execuiive Directors src appropriatesy focused on the xey ob ectizes for the rex twelye martng

LTIP and ESOS

ct.entaproade org rermisusta rable returma foral of our sharehe ders lois ntended that awsras made
in 2027022 wll e basec onpre-tax adjusted EPS porformarce to prowde 5 clesr imzent ve for exscut

to delier ontns object e

nmas porus, D IPane BSOS e set taking nta scocunt irterral budget farecasts, external expoctstians

[r)

and the reed b ensare that firgets remar motystional.

Recovery LTIP Award

't srtended thatibe RecoLory LT'2 gvarc s finienal Lpon

wchicierent of EB'TOA tarzets The Cammitice R oy secctad Grsup

EBITCA lexc' idirg 'F RS 16] a5 the wole mrassurz 27 oerlorminse Torthe Recaery LT12 Avard as 1t strongr, incertisises operatizrd’

SEMy EIRSUEATUL Ut Buwrass 160 prosdoy sirang e of signt farminagemert
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Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group
Remuneration arrangements are determined thraughout the Group based on the same principle; that the Remuneration policies and praclices
should be aligned to Company purpose and values and support the delwvery of the strategy and promote long term sustainable success

Remuneration outcomes in different perfermance scenarios
The charts below set out anilustration of the Policy for FY22 The churts provide un illustration of the proportion of total remuneration

made up of each component of the Remuneration Policy and the value of each component.

Four performance scanar’as have been ilusirated for cach Executive Director.

Below threshold performance - Fived rermuneration (base salary, benefits and peasior)
P ¥ p
No annuat bonus pay -out

Ne vesting under the LTiR and under the Recovery LTIP Award,

[n line with expectations - Fixed remunaration (base salary, benefits and pension)
50% annual bonus pay -out
50% vesting under the LTIP and under the Recovery LTIF Award

Maxirmum perFormdﬂce - Fixed remureration (base 5d|dry_ benelits and pCﬂSIOﬂ)
+ 100% arnual bonus pay out
100% vesting under the LTIP and under the Recovery LTIP Award,

Maximum pefformance p|us 50% « Fued remunerotion (base sfj|ary, benefits and pcr\smn}

share price growth - 100% annual borus pay-out
100% vesting under the LTIP srd under the Recovery LTIP Award plus 50% share price growth.

The charts have boen prepared on Lhe following basis:
Basc salary  the base selary in place at T June 2021
Beneliis  based on the disclosed benefits value in the single Figure for Y21
Pensions  pased on a contribution of 17.5% of base salary
Bornus  the normal maximum annual bonus s 100% of base salary
LTIF  bascd on the maximum award of 125% of base salary (note the ESOS hus not been ncluded on the bass that awards sre net
granted at regular intervals)
Recovery LTIP Award - based on the maximum one-off award of 250% of base salary.

No payment of dividend equivalents has been assumec. Potential benefits under all empioyec share plans have noLbeen ineluded,
No share price growth has been assurred other than where stated.

Simon Emeny - CEQ Adam Councell - Finance Director Fred Turner - Retail Director
£000 £000 £000
4,000 2,600 2,480 1.800
4,000 e’ Tt 1613
| 7% (A 1,600 e
3,500 | | 2100 | | I |
3044 i ! 1,890 | 1 1,400 1230 | H
3,000 re o 1,230
[ 63% | | L P82% | i 1300 e I
2500 | o | 1,600 ) | | | [ |
| o I | | I 1,000 | 1 |
1,832 1441
2000 e 1100 Fedo ! . 800 * | !
52% | [ I 52% | [ | i | |
1500 \E : | [ [ I [ I 800 i [ !
1000 500 400
500 200
100
0 Minimum  Inhrewith  Maximum  Maximum Minimum  Inline with  Maximum  Maximurn 0 Minimum o hine with - Maximum  Maximum
expectatron plus <hare expectation plus share expectation p\us share
price growth price growth price growth
(50%) (50%) (50%)

B Fiedd [ ] Bonus | | LTIP

1 “Fixed" includes salary, benefits and pension.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration Policy for Newly Appointed Directors
When detervining the remuneration package for anewly appointed Execauve Directar, the Committes would seck to apply the
Foiiowmg prmc-p|cs;

- The package shou d be market competitive to Facil tate the recrutment of indivdunls of sufficient calibre to lead the business.
At the same tire, the Committee would intend to pay no mare than it belicves s necessary to secure the required talent

- New Sxecutrve Directars will rormally receive abase salary, benefits and persicn zantribuiions in ine with the policy described
on pages 58 te 62 and would also be eligible to join the bonus and equity incentive plans up to the mits set out in the Polizy
Im addition, the Committee has discretion to1nclude any cther remuneration component or award which it eels 1s appropriate tiking
into acccunt the spech\c crrcumstances of the recruitment, subject to the it on vanable remuneration set out below The key
Lerms ard rabionale for any such component would ce disclosed as approproate inthe Remuneration Report for the relevant yesr
Where an indwidual forfeits outstanding variable pay eppertun ties or contractual nghts at a previous employer as 4 result of ther
appointment, the Committes may of fer compersatory paymeants or awards, 11 such form as the Committee considers appropriate,
tak ng inta account all relevant factors including the form of awards, expected value and vesing tmeframe of forfeiled opportunities
When detecmining any such “buyout”, the gudirg principle would be that awards would geaeral'y be o g "like for like™ basis unless
this « considered by the Comm ttee rot to be practical or spprapriatz
The maximurn level of variable remurerstion which may nermally be awarded {excluding any “buyout” awards referred to above) in resoect
of recrutment 1s 225% of salary, which 15 in line with the current maximum hrmit unger the srrual bones and LTI In addition, any new
Executive Directar may also be granted o Recavery LTIP Award Any Recavery LTIP Award would normally be oro rated te reflect the
vrme inrole during the perfarmance period unless the Remuncration Committes detormines stherwise.
Where an Executive Drecior s required to relocate from their home location to take up ther role, the Committee may provide
assistance w'th relocatior (mither via one off or om gaing payments or benefits]
In Lhe event that ar interna’ candidate is promoted to the Board, legacy terms and conaitions would normally be heneured. includirg

any accrued pension enutiements and any outstanding Incentive awqrds,

Tofacilitste any buyout awards outhned aboue, 1n the event of recrntment the Commities may grant awards 10 3 new Executive Director
relying en the exerrpion in the Listing Rules which allows for the grart of awards, o faciliiate, imunusua circumstsnees, the recruitment
of an Exceutive Directar, without 5Cekwh.g prior shareholder approva. or urder any other sopropriate Comoar\y Incentive phh.

The remynaration package for a new'y appointed Non-Execut ve Director would rermally be in ine with the structure sel outin the poficy
table for Non Exccutive Directors on page 63

Service Contracts/Payments on Loss of Office
Wher determining leaving arrangements for an Executive Dicector, the Commitloe taces inte account any contractual agreements

including the provisiors of any ircentve arrangements, typical market pract’ce ana tne parformance anc conduct of the indiaduat

Exscutive Directars have rolirg service cortracts terminable o7 no more than one yea~s notice served by the Company or Director,
Our Palicy 15 that in the evant of carly termination o payment equal ta the salary dus For the unexpired peried of their not'ce wou d
be made, payab'e in manthly imstalments, subject to mingation, The Committee retains discrenon to pay any unexpected rotice in
the farm of a lurip sum payment «“ tr s s conaiderea appropriate

Siman Emeny's centract has been n place for a number of years In the event of early termination, he would be entitled w0 a payrrent
2quil to his base salary and the value of sll benefits far the unexpired period of hs notice, vathaut any reducticn for mitigstion.

THE‘ CD’.”m\ttee FF"]Y rnr:‘.l(e dﬂy Other pd)lme’ﬂ-._g N connection V(lth El DWeCtDr‘S Zessabcn O{ OFF\CQ or Cmp‘cym@ﬁt Where ':h\i Pﬂymeﬂt\
are made n good faith 'n discharge of am existing egs obligation (or by way of dsmages for breach of such an cbligetion) or by way of
settlement of any clam ansing in cannection witk the cessazon of a Direczor’s effice or employment Ary suca payments may imclude
but are rot irmited to pay:irg any fees far cuto acement assistance andior the 2 rector's legal andior professiora" aduice fees i carnzction

wthther cossatior oF office or employmer:

Annual Bonus

The Cemmittee —a, deterire thal ar Zxecune Directar may roman ehgbie to recen e a pro-rata oarus for tne [ nanc sl year in raspest of the

er ad they rem i find nermo'ayent T he Comr oo il determ ne thz level 2f borus taking nto account mg e eraloyreent tne crcumsiarcas
¥ ¥ g ¥ :

c

“eessat on of employreniard performance
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Share Plan Leaver Rules
The treatment of lzavers under the Company's long term incentive plars is determined by the rules of the relevant plans.
aed g < P T B e TV ot PO ALt 1

BDBP

If a participunt dies, their BOBP award will vesL T a parucipant becomes Awards [apse.
a goad leaver for any other reason, BDBP awards would normaly continue and

vestin full on the normal vestimg date. The Committee may excroise discretion
ta allow awards Lo vest at the ime of cessaticn of employment or to pro-rate
the vesting level to reflect the propertion of the vestng peniod served.

LTIP (including the Recovery LTIP Award)

Il & partic:pant becomes a good leaver, LTIP awards will not lapse, but will Awards lapse.

normaly be pre raled Lo reflect Lhe proportion of the performance periad .
yoep prop P P If a participant ceases empleyment during the helding

served and remain subject Lo performance conditions. LTIP awards wili

o
4
o
0
a
(@]
A
m
o
9
t

) i penod (other than in the event of gross misconduct)
norma ly vest on the normal vest ng date Tne Committee may detarmine that

- . ther awards will normally continue and be released at
LTIP award should vest as soor as practical following cessation of emplayment,

the normal release date. The Commuttee may exercise
discretion ta aliow awards to be released at the time
of cessat.on of empioyment,

ESOS

H a partcipant dies, ESOS awards will not lapse, but may be exercrned for g Awards lapse.
peticd of 12 menths following death. If 3 partcipant becomes a goed leaver far

any other reason, £505 awards will not lapse, but may be exercived until six

months after the third anniversary of grant {or wix months after cessation f

later). ESQS awards will continue to be subject to performance condivans,

All-employee share plans

Leaver provisions are determined in accordance with HMRC approved provisions.

* Death, ill-health, injury, disability, redundancy. retirement, the sale of their employing entity cut af the Group, or for any other reason at the Committee’s discretion.

Terms and Conditions for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The Chairman ard Non-Executive Directors serve the Compary on the basis of renewable letters of appointment which can be
terminated by written notice by either party. No compensation is awarded on termination. Lettars of appointment sre ava lable for

mspection at the Annual General Meeting and at the Company s registered office.

-
Service Contracts and Fee Letters ;
The following sets out the date of Directors service contracts and fee letters: a
Eacoative 3 ractars Cata i cortea Notize per e %{]
Simon Emeny 13 January 1999 12 months g
Adam Councell 15 March 2079 12 months 3
Fred Turner 23 May 2013 12 months ’
Nedl Sruth 16 June 2021° 12 months
* Effective date of employment at a date to be confirmed, but no later than 1 December 2021.
N Ewetat e e ot T Tt 1 e &
=
Michael Turner 1Juby 20137 June 2022 5
Sir James Fuller 1 June 2010 May 2022 2
Juliette Stacey 21 March 2018 July 2024 2,
Heien Jones 12 Mareh 2019 March 2023 3
Richard Fuller 1 February 2020% ‘ February 2022 - g
Rabin Rowland 23 March 2020 Marzh 2024 .

Michael Turner was first appointed to the Baard as an Executive Director in January 1985 and became Non-Executive Chairman on 1July 2013, Richard Fuller
was first appointed to the Board as an Executive Director in December 2009 and was appainted as a Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2020.
** All directors are subject to retirement by rotation as detailed in the Directors' Report on page 42.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continucd

Change of Control

In the evert of a takeover or winding up of the Company, share awards may vest early, subject (whare relevant to the extant to which
performance conditions have been satishied. Awards (other thar awards under the BOBP] will normally be pro rated for time since award
unless the Commuttee determines otherwise. In tha case of a demerger, special dividend or wimilar circurnstances, awards may, at the

Committee’s discretion, vest early on the same basis as for a takeover

Consideration of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Company

The Committee s advised of the proposed annual pay review for sta’fin advance of them considerning the proposed pay reviews For
Directors, se that this can be taken into account when determining Directars’ remureration for the relevant financial year Salary increases
wil ordinanfy be (i percentage terms} in ine with those of the wider workforce, and sgnificant varinces would only be expected where
there had been a significant change in an individual’s responsibil tes or a market review bag becn conducted which suggested that an
individual’s salary was no lenger competit w2, or where the Committee wanted to take account of an indwidual’s perfarmance ar expencnce.
The Cermmitiee would also be adwised if there were amy other key changes to the Lerms and conditions on which staff are employed.

Consideration of Employee Views

The Commuttes does nat formally consult directly with employeas on executve pay orin drawing up the Remuneration Policy but does
recewve penodic updates lrom the People & Talen: Director Share awnership amangst the Company's employecs is encouraged thraugh
the SAYE Scheme and SIP. These tax advantaged schermes allow empleyees to parLeipate as shareholders and ahign the'r interests with
those of the shareholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

In developing this Remuneration Policy and in comsidering the structure of the Recovery LTIF Awara, the Commitree consulted in detal
with our largest sharenclders and was pleased with the level of suppart recaived for the changes. Durintenton s that shareho'der views
wil be sre sought when there s any s gnificant change Lo Direciars’ remuneration Should sharchelders have any cancerns about the
Remuneration Policy, the Committec Charman would endeavour to mest with them, as appropriate, to understand and respend Lo

any 1s500s they msy have.

Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

The information an pages 58 to 78 has beon audited

The Remuneration Committee

Th@ Qemumer(j’_'on (:Omm‘LLEe [ofela FIEREN Cﬂt\rcly C'( ‘ﬂdepeﬁdc'\t NDn E)(CCUE\VC D‘FEC(O"’\ ar‘-d LF‘\_’ memberj GU"”"% tF\C IDE"*Od werc
Helen Jones (Chard, Juliette Stacey and Rebin Rawland. The Chsrman of the Company. Michacl Turner, and the Chie® Executive,
Simon Emeny, are imvited te attend the Commitice meetings and Lo adwise, whiere sppropriste. on the remuneraticn and performance
of the Exccutive Directors and ~clated mutters. The Commuttee s sdvised internally by the Company Secratary, Rachel Spencer
(Séverine Begun umtil 8 January 2027), who alez acts as Secretary to the Commitlee,

Tna Committee’s terms of reference sre availab.e on the Corrpany's website  state that the Committee 15 responsible for determiming
the totai remuneration package [includ.ng pensiens, serwce sgreaments and termirabion payments) of the Executive Dhrectors The
Committae glso reviews the remuneration of the members of the Executive Commuttee in consultat.on vath the Ch ef Exezutive
pembers of the Committee have mo personal financial interest in the Company, ather than as sharcholders and Directors.

The Committee’s Advisors
Deixtie LLP wis appointed by the Commuttee i June 20°3 snd duning the yesr under reviow continued 1o prowde the Com tree
and the Company w.th ad . ceincomnectior with remuncrator matters as weh o the Tompany's LTIP and share optior schemes

Dalonte - 2 fourding maber of the Remurerat on Consultants’ Group CRUG) which s resnonsit'e for the develspment and
maintenance of the waluntiry, Cooe of Conduct that € early s2us cut tha role of ececutive remuneration corsu'tarts and the profes. sl
standards by wrich tney ad.ise tneir chents Ceg- ae :erged G0 4L rmE and exporses bis s and rota'led 42, 850 fpwu% AT dur-r"é
2020°21 Duirmgtie

rece sed from Celoite dunirg Lre year was oo ecte ard ndeperdent sna thst sl indieduas who prasded rerrureran on ade ce o the

car Delotre a so praadac othar unrzlsted wax adv ce tone Cempeny The Committae s satshiad thatsd. <o

ce e oornest ans wtn Futler's ors Directars thir may mpar therindepesdance The Commities reveowed the patent 5!

~terest and judged that & 2p0rapr ate sifzguitds agarstsuch conf ot

KPS Bens om Groua pre.des the Cemrpary with 1dice on matzzrs relit rg to pens ams XP3 Penson Gro g s autkonszg anaregalates
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Statement of Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2021/22

The last year has been o difficult one far Lhe hospitality sector. The outbreak of Covid-19 has had a signifrcantimpact on the business with
pubs closed for a significant portion of the last financial year and the early part of this financial year. Many of our sites are now open but we
dre operating at o much-reduced capacity in ine with governmeat guidance. In light of this, the Commrittee intends to grant an additional
Recovery LTIP Award in FY22 to incentivive manngement ta rebuild the business and profitlevels Further details on the structure of the
/\\Wdrd daro PrOV!de bC‘OW‘

Base salaries

The CEQ and retail Directer's base satarics have been increased by 2% inune wath the incresse received across the wider warkforce.
On 26 February we announced that Adsm Councell would be stepping down as Finance Director and hus salary will thereflore not be
ircreased. Salanes from 1June 2021 arc therefore as follows:

Chief Executive - £310.000
Finance Director - £315000
Retaill Director - £204000

There has been no change ta the fees payable to the Nen Executive Directors which were last reviewed in January 2018

As announced on 11June, Nal Smith wall be joiring us as our new Finance Director. His salary has been set at £352,500 per annum
We appreciate this salary 15 above the salary far the former Finance Director, however, it s positioned some way below the sslary ne received
in his pravious rale of E430,000

Annual bonus
As nated above, gven the closure of the business and our reliance on government support we did not operate an arrual borus for FY21.

For FY22 we intend to operate an annual bonus n ine with aur nermal poficy. The maximum snnual bonus wil be 100% of base salary
for all directors, The annual bonus will be based 70% on Greup EBITDA performance and 30% based on indivdusl strategie performance
Iinked to the successful recovery of the busimoss

Targets are considered to be commercially senutive and have therefore not been disclosed Qurintention is to disclose Largets in the
FY22 Annual Remuneration repert provided that these are ne longer considered to be commercialy sensitive at that time

LTIP

The Committes intends Lo continue te grant LTIP awards for 2021/22 t ensurc that mansgement are ahignad with sharehaolders and
incenlivised to deliver long -term performance. Awards will be granted at the policy level of 125% of base salacy to the CEOQ andtre
Retal Directer. The mew Fimance Director will receive an award of 100% of base salary following his joining, It is intended that his award
for FY22 wiltbe pro-rated to reflect his time in employment during the performance period. The Commuttee s aware of shareholder
guidance regarding reviewing award levels where there has been a fallin share price. We are not planning to reduce grant sizes given the
significant need to continue to motivate and retain management. However, the Committee retains discretion to adjust vesting cutcormes

"1t considers that there have been any “windfall” gains.

The LTIP will be based on pre-tax adjusted EPS perfarmance as the Committee considers that this provides a clear objective fer
rmanagement and supparts our strategy. The portion of the LTIP award that vests for threshold performance will be 25% of maxirmum,
Far 2021722 LTIP awards, EPS targets have been set as absolute penee targets for 2023/24 in hight of the impact of coronavirus on the

base year and to provide a clear focus for management on the required level of perfarmance,

We want to measure the performance of our Exccutive Directors aganst a critenion that aligns the Executive Directars' intercst with the
long -term interests of cur shareholders We believe that an earnmgs per share measure 1s more apprapriate than a simple prefit measure
3s the latter could be improved by, for examp'e, the issuance of shares to raise cash or to finance an acquisiton having a consequent
dilutng effect on existing shareholders interests Additicnaly, gren the aim of encouraging long-term performance, we believe thut the
ecarmings per share figure should net reflect short term non-trading impacts on profit, whether positive or nagative, for example, profits or
losses on the sale of freehold properties, or profits or losses on the dispos +* of a componert business such as the Beer Business, and such
iterns should be adjusted for. Lastly, given that changes ir tax rates are urrelated Lo Exceutive Directors’ performance, we beheve that any
earrings per share messure lor the LTIP should be based on pre-tax esrnings.

MBU\JG/\O
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Pre tax adjusted EPS nurgets for the 202122 awards are proposed o follais

Pre tax adusted EPS pence in 2023/24 -

1 Vestingincreases on a straight line basis between Target and Maximum,
2 The targets set are the same as those for the 2020 LTIP award (ss adjusted for the equity raise in March 2021). Given the extended lockdown periods throughout
2020 and 2021, the Committee consider that these targets remain appropriately stretching and aligned with the creation of shareholder value.

Recovery LTIP Award

Ir hight of the cnallenges the business faces, the Beard s concerned about the molvation ard retenticn af the Executive Directars and s
therefore, intending to grant a one-off Recovery LTIP Award in FY22 to ncentivise ranagemeant 1o re build the business and profit levels.
Th\g 1V‘a‘ard ‘d'JI“ bE mn dd[]‘\tloﬁ o LH@ F\O(md( LT(P r}WdFd OU[i\ﬂE’J‘ abo\/e.

The Recovery LTIP Award will vest based upon the achievernent of stretching EBITDA vargets for FY24 which are alignad with delvering
a full recovery of the business as outhned below, The Committee has selected Group EBITDA s the sole measure of performance

for the Recovery LTIF as it strangly incentivines cperational recovery throughout our business and prowides strong ine of sight for
management. Awards will be subject to g halding perad for two years follovimg the end of the performance periad.

For Executive Directors, the award will hove 3 value of 290% o base salary_ [t 5 intended that the sward Lo the new Finance Drrecior
for FY22 vl be pro-rated to refiect his t me in emoloyment during the performance penad. Other senior exccutives wll slo participate

in the plan recerning lawer levels of sward.

Tre vosting of Sopards will be "\L.bJeCl jxe) zid’nlewng the FoHowmg targets.

—y

ar FE 1T A g e g,
Tnreshold [257% vesting) £55.0m This represents re buldng ts cur pre pandemic performance
Targer (507 payout) £62.6m This represents our steetch budgoted performance for EY 21 pre-panderric
J2S Py P g F pre-p

and 1s considered by the Committes to represent 4 strong recover
cialiid ; & i

Very strong (75% payout) £a7.6m

Ll

Moaxirmum (100% vesting) £730m 2% nerease above threshold performance

This ieves of performance woud exceed cur EBITDA performance level from
wher we owned the beer buainess and 1s considered to represant sgrficant
value for sharehelders

Pension and benefits

There are no chianges to the pensior and bencfits provision for Exccutive Directors, Excoutive Directors recewe a pension allowance

of 175% of base salary The Committee 1s aware of shareholder guidance that pensions for Executive Directors should be ahigned with the
wider warkforce, However, gven the current rate for the Executive Directors represents an exisung conteactual commetment ard that
their overgll pay 15 tovards the lower end of market gractice, the Committee does not cons der thatit1s sppropriste to make a reducuion
at ths stage. The Cammttes will keep this approach urder review.

Far ary rew Exccutwe Directors appeinted to the Board from 1 Apnl 2020 the pans on gpoaiunty will be n-ire with the max mam
emp‘cysr contripution avy ‘]blc‘ FO" t)”e W-aj@r\ty 'Jr Ihe W()rk-"‘ofce

The new Sinance Cirector will receive o persion of 5% of tasc salary in lima witn Lre pens an recerved oy the majonty oF our wider

werkTorce andin hng vath aur Cireztors’ Remunerston Policy,
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2020/21
Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table
The following table shows & breskdown of the remuneration of indwidual Directers wha served in ali or part of the year:

S Tarab 2 uerar rs AvaLs £oanu: Cbaptions RO Tanl Tots Toxed iatal L3 ke
2021 220 2021 2021 2021 FARVIN: 2021 2021 201 2021 20020
£000 (220 £000 £000 €000 0. EQOO f000 £000 E000 00T
Simon
Emeny 469 489 25 25 - 1 8 - 88 85 590 600 581 599 9 1
Adam
Councell- 295 189 23 13 - - 6 - 55 33 379 235 374 234 5 1
Frod
Turner’ 188 167 23 19 - 1 8 - 35 30 254 217 245 216 9 1
M .chael
Turner 235 250 26 26 - - - - - - 261 276 261 276 - -
Sir dames
Fuller 47 50 - - - - - - - - 47 50 47 50 - -
Richard
Fuller 42 162 1 20 - 1 - - - 27 43 210 43 209 - 1
Julette
Stacey 70 71 - - - - - - - - 70 71 70 71 - -
Helen
Jones 58 61 - - - - - - - - 58 61 58 61 - -
Robin
Raow'and” 52 3 - - - - - - - - 52 3 52 3 - -

1 Salary/fees for 2021 include the Board members' voluntary temporary 25% reduction in salary and fees from 1 April 2020 until 30 June 2020.

2 Taxable benefits include car allewances and private medical insurance.

3 Bonus refers to the annual bonus scheme based on performance in the period under review and the value of free shares awarded under the SIP of Enil (2020: £993).
4 LTIP/Options includes the value transferred to Directors from the LTIP, ESOS and SAYE Schemes. The benefit s calculated as the share price at the vest date
less the exercise price multiplied by the nurnber of vested awards for LTIP and ESOS. For SAYE, the benefitis calculated a5 the share price at the grant date
less the exercise price, multiplied by the number of options being purchased. LTIP and ESOS awards are considered to have vested if substantially all of the
performance criteria have been met in the financial year, in which case the number of vested awards is estimated based on performance against performance
measures. Fhe table below sets aut how the award 1s linked to performance of the Group.

From his appaintment on 27 August 2019.

From his appointment an 1 June 2015.

Richard Fuller was an Executive Director until 1 February 2020, when he became a Non-Executive Director for which he received fees of £7,500 in the period
to 28 March 2020, included in the figure above.

8 From his appointment to the Board an 23 March 2020.

~ o

Base Salary
During the 2020421 financial year the Executive Directors snd Non Executive Directars volunteered to temporarly reduce their salary
and fees from 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020 by 25% to support the business in managing costs. With the estate gradually reopening,

salaries and fees reverted to normal with effect from 1July 2020.

Annual Borus
As noted abave, given the closure of the business and our reliance on government support the Committee ard the Exccutive Directors
agread that it wis rot appropriate to operate an annual bonus for FY21,

LTIP
LTIP awards granted in 2818 were based on Group adjusted earrings per share ("EPS™] perfarmance for the financial year 2020721
The EPS targels were not met and therefore these awards will lopse. The Following sets out detals of performance against targets set

o =t 8
M R A
A Ollevesteg, W3llg T e SoTTarTat PEEILE P
LTIP EPS vs RF EPS exceeds  EPScxceeds  Percentsgevestof Nl growth MNil% of maximum award

RPI by +9% RPIby +24%  onginal grant:
Minimum - 40%
Maximum - 100%

The Commitlee did nat exereise any discretion n relavon to the LTIP cutzomes No portion of the LTIP avards relates to share prce growth.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continucd

Total Pension Entitiements
Muchact Turner and Richard Fuller are pens oners of the def red berefit Company pension plan, which s closed to future acerual, under
the Directors section,

Siman Emeny became a de‘erred member of the def.ned penefit Company pension p'an. under the mam sectior wher the plan closed
to futare accruals on 1 January 2015 Prior to clasure, he receved a sslary supplemant of 17.5% of the excess of his base valary over the
zarmings cap for use as part of his retirement planning. Failowing closure of the pension pian, Siman Emeny s paid a sa'ary supplement
of 17.5% of hus salary by the Company which he s required Lo use as part of his overal retirement planming,

During the year, Adam Councell and Fred Turner were paid a salary supp’oment of 17.5% of therr salanies by the Company which they
arc sequired Lo wse 35 part of ther overdll retrement plannng, They are also required 1o contribute 8% of therr sslary 1o their pension
or anather investment vehicle.

The Committee cons dars that the pof\cy operated a4 intended durmg the year
Percentage Change in Remuneration of Directors and Employees

The table below shows the percentage change in the rernuncrat on of the Board of Direciocs compared to that of the average of gl of the
Cornpany's employees taken as g whole between the financial years ended 28 March 2020 ard 27 March 2025

Average of all employees

S|mon Emeny

Adam Councell - -

Fred Turner - -

Michael Turaer -6.2% 1.5%
Sir Jares Fuller -6.2% nil%
Richard Fuller* -73.9% -93.8%
Juliette Stacey’ -0.7% nil%
Helen Jones” - -4.5% il%
Robim Rowlend - - n/a

1 Figures excluded where prior year comparator is less than a full year as this distorts the percentage change.

2 "Changeinannual bonus™ reflects the increase or decrease in the percentage of annual salary paid out as borus and excludes the value of free shares awarded
under the SIP. The employee comparator group excludes pub staff who are employed by anather Group company. It also excludes The Stable employees who
transferred on the dispasal of The Stable Pizza & Cider Limited on 7 June 2020.

3 A number of Directors had role changes during FY2020 (Richard Fuller, Juliette Stacey 3ad Helen Jones), all of which have impacted the year on
year comparisan.

4 The change in taxable benefits for the average of all employees has gone down year on year due to the comparatively smaller group of staff whe receive
a company car due to their role, compared to FY20 which included brewery staff. Benefits offered to Fuller’s employees have not changed year on year.

External Directorship Fees

The Board may gve approvs for Executives to hase ore Nen Executive role ang to retaim ary related fees paid. Simon Emeny wa-
appairted a Non Executive Diractor of The Nat onal Ga'lery Company Limi ted on & February 2018 for which he does not recere any
remurcranon. e s the Senier indepenaent D recior o W/ Smuth PLT and durng the year ke rece ved and retained rerrunerat o

of £59.000.
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Scheme Interests Awarded During the Financial Year'?
Inrespect of the 52 week peniod ended 27 Marck 2021 the following LTIPs, share options and 5IF awards were granted:

N ol A Noram '3 Laa Fleoda s Dameof grancs e

RN oo of 2ot - N g e ; b
S Emeny LTI 83333 208333 B _ 625000 05/10/2020  1/04/2023

SAYE 689 B 4.35 ~ 37,497 30/09/2020 nfa n/a
Total 90,229 208,333 ' 662,497 .
ACouncell  LTIP* 52500 131,250 - ~ 3937 0540/2020  1/04/2023 40% =

SAYE 4,137 } 4.35 _ 22495 30/09/2020 nfa nla &
Total 56,637 131,250 416,246 ::g
F Turner TP 33332 83,333 - _ 249998 05/10/2020  1/04/2023 40% E

SAYE 6,896 - 435 - 37,497 30/09/2020 nfa nfa -
Total 40,229 83,333 287,496

1 Facevalues have been calculated using the actual grant prices also shown in the table except for SAYE. For the SAYE Scheme this is based on 2n average price
for the three days before grant (shown above) although options are granted st a 20% discount.

2 Under the tax-advantaged ESOS anly options worth £30,000 may be held at any time.

3 Adam Councell hasindicated his intention to resign a5 a Director, at which tme all awards will lapse.

4 The LTIP awards granted in October 2020 are subject to a pre-tax adjusted EPS performance condition, with the targets set on an absolute basis and measured
over a period of three years. 25% of the awards vest for pre-tax adjusted EPS of 50.16p n FY23, with 100% vesting for pre-tax adjusted EPSof 61.09p
(straight-line vesting in-between). Further details of the actusl targets are set out in the 2020 Annual Report. The Remuneration Committee is considering the
impact of the equity raise on these awards to determine whether it 1s appropriate to adjust the current £PS targets. If relevant, further details will be disclosed in
the 2022 Remuneration Report.

Share Scheme Interests Qutstanding at the Year End

Shares

The Campany has Share Qwnership Guidehines lor Directors which state that Exczutives should hold shares worth at least 200% of ther
salary Accordingly, until ther guidelne « met, Executives are expected to retain

- all shares they bald in the SIP

- all shares they acquire as 4 result of exercising SAYE options

- all shares that they scquire as a result of exercising optiens under tne t1x advantaged ESOS net of the cast of those opliors

- atleast 50% of any shares that they acquie as a result of exercising options under the non -tax-advantaged SESOS net of the cost

of those options and the costy of setilng related tax and National Insurance ("NI™] thereon ;
- atleast 50% of any post-tax and NI vasted shares under the LTIP and the BDBP. E
&
Based on the share price on 27 March 2021 of £8.60, Simon Emeny held shares with a value of 391% of salary, Fred Turner held shares %2
with a value of 622% ol salary and Adam Councell held shares with a value of 16% of salary. All of the Executive Directors’ shareholdings g
therefore already mect the guideine with the exception of Adam Councell who only joined the Company in August 2019, g
3
7
>
=8
=
g
2
=
g
3
=
5
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Directors’ Shareheldings

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report coninued

Beneficial Non-beneficial Beneficial Non-beneficial AN
interest at interest at interest at intersst at
7 July 7 luly 27 March 27 March

Directors share interests 2021 201 200 201 Jol
Simon Emeny
‘A ordinary 40p sharcs 130,472 - 12448 - 113,509 500
B ordinory 4p shares 1,055,684 - 1,055,684 - 1055684 -
'C ordinary 40p shares 2,000 - 2,000 - 2,000 -
Adam Councell
Alordinary 40p shares 5,800 - 5,800 - 2,250 -
Fred Turner
‘A ord nary 40p shares 1,471 - 1,471 - 1,471 -
‘B erdinary 4p shares 492,473 - 452,667 - 447,633 -
‘Clordinary 40p shares 100,819 - 100,819 - 99,065 -
ﬂpre%renco {1 ahares 4,324 - 4,324 - 4,324 .
Michael Turner
‘A ordmary 40p shares 271,378 - 271,378 - 271,378 -
‘B ordinary 4p shares 3,036,586 - 2,988,394 - 2,988,394 -
‘C ordnary 40p shares 624,260 - 624260 - 624260 e
Znd preferconce {1 shares 71 - 71 - 71 -
Sir James Fuller
‘A?ordmary 40p shares 88,942 - 88,942 - 88,942 -
‘3 aramary 4p shares 10,486,379 = 10,438,187 - 10,415,881 e
‘C ordinary 40p sharer, 2,702,003 621,050 2,702,003 621,050 2,702,003 612,050
Richard Fuller B e
A ordinary 40p shares 13,267 872,937 1,460 500,000 10,5%1 500,000
"Blord nary 4p shores 3,065,726 10,935,015 3,065,726 10,935,015 3,065,726 10,935,015
‘Cordinary 40p shares 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 -
nd prefererce £1 shares 303 7,499 303 N 303 -
Juliette Stacey
‘N ordinary 40p shares 2,454 - 1,250 - 1,250 -
Helen Jones
‘Alordirary 40p shares 2,970 - 1,766 - - -
Raobin Rowland
Alardnary 40p shares 7,165 - 3,551 - - -
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Directors’ Share Options

g 37 Asat e
23 27 March  « e 1o Zane Feori wibs bap ,  te e o
Lot Sobhare” s Erorswed [P LRl | 2 prre :1(%\;1[ Froor S dare ERT
Simen
Emeny  E£50S| 3,296 - - _["3296] £9.10 O107/2013 0107/2016 30/06/2023 -
SAYE 3410 ~(3,410) - ~ £774 01092016 O1/09/2021 01/03/2022 B
SAYE 467 ~ 467 - _ €770 01/09/72018 01/09/2023 0103/2024 -
SAYE - - ~ 6896 6,896 [4.3530/09/2020 01/12/2025 01/06/2026 -
Total 7173 10,192 -
Adam
Councelll ESCS 3121 - . - 3421 £961 15/01/2020 15/01/2023 14/01/2G30 -
SAYE R - ~ 4137 4137 £435 30/09/2020 O01/12/2023 01/06/2024 B
Total 3,121 7,258 -
Fred
Tumer  ESOS| 2590 . - -[ 2,590] €9.65 30/06/2014 30/06/2017 29/06/2024 .
SAYE 3975 — 3979 B ~ £774 010972016 017092021 01/03/2022 -
€505 520 - R _ 520 £961 15/01/2020 15/01/2023 14/01/2030 -
SAYE - - - 689 6,896 £435 30/09/2020 01/12/2025 01/06/2026 =
Total 7,085 10,006 -
Richard
Fulle?  E£S0S5 869  (869) - - - E578 12/07/2010 12/07/2013 12/07/2020  7.36 6,395.84
ESOS 2,588  (2,588) - - £9.65 30/06/2014 30/06/2017 29/06/2024 B
SAYE 2713 ~2713) - - £774 Q10972016 01/09/2021 01/03/2022 -
SAYE 779 -9 - - £770 QW0S/2018 O1/09/2023 01/03/2024 -
Total 6,949 - -

1 Adam Councell hasindicated his intention to resign as a Director, at which time all sutstanding awards will lapse.
2 Richard Fuller's outstanding eptions lapsed on 31 July 2020 following his resignaticn as Executive Directoron 1 February 2020.
3 The Executive Share Option Scheme ("ESOS") and Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE") are both tax-advantaged share option schemes.

" Vested but unexercised options
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Leng-Term Incentive Plan Allocations

R B TR VIF NI D) [ETIAR- I | FRCR K] Total held at -
T P Maon 2l el Ty it 27 March 20212 PR SO
Simen Emeny
‘A ardinary 40p shares 131,307 83,333 - {(40,860) 173,780 nla
‘B erdinary 4p shares ) 328,271 208,333 - (102,152) 434,452 nfa
Adam Councell?
‘N ardimary 40p shares 28,844 52,500 - - 81,344 nfa
‘B’ ordinary 4p shares 72,112 131,250 - - 203,362 nfa
Fred Turner
Alordingry 400 shares 20,568 33,333 - (1,381 52,520 nfa
‘B’ ordinary 4p shares 51,424 83,333 - (3,454) 131,303 nfa

1 Or date of sppointment if subsequent.
2 Ordate mcresignatinn. Adam Councell has indicated his intention to resign as 3 Director, at which time all nutstanding LTiP awards will lapse.

The performance condinions for the LTIP are set out n the table on page 71 af this report

Payments to Past Directors
There were no payments made to past Direciors 0 the perioc.

Payments on Loss of Office in Prior Year
No payrents were made in respect of Joss of effice in respect of the firanc.al year ended 27 March 2021

Performance Graph and Table

The graph belsw shows a comparisan of the Tata Sharehalder Return ("T5R™ for the Comparys hsted ‘A ordinary shares for the last ten
firancial years agmrst the TSR for the companies i the FTSE AltSnere. The Comairy 153 constiuent of this Ingex and there’ore s ar
aoorapri stz chaize for this report

20,000
18,000
16,000
14,000
12.000

10.000

8,000

S .
6,000 e ! Fuller, Smuth & Tuener PLC, 12,723
FTSE All Share 12,158
4,000 1 I F R S VU T L 1 1 1 L
M-t ASg T san 2 Lur12 Nee "2 Apetd Sepld Febld 14 Dec'e May 'S Serls Mar't Auglé san17 e 17 Nov!7 Ascl8 Sep 'S Teb'3 Ju 13 Dec 13 May 20 0ct 25
. Fuller, Smith & Turner PLC FTSE All Share Source Thamson Dats stream
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The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive over the last ton financial years and the annaual bonus and
LTIP pay out for cach year as a percentage o the maximum available.

2572 2.4 PR Ko is P 2.0 e D] RORN 2021
Single figure total
remuneration (£000) 944 91 977 1,244 1,418 1,097 1,089 687 600 590
Annual borus® 56% 41% 77% 76% 85% A% 48% 48% nil nil
LTIP 92% 56% 64% 96}%3 100% 100% 56% nil nil nil

1 Simon Emeny was appointed as Group Chief Executive in July 2013, This single total figure comprises the remuneration received by Simon Emeny in the
Tinancial year, hence includes remuneratian for the three manths prior to this pramation.

One-third of the annual bonus was due to pay out reflecting the Company’s strong like for like sales performance vs. the Peach Tracker, However, in light of the
broader business circumstances following the outbreak of coronavirus, the Commuttee and the Executive Directors agreed that it was not appropriate to pay this
portion of the annual bonus.

Annua' bDl’\uS das a pe(centage G'Fthg maximum HVEilable.
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The graph below shows the totat remuneration for the Groun's employees compared Lo other key Ninancial indicators:

120 -
100 -
60 -
40 -~
20
O L - - .ai .— - o — e
Em Taxes Remuneration Capital Dividends
payable to enpenditure & and share
HMRC business buy-backs’
combinatiens”
W 2021 2020 ;
5
T Taxes payable to HMRC is based upon tax incurred in the year and includes corporation tax, VAL, PAYE, NI, duty, stamp duty, nen-domestic rates, property Q.
heences, environmental levies and machine game duty. Duty on the ssle of beer only relates to one month for 2020 until the sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business .
on 27 April 2019, 2
2 Capital expenditure (including business combinatians) represents cash paid in the year. =3
3 Dividends for 2020 represent the ane-off ‘[’ share dividend paid in October 2019 as part of the return of capital to shareholders and the interim dividend for g
2020 paid in the year. No dividends were paid during 2021 due to the coronavirus pandemic. o
. i
CEQO Pay Ratio
The following table wets out CEQ pay raue higures, in respect of the financial year ended 27 March 2021,
2Tomaen 2 Mec e fore perrant -
Yeur Motk sz PEFNEL] T3y Al C prene e
2020:21 Optien B 35.7:1 33.2:0 23.8:1
2019/20 Option B 33.0:1 32.6:1 31.6:1 §
g
The movement in pay ratio between 2019/2C and 2020721 15 drwen by u combination of pay en furlough for the 25th percent le and g
median being lower than normal pay., but CEO pay having also reduced due to the Board™s voluntary pay reduction from 1 April to 3
2
30 June 2020, Q
3
The relovant ind. viduals have beern ideruliod using Opuen B, as defined under the relevant regulations, as it s cons.dered to be the most 5
=1

appropr ate methoaaolagy for Fuller’s based on the avalab lity of data at the me the Annual Report was published. The respective single
figure values far each indwadual for 2020721 have then beer calculated. No estimales were required, and no clements of pay were omitted
incalculating the re'evantsing'e figures. The Flgures do rotinclude amounts paid ta iIndividuals in respect of their trane share The figures
for 2020021 have boen d siorted by the impact of the zoronavirus pandemic, with the figures for the respective percentles arly
roprescnting hours warked for 5 small number of spen weeks during the year, plus furlough pay received
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Tne single figure values for irdiiduals immediazely above and below the dentiflicd errployee at cach quattile within the Gender Pay Gap
analysis were also reviewed.

The chasen indradua’s were reviewed to determine if they were representative of the 25th sercentile, median anag 75tk percentile
erployees. If the chosen indindual had 'eft the business or had changed roles during the financial year ar alternative employee would be
used for the calculations, The alterrative employee used in each inslance was the closest employee to the relevant porcenule, who was
considered representative of that perzenti'e. For the 52 weeks ended 27 March 202° no adjustment was nesded for the 75th percent/'e,
but alterralive employces were selected far the 25th percent'e and madian

R NS ER A

Mz Soptors

2020:21 Satary £16,235 £17,788 £24,230
Total pay £16,540 £17.788 £24,762

Statement of Voting at Annual General Meeting
At the Avnual Generat N\eetmg held on 10 Seplcr‘nber 2020 votes cast by proxy Inrespect cf the app'cvn\ of the Directors
Remuneration Report were 35 follows:

T B R U I L R b T Noamzannt g

PP PRV PR TR TO ) PI T b

ERla SThes 0 e g

Approval of Remuneration Report 2020 96,950,017 59.07% 905,613 0.93% 97,855,630 36,661

At the Annual General Meening held on 10 Septemoer 2020, vates cast by proxy inrespect of the appraval of the Directars’ Remuneration
Pelicy were as follows

Noampar e N af eiToe [ a3= T Y A e

S i Lot . 127 13
. f T a3

Approva of Remuneration Polizy 2020 94,559,027 97.04% 2,881462 2.96% 97440,489 451 801

Tes Ll e - R

The D rectors’ Remuneration Reporl. encompassing pages 63 to 78, was aporoved by the Beard aind migned onits behalf

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

g July 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Opimon

In aur apimien,

- Fuifler, Smuth & Turrer PLC Group fingncial statements and Compaﬁy financial statements (the “Minancial statements”) give a true and far
view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s affairs as ar 27 March 2021 and of the Group's loss for the 52 week penod (the ‘per od’)
then endad;

- the Group financil statements hsve been praperly prcpared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in comformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ard International Finarcial Reparting Standards sdopted pursuant to Regufation (EC) Ne 1606/2002
a5 it apples in the European Umion,

- the Company financial statements have been propaerly prepared m accordance with Inte-national Accounting Standards 11 conlarmity with Lhe
raquirerrant., of the Comparuas Act 2006 a8 spphed inatco darce wilh section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, and

- the linarcial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companizs Act 2006

We have audited the financial statemnents of Fuller, Smith & Turner PLC. (the *Company ) and its subsidianies (the ‘Group’) lor the 52 week period
ended 27 March 2021 which comprise:

Group Company

Group balance sheet as at 27 March 2027 Balance sheet as at 27 March 2021

Group incame statement for the 52 week period then ended Statement of changes in equity for thie 52 week period then ended
Group statement of comprehersive ircome for the 52 week penied Statement of cash flows for the 32 week periad then ended

then ended

Group staterment of changes in equity for the 52 week period Related notes Tto 34 to the financial staterments, including

then ended a summary of significant accounting polhicies

Group cash Paows far the 52 week period then ended

Related notes Tte 34 to the finanoal statements, ncluding
A SUMmAary of s\gmﬂ:dnt accouming pollcies

The financial reparting framewark that has been applicd in their preparation is applcable law and Interrauonal Accounting Standards im conformity
with the requirements of the Companios Act 2006 and, a5 regerds to the Group financisl statemments, Interrstional Fnancial Reporling Stardards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (ECY No. 1606/2002 as it apphes in the European Urion and as regards the Company financial slalements,

as apphed in accardance with section 208 of the Companics Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our aud 't in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UKD (15As (UKD and applicable law Cur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditer's responsibiities for the sudit of the financial statements secton of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the cthucal requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and wa have fulfilled our sther ethical responsibilines in accordance

with these requiremants,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtared is sufficient and appropriate to provide 4 basis for cur opimion
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Contnued

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention 1o nete 1in the financal stetements, which indic stes that the ergoirg Coronawirys pandemic continues to result in uncertanty
over the Group's abiaty to operate its pubs and therefore whether the Group will be able to cormply withits banking covenants fram 30 June 2022
onwsrds under a severe but plausible downside scenario As stated in note 1. these events or conditions, aleng with the other maiters as set outin
mote 1, indicate that s materal uncertanty exists that may cast spnif cant doubt an the Graup and Company's abilty to continue as o going concern.
Cur opinion s not modified in respect of this matzer

We draw attention to the visbi'izy staternent in the Annual Report on page 26, which indicates that an assurnption to the staternert of viability
15 that the Group will complete a refinance of its debt faclities by February 2023, The Directars conuder that the matenial uncertaint es referred
te s respect of going concern may cast significant doubt over the future wisbilty of the Group and company should these everts not complele.

Our ooimon s not modified in respect of this ratter

In auciting the Ninancial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the gong concern bas's of sceountrgin the preparation of the
fimancial statements s appropriate. Gur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and Company s abilty to continue o adopt Lhe going

conzern basis of accounting included

- Obtaring an understanding of managemenL's basis far use of the gaing concern basis of accounting, To challenge tne completene.s of this
assessrant, we indeperdent'y entified Factors that may indicate events or conditars that may cast significant doubt on the Group and
Compary's shilty Lo continue as a going cencern Zvents or conaitions were «dentfied, and we designed our audit procedures 1o evaluate the
effect of these nisks an the Group's and Company's ability to continug a5 a going congcearn,

- Confirming our understanding o the directors’ gaing concern assessment process;

- Mssessing the adequacy of the going carcern 1ssessment penod to 27 Decermber 2022 and conadenng the existence of any significant events
or conditions keyend the peniod,

- The audit ergagement partner ncreasad her time directing and supervising the audi procedures an going concern and utilised corporate
Finance spec.al sts. wath relesant hospitaity secler experting, 1o 359t 0 assessing theintegnity of the model and the assumpt ons employoc:

- Agreeing the Group's avatan’e Fnanc ng and related terms, includ rg the changes in the periad, and tne post year-end amene and extend,
io the onginzl debt agreemerts and covenant waivers, and qudit ng the £52 rilion (net of expenses] equity rase completed in Apnl 2021
back ta supperung cvidence, |nc|udlng share 1ssue gocumentation and cash receipt;

- Obt._‘nmng’ the cash flow forecast models te 27 December 2027 used by the Board inits assessment, LCStlng their arithmetical accuracy,
ascertaring whether they have been spproved by Lthe Board and consder ng the Group®s histaricsl farecasting sceuracy,

- Testmg the assessment, mc\udmg forecast higu'ary and covenant complisnce under base and dowrside scenarios, for clerical 4ccuracy,

- CmHewgmg the assumplions particularly over the o ng ard extent to wh ch t'ndmg would recover to pre-Coronaarus levels, were redlistic,
ackievable ard corustent with the external andfor interndl ervirarment as well as cther matters (dontified 1r the audiy;

Asscsaing, whether awsumphions made were reasonable and in the case of the downaide seandric. appropriately severe, in kght of the Groug's
relevart principst r<ks and uncertainues, Tnsincluded comparing management’s forecasts taindependent aralys: commentary on the recovery
of the pub sector;

- Corsdering the likelhood of management’s abiity tc exccute mitigating actions based on cur understanding of the Groun and the sector,
inc'uding whether these mitigatng actions were contrallable by maragement This assessment was supported by our sralysis of management’s
nistancal ability to tzke controllab’e actions such as suspensian of dvdends, deferral of non cssential capital expenditure and inventory orders,
s wel' as the kel hooa of non controhabre actiors such as obtaning Further covenant wavers or raising adoitional funds through debt, equity,
or sale of pubs in the portfolo being plausible;

- Applying professional scepticism in performing cur own iIndependent reserse stress testnig of the Group's cash flow farecast models snd their
impact on forecast iquidity and barxing coverants ts dent fy under what circurmstarces the Grouo's iquid ty would be corrpromisad, and
whether the scenaric has ra ore than a resmote posaibn ty of cccarning:

- Consdenng the impact of o ugrificant event neyand the going sorcerr assessment periad that was icentified by the drectors and the audiz team,
being the need to camolete a reflinancirg of the Graug’s debr Faciliies prior to its expiry or 19 Fenraiary 2023 We chal enged whether there was
1reaisug prospect that the Group would be able to complete th s refinancing Our aug proceaurss ncluded assessing the corclusions of the
Group's exterrs deot sdesar, snd the involvemert cfan BY debt ade sory spoc ahst to ke p us form ar independent view, ard

- Assessirg the appropr atercss o the gong carcern d sc'osures in coser birg Lre nsks assec ated v th the Groups and Compary's shilty e

contirue as 4 gong concerr fer the penoa to 27 Dece~ber 2022
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Our key observations

- The Graup 1» expenencing a high level of disruption from theimpact of the pandemic given the sector in which it operates. Therefore, there
15 uncertainty about the impacts of COVID 19 an management’s forecasts in the going concern assessment penod, with the key assumptions
relating to further potenual lockdowns andfor extensions to socia’ distanoing rules,

- On 31 March 2021, the Group agreed an Amend and Extend Refinancing of its existing debt facilities extending the maturity of the E192 mithon
facihties to 19 February 2023 and amending the financial covenants 1o a minimum hiquidity level of £10 million {tested monthly) untl 31 March
2022 and ther from quarter ending 25 Junce 2022 reverting to s covenant suite of net debt to EBITEA and EBIT DA ta net finance charges
Based on management’s downside case, the Group would breach its bank ng covenants from June 2022, therefore requning further covenant

warvers Lo be negoliated.

We confirm that we are satisfied with anagenienUs conclusion that the Greup and Company are s going corcern, but that there s a matenal
uncertanty over this assumpuon, and that management has accurately described this material uncerianty within the financial staternents. We alse

determined going concern Lo be a key audit matter

Inrelaton to the Group and parent company's reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material
Lo add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statementin the frmancial staterments about whether the directors considered it appropnate

Lo adopt the going concern basis of accounting,

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directars with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
However, because not al future cvents or condit ons can be pred cted, this statement is not a guarantee as ta the Group's and Company’s ability

Lo conbinue as a gairg concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope - We perFormed an audit of the comp\ete frnancial information of the Groupl which accounted

for 100% of loss before taxation, 100% of reverue and 100% of Lotsl asscts.

Key audit matters - Gomngconcern
- Imparment of tangible and intangible assets
- Deferred taxation on the pub estate
- Management override in the recegrition of revenue

Materiality - Overal Group matendhty of EQ.9 million (2020: the predecessor auditor set their materiality
threshold at E1.045 milion). We used professional judgement o determine matenality given
thempact of COVID 19 on the Greup's refevant matenial ty measures.

An overview of the scope of the Company and Group audits

Tailoring the scope
Our assessment of audit nisk, cur evaluation of materializy and our allocation of perfermance matenality determine our audit scape for esch

company within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form ar apinien on the consolidated Financial statements

Tha Group’s operations are based sclely in the United Kirgdom with a single head of fice and finance functicn and therefore all audit procedures

are completed by one audit team at this location, The audit team includas tax specialists,

In assessing the risk of matena! misstaternent to the Group finarcial statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitstive coverage of sigrilicant
accounts in the financial statements we performed full scope audit procadures over 100% of the Group's results for the 52 week peried ended

27 March 2027 and 100% of the Groups total assets ot that date. We obtained an understanding of the entity level controls of the Group which
assisted us inidenti“ying and assessing risks of material misstatement due to fraud ar error, as well 4s dssisting us In determining the mast apprapriate

audit strategy.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Key audit matters

Continuea

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgrrent, were of mast significance in cur audit of the financial statements

of the current penod and include the most significant awsessed r sks of material misstatemert Gwhether ar not due to fraud) that we identified.
These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resaurces in the audit; and diecting the

cfforts of the engagement team. These matlers were sddressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements &5 a whole, and in our opirign

thereon. and we do not prowide a separate opinion on these matters. [n addition to the matter described in the material uncertainty refated to gong

concern secuion, we have determrinea the matters describad below to be the key audit matters 1o be communicated in our report.

Risk

Qur response to the risk

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
Refer ta the Audit Committee Report (page 53%
Accounting policies (page 100J; and Note 13 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (page 120)

Ap 27 Mareh 2021 the carrying value of tangible
assets 15 £472 1 million which v made Lp of
property p|3r.t and equipment (PP&E and
nght of-use asset (ROUAD Intangible sseeote
hi‘d(‘ 3 :’)rr\;‘ﬂé V:L‘Ue OF E]?‘ﬂ r'".\H\Dﬂ Df'v‘uh”:h
E26 7 mihan relaies to éoodm“ recarded an
business cambinations in previcas years

Tne continged uncertainties a.or the carrent
2CORGMIC envirprment caused by the

Corenavruy pardemic, ncluding the closure
or restncted trading of all pubs in the K has
been dentificd a4 an indicator of IMEAIrmert

Irmpairment for ting ble asseis (property plant
ard equipment and the
are tesiad on the bass of exen indiadual cavh
gcnor«ilmé unie (CGLUD
Forirtargibic ety Lgoodwil the tesung s
performed at the relesant greup of TGUs taat
beneliz from the gondwll

zht-of-use swsets)

an indiadual pub site

There 15 3 =ik that, gremn tha uncort nt aw
a.or future trading caused by the Cororarus
pubs M4y not achie e the anticipated business
performance to support their carrying value.
This could lead to ar mparmenrt charge that
has not bean recogmscd b, m4nagerment

Sgnf cant judgement 1s requered in forec ting
future cash flows of each pub, the long-term
é'cw:h rate and tae rate al which cask Floes
are dacounted Forapart on of the pub estate
whare the walue ir Lse modelindicates 4 smoall
mparment charze, anoserlay bisad er tne
mar<et v4lue sooroach is performed whicn
n.ales sonif cant judge~ert ndetermiring

the Fair Lslye of taose pubs

We g aned an understanding through a walktaraugh of tne
= € =)

process and cantra » management b in p\jce over the

imparrment process

We validated thal the methodalogy of the 'mparment
exercie 15 comsistent with the requirements of I1AS 36
lmpairment of Assets. including approprate ide=tf cation
of cash genersting urits and the stlocation of centra’

ser ace £05ts In the value inuse calculations

We contirmad the mathematica! accuracy of the models

Below we summarise the procedures performed in relation
to the ke, judgements for the tangble (PP&E and ROUA)

ard H"taﬂélb‘li‘ Aasets (gcodwull) \"'“nPdH’H‘\Gﬂ[ reen

- Weanalysed managemert’s forecasts under'ying the
Impa rment re gy Aéﬂmit past and current porFormdmce
and axterral future economic farecasts incarperating
1 COVID 19 impact or te hospitality sectorim the UK

- We compared the expectation of performance o the
pub sies reopening te the recent gavernment
announcements 3nd other external market indicators
of ece~omic reco.ery suck as forecsst GOP growdh,
searching for contrary evdence

- Wecrpcall, challenged 3rd 3ssessed the reasonablencs-
of management’s recovery 3ssumpuons +nd past-
COVID 15 assumptions with the swsistance of our
EY sectar speculists

- We ano perfarmed sersitivit  5nalyss based on
reancnable possible changes to key assumptions
determired by management being revenue discaunt
rate and long tarm growth rate We assesseatharthe
reaso-ably possible change in sssumpnions applied by
manazement were approprate by refererce 1o the
ranges indeperdently estathshed by our wo'k

- Weoonzaged our EY internal specialists 1o indepengently
calculste the discourt rate and campare it 1o the
discount rate apphed ir the models by managemreant

- Where maragement s pub imparment assessment w33
baneo or the Fair salue approach. acergqazed our
property -3lU3tion specid Le I rece the methodalez .
3pp’ od and 4udit the key assumpuions that form part of

the .3 uator i ight of recent tramsect oms in the marke:

Yig ssacened the disclosuras nonoles o the firarcial

stateents aganst the sequ rerants of [AS 26 lmpar—ent

Liom pathicuiar tng regquirement o d wlove Turtner

ins For TGl where sreasona

2 . possole changs
iraka, sasumotinn acu d cuse snompairrent Ve ale
45503503 the related separate y dinclased tem sccounting

tretment oo refarence tathe CoMpInes Elstals{Nigh

paic,. mzuslr, proctee 3 the FRC zu dance

Based on our udit procedares we ha,e concluded
the imparment charge of £11 2 million (being

£9 O milhon PPE&E mparment. €1 6 million ROUA
mpairment g EO & million gaodwillimpairment)
5 appropnately determined We highlighted that

4 ressanably pessible change in certan key
assumptions including ssles farecasts and risk
adjustment faclors could lesd to matesial sdditional
mosrment charges We concluded approprate
dwcivsures bad been included by manazement for
the akaowe assumpt ons
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Risk

Qur respanse to the risk

Key observations communicated to the Audit Cammittee

Deferred taxation on the pub estate

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (poge 53;
Accounting policies (page 105); and Note 7 and
Note 34 of the financial statements (page I11 and
151 respectively)

At 27 March 2021, the Group had deferred

tuax as-ets ol E17 0 m lhan {Restated

2020 E10 C millior) and deferred tax liabilities
GTE22 3l (Reslated 2022 022 Tmllion)
and the Compuny had deferred Lax assets of
E16 % millon {Rostated 2020 £95 milor) and
deferred tax labilities of £22 3 million (Restated
2020820 3 million)

Asigrmficant level of management udgemaent
and complex calculations are required in
accounting for the deferred tar These are
lacuned on

- Measunng deferred tax on pubs on 3 disposal.

in-use or 3 dual basis

— The deferred tax rreatment of far value
uphfrs and relled over gains and tharr
nteraction with indexation allowances

- Tracking which components of deferred tax
ineach pub should not ke recognised undar
the initul recogmition exempuion of IAS 12

- The recazitior or non reccgnit on af
deferred tax 1ssets on realised capital losses

We perflormed a walkthrough of the Groups process for
determining the deferred tax ArisIng on the pub estate

In comunct an with our tax speciahsts, we tested the
deferred tax calculitions an the Group's lreebald and
reasehold pub portfelio This focused on vor fying theinguts
nto the deferied tax calculation, testirg the mathematic
aceuracy and recatculating the deferred taxc for 5 sample
of pubs 4crass the estste This included areview of capitat
gason. rallaver reliof, indoation al'aw inces and imual
recagmit on exemptions 35 well as mansgement’s
caleulation of the impact of a historical error in the
calculation, which has been adjusted as o priar

yedr adjustrent

Addit.anally. we verfied the deferred tux calculat ans are
consistent with UK Tax laws ard the Group's practice in

rmmg tax roturns

We challenged management on the sssumptions used in

c i|Cu|-1LIrT€ the deferred tax balances, includirg whether the
deferred tax application was consstent with the Group's
intended manner of recovery for each pub in the deferred
tax calculatiors and was consstent with the assumptions
concerring depreciation snd revidual value in the lixed

Asset register

We consdered whether tho related deferred tax
disclosures, ine'uded in note 7 to the Graoup Financial
statemnents, were in ine with [A5 12 requirements

We dentflied an errorin the current year deferred
tax workingy relating te the underlying methadology
applhed by management This by alve resulted in the
priar year adjustrrent of £4 O million in the Graup
and L3 & million for the Company that has been
reflected inthe accounts Fof‘owwr‘.g SOreCion

of the methodslogy we conc'ude management’s
Judgerment arsing on the deferred tax calculatian to
be appropriste We slso conader that the disclosuras
wmate 7 and note 24 to the Group and Company
financial statements including the description of
th:‘ Pr\or yCdr ﬂdJU‘-tmDnt Are ippropr'dle

Management override in the recognition

of revenue

Refer to the Accounting pofictes (page 104) and
Note 3 ofthe fr'nunciul statements (puge 108)

The Group recorded re.cnue of £73 2 millior
inthe perad (2020 £376 O milion). including
£64 0 millon in the Managed houses segment
(2020 £286 3 mil''on) 4and E9 2 mirlior in Lthe
Tenanted Inns segment (2020 £297 million;

The want majonty of the Groups revenue
transactions arce nen complex, w th no

Judgement apphed over the amount recorded

We cansider the significant nsk relating to
revenue to be srourd management overnde
of controls and topside journzs to revenue 1In
the Managed and Tenanted estate

For Managed houses. revenue s typicslly
comprised of a2 large rumber of low value
transactions Although there s lttle
management judgement involied, there s
arsk that manual tapuide sdjustments could
be pasted which could result in revenue boing
overstated or not recorded For Tzrarted Inny
there 5 alve a rnk that marual topaide
adjustmerts could be posted to re.enue

Ve performed a walkthrough of each of the Group's
swém-ﬂcant rovenue processes, mcludmg‘ the recordwr\g
of manual journal sdjustments, and avsessed the desgn
effectveness of the key controls that sre in place

We applied correlat on dats analvsis over the Group's entire
revenue journal popualation 1o dentfy how much of the
Group's revenue v converted to cash postings and Lo isolate
nen-standard revenue transact.ons for further anatyss,
focusing our testing on Pigher risk transactions identified

We searched for any topside journals to revenue, but none
were identified

We performed cut-of [ testing procedures including review
of post period end cash receipts and journals. and an
analytical review of siznificant vanances to the prior year

ta avsess for completeness

We did rot denuly any instances of management
evernde of controls. including through topuide
Journals Based on ourwork, which included using
data analysis tosls to test 100 % of the Group's
revenue transactions 4nd the oxtent to wmich they
conwerted to trade recerables or cash. we consider
that recence s farly stated
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Contnued

The key audit matters set out sbove are cons stent with those reported by Fuller, Smith & Turner plc's previous external audizor with the
except:on of

- Addition of the key audt matter araund the defarred tax or the pub estate gwen the comploxty around the calculation and the pror year
adJustrhemt identified which increased our audit effort in this area.

- Remova' of tne key awdit matters inre'aticn to the adoption and accounting for IFRS 16 as the risk in the current year nas reduced as lease
changes are lower in frequency and va'ue

- Simlarly, the peeviaus auditor included 4 koy audit matter inrelation o separataly declased ems, {ar which we do not corsder there ta s key
audit matter given the guantum of the salance excluding iImpairments as we have identl ed that as 5 KAM above

Lastly, the provious suditor .neluded a key aud t matter i relstion to the disposal of the brewery business. As this s a non-recurrng transaction,
tnere 15 no sueh key audit watier for the cusrent perad.,

Our application of materiality
We apply the concepl oFmg:er\allty in planning and perFOrmmg the sudic, n cvaluating the offect of .denuficd misstaternents on the sudit and in
forming cur audit spinian

Materiality
The mogmitude of on amission or misstatement that, mdwidually or in the aggregate. could reascnably be expectzd to influgnce the ecanomic decistons

of the users of the finoncial statements Matenolity provides a basis for determiming the nature ond extent of our cudit procedures

We determined muter.ality for the Group and Company to be £0.9 milion (2020 £1 05 milligr determ ned by the Group's predecessor auditor),
based on cur professional juogement an relovant metncs used by invesiors and ather users of the finencial staternents. Mater.ality in 2020 wa-
bawed or our juggement of normalised earmings of the Group. To form the baws of this avwessment we have corsidered the a.erage adjusted profit
before tax for continuing aperations for finarcial years 2019 2020 and restricred the percentage applied to that basis to 3% (from the usual 5%
appled ferhiszed entitias) ta factor in the decline ir trode ir 2021 driver by the Caronawirus panderric.

Duning the course of our audit, we reassessed mitial mazenalizy to reflect the Mpict of COVID 19 on Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C We concluded

that no change 1s required to our f nal matenality

Performance materiality
The apphcotion of materolity at the mdiadual occount or balance level. It is ser at on amount to reduce to an appropriotely low level the probobiliy that the

aggregare of uncorrected ond undetecied misstotements exceeds morerialiny

!
materiolity was 50% of cur planning materialty, nsmey £0 45 millon (2020 5% of glarning matenal ty detes~mned by the Group's predacessor

Crithe bisis of oum rsk assessments, togethor with cur assessment of the Group's overatl contral env ronment, our judgement w s that performance

auCilor) We have sol performarce materialily ¢t this percentage as this yean i a frst year auait.

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identifred misstatements are considered as being deor(y trivial

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to them all uncorrectad aud Laifferences in excess of £45,003, which i set at 5%
of planning matenality, a5 well as differences below that thresheld that, in our view, warranted reporting an qualitat ve grounds.

We eva Late any uncorrected messtatements 3gainst oath the quarttative measores of mater ahity discussed abo.e ana ir lighs of ether relevant

gu3! talive cons derations » forring our spirion
Other information
The other ‘rrormslor comprises theirformaz ononcluded in the snnual repart cther than the finanaial statomierts and our suditor’s report theresn

The drectors are respars o e for the other nformat on contaired within the annsa repe-:

“anc. excepl Lo Lo extent atherwse sxphaitly stbited inth s repo-e,

nzriaforrmator s e sl mconsstert wetn the

orrespansibis, s to

:dtne other afarstior arc, roorg .o, corsider shetber the o
Iy

firancia stitements or cu know'edge obtaned i tre course of Lthe sudit, or ctner wise appeans to be matenall, misstated Fwe dentfy suech

ernont 1n the Faangal

n

salircors steraios or apparent matenal Misststerments, we 1re required to determ re whether tnore w1 Miater almoss

statements tremrse ey, Based on the sork we nale performed, we corcluce that thore b o rratana’ misstatement o the ctherirformalior,

L€ NS TESTRO IDrEpDIt kot fact

Ve na.e nathing ta roportin this regard
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the directars’ ramuneratisn report to be audited has been properly prepared in sccordance with the Companies

Aot 2006,
In our opirion, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

- theinformation gvenin the siralegic roport ard the drectors’ repert for the financisl period for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statermnents; and
- the %tmtegi: repaort and the dircctors’ report have been prepdrod n accardanca with app\lcab|e \ega\ requiremeants,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and ts emerorment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
netdenlled material misstalements intne stralegic report or the diractors’ report.

We have nothing to repart nrespect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

INour opmion.

- adequate accounting records have nel been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; ar

- the Company Nnancial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneratior Report to be audited are not ir agreement with the accounting
records and returns: or

- certan disc’asures of directees’ remuncration specified by faw are not made; or

— we have not received all the informatior and explanations we require for cur audit.

Corporate Governance Statement
The Lisung Rules require us to review the direclors’ statement in relation to gowrg concern, fonger-term viability and that part of the Corporate
Governance Statement relatrg Lo the Group and Company's compliance with the provis ers of the UK Corparste Governance Ceode speailied for

aur review

Aside from the impact of the matters disclosed in the material uncartainty relsted to going concern section, based on the werk undertaken as part
of our audit, we have cancluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is materially consistent with the

lnsncial staternents or our knowledge obtaned duning the aud t,

- Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the poirg cencern bass of accounting and any materia’ uncertanties
idert fied set out on pape 25,

- Directors explanation as to its assessmert of the Company's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period s appropriate
set out on page 96;

- Directors’ staternent on fair. balanced and understandable set out on page 45,

- Board’s conf rmation that it has carried out @ robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on page 45;

- The section of the annual repart that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management andinternal control systems set out on page 54;
and

- The section describing tne work of the Audit Committee set out on page 52

Responsibilities of directors

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement sct out on page 45, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contral as the directars determine s necessary
to enab'e the preparation of financial statemants that are free from mratenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In prepaning the financial statements, the directors dre responsible for asseswing the Group ard Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as apol'cable, mazters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
hquidate the Group or the Cormpany or to cease operations, ar have no realistic alter native but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectweﬁ are to cbtan reasonable assurance about whather the Fmdﬁcl.i\ starermnerts as 3 whale are frec from matenad risstatoment,

wnether due to fraud or error, and to wsue an auditor's report that incluges our opimian Reasonable sssurance s a bigh level of assurance, but s not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UKD will alwoys detect s matenia misstatement when it oxsts Misstatemenrts can arse
fram fraud or error and are conwidered material if, indviduaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonatly be expected to influence the cconem ¢

decis ons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Continued

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting rregularties, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non compliance with laws and regulstions. We design procedures in line with cur responaibilit e,
cuthned sbove, to detect irregulsrties, including fraud The risk of nat detecting a material misstatement due to fraud s hugher than the risk

af not detecting one resulting from error, as (raud may involve delberate concea'ment by, for example, fargery orintentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregulanties, including fraud s detailed below

Howener, the primary resporaibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both thase charged with govern ance of the comparny
and management.

- We obtained an understanding of the lega’ and regulatary framawarks that arc appl.catle to the Group and deter vined that the most signficant
are Companies Act 2008, Health & Safety and food hygiene laws, Mirimum Wage regulutons, Money Laundening regulations and the UK
Corparate Governance Code 2018.

- We understoad haw the Company is complying with those framework: by makirg inqaines of management, those charged with goverrance. those
responsible for legal and complisnce procedures and the company secretary. We carrcborated our inquires through inspection of board minutes
and correspondence with regulatory authonities and through attendance at Audit Committee meetings.

- We avsessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by making ingquinies

of man sgement, thase charged with governance and various other indnduals w thin the firongiel reporting function, We corroborated these

inquiries by inspecting board minutes, interna’ audit reports and findings, reperts to the Group's internal whistleblowing notline and by
understanding beth the Group’s borws scheme structure and the expectators of investors and analysts, to understand are ss in which indvduals
may be ncentvised to commit fraud,

Based on this understanding we designed our audiz procedures o identify non-compliance with such laws and regulstions. Our procedures

involved mak ng iInquines as described above, inspecting mirutes of all significart beard and commitiee mectings, reading correspondence with
regulatary asthonties, testing manusl journal entries with higher risk characterstics snd tesung uriusual or non standard transact ons

A further description of our responsibilities for tne auait of the financial statements is located on the Francial Reporang Counci’s website ar
bttps f".r’www.Fr:.org ukfauditorsrespensibilitics. This deseript’on forms part of cur auditors ropart

Other matters we are required to address
Feliowing the recommendation from the Audit Committee, we were apponted by the commpany on 27 January 2027 to audit the financial
staterments far the 52 week period ended 27 March 2021 and subsequent financial periods,

- The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standurd were rot provided to the Graup or the Company and we remain indeperdent
of the Group and the Company in conducting the aud't
- The audit op rian is consistert with the eadimonal report to the Audit Committoe.

Use of our report

This report is made salely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordanze witn Crapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006 Our audic
work has been undertaken <o thar we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state te them in an auditor’s report
and for no ather purpose. To the fuliest extent permitted by ‘aw, we do rot accept or assurre responaibility to aryene other than the Company and
the Company’s members as o body, for our sudit wark, for this repart, or for the apinons we have formed

ot f gl

RACHEL SAVAGE

SENIQR STATUTORY AUDITOR

far 4rd or nehalf of Erast & Young LLP, Statutory Aud tor
London

s duly 2521
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Group Income Statement

@]
for the 52 weeks cnded 27 March 2021 é’
E:
52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
N £m <
Continuing operations
Rovenue 3 73.2 3160
Operating costs befare separately disclosed items 4 (113.7) (29273
Other income 7 3 0.2 37 L
Adjusted operating (loss)/profit o (40.3) 270 %
Operating separately disclosed items > (14.8) (200 R
Operating (loss)/profit (55.1) &9 _B;P
Finance costs & (8.4) (76) 8_
Financing separately disclosed items 5,6 0.1 (03)
Profit on disposal of properties 5 5.8 9.6
(Loss)/profit before income tax (57.8) 3.4
Adjusted (loss)/profit before income tax (48.7) 194
Total Separate\y disclosed items 5 {9.1) 11.0]
(Loss)profit before income tax (57.8) 8.4 oy
Tax 7 9.6 Gn %
Analysed as: g
Underlying trading 7 8.9 (7.2 3
Separately disclosed items 5,7 0.7 20
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (48.2) 32
Net (loss)/profit from discontinued operations after tax 21 1.4) 157.7
(Loss)/profit for the year (49.6) 1609

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Income Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021

Centinued

52 weeks
ended
27 March
Greup 2021
{Loss}/earnings per share per 40p ‘A’ and *C" ordinary share R Pence RS
Basvc 8 21 (89.84) 291 8g
Diluted L2 (89.84) 29121
{Loss)Mearnings per share per 4p 'B" ordinary share
Basic 8, 21 (8.98) 291G
Diluted 21 (8.99) 2912
Cantinuing operatians
(Loss)earnings per share per 40p A’ and ‘C’ erdinary share
Basic (87.31) 58
iluted {87.31) 579
{Loss)earnings per share per 4p "B’ ordinary share
Basic (8.73) .58
Diluted (8.73) 0.58

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

9,
<
for tre 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 2
o
=
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Neote fm Lo
{Loss}/profit for the year (49.6) 1609
{tems thot may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years (net of tax}
Net gains on valuation of financial assets and habilities 28 0.5 02
Tax related to items thas may be reclassified to profiz ar loss 7 0.1 ((ON 8
Items that will not be reclossified to prafit or loss in subsequent years (et of tox) %
fors]
Net dactuar al Uoﬁﬁes)t"gdms cn pension schemes 25 (1.0) 59 o'
5 y N pa
Tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass 7 0.2 (n &
Other comprehensive (losses)/gains for the year, net of tax (0.4) 49 S
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income For the year net of tax {50.0) 165 R
1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Balance Sheet

27 March 2021

Graup
2021 .
N £m T
Non-current assets )
Intangible assets 10 273 275
Property, plant and equipment ] 1 5802 177
Investment prapert.cs _ 12 3. 48
Cther non-current asscts 15 - 01
Right of -use assets 17 81.9 1070
Total non-current assets 702.5 7571
Current assets
Imventories 12 241 4.0
Trade and other receivables 20 1.5 126
Current tax recevable 4.0 60
Cash and short-term deposits 24 171 203
Total current assets 34.7 425
Assots classified as held for sale 22 9.6 26
Total assets 746.8 BL26
Current liabilities
“rade and other payab'es 73 28.7) 377
Provisions T 27 4.0) “an
Borrowimgs 24 (207.7) (7173
Lease habilitics 17 (6.7) GRS
Taotal current hiabilities (2474} 222.4)
Non-current liabilities
B::rrowimgs ] 24 (27.5) . (2753
Lieaso liabil.ties ~ 17 (83.2) 104 .
Other fingncial kak Liues 14 (0.7) 1
Retrement benelit ckligancns 25 (3.5) 4.7)
Deflerred tax L abilisizs 7 (5.3) a3
Total non-current liabilities (120.2) (150.4)
Net assets 379.5 4298
Capital and reserves
Share capital _ 29 228 228
Share premium account 29 4.2 4.2
Capita' redemption reserve 29 3.7 37
Own shares 29 17.0) VAN
Hedging reserve ~ 29 (0.5) (0%
Retained earrings } 366.3 4171
Total equity 379.5 4298

1 Refer to MNote 34 for details of restaternent,
Apprevea by the 3oard and s gned or 8 July 2027
7 -~
. -
M JTURNER, FCA

CHAIRMAN
Regarered Numoer, 221452
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Company Balance Sheet

L
27 March 2021 3
2
Company
201
N Em
Mon-current assets
Intangible assets 10 4.0 26
Property, plant and equipment 11 590.2 5934
Investment properties 12 3.1 4.8
Other nor-current assets 15 - Ch
Right of use assets 17 81.4 966 Eﬂ
frvestments in subsidiarics 16 109.3 122 4 ::5
Total non-current assets 788.0 8203 z
Current assets &
Inventorics 19 2.1 35 _8
Trade and other recervables 20 1.4 16 4 -
Current tax receivable 39 59
Cash and short-term deposits 24 16.9 192
Total current assets 34.3 48.0
Assets classified as held for sale 22 2.6 26
Total assets 831.0 8709
Current liabilities o
Trade and other pdydb\cs 23 (161.6) (165 2} %
Provisions 27 (4.0) a1 3
Borrowings 24 (207.7} 77) %
Lease habilities 17 (6.5} (79) N
Tetal current liabilities (379.8) (3489)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 24 (27.5) (275)
Lease habilities 17 {81.8) (21.7)
Other financial habilties 14 0.7 17
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (3.5 47)
Deferred tax habilities 7 (5.4) 10.8)
Total non-current liabilities (118.9) (135 8}
Net assets 333.2 386.2
Capital and reserves
Share capital 29 22.8 228
Share premium account 29 4.2 4.2
Capital redemprion reserve 29 3.7 37
Own shares 29 (17.0) (171
Hedging reserve 29 (0.5) (03]
Merger reserve {1.6)
Retained earnings 321.6 3735
Total equity 332.2 3867

1 Refer to Note 34 for datails of restatement.

Lass attributable to ordinary shareholders and included in the financial statements of the Parert Company wis E50 7 million
(2020 E142.0 rallion profit)

Approved by the Board and signed on 8 July 2027

HMokia/ “Toins/
M JTURNER, FCA

CHAIRMAN
Repistered Numnber: 241832
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

far Lthe 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021

T oo

Greup e, l £ e i
At 30 March 2019 (restated) 278 48 3.1 (19.8) (0.8 3324 3425
Profit for the year (restated)’ - - - 1609 1608
Other comprehensive incare for the year - - 01 a8 46
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 0 1657 165 8
lvsue of sharz capital (note 29 06 [CeXd)! - - -
Reclassification of deferred shares

(note 29) (C.6) - 0.6 - - -
Carcellation of deferred shares (note 29) - - (0.6 0.6 - - -
Shkarcs purchased to be held in ESOT or o

as treasury - - 05) - - (05)
Shates relessed from ESOT and treasury - - 32 - an 27
Driderds (note 91 - - 20.53 (8C 3)
Share based payment charges - - - - Q5 Qs
Transfer to retaired earnings - - - - (02} 0.2 -
Tax debited directly to equity (note 7) - V - 0.0 o0
Total transactions with owners - 0.6l 086 27 0.2} (81.0) (78.5]
At 28 March 2020 (restated) 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 az.n {0.9) 4171 429.8
Loss for the year - - 498} (49.8)
Other camprehens ve income/lexporse)

for the year - - - 04 (08 (0.4)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the

year - 0.4 (50 43 (500)
Shares purcnased to be held in ESOT or

a5 treasury - - -
éf*.ire: released from ESOT ard treasury - - - 01 - on

Divdends {rote 3) - - T - - -
Share based payment credits - - Q.3 0.3
Total transactions with owners - 01 - Q4 0.3
At 27 March 2021 228 4.2 - 3.7 (7.0} (0.5) 366.3 379.5

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

O
For the 92 weeks endad 27 March 2021 3
2
G s D e
~ape il B B Uowe chares a5 g _
nars Jul bae rete g 2l etate.d! 3
Company Fim e b i fm o v
At 30 March 2019 (restated) 22.8 4.8 31 (19.8) 0.8 3077 3178
Profit for the year (restated}’ - - 142.0 142.0
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - G 48 49
Totat comprehensive income for the year - - - a1 - 146.8 1469
lssuc of share capital (note 293 06 e - . - - ZUP
Reclassil cat'on of deferred shares (note 29) e - 0.6 - - %’
Cancellation of deferred shares (note 29) - - (o) a6 - - - &
Shares purchased te be held in ESO7 or T T - _éU
4% Lredsury - - {05 - - (3.3) e
Shares released fram ESOT and treasury : B : 32 41 21 a
Dividend: (note 9) , B , (805)  (805)
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - 02 - 0.2 -
Share -based payment charges - - - - - - - 0.5 0.5
Tax debited diractly to equity (note 7) - - - - - - - W (0.1
Total transactions with owners - (0.8) - 06 27 (0.2 - (81.0) (78°5)
At 28 March 2020 (restated) 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 azn (0.9) - 373.5 386.2 g
Loss for the year - (507) (507 3
Other comprehensive income for the yesr - 0.4 {08 (04 %
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 0.4 (51.5) 510 N
Shares purchased to be held in ESOV or
as Lreasury s - - - - - - -
Shares rercased from ESOT and treasury - - - 01 - - on -
Dividends (note 9) - - - - - - - - -
Huwe up of Bel & The Dragon - - - - - - (1.&] - (.6
Share based payment charges - - - - - - - 0.3 (0.3
Total transactions with owners - 01 (16) (0.4) 19}
At 27 March 2021 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 17.0) (0.5) (1.6) 321.6 333.2

1 Refer to Mote 34 for details of rastatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021

Group
52 weeks
ended
27 Masch
2021
N £m i
(Loss)/profit before tax for continuing operations (57.8) 8.4
Net finance costs before separately disclosediterrs 6 8.4 76
Separately disclosed items 5 9.1 1.0
Depreciation and smort:sation 4 27.2 268
(13.1) 539
Difference between pension charge and cash pad (2.3) (2.3)
Contribution to pensior fund - (24 0}
Share based payment (credit)icharges 0.3) 0.5
Change in trade and other recewvables 0.4) AR¥
Change in inventores 1.7 13
Chunge in trade and other paysbles 6.4) (153
Cashimpact of operating separately disciosad items 5 (1.5) 50
Cash {absorbed by)/generated from operations (22.3) 216
Tax receved!/(pad] - 3.4 [4foR))!
Cash {absorbed by)/generated from operating activities - continuing operations (18.9) 1n5
Cash (absarbed by)/generated from operating activities ~ discontinued operatjons 20 (0.4) 15
Net cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities (19.3) 13.0
Cash flow from investing activities
Business combinations - (32.8)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intargbies (16.5) 46.7)
Sale of property, plant and equipmert, night of -use as<ets and assets held for sale 10.8 n4
Cash absorbed by investing activities - continuing operations (5.7) (Ba1)
Cash generated from investing activities — discontinued operations 21 2.3 2245
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from investing activities (5.4) 156 .4
Cash flow from financing activities
Purchase of own shares - (0.5)
mto option schemes 29 - 2.2
Interest paid (4.5) @i
Preference dividends pad (0.1) o6
Equity dividends paid 9 - (805
Drawdown of bank loans 24 99.4
er.—}yrﬁent of bank roans 24 (64.0) (63,47
Repayment of obligatiers under laases 17 (9.2) (10,32
Cash generated/(absarbed by) financing activities — continuing operations 216 (15927
Casr absorbed by investing actiit es discontinued aperations 21 (+R)] (09
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 215 60
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (3.2) 9.3
Cazh and cash agui.a'ents at the start of the year pr 20.3 e
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 171 203
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Company Cash Flow Statement

O
For the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 g
Z
Company
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Mo Em
Loss before tax for continuing operations ] (60.3) (17.8)
Net finance costs before separately disclosed stems o 121 103
Separately disclosed ems 8.5 358
Depreciation and amaortisat on 26.8 256 W
(12.9) 539 =
Dhfference between pension charge and cash paid (2.3) {23 U§
Contribution to pension fund - (24.0) =
Share based payment {eredit)/charges (0.3) a5 8
Change in trade and other recevables 71 {(1ce -
Change inimventories 1.7 17
Change in trade and other payables (14.7) 08
Cash impact of operaung separately disclosed items 5 (1.5) 4.8
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations (22.9) 143
Tax recewved/(paid] 3.6 (100
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities — continuing operations (19.3) 472 g
Cash absorbed by operating activities - discontinued operations - %
Net cash (absorbed by)/generated fram aperating activities (19.3) a4z %
Cash flow from investing activities ®
Business combinations 0.2 (341
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (16.5) 46.2)
Safe ol property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and assets held for sale 10.8 1.4
Cash absorbed by investing activities — continuing operations 5.9 689)
Cash generated from investing activities — discontinued operations 0.6 2254
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities 4.9 156.5
Cash flow from financihg activities
Purchase of own shares - 0.5
Receipls an releasc of own shares to option schemes 29 - 23
Interast paid 4.5 4.7
pFEFErC‘ﬂCE dlvideﬂd; Pd\d (0-1) (Ow)
Equity dvidends paid 9 - (80.%)
Drawdown of bark loans 24 99.4 -
Repayment of bank loans 24 (64.03 (571)
Repayment of abligations urder leases 17 (8.9) (10
Cash generated/(absorbed by) investing activities — continuing operations 21.9 (150.7)
Cash generated from financing activities - discontinued operations - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 21.9 (150.7] §
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (2.3) 10.0 g
Cash acquired an acquisition - - 2
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 24 19.2 9.2 g
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 16.9 19.2 3
z
5}
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies

Authorisation of Financial Statements

The finarer ¥ statements of Fuller, 5mth & Turmar PLC. ard its subsidiar es (the "Group”) for the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021 were autharised
for wiue by the Board of Drectors on 8 July 2071 and the Balanca Sheet was s,{gned on the Board's beha\(by MU Turrer Fuller, Srnith & Turnar
P.LC. s apublic hmited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales The Company's ordnary 'A" shares are traded on the Londor
Stock Exchange

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Group's and Cempanys financial stazements have boen prepared in accardance with internabioral accounting standards in canfermity w th the
requirements of the Compdn|e<. Act 2006, and in accordance with Intcrnat oral Financial Reporung Standards adopted pursusnt to pegq\chon
(ECY Ne 1606/2002 a5 w apphes te the Eurapean iUnion, and upplied to the Francial statements of the Group and the Company far the 52 weaks
ended 27 March 2021 The princ pal accountirg policies adopted by the Group and by the Company are set out ' the accounting policies belaw

The Group and Cormpany financisl statements are presented in Stering and al values are shown in milhans of pounds (Em) rourded to the nearest
hurdred thousand. except where atherwise indicated.

As permitted by Seerion 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 a separate Incomre Statement for the Parent Company bas nat been preparad

Going concern

The Groups business act vities, together with the factors lkaly to affect its future development, perfarmance and pestion are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 4 to 38 and include the section entt'ed "prmmpa\ risks and uncertanbies” or pages 2810 30 irthe Financal Roview sectior on pages
2210 26t describes the Nnanc o positian of the Group, s cash ficws ard hquidity positon. In additen, rote 28 to the F nanc.al statements includes the
Group's ebjectives, pol cies and processes for managng its capital, its F nancl risk management ab cctives deta s of its financial nstruments and hedging
actmit g5, borroving facilties, and its exposurc to credit risk and hquidity risk.

The Drrectors have prepared the 2021 fingncial statemenis on a going concern basis after assessing the continued mpact of the coronaarus pandem.c
including further lackdowns and restricuions 4s well as the Group's financing arrargerent and cther principa risks und uncertantes.

Az 27 March 2021, the Group bad 4 trang Balance Shast with 917 of the estate be ng freehold propertes and av ailible headroom on faciit os
of £84 & millen and £170 mill-on of cash and resulung rec debt of E2°8.1 million excluding leases

"he Group had exist rg fac hhies of L2952 mrillicn; D192 milion was due 1o expire ir Augast 2021 with the rest berrg the E130 mulion CCFF whicn expired
n i"f\uy 2021 Post year end, the Group agrc—ed an Armend snd Extend QeF-nnr\cmg of 1Ls exist ng debt Faciites with ts re'at\or‘s%p barks, eX[CI‘Id\Fg the
rraturty of the £792 millior facil tes to 19 Feoruary 2023 and amenaing the Ninancial covenarts to a o n mom hquidity level of £10 mill on to ke tested
monthly unti 31 March 2022 InJure 2022 the Company will revert to a covenant suite of nat debt to EBITDA (everage) snd EBITDA to net

finance charges

After year erd, the Graup propesed placing rew A sharss Lp te spprapnatey 20% of sxisting wsued ‘A ordinary share capital The 2lirancirg of the
faciities was conditioral on the successful equity raise. Or 20 Apn. 2027 the equity rinse was approved by the shareholders st the Extrasrdinary Gereral
Meeung ("EGM”) and the net proceeds of £52 millicn were received the same day. The proceeds of the equity rane, along with the Group's exsting
facilities, were used to repay the CCF=or 12 N\ay 2021

As well as extendirg Lne bank “aciilies and raising funds through ar equity raise, the Group kas impemented 3 nurrber of mitig iing actions ta reduce
casn ootflows and ma rrain | qu\d\ty" ac fol ows

- Afimal dinidend was not declsred far FY 20, nor bas one been declares for FY 21
- Farncipated in go.arnment mitistigs to protect the aab ity o%tre business, includng the C1R5, Eat Tt to Helo Cut schere and Bosiness
Rates Helief ard grarts, and was confirmed 33 am e |go|e 1ssuer under the “CFF

- Rightaizee staf acrcas the entre ook estate ard stresmhined the sepport furenon tc reduce tne cost base

- Board and Txecutize Toam remioers took 3 tempcriry vo urlary sa ary recuct or

The Grouo has modeled Lo Tinaraial sceranes cownnng the per oa tz 27 Jecorber 2022 (tne “going corcerr ssessmert penad ) that ref ect the

potert at contrued impact ol the corcna e purdemric

The Groun’s pasc o1se’ a3semes tnat 2aer thougn tre estate vy TU 1, aoer Trom May 2021, s ales m FY2Z sl st lbeimpacied oy -eductior in

Imternalicna trase s on roiorn to offices and cortinued Tpact oo corsuricr canf dence TRl be mars nally arfaes by incresse roneddings, wtiycanons
and sl roreass P suDuTDar at23s s paop e 5, 4t hare to ark Ueder this sceranc therz wou d ke gnif cart bosdroc e ard 9l 2oLerants wolla oo

compl 24 sath fo- tre durabion o the gorg cuncern pe’\Dd.
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A downside case” assumes there will be three months of full lockdown in FY22, being December 2021 through to February 2022, and a further three
manths with severe restrictions akin to those experienced in Cetober 2020 In FY23, there will be one furtner month of severe restrnicuions in place and
then from May 2022 trading will resume in ine with the base case.

Under the “downside case” withoul addit onal mitigating action, the covenants on remstaternent in June 2022 through te December 2022 would be
breached The Dircctors consider the significant reduction in sales modelled under this scenaro, which largely reflects a repeat of FY27in the second half
of the yeur, to be unlikely given the continued successful rell sut of the vaccine However, with the continued threat of variants and the urknown impact

that these could have, this downsde scenar o whilst severe s plausible

Although the model shows there weuld be adequate hquidity headroem even under ik scenanio, the Directors would need Lo seek wawvers for debt and
interest coverage covenarts that will be reinstated from June 2022 under the tarms of the loan extensions The Directars are conf'dent that i this case

it would be passible 1o agree waivers for these covenants with its lending banks (as has been the case in prior lockdown scenarios) Inaddition, the Group
could also impterment further mitigsting actions before tris pointin ime cemprising deferring capital expenditure, further dsposdls of parts of the Groups
valuable freehold property estate ard cost reductions such as redundancies. Itis posabie that the extent of these mitigaling actions would negate the need
to get waivers in place,

After due consideration of the matters sat out above, the Directors are satisled that thereis a reasonable expectatien that the Group and Cempary
have adequate resources Lo continue in operational existence for atleast the going cancern assessment period o 27 Decerrber 2022 However, a5 the
downside scenario shows that the covenants would be breached when renstated from June 2022 through to December 2022, within the gong concern
period, and not all the mitigating actions required to prevent this are within management’s control, there 15 a material uncertainty that may cest doubt on
the Group’s and Company's ability to continue as 3 going concern. The financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that would be required Lo be
made, if they were prepared on a basis other than the going concern basis

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The areas of estimation and assurnption which are considered to be significant in the preparat or of the financial statements are as follows:

The Group determines whether goodwill s impaired on an annual basis and this regquires an estimation of the value in use of the cash -generating units
CCGUS") to which the goodwallis allocated, This involves estimation of futare cash flows and choosing a suitable discount rate, Full details are
supphed in note 13, together wth an analys’s of those key assumptions,

The Group reviews for irmpairment of all property, plant and equipment and night-of-use assets at CGU level where there is any indication
of impa rment. This requires an estimatian of the value in use and involves estimation of future cash flows and chossing a suitable discount rate.
See nate 13, which describes the assumpt ons used together with an analysis of the key assumptions.

Measuremen: of defined benefit pension obligatans requires esumation of future changes in inflation, as well s mortality rates, the expectad return
on assets and the selection of u suitable discount rate, These hive beer determined on advice from the Group's qualified actuary The estimates used

and the key assumptions are provided in note 25.

The ca'culation of lease habilities requires the Group to determing an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR™) to discourt future mimimum lease
payments. The IBR s the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay ta barrow over a similar term, and witms 2 similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of & simil ar value to the rlght—oﬁlﬂe assetin a similar economic emvironment The 1BR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are avallable or when they need to be adjusted ta reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease. A sensitwity analysis has been conducted on the lease liabilities which shows that neressing the discount rate by 1%, will
decrcase the lease liability by £5.9 million and decreawe the right of use asset by £6 0 million Sec note 17 for further detalls onieases

Estimalion s requ\red 1o determine the expendlturc that will result from 4 presont \eg:ﬂ ob\lgdt\or\ arising from a past event In the current year, the
Group have estimated the expectcd oxpendiiure fora ‘egdf claim. The Dhrectors believe the recogr\\xod provisionir relat on to this \pC‘CIr\C matter
reflects the best estimale of the most H(e\y current outcome at the reporting dite, based on a Probdblhty welghtmg with o material range of
potential sutcomes. The claim has stll not been resolved at the d ste DFSIgﬂlﬁg and any further details have not been disciosed for serigus

prejud cial reasors.
The arcas of judgement which are considered to be sngmﬂc.‘m: in the preparitior of tha financial statements are as Follows:

In conclusing that there was o materal uncertanty over going concern the Directors had to cons ger a number of possible scenarios due Lo the
uncertainty of how the pandemic wil cortinue to impact the business. They also needed to use their judgernent to assess the most hkely scenanio
and the impact th.s would have on the coverants and the facities Lo assess what the matenal urcertamty was Refer 1o going concern on page 96

for detals of the scenaries judged most likeky.
Judgement s used to determine those items, that should be separately disclesed to allow a better understanding of the underying trading

performance of the Group. The judgement includes assessment of whether anitern is of a nature that 1s nel consistent weth normal trad.ng

actiities ar of sufficient size or infrequency See nate S for further detar’s

97

. R

N\QI!\JO/\O

1oday 08eeng

SOURUIIADT

m

UOIRWIO|U| (PUONIPPY



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Judgerment was required m assessing whether s rent concession gren by the Group to ts lessees constituted a lease modification or was covered by
the original contract The contract needed tc be a~sessodin light of the crrcumstances tht gave rise to the concassion [t was determined that given
the Tenants could not legally use the prarmses the concession was permitted within the contract, It was therefore not treated as @ modification and
spread over the lease term but instead recognised in the fimanzial year.

The Group has exercised s gn ficant accounting estimatien and judgement in the recogrition of deferred tax labiliuics in respect of property, plant
and equipment Significant accounting cstimates and judgements include those used to determine the amount of mel book value of property, plant
and equipment to which the in‘tial recogrition exemption appl es, the calculsbion of the tax base on sale twhich is subject to certan restrictions under
tax law) and the of factting ol inherent losses against inherens gains where tax losses are expected te be utihsed agairst Future profits and parns.

Basis of consolidaticn

The Group financial statements consolidate the finarcisl statements of Fuller, Sruth & Turner PL C. and the entities it controis its subsidiares)
drawn up for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 (2020: 52 weeks ended 28 Maren 2020) Subsid anies are consolidated from the date of

ther scquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue 1o be consolidated untit the date that such control cemses.
Centrol comprises the power to direct the relevant activities of the subsid.ary which significantly affect the return of the subsidiary, w0 a5 to ablan
benefit from its activities, and s achweved through drrect or ndirect ownership of voting nghts, currently exercisable or convertible potential volirg
rights: or by way of contractual agreement Allintercompany balances and transactions, inciuding unreshsed profits arising fram them, are eliminated

Adoption of new standards and interpretations
The Group applied for the first ime certan standards and amerdments, which are effective for annua' periods beginming on or alter 29 March
2020 The Group has not early sdopted ary other standard, interpretation or amendmeni that has been issued but 15 not yet effective.

- Amerdmerts to IFRS 7 IFRS @ and 1AS 39 Interest Rate Benchrrark Reform

- Amendments to IAS Tand IAS 8 Defimition of Mater'al

- Amendrierts to FRS 3 - Defimton of 2 Business

- Conceptual Framewsrk for Financial Reporting

~ Cowd 19 Relatad Rent Concessiors - Amendment to IFRS 16 The amendment applies to annual reporting peniods heginring or or after
1June 2020, Earlier applcation s permitted The Graup has elected to not tske the practcal expedient ana instead has trested rent concassions

recerved as loase modificsticns
The DCirectors do not believe the adoptior of new standards has had any sgnifizant impact on tne amourts seported in the finuncial statemeants

Business combinations and goodwill

Susiness combinations are accounted far under IFRS 3 Business Corbinatiens using the purchase method. Any excess of the consideration

of the busiress combinaticn over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the dent fiable assets. nabiht o5 and contingent luilites 1« recognised
in the Balance Sheet as goadwil and 1s not amortised Te the extert that the aet fair value of the acquired entity's ident fiable assets, lisbihities ard
contingert habilities is greater thar the cost of the iInvestment, a gair 1s recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Any zont ngent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Cantingent corsideraticn
classified as equ ty 's not remeasured and its subsequert seitlerment is accounted for with nequity. Contingert consideration classified as an assot
or lability thatis a financial instrument and wathin the scope of IFRS 9 Firancal 'rstruments s measured at fair vilug wth the chenges in farr value
recogrised n the staterment of profit or lose 1n accordanze vath IFRS 8 Other cortingent consideration that 1s not within the scope of IFR5 9

s rmeasured at fa'rva'ue at each reporting date with charges ie fair value recognised in profit or lass

After intal recopninion, goode |l 1= stated ar cost less 4m, sccumulzied impairmant 'asses, with the carry g value being revieveed for impairmen:
g 7 P y 78 g & :
at least annually and wheneser events or charges in < reumstances ind-cate that the carry rguaue may beirpated. Any moairment of goodwill

made cannat be reversed Faircurrstarces subsequently charge

For the puroese af impairment test ng, goodwill s al ocated to the relsied CGUs Gr group of CGLST mar tored by maragement Where the

recoversb'c smaurt o the CGU sless than s carryingamoort o waing gooduwll amimparrentlass s recognised nthe Ircome Staterment

The carryng 3T ount of poodw: L aliccatec to 3 CGL 5 taken into account when determ ning the gan ar s on disposd' of the CGUL ar of an

(5]

aerauce vtk ot

Property, plant and equipment

Froperty plart and ecu prert s stared al cost or deered c2at ess accomu sted deproe stor ara any imparmers rouatie Deprecinzon s

caco tesor astraight rebassto o te down tng cost to the esvmatza res dual silue suer the espactad use’y Fe el the asset 55 Fo fowy
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Freehold buildings - Hotel saccommaodat.on and offices Upta 50 years

Frechold buldings  Licensed retall property and urlicensed property 50 to 100 years

Leasehold impravernents The term of the lease

Roofs o From 10 ta 50 years

Plant, machinery and vehicles, containers, lixtures and fitungs o From three yoars up 1o 25 yoars

A required urder IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, expected useful lives and residunl values are reviewad cvery year Land 1s not depreciated. An item
of property, plant and equiprment end any significant part nitislly recogmised 1w derecogrised upon dispasal (e, 4t the date the recipient obtains cantrol) or
wher no future ecoromic benef s are expected fromiits vse or dispasal Any gain o loss ansing an derecogrition of the asset (caleulated as the difference
between the ret disposdl proceeds ard the carry'ng ammcunt of the asset] s included in the Income Staternent when the asset s derecognised,

Government grants

Government grents are not recognised until there 1s reasonable assurarice that the Group will comply with the conditons attached Lo them and that
the grants wil be receved Goverrment grants are recogrised in prof tor loss on a systermanc basis aver the periods in which the Group recognises
as experscs the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. When the grant relates Lo an asset, it o recogrised as income in equal
amounts aver the expected useful e of the related asset.

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme ("CJRS”)

Under this scheme, HMRC will reimburse up to 80% of the wages of certan employees who have been ssked Lo step working, but whe are being
kept on the payroll (“furleughed™). The scheme is designed to compensate far staff costs, so amounts receved are recagnised i the Incame
Statement over the same penaod as the costs to which they relate. | Lhe Income Statement payroll costs are shown net of grant income.

£at Out to Help Out
From 3 to 3" August 2020, HMRC offered o 50% discount of fana and ner aleeholic drrks, capped to 010 per person, when dining cut between
Monday and Wednesday, Revenue 'ncludes amounts reimbursed from HMRC in respect of the scheme,

Business rates
Businesses in the retal, hospitality and le'sure seclers in England de not have te pay business rates for the 2020 to 2021 tax yoar. Ne business rate
charge has therefore been recognised in the Inceme Stalement for the period ended 27 March 2027, Income relating to the business rate grants has

beeri recogrised in operating expenses in the Incomre Staterment

Covid Corporate Financing Facility ("CCFF™)

Commereia' Paper issued to the Bank of Ergland al a favourable yield 1s deemed ta canstitute a government granL. The debit has been recagnised
within current borrowing- on the Balance Sheet at far value, with the grant element. reflecting the favourable yield, recognised as deferred 'ncomre
within trade and other payables. Or amortisation, the grant element has been recogrised within finance costs, cons.stent with where the costis
recagnised, as the Group's policy s to present the income 8¢ a deduction from the related expense

Hive-up transaction
Whaon a subs:diary transfers its business to iLs parent immediately after scquisition (hive -up transaction) the assets are transferred at market value
and the investrnent s reduced te reflect the net effect of a return of capital in the Form of the underlying net assets with any difference taken to the

m@rgcr FesCrve

Investment property

The Group owns propertics that are not used for the sale of goods or services but are held lor capital appreciation or rental purposes.

These properties are classiled as investment properties and their carrying values are based an costicss imparment. Deprecration is calculated on
astraght Yine basis to write down the cost to the estimated residual value over the expected useful ITe of the asset, which forinvestrnent properties
is between 50 to 100 years,

Intangible assets

ntangible assels acquired separately are measured on nitial recogmition at cost. The cost of intangible assets scquired ina business commimation

is thedr fair vaiue at the date of acquesition. Following initial recogmtion, intangible assets are carred at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
azcurrulated imparment losses. 'nlernally generated ntangibles. excluding capitalised deve opment costs, are not capitalised and the relazed
expend ture is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure s incurred The usefullives of intangble assets are assessed as either
finite er indefinite.

Intsngible assets with fin te lves are amortised over the useful econamic ife and asse~sed for impairment whenever there s anindization: that the

intargible asset may be impaired. The amoartisation period and the amortisstion method for an intangible asset with a firite useful life are reviewed
atleast at the end of each reperting period,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Intangibla assets with indelinite useful lves are nat smartised, but are tested for imparrment annually, either indiv dually er at tne CGU level,
The asscssment of indelimite e is reviewed annually Lo determire whether the indefinite life continues tabe supportable. If nat, the change
in useful Ife from indefirte to finize 1s made on a prospective basis,

An ntangble asset is derecagrised upen dispasal ( e, at the date the recipient obtlains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected
from 't use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing upon derecognitian of the asset (calzulated as the d fference between the ner d-sposal preceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) s included n the statement of profil or loss.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Developmert expenditures en an individual prorect arc recogn sed 25 an intangible asset when the Group
can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the ntangib'e asset so that the asset will be avalsble for use or sale
- Its intention Lo complete and its ability and intention te use or sell the asset

- How the asset will generate future sconemic benefits

- The avalability of resources to corrplete the ssset

- The ability te measure reliably the expenditure duneg developmeant.

Following initial recognition of the develepment expenditure as an asset, the assatis carned a2 cost less any sccurmulated smortisanon and
sccurnulated imparrment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins wher development is complete and the assel s available for use and will be
smortised over the period of expreled future perefit, Amortisation s recerded 'n operating costs. Dunng the per od of deve'opment, the asuet
s tested for immparmant annually.

Impairment

Carrying vaugs are reqiewed for impairment it events indicate that the cary ng value of tre assot may not be recoverable If such an rdcazor

ex sts and wnere the carrying vaives excead the oatmated reco serable ameount, the sssets or CGUs are writter down to therr recoverable amourts
A assot’s recoverable amount s the greater cf the far value less casts to sell, and the value in use. In assesaing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to present valuc using a pre tax discount rate thit reflects the current markat sssessments of the tme value of morey and
rivks speefic to the asset. In determining farvalie less costs of dinposs, recant markel transactiors are taken inte sccourt. If no such trarsoctions
carbe dent fied, an approgniaze valustien medel is used. For ar asset tnat dees not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable
armount 1s determined for the smalest CGUs to which the asset belongs

he Group bases its repa rrent calculation on most recent maragement approved budgets ano forecast calculstiors, which sre prepsred separat
far each of the Group's CGLs to wn ch the ndividual gasets are alocated, These budgets and forecast caleulations generally cover a peniod of twa
years Aleng Lerm growth rate s calculuted and applied to project future eash flows after the secend year,

For assels excluding goodwrl, on assessment 1s made at each reporting date to determire whether there 1s an ind cation that previously recogrised
imparmant losses ne longer exist or have decreased I suchindicat on exsts, the Group esumates the asset's or CGU'S recoversble amount. A previously
recogrsedimparrentloss s reversed only f there has bren a change in the sssumptors Lsed to determine tne asscls recoverable smount since the last
imparmert loss was recogrised. The reversalis rnited so that the carrying smount of the asset does rot exceed its recoverable 3mount, ror exceed the
carrying amount that would have been deterrmired, net of depreciat'on, had na imparment loss been recogmsed far the assotin prior y2ars.

Impairmient 'osses, and ary reversal of such losses, are recogmised r the Ircoma Statemert

Leases

The Group 3:3¢55e3 at contract Aceptior whetmer a contractis, or conta ns, g 'ease That s, 1" the corsract corvoys the ngat to contra! tne use
P : s ¥ g

of an identif ed asset for 3 per od of time in exchange far caracerat.an.

Group as a lessee

"ke Group spoies a single recagnbion ano measaremart sppreacs forallosses exceptfor shortterm lzasos soalease fvd U 335ETS

The Grounrecogrises lease fan ites to make ease pa,merts and ~ghr ot use assersrepreserting thorght te Lse the under y rg assets
£ ! = 3] B ¥

a) Right-of-use assets

t-of-use 355215 At the commearcement date of tne loase D e t-2 date the underl ing Asset s ralab e For usel Qight-of-

The Greunrecogrisesrgn
SUDrecogrisesrg

Lse 4wty are mMessered 3t 205t ess any accum ated depracistian and eparment losses ang agustec “orany remcasarcmen of lease 1abiives

The costaf might of use asset3 nc wdes the amaunt of ease lab e recogrisec, it direct cests mourren, and ease payments made 4t or before

the commeancamant gald s dr, leasoircert oo race e Right of use assets sre deorec ated cnastraght Trabss s ooer the lease torm
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b) Leose liabilities

At the commercemnent date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments 1o be made aver the
lease term The lease payments include fixed payments loss any lease incentives recevable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and smounts expected to be paid under residual vslue guarantecs. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or araze are recognised
a5 expenscs in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the psyment occurs The lease payment also includes the exercise price of

a purchase option reasenably certain to be exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for terminating a lease, F the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option Lo terminate, Extensions to leases are recognised when it 15 reasonably certain the option 15 going ta be exercised.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its Incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the wterost rale
impheit i the lease s not readly deterrminable. The carrying smount of lagse labifitics s remeasured if there s a modification, 1 change in the leane term
or achange in the lease payments le.g. changes to future payments resulting frem a change in an index or raie nsed m derermine such lsase payments)

The Group's iease habil ties are included in Cash, BorroMFg\ and Net Debt (see note 24)

c) Short-term leoses and leases of low-value ossets

The Group appi\es the short-term lease recogmt\om exemptlon Lo its short term leases Gfequipment (i.e.‘ those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commancement date and do not contain & purchase option) [t also apphes the lease of low-value assets recogrition
exemption tc leases of office equipment that are considered te be low value. Lease payments on short term leases and leases of low -value assets

are recogrised as expense on a straight -Ine bass gver the ledse term

Group as alessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rertal income ansing s accounted for on ¢ straght line basis over the lease terms and is included «n revenue in the Income Statement
due to its operating nature.

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Assets are classified as held for sale when the carrying amounl will be recovered principally through a safe transact on rather thar continuing use,
The crizeria for held for sale ¢'1ssific stion are regarded s met anly when the sale :s highiy probable and the asset or dispesal group is available fer

immediate sale in 1its present cordition. Actions required Lo complete the sale should indicate that it s unlkely that significant changes to the sale
will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn Management must be committed to the plsn to sell the ssset and the sale expected to

be completed within ene year from the date of the clasufication.

Assets held for sale are valued at the lower of the carry ng amount and fair value less costs ta seli. No depreciation s charged whilst assets are
classified as held for sale.

In accordance with [FRS 5 Non current Assels Held for Sale and Discantinued Operations, results for the discentinued operations are presented
sepirately m the Group™s Income Statement (for which the comparatives and related notes have been rostated) Additional disclosures are provided
in note 21, All other notes to the financial statements include amounts for continuing operdtions, unless indicated otherwise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cast and net realisable value, Costis calculated using the "firstin first out” method Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of complation and the costs to be incurred in marketing, selling
and distribution.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and derecognition
Afinancialinstrument is any contract that prves nise to a financiol asset of ene entity and a financial lability or equ ty mstrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes & party to the contractual provisions of the financialinstrument,
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and
substantial'y all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability 1s derecognised when itis extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires,

Financial assets

Recognition and measurement

Firancial sssets are c|ds%|f|c‘d‘ alimtial recognltwor" ds xubxcqucm\y rmeasured at amaortised Cask, fair value thr’ough other Comprehengwe

income ("QCI), and fair value through profit or loss The claswlicauen of finsncial assets atinizal recogninon depends on the financiat asset’s
contractual cash flow characterisucs and the Group's business modal for managng them W.th the exception of trade receivables that do net
contain a significant Ninancing component or for which the Group has applied the practic sl expedient, the Group initislly measures o Ninancial asset
at ts fair value plus, in the case of a linancial asset not at far value through profit ar lass, transaction costs Trade receivables that da not contan

d \.g*ﬂﬁc:mt F'm(mcmg Corﬂponorﬂ. aro messured 4t the transaction price in accardance wath |F|:?S 15,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Contued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued
There are three measurement categories into which tne Group clasiifies its debt rstruments:

- Arnartised cost: Assets that are held for catlection of contraciud! cash flows, where thase cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interet, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income fram these financial assets s included in finarce ircome using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or less arsing on derecognition s recognised directly in prefit or loss and presented in other gams/(losses) togetner with foreigr
exchange gains ard lasses. Impairment losscs are presented as separate ine item in the statement of profit or loss. The Group's cash and cash
cquwalents, trade and other recenables fall inte this category

- Fair value through OQCI C'FVOCI™) Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selfing the financial assety, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments o or raipal and inzerest, are measured at FVOCT Movemnents in the carrying amount are taken
through OCl and will be recycled upon derecognitian of the asset

- Far value through profit or loss (“FVPL"): Assets that do not meet the entena for amorbsed cost or Fair value through OC] are measured 2t
FYVPL A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently massured at FVPL s recognised in grofit or loss and presented net witnin other
gainsilosses)in the period in which it anises

Impairment

H:RS 9 Wﬁp.ﬁwrme’wt rEQUITEMENLs Use More forward |Sr3‘<ing IﬂFCr"ﬁthIOﬂ tc recognine expec:ed credit losses - the expectad credt lass ("ECL"]
rrodel. pecogmticn ol eredit lowses s nolonger dependent on the Group Frst idertifying a cred tloss event. Intead the Groue considers a broader
range of wwformaton when aesossing crad t rsk and medsunng expected credil losses, mcludmg pasl cvents, current condiicns. reasorable and
supportable farecasts that affect the future cash flows of the nstrument

When assessing imparment for trade recaivables, the Group has applhed the simplified appreach Lo expected cradit losses as per IFRS 9 Financial
Imstruments. The model focuses on ar appraisat of the sk that a receivable will default ratner than whether 4 lass has been incurred. Thisinvolves ar
unbiased awsassment of a range of possibic outcomes and thair probabilities of occurrence, and s supported by past expenence of cellecting payments
as well 35 chamges in econoric cand tions th it cerrelate with default on recenmbies Expectad credit losses are mitially determined based on the
GFQUP‘H fslor i Cf'?d’:_ JGSS E’)(PE'HC’['?CG‘ ﬂﬁy' FOrVu‘r]rd JOO,(;”@ F;ECCOI'S SPG:!FfC toa pdrl’CdJ\ir Udde fECerv:fb}C 3md fHE current E’CDWOFTW‘C ermirenment

"he uming of initisl recogn ion for imparment losses 1s the sarme perioa that the asset s recogrised Moverrents in expected creditlasses are
recogrised rithe Income Staterment within aperat ng casts, At the point a trade recaivib eis writter of © the ledger as uncallectable, the cost
s charged against the allew spce sccount and any subscquent recover es of amounts previously written ofF are cmedited to the Incore Statement.

Im the Parent Campany, amounts dus fram subs diary undertakings are recognised st ther onging! ameunt less allowance forimpairrent based
on the ECL model In determinirg the madel the Campany consicers Lne net sesels ard the rescurces available to that subsidisry

Financial habilities

Recognition and measurement

Financial habilit es are classified, atimtial recagation, as financial bzbiltios at Far va'ue through profit or loss. loans and borrowings, payables,
or as derivatives cesignated as hadaing instruments i an effective hadge, as appropriate.

Al Francia fac hoes are recogrised minatly st fair valae and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of dhractly attributable
transaction ¢osts.

The Groun's finarcial habilties include trade and other payables, losns and borrowings including ban o verdrafts, dervatve financial instruments
and leasz abities

For surpases of subseguert measurerent, finsraa' labilities sre clssafied 'n twe catagenies

- imarcial tabdines 3t faimva ae taroy rafiv or los< wrich are megsorec subsequently at farva ue w £31Ms Qriosses recodrissdan e
F 214t Labe! 3 gh prof I h ¢ subsequently at fara L ganis or lasse grised i th
Income Staterren:

iy
i

- Fivsncial skl Les 5t amortiaed cost o ars and borro‘.u-‘ngs} wnich are maasored using the effect o interest methas
Bank loans, overdrafts and debentures

Irtarest cesnng park loars, seerdrafts sro denertures aro imitin'ly recorded at the far sy ue of procecds recened, ret of dircctissue 2o-ts

or at armarssed cost Finance cnarges. inc udmg DerIdrms Da,dA0 e o sestlemont or Fedcrﬁpt croard diroct issus cests are sciourted
in

Jrconane

w2 nterost rate passin the Incere Stiorment Finarze :Fa'ée\ are added Lo the TaTTyING 3TgLrt cf the instrument to the sstant

trat trey are rot settlec o the serodin shck they atne
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilites are offset and the net amount » reported in the consclidated staternent of financial positon if there s

a currently enforceable legal right to of fset the recognised amounts and there is anintention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets und settle
the habil.ties simultaneously

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Recognition and measurement

The Group uses Intarest rate swdps Lo hedge its interest rate r sks, Such dervative Bnancial nstruments are inital'y recogmised at fair value on the date
on which a dervative contract 1> entered into and are subsequently remeasurad at fair value, Denvatives are carried as Ninancial assels when the Fair value

15 pasitive and as firancial labilties when the far value s regative.
Cor Lhe purpose of hedge accounting, nedges are class fred as;

- Fair value bedges when hedging the exposure Lo changes in the fsir value of a recogrised asset or lsbility or an unrecognised firm commitmeant

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is exther attnibutable to s purticular risk associated with a recognised
asset or hability or 4 hignly probabic forecast transacton or the fereign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

- Hedges of a nct mvestment in a foreign operaticn.

At the inception of & hedge relationship, the Group formaliy designates and documents the hedge relstionship to which it wishes te apply hedge
accaunting and the risk managerment abjective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identiflication of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group w!
assess whetner the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (ncluding the analysis of sources of hedge neffectiveness and
how the hedge ratio 1s determined). A hedging relatiorship qualifies for hedge accourting if it mecets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

- There 1, “an economic relstionship” between the hedped item and the hedging instrument

- The effcct of credil risk does not “gomnate the value changss” that result from that economic relatianship

- The hedge rauo of the hedging relationship 1s tne same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges
ard the quanlity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet all the qualifying eriteria for hedge accounting are sccourted for, as deseribed below,

The Group has interest rate swaps which are classified as cash flow hedges. The effective portion of changes in the farr value of dervatives that

arc desigrated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recopnised in the cask flow hadge reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffactive
pertian 1s recognised mmediately in profit ar loss, witiin other gains/({losses). When 3 hedging instrurment expires, or 1 se'd or terminated, or when
4 hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accourting, any cumulsuve deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported
in equity arc immediately reclassified to profit or loss. 1T the hedging relatiznship ceases to meet the effectiveness conditions, hedging accounting
i discontinuad and the related gair or loss 1s hald in the equity reserve untl the forecast trarsaction occurs.

Classification of shares as debt or equity
When shares are issued, any component that creates o financial iabiliLy of the Company or Group is presented s 3 liahility in the Balance Sheet;
reasured initially at fair value net of transaction costs and therealter at amortsed cost until extinguished on conversion or redemption

The correspond.ng dividends relating to the lability component are charged as interest expense in the Income Staternent The srutial fair value of the
hability component s determined using o murket rate for ar equivalent lisbibity without a conversion feature.,

The remainder of the proceeds an issue s allocated to the equity component and ncluded «n sharehalders’ equity, net of tramsaction costs.
The carrying amaun of the equity component 15 not remedsured in subsequent years,

The Group’s ordinary shares gre classfied as aquity instruments For the purpases of the disclosures gven in note 29, the Group considers 1ts
capital to compr se 1its ord nary share capital, share prermium, capital redemprion reserve, hedging reserve and accumulated retaincd earnings plus
its preferance shares which are clazufied as a financial labihty in the Balance Sheet There have been na Char\ges to what the Group considers to

be capital since the prior year.

Preference shares
The Group's prefererce shares are reporled under nor-currert lubilities. The correspendirg dividends on preference shares sre charged as nterest

in the Income Staternent Preference share dovidenas are at fixed rates.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Staterments and Accounting Folicies continued
Reveﬂu&
Revenue is recognised under 1FRS 15 upon application of the following steps:

- Identfy the contract with o customer

- ‘dent'Fy Lhe PC‘FFO!’FTW&F\CE Ob||gd‘uom\ in the contract

- Determme the transaction price

- Allocate the transaction price to each performdnce Ob\\gdtwar‘

- Recagnise revenue when a performance obligaton « satisfied by transferning a promised good or service to a customer,

Managed Pups and Hote's revenue prmarity conssts of food, drink and accommadation sales. Food and dr nk revenue s recognised when contral
of the goadsiservices has transferrad, being sl the pont the customer purchases the food ar drink The Group also Lakes bockings for events and
accommedation which require a depoait to secure the baoking /A cortract habiity for the depositis recognined at the tme of the sale. The contract
J:ab;ﬁ!y is released and revenue 1s recognised an a siraght e basts aver the duration of the room occupation or event, A contract liablity s
recognised until the event 1s complete or the guesL has sccupied the roem

The Group a'sa carns revenue through seling drirk to the Tenanted Inns d ssion which s supplied to Fuller’s by Asabiunder the Lomg-T@rm Service
Agreement ("LTSA"). Revenue s recagnised as though the Group s the principal as it has primary responsbility aver the preduct and alo bears the
VCNLOTyY nsk.

Following the sale of the Fuller's Beer Business to Asan, Europe Ltd, the Group entered nto a TSA to prowide certam services te Facibiate the
successful separation af the two compan.es The ravenac is recognised over the per od the services are provided

Revenue s rocognised under [FRS 16 where the Group receves rertal incame frem Tenanted and unticensed properties This is recogmised on a strarght
lirie sy over the lease tarm Some rentul income includes turnovear rent which s based on Lhe percertage of the income generated by that pub
Thig 15 recogn.%ed when the revenue is edarred. Revenue s recognised lor machine income when net takmgs are garned,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs d rectly attributable te the acqussinon or construction of an gsset that tekes 4 wubstant al period of tme to get ready for use are
capiralised as part of the cost of the asset be ng created Thes is applied Lo deveiopment projects where the development s expecied t2 last in cxcess
of six months at the cemmencerrert of the project Al ather barrowing costs sre expensea r the pened mwhich they occur Barrowieg costs
consimt cf interest and other costs that an entily ncars in connection with the borrowing of funds

Separstely disclosed items

- | c z - .

ihe Group preserts as separsie'y dine gaeditems on the face of the Income Statement those material items of reome and expense which, because
ol the rature or expected wn?rcquency of the e.ents gimng rse to them, ment sepirate presentation to Atlow sharehalders o understand better the
elements of financial performance in the year, so a Lo Facilitate comparison with pror penods and Lo better assess trendsin f naned' perfarmance
Separately disclosed items are s key element used to demanstrate the underlying pe-formance of the Group and reported as an clternative

perfarmrance meysurg w.thi the managerment commantary for the reparting perod,

Share-based payments

The Group has an employes Share Incertive Plan that awards shares to employeas based on the reperted profits of the Group for the year, and

3 Long Term Incentive Plan that awards shares 1o Directors and Ser.or Executives subject o specific performance cntenia The Graup also issues equ ty
settled share-based payments te certun ermployesy, under spproved and unapproved share opuon senemes and 4 S-]v-mgs Re'aved Share Op:?on Schoeme

The cost of equty settled trarsactions with emplayect s measured by refercnce to the lar va've of the equiny instrumerts st the date at whicn they
are granted ard s recogrised o5 an oxpense over the westing pancd, which ends or the date on which the reievant errployees become fully erutied
sethe gward Fair /dfue I~ de:-:rrﬂ‘ﬂed '_,smg an iopr:c’\ate pric hg mocfew 'n vafumg equliyfietlfed tr f‘sacu'or\ no accounl g .’,A.kcﬁ r:(dr\y JE%t'r‘g
cand tions The Group nas no cauty setiled trarsici ons that are inkad to the price of the snares of the Company Umarke: cond Lons)

N experse s recogsed for avards that dorotu Lmaely west Az cazn Balance Sheet date befara vest ng the curmulitice experse s caleuated,

reprosenting the cxtent to which the vesung oer na his oo rad and mar sgement’s best estmate o toe ackhzeemer: o- ctherwase of ror market

€010 ons 3n¢ of tne pumicer of acuiny nalruents trst vl Wl mate y vest The mosementir curmulative 24penne ance the pre s ooy Balanca Sheet

3z arzcognsed rthie [moome Statamert, v th g corrospordig entry n @G by
Vinere tne tarms o sneawity-sciied aaard are miad fied 20 g r2e sward s aewigraiad a5 cepong 3 cancelled or s ¢ sward, the est bases on

the origity asar reCagnaes SLet Lne o

~y sesung percd nsadunn, ar experse s recogrised over trere

o1}

rs

penad o the. angnal dward snd ina far

fzator, based on tre dorerce petweosn tae Tar vaun of s
r
f

madit 2d 4

ard, oot 4 messured srtke datc ef tha modifcaton, Noredict on srecogrsce - r
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Wheee an equity-settled award is cancelled (nc'uding when a non vesting candiben within the control of the entity or employes 1s not met),
iLis treated as if v had vestad on the date of cancellstion, and any cost not yet recagnised in the Income Staterment for the award s expensed
immediately Any compensation puid up to the fair value of the sward at the cancellation or settlement date is deducted from equity, with any

excess over [air value being treated as an expense in the Income Statement

Own shares

Shares to be awarded under employee incentive plans and these that have been awarded but have yet to vest unconditionally are held at cost by

an employes share ownership trust ("ESOT™ and shown as a deduction from equity in the Balance Sheet. ESGT 15 an ndependently managed trust
and not controlled by the Group

In addition ta the purchase of shares oy the vanious ESOTs for specific awards, the Group alse fram time to ime acquires own shares o be held
a5 Liedsury shares These shares are cccasionally but rot exclusively used to satisfy gwards under vanigus share apion schemes. Treasury shares are
held at cost and shown as ¢ deductior from total equity in the Balance Sheet.

Consideration recewved for the sale of such shares 15 5's0 recognised in equity, witn any dif ference betweer the proceeds from sale and the original
cost being taken to reserves. No gamn or loss 15 recoen‘sed in the prolrlt or foss on the purch.jsc‘ mi?C‘, wsue or cancellation of treasury shares,

Taxation
Income tax expense reprasents the surm of the tax currently paydbk‘ and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current Lax payable s based on taxable profit for the year using LK tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and
any 4djustment to Lax payable .n respect of previcus years. Taxable profit differs fram net profit s reported i1 the Income Statement becausa it
oxcludes terns of iIncome or experse that are taxable or deductible in other years or are never taxable or deductibic.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recogrised on temporary differences at the Balance Skeet dale between the tax bases of assets and habilizies and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred tux lisbilil es arc recagmised for all taxable termperary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporasry differences,
carry forward of unused tax awsets and unused tax losses, to the extent that itis probuble that taxable Pro\qt wil ber avelable sgaimst which they can be utilised

Such deferred Lax assets and habilities are not recopnised where the asset or lsbility arses from the intial recegninon of goodwill or an asset or
|iab|\i1y M a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the t me o the trarmsactien, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed st each Balance Sheet date

Deferred tax s not recognised ir respecl of taxable Lemparary differences associated with investmerts in subsidisnies, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not raverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assels and liabilties are offset where there 1s o legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and habilities and where the deferred
tax balance relates to the same taxation entities.

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods when the asset 15 reslised ar the labilily
15 settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantvely enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Current ond deferred tax for the year
Currert and deferred tax are recognised in the Income Statement except when they relate ta items that are recogrsed i the Starement of
Cemprehensive Income or in equily, in which case the current and deferred tax are alse recogrised in the Stutement of Cemprehensive Income

or dlrc‘ct|y N equity respocLivdy.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
Defined contribution schemes
Payments to defined contribution retrement benefit schemes are charged to the Income Statement ss they fall due.

Defined benefit schemes
The Group aperated a defined benefit pension plan for ehgble employees where cortributions were made inte s separate fund admimistered by
Trustees. The Scheme closed Lo future acerval in January 2015

The cost of providing berefits under the defined bencfit plan s determined using the projected unit credit method cis'culated by qualified actuanes
This attributes entitlement Lo benefits o the current period (te determine current service cost] and to the current and prior penods (to determine
the present vaiue of defired benef .t abligstion) and s baved on actuarial advice. Past service costs are recognised in the Income Statement an

1 straight-hne basis over the vesting period or immediately if the benelits have vested
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

When a setilement {ehmmating ail obligations for benefits already accrued) or a curtalment (reducing fFuture obligations as a resuly of @ matenal reduction
in the scheme membership or a reduction in future entitlement} occurs, the obligation and related plan avsels are rermeasured using current actuanl
assumptions and the resultant goin or lossis recognised in the Income Stalement during the penod in which the settlement or curtalment occurs,

The Group determines the net interast chargef(credit) on the net defired benehit labilty/{assell for the period by applying the discount rate ysed
to measure the defined benafit obligstion at the beginning of the penod to the net pension liabhity/(asset) at the beginming of the per.od The net
interest charge/(credit) is recogrised immediately as a separdtely dsclosed france cost/lincomel in the Income Staternent. Actuarial gains and
losses are recagnised in full i the Staternent of Comprenensive Income in the period 1 which they scour.

The defined benefil pension asset or liabiity in the Balance Sheet comprisas the tatal of the present value of the defined benefit obligat.or

lusing a discount rate based an high quality corporate bonds), less the fair value of plan awets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.
Farr value s based on market price information and in the case of quoted secunties is the pub'ished bid price. The value of 4 net pension benefit asset
s restricted ta the sum of the present value of any amount the Group expects ta recover by way of refunds from the plan or reductions in the

future contribut:ons.

Foreign currencies
Transactions denominsted in fore.gn currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monctary assets ard
liabiliies are translated at the yoar erd excharge rates 4nd the resulting exchange differences are taken to the Income Statemeni.

Dividends
Dividends recommended by the Board but urpaid at the year end are net recagnised in the financial statements until they are paid (in the case
of tne nterm d vidend) or approved by sharcholders at the Arnual Gerers' Meeting (in the case of the fingt dvidend],

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
In1ts separate financial statements, the Parent Company recognines its investment inits subsidranes on the basie of costless provmien farimpai-ment,

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet applied
The IASB and IFRIC nave issued the {‘C|‘0W:ﬂg standards ard interpretations wotn an effect’ve dote for periods starting on or after the date on which

these finarcial statements start:

- Amendmerts to :AS 1, Classifeation of iabilities as current and non-current leffective TJaruary 2023)

- Refecerce te the Conceptua' Framework -Amendments 1o IFRS 3 {efioctve 1Jarua-y 2022)

- Property. Plant ard Equioment Praceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to IAS 16 leffectve 1Jaruary 2022)

- IFRS 9 Finsncial Instruments  Fees in the "10 per cent” test for derccognition of F nancia' hebi'ines (effective 1January 2022)

Other new stardards and interpretations in ssue but nat yet effective ae not app'icabie Lo tne Company and therefore are not expected Lo have

matenal mpact on the Group's financial pesition and results.

2. Segmental Analysis
Operating Segments
For management purocses. the Group's operat ng segments a-e

- Manasged Pubs and Fotels, which comprises managed pubs, managed hote's, Bei & The Dragon and Cotswold Inns & Hotels
- Tenanted Irns, whick comprises pubs operated by thrd parties under tenancy or lease agreements

The most importdrt me sdre used Lo evaluate the performance of the bus ness s adustes pra’it, which s the pra”it before tax, ad,usted “or sepirately
disclawed items The operating segments are organ sed snd mar sged separately sczording Lo the pature of the prodocts s7d seraces proviced, with
esch sogment represent.ng 5 strateg ¢ operating urit, The Monaged Pubs aro Hatels operating segments nave boen aggregated 10 one reportane
~2grMent on the basls they hauc smilsr cconomic charactenstes Ecanommie rdeators tssessed in determinie g that the aggaregited coerating
segmrerts share sm lar character stics inciude expeated future fimancil pCchr”“aﬂce‘ cperating ard compent’.o nsks, snd return or caoital As sucn

Le Speraling segments mect the sggregat on or Lena - paragraph 12 1F S & Joeraung Sepments Grrondac) More deta s of tnese segments are

groenin the Strategic Roport o pages 4 to 36 o this report

ecricn Mhakar PTG TMY the Group has electen, 35 provided

Ao segent assets 2raliabiit s are nat regularly proas
under =55 2 Operanrg Segrents lamandear, nott
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Managed Total
Pubs and Tenanted continuing
Hotels Inns  Unallocated' operatians
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 Em fm Em fm
Revenue L . _
Sale of goods and services 56.6 6.9 - 63.5
Accommodation income 5.9 - - 5.9
Total revenue from contracts with customers 62.5 6.9 - 69.4
Rental income 1.5 2.3 - 3.8
Revenue 64.0 9.2 - 73.2
Other income - - 0.2 0.2
Segment result (26.1) 1.2 (15.4) {40.3)
Operating separately disclosed items o o (14.8)
Operating loss (55.1
Profit on disposal of properties 5.8
Nel finance costs (8.5)
Loss before income tax (57.8)
Qther segment information
Additions to property, plant & equipment 12.6 0.7 0.5 13.8
Depreciation 24.7 1.8 0.7 27.2
lmparrment ofpropcrt : righL of use assets, assets held for sale and goodwll 1.3 1.6 - 12.9
Managed Total
Pubs and Tenanted continuing
Hotels Inns  Unallocated’ operations
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 E£m £m Em fm
Revenue
Sale of goods and services i 261.5 217 - 283.2
Accommodatior income 23.3 - - 233
Total revenue from centracts with customers 284.8 2.7 - 306.5
Rental income 1.5 8.0 - 9.5
Revenue 286.3 29.7 - 316.0
Other income - - 3.7 3.7
Segment result 30.6 1n.s (15.4) 27.0
Operating separately disclosed items (20.1)
Operating profit 69
Profit on dispasal of propertes 9.6
Net finance costs (8.1
Profit before income tax 84
Other segment information
Additions to property, piant & equipment 23.6 3.6 23.6 50.8
Busingss combinations 32.8 - - 32.8
Deprectstion o 24.8 2.0 0.1 26.9
|mpa\rrnc-m ofprapcrty, r\ght of -use assets and goodm” 14.4 0.7 - 15.1

1 Unallocated expenses represent primarily the salaries and casts of central management. Unallocated revenue represents Transitional Services Agreement (*TSA") ncome

while unallocated capital expenditure relates to the purchase of a new head office.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

3. Revenue
Geographical Information
Al of the Group's business is within the UK and therefo-e the Group only has one d'stirct geographical market.

52 weeks

ended

27 March

2029

£m

Rovenue disclosad in the Income Statement i dﬂa\ymd s follows

Sale of good- and serwces! 63.5 2832
Accommodation income 5.9 233
Total revenue from contracts with customers 69,4 3065
Rantal income 38 95
Revenue 73.2 6.0
Trarsitions’ Services Agreement revenue” 0.2 37
Other income 0.2 37
Revenue and other income 734 3137

1 Revenue includes £2.0 million received from the Government under the Eat Out to Help Qut Scheme,
2 Folawing the sale of the Fuller’s Bear Business to Asahi Curope Ltd, the Graup entered inta 3 TSA to provide certam services to facihitate the successful separation of the
two companies. This included finance, IT and payroll services. The TSA was completed during the financial year on 27 April 2020.

4. Operating Costs

52 weeks

ended

27 March

201 T

£m e
Productian costs and cost of goads used in retailng 191 202
Stal costs 40.8 MG
mmmﬁnce o 8.6 136
Depraciation of preperty, plant and equipment 18.6 165
Bmﬁmc assot B 8.6 W00
Rental expense relating to short-term and low value leases 0.2 N
Vanable lesse payments o mTJ 18
Preperlycoss - 35 162
Unl ties 4.8 2.0
Separately disclosed items (note ) 148 201
IT, retal and commuricat.on costs 3.7 4.4
Professions’ fees - 2,5 3.0
Pul operational costs B 3.8 158
Truring 0.2 20

Grantincoma- (4.7)
Cther operating costs 31 8.7
128.5 312.8

1 Variable lease payments are dependent an turnover levels,
2 Grantincome s amaunts recerved fram the Goverament to support busimesses throughout the pandemic thst were eligible depending on ther ratesble value.

a8

Detity of ~comeand g roct eccenses re aung o ronts moa™c from roestment propertes are sbownr o
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a) Auditors’ Remuneration

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 L
£m £
Fees payable to Company's auditors.
- Statutory audit fees of Group fnancial statements 0.4 0.3
0.4 03
o
Other audit related ser sices of £1,65C for covenant reporting ard non audit services of £1,5C0 for XBRL tapping wore alsnincirred in the ;
prior period aa
S
) 1 ko
b) Employee Benefit Expenses &
£m T 2
Wages and salaries™ 31.6 G857
Social security costs 5.8 7.0
Pension benefits 1.7 20
Other staff costs 1.7 6.3
40.8 "o
1 Includes Executive Cirectars. Q
2 Includes share-based credit of £0.3 million {2020: expense £0.5 million). 5
3 Staff costs are stated net of £41.2 millian claimed from the Government through the CIRS. 3
2
c) Average Number of Employees' o
The average mon:h\y number onersor\s emp'oycd by the Group ':Iﬂcludlﬂg part-ume staff) was as fellows:
Continuing operations Number M rmbs
Fub, hotel and restaurant teams 4,046 4957
Suppert office” 173 209
4,219 5,166

1 Includes Executive Directors.
2 Support office includes Finance, People, IT and other support staff.

d) Directors’ Emoluments
Full details are prowded in the Directors’ Remuneration chort and tables on pages 56 to 75

™
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

5. Separately Disclosed Items

The Group presents separately disclased items on the face of the Income Statement for those material tems of incorme and expense which, because
of the naturc or expected infrequency of the events giving nse to them. merit separate presentaticn to allow shareholders 1o understand betier the
elernents of financial performance in the year.

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 2
£m B
Amounts included in operating (loss)profit:
Mequisition costs - 0.4)
Reorganisalion costs 1.9 2n
Impairment of intangible assets, properties and nght-of use assets (12.9) (151
IT maintemance, support and recufication costs C - (1.2
Total separately disclosed items included in operating (loss)/profit (14.8) (200
Profit on dispesal of properties 5.8 96
Separately disclosed finance costs:
Finance charge on net persion labilites {0.1) (0.6}
Firance credit on the cancellation of interest rate swaps - 01
Total separately disclosed finance costs 0.1 Q5
Total separately disclosed items before tax .0 mo
Exceptional tax:
Profit an disposal of properbies - (0.2) U—C;l
Other items, 09 35
Total separately disclosed tax Q.7 2.0
Total separately disclosed items (8.4) 9.0

The reorganisation cost~ of £19 millon dur ng the 52 wecks ended 27 Muarch 2021028 March 2020 £21 milion) were large’y ncurred as o resuit of
4 COrpordie reorganisdbior of the Group, spe:nfica“y the hve up of the rade and assets of Bel & The Dr'r'lng'- 3d Catseald inms & Hatsls, ana reduﬂdaﬁcy
costs a5 aresult of restructuning due to the coranavirus pandomic.

The total impairmert charge of £12.9 mill on during the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 relates to the weite dowr of 37 hizensed properties to therr
recoverable value (E9 O millan relating to property, plant and equ pment and £1.5 million to right of assets) as weli as the wrte down in value of
oreviously scavired gacdwil recognised on acquisition of Jacomb Guinress Limited of 0.6 millen, 2ssets heid for sale imparrment of £0.2 midlion
and ease recavable mpairment of £1.5 mithion (28 Marck 2020, 019 1 million)

The profit on dspasd’ of properties of £5.8 mtion auring the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021028 March 2020 E96 millon] relates to the dispasal of seven
licensed and urhcensed properties (2020, three propernes)

The casn mpact of operstng separntely disclosed rerrs bafers tax for the 52 weeks erded 27 Muarch 2021 was 1.5 milhon cask sutflow (28 March
27020- £5.0 million zash outfiow)
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6. Finance Costs

52 weeks
ended
27 March
20N
E£m -7
Finance Income
Interest income Mrorm financial assets - 0.2
Finance Costs
Interest CHpCrsC dllsIng On I
Financial habilities at amortised cost loans and deber;éures' (5.3) (53] ;
Financial habilities at amortised cast - preference shares (0.1) _[O,ﬂ a5
Financia: labilities at amortised cost - lease labihit.es (3.0) (24) ;3
Total interest expense for financial liabilities (8.4) (78] %
Total finance costs before separately disclosed items (8.4) (76} =
Finance charge on net pension labilities (note 5) (0.1) (0.5
Finance credit on cancellation of mterest rate swaps (note 3) - a1
Tota! finance costs after separately disclosed items (8.5) |
1 Interest expense on loans and debentures i1s shown net of £0.6 million of grant income recognised i relstion to the CCFF.
7. Taxation %
Tax on Profit on Qrdinary Activities 3
52 weeks §
ended &
27 March
201
Group Em
Tax {credited)/charged in the Income Statement
Current income tax.
Current tax on (loss)profits for the year - o (1.0} R
Adjustments for current tax on prior pencds 7 (0.5) N
Total current income tax (credit}expense (1.5) 11
Deferred income tax:
Origination and reversal of temparary differences (8.1} 2.2
Change in corporation tax rate - 1.6
Adjustments for current tax on prior periods - 0.3
Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense (8.1) 41
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement (9.6) 52
Analysed as:
Before separately disclosed items {8.9) 772
Separately disclosed items (0.7) (2.0)
(9.6) 572
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

7. Taxation continued

Reconciliation of the Total Tax (Credit)/Charge

The Lax credit in the Income Statement For the year i lower (2020 tax expense 1s higher) than the standard rate of cerporanon taxin the UK 6% 19%,
(2020:19%). The differences are recenailed below

52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
£m Ji
(Lass)iprofit from contnuing operations be‘ore income tax credit/expense (57.8) 8.4
Acceunung lessliprofit mult plied by the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 19% (2020 19% (11.03 16
ltems not deductble for tax purposes 1.9 16
Current and deferred tax (over)iunder provided in previous years (0.5) 20
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement (9.6) 52
Deferred tax relating to items (credited)/charged to the Income Statement
Deferred tsx deprecistion __ (C.6) -
E&hsed capital (losses)/gairs (or PP&E) 0.4) 3.7
Retirement berefit obligatiors l o o 1.6 06
Tax losses h 7 (7.4)
Other (0.1} 03
Corporate interest restriction 1.2} ~
Deferred tax in the Income Statement (8.1) 41
Tax relating to items (credited)icharged to the Statement of Comprehensive Incame
%rred tax.
Valuation gains en firancial 1ablities 0.1 o
Met actuanal (pains)ilosses on pension schema._ (0.2) o i
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Statement of Camprehensive Income 0.1 12
Tax relating to items charged directly to equity
%rred Lax.
Share-based puyments_ - 01
Total tax charged to equity - 021
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Deferred Tax Provision
The deferred tax included in the Balance Sheet is as fellows

Deferred tax

Dt 42 10 2530 Thsb. 73]
Azcelerated
W ain e .
[ b ng (oA | CE 5 o
Group v :
Balances at 30 March 2019 . 06 03 - 0% (4.4) E’?
(ChargelfUredil L incorne Staterment 1 - ) 3.5 02 41 cr%
{Chargel to other comprehensive income o on - - - (1.2] ;
(Chargel Laken dircctly to equity - - on on o
Acquisitions - (3.3 - - (3.3] Sr
Balances at 28 March 2020 0s 06 Q.1 0.2 4.0 (231 35 07 (131
(Chargelicredit to Income Statement (G.4] 74 0.6 04 (1.2] 13 8.1
Credit/(charge) to other comprehensive
income G.2 - - 0B 01
Charge taken directly to equity - - - -
Disposals - (0.2 - - (0.5 04 on (04a; o
Balances at 27 March 2021 0.7 7.8 0.1 0.1 41 (22.3) 2.3 19 (53 2
3
1 Includes £1.2 million of corparate interest restriction. ) S
wn i
£m .
Deferred tax assets 17.0 100
Deferred tax habilities (22.3} (231
(5.3) (13 n
LTE 3,08 Cale . ‘
grara E:w "'P&E:‘ .:Z'VWS‘ E ) \,"tl-c—r_‘ i ';:a\
sonamss frastates’  wpeandng resizeal lrestated
Company e £ oy e o
Balances at 31 March 2019 6.1 0.2 0.3 (14.5) 05 (31
{Chargelicredit to Incomne Statement an - (on - - (3.0) 35 Q1 (3.6)
(Charge) to other camprehensive income an (o - - (1.2)
{Charge) taken directly Lo.equny - - (on - - - (e
Acquisitions - (28 - (28}
Balances at 28 March 2020 0e 3 o} 0.2 39 (20.3) 35 0.6 (0.8}
(Chargelicredit to Income Statement 043 - 08 0.4 (1.2) 3 8.1
(Charge) to other comprehensive income 0z - on - (o} CIE
(Charge) taken directly to equity - - - - %
Acquisitions - (0.4) 24) - - (2.8) §
Balances at 27 March 2021 0.7 77 0.1 0.1 41 (223) 23 19 (54 T
=
1 includes £1.2 million of corporate nterest restriction, ;3
W h 8
Deferred tax assets 16.9 G5
Deferred tux habihities (22.3) {203
(5.4) (os
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Conrtinued

8. (Loss)/Earnings Per Share

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Group £m
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders (49.6} 1609
Separately disclosed items net of tax’ 9.3 049.6)
Adjusted (loss)/earnings attributable to equity shareholders (40.3) n.3
I Thisincludes separately disclased items as per Note 5 and Note 21
Number N
Weighted average share capital §5,207,000 55.124,000
Dilutive outstanding opuions and share awards 139,000 128,000
Diluted weighted average share capital 55,346,000 55252000
40p ‘A" and *C" osdinary shars Pence Pone
Basic (ossifearnings per share (89.84) 291.89
iluted Coss)iearmings per share (89.84) 261 21
Adjusted (loss)earnings per share (73.00) 2050
Dluted sdpusted (loss)iearnings por share o {73.00} 2045
4p B ordinary share Pence e
Basic (loss)earrings per share (8.98) 2919
Diluted (loss}earnings per share (8.98) ‘ 2912
Adjusted (loss)learnings per share (7.30) 205
Diluted ad usted (osslearnings par whare (7.30) 205
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 s
Continuing sperations. Em S
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders (48.2) 3.2
Separately disclosed items met of tax 8.4 90
Adjusted (loss)/earnings attributable to equity shareholders (39.8} 12.2
Number N
Weighted average share capital 55,207,00Q 55124000
Dilutive outstarding options and share swards 139,000 128,000
Diluted weighted average share capital 55,346,000 55257000
4Dp A ond “C ardinary share Pence e
Bas c (losskearnings per snare (87.31) 581
Crated (esslearmirgs par share (87.31) 573
ACJ"_mled [CES]«‘erarm}gﬁ persnars B (72.09) 2213
Dhluted agpustec doss)earrings sersharz (72.09) 2208
4p°B ordinary share Pence -
Basc (esshearmirgs oor share (8.73) ST
Crlutes Coss)learn rgs par share (8.73) oy
Ad Lsted [ oasllzarrings oer snare (7.21) 22
D Ltad agjosted lossiiearrings per shara (7.21) 221
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For the purposes of calculating the namber of shares to be used above, ‘B’ whares have been treated as one tenth of an"Aor ‘C'vhare The earmings
per share caleulstion is based en earnings from continuing operations and on the weighted average ordinary share capital which excludes shares held
by trusts relating to employee shere options end shares held in treasury of 1,777,248 (2020-1.860,777).

Diluted earnings per share amourts are caleulated using the same earnings figure as for basic earmings per share, divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding auring the year plus the wesghted averaga number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the convers on
of all the dilulive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares

Adjusted earnings per share are calculated on profit befors tax excluding separately disclosed items and on the same we gnted average ordinary

share capital as For the basic and diluted earmings por share Adjusted earrings per share medsures bave been included as the Direciors consider
p &P i gsp

that these measures better reflect the underlying earmings of the Group.

O, Dividends

52 weeksended 2 wiooks onoes

27 March
201
m e
Declared and paid during the year
Equ\ty dividends on ordmdry shares:
Final dnidend for 2020, Op (2019: 4.35p) - 2.4
Second interim dividend (or 2020: Cp (2015: 8.0 0p] - 4.4
Firstintenm dividend for 2021: Qp (2020. 7.80p) \ - 4.3
‘D’ share single dividend far 2021 Op (2020 125p) - 694
Equity dividends paid - 80.5
Dividends on cumulative preference shares (note 6) 0.1 01

The pence figures abeve are for the 40p ‘A’ ordinzry shares and 40p ‘C ordnary shares, The 4B’ orainary shares carry dividend rights of
one tenth of those applicable to the 40p ‘A ordinary shares Own shares held in the employee share trusts do not qualify for dividends as the

Trustees have wared ther nights. Divdends are a'so net paid on own shares held as treasury shares.

Asindicalod inthe arcular pubhshed on 28 March 201G relsuing to the disposal of the Fuller's Beer Busines., the Beard made an addivena’ cash
relurn of £1.25 per ‘A" and "Clordinary share and 12.5p per "B ordinary share through a'D’ share scheme Each ardinary snarcholder as at the record
dale was msued with ten “D shares for every existing A" and *C ardinary share and one 'D' share for every one "B orainary share held at the time,
Nurras (actng as principal, and not as agent, nominee or Trustee for the Company) made an offer to purchase the *0 shares for an amount of 12.5¢
pee D share (ree of all expenses and commussions). The Company accepted the offer on behal® of shareholders and paid & sing'e dividend to Nurmis
as holder of all the ‘D' shares of £63.4 mill.on representing the sum of 12.5p per ‘I share plus the stamp duty payable by Numis in connection with

the purchase of all the ‘D’ shares in issue.

Follownrg the approval of all the resolutions presented to the Cormpany's Extraordinary General Moating an 1 October 2019, 552,030154 D
shares of 0.1p each were allotted and 1ssued to shareholders on 2 October 2019 on the basis of ten ‘D hares lor every exsting ‘A and 'C ordinary
share of 40p each and one "I share for every existing ‘B’ ordinary share of 4p each held at the record dute Following the purchase by Nuris of 4l
of the "D’ shares, and payment by the Compariy of a single dividend to Num's of £69.4 milnan as holder of all of the ‘D shares on 7 Cciober 2013,
the "D shares were reclassified as deferred shares of 0.1p and were immediately repurchased and cancelled by the Company on 8 October 2019,

No final dvidend for 2021 has been progosed for approval at the Annual General Meeting as a result of the business being closea for the majerity
of the 52 weck period ended 27 March 2021 due to the cont nued impact of the eoronavirus pandemic,
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10. intangble Assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

Cost

At 30 March 2319 2972 131 - 423 131

Acquiaitians (rote 18) 26 26 2.6

Transfer Lo right-of-use assets (nate 17) B - (131 031 a3n
At 28 March 2620 318 - - N8 2.6

Additions - - 0.6 0.6 06

Hive up of Bel & The Dragan - - - 1.0

At 27 Mareh 2021 318 - 0.6 32.4 4.2

Amortisation and impairment

At 30 March 2019 06 438 - 5.4 18
Imparment during the year 3.7 - - 37 -

ﬁdnafer to right of -use assets (note 17) T 4.8) %-(‘4—8]. (4.8)
At 28 March 2020 43 43 -

Provided during the year

Impairenent - os - . o8 ’—T
At 27 March 2021 5.1 - - 5.1 0.2

Net book value at 27 March 2021 26.7 - 0.6 27.3 4.0

Net bock value at 28 March 2020 275 275 26
Net boak valug at 38 March 2019 286 23 369 2.3

The Campany Balance compr ses £3.4 millior oF goodwrl ane £0 6 millon of development costs Impairment of EQ 8 millior relates to impairment

of £0 6 mihon of gocdwll an facomb Guiness Limited to 115 recoverable vsiwe and an adjustrment to goodwill on acausiton of Cotswoald (nns &
g | |

Hatels of £0.2 million,

Development costs

Devaloprmert costs relate to tne implementation af 3 new finance system and are made up of hcence costs. consaltng tene and interna employee

costs. Amortsation of the asset will begin when developrment s complete and the assetis avalsble for use

Goodwill
2021 Tzl
Manaped Tenanted Tatal

Goodwill is allocatad to CGUs as Fallows: Em Em Em “.
Cales estaie 9.1 13.6 22.7 227
Jacomb Guinress estate o 0.6 - 0.6 2_
Bel & The Dragor 1.0 - 1.0 10
Conswold Inns & Heoels —? - 2.4 26

13.1 13.6 26.7 275
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1. Property, Plant and Equipment

. Flant, R
Laws stk e & Fatares % .

ST S ek tits g ‘_\"w‘
Group o i i i
Cost
A 30 Marck 2019 5340 6.2 156 6 696.8
Additions 36.0 0.3 154 517
Acquisitions (note *5] 422 21 44.3
Disposals (22) - (5 0) R
Trarsfer Lo investment property (note 12) 02} . 0.0 GIE
Transfer to assets held for sale (nate 22) 22) - (0.2) (2.4} E:U
At 28 March 2020 6076 6.5 1689 783.0 %
Additions 0.6 - 13.2 138 =
Disposals (1.7) - 0.6 (2.3
Disposals of discontinued operations 6.8) on 78 45)
Transfer ta assets held for sale {note 22) (9.2} {on (2.3) (1.e)
At 27 March 2021 590.5 6.3 171.6 768.4
Depreciation and impairment g
At 30 March 2019 39.7 1.3 1031 144 5
Prowded during the year 38 0.5 13.6 179 é
Disponais ©7) - “.4) (51) “
Imparment loss 8.5 - o3 36
Transfer Lo assets held fFor sale (note 22) (0.1} - on 0.2
At 28 March 2020 51.2 18 123 165 3
Provides during the yesr 4.6 14.0 18.6
Disposals 0.2 - 0.6] (0
Disposals of discortinued operations a7 (5.8 10.5;
Imparment loss 30 g0
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 22) (.03 on (1] 30
Reclassification of impairment to right of use assets (hote 17) (04 04
At 27 March 2021 58.5 1.7 18.0 178.2
Net book value at 27 March 2021 532.0 4.6 53.6 590.2
MNet book value at 28 March 2020 556.4 47 566 177
Nel book value at 30 March 2019 494 3 49 535 5527
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Property, Plant and Equipment continued

Continued

o
Company R o

Cost

At 30 March 2019 5055 45 1473 £58.3

Additions 4.4 165 909

Acguisitions 37 - - 37

Cisgosals 2% “9 (700
Transfer to nvestment property (note 12) (.2 - (G.2)
Transfer 1o assets held for sale note 22 22} - 0.2 (2.4}
At 28 March 2020 5791 49 1393 7433

Additiens’ iR 148 337

Disposals (1.8) o.e (2.4}
Trarsfer Lo assets held For sale (note 22) (9.2} [(ORM {23 1.6)
At 27 March 2021 587.0 4.8 171.2 763.0

Depreciation and impairment o
At 30 March 2019 326 2.6 96 3 13°5

Prowided auring the year 3.2 12.6 158

Disposals (0.7 (4.3) (5.0)
Imparrent l9ss net of reversals 73 - 0. 74

Transfar to assets held for sale {ncte 22) (eR)! on (0.2)
At 28 March 2020 42.3 28 104 6 149.5

Pravided during the year 46 13.5 18.4

Drposals 0.2 R 07
imparrment loss ) 90 - g0
Transfer ta ascts held for sale (note 22) a.0) 1) e Go
Reclassificot.on of imparment te rght of use assots (note 17 (0 4) - - (04)
At 27 March 2021 54.3 2.5 116.0 172.8

Net bock value at 27 March 2021 532.7 2.3 55.2 590.2

MNet book value at 28 Marcn 2020 536 R 23 547 5933

Net baok value at 30 March 2019 4729 23 516 526.8

1 On 6 June 2020. the nat assets of Bl & The Dragon of £19.9 mullion were hived up to the Company at fair value
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12. Investment Properties

Cost at 31 March 2019

Transler from property, plant and equipment

Cost at 28 March 2020

Transfer to asset held for sale (2.4] é{j

At 27 March 2021 3 2
5

Depreciation and impairment at 30 March 2019 and 28 March 2020 09 =

Provided during the year -

Transfer to asset held for sale 07

At 27 March 2021 0.2

Net book value at 27 March 2021 31

Net book value at 28 March 2020 4.8

Net book value at 30 March 2019 46 ?
:3

Fair value at 27 March 2021 15.0 3

Fair value at 28 March 2020 200 °

Fair value at 30 March 2019 154

The fair value of investment propert es has been esumated by the Directors, based en the remtal incorme earned an the propertes during the year
and average yields earned on comparable oroperties from pubicly avalsble infermatisn, which 15 a Level 3 fair vaiue valuation technigue,
Anindependent valuat on of the properties has nat been performed

Impairment

The Group considers cach trading outlet to be a CGU and each CGU s revicwed anrually for indicators sl impairment. In assess ng whether an asset has
been imparred, the carrying amount of the CGU s compared to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. Dunng the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021, the Group did not impanr any imvestrment properties (2020, Eait).

Management have determined that the highest and best use of the property s its current use.
Investment Property Income

The properties are let on both landlord and Tenart repaining leases Ameounts recognised in the profit for the finanzial year relsting to rental income

from nvestment properties are as follows,

201 LA
Group and Campany £m cm
Rental income 0.7 0.5
Direct operating cxpenses (0.1 (03]

All direct operating expenses relate to propertias that generate rentsl income
p B &P prop g

peg
o
-
S
o
>
3
pu]
g
3
o
&
o

19



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

13. Impairment
Our ng the year, impairment losses of £12.9 million {2020: £18.9 million] were recognised within separately disclosed items:

2021
Group £m
Impairment losses
Intangible assets 0.6 37
Property, plart and equipment 9.0 8.6
Right of-use assets 1.6 6.6
Assets held for sale 0.2
Lease recevable 1.5
Total net impairment charge 12.9 189
2021 Zls.
Company £m i
Impairment losses
Froperty, plart and equipment 2.0 74
R ght-of-usz assets 0.7 41
Assets held for sale 0.2
Lease recevable 1.5 -
Investments in subsidiaries’ 6.9 40
Total nelimparment charge 18.3 155

1 Investmentsin subsidiaries in FY21 was impaired on hive up of Bel & The Dragon and was recognised through the merger reserve.

Lease receivables have been assessed for imparment under IFRS @ At other assets above were assessed forimpa rment under [AS 36,

Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets

The Group censiders each trading outlet Lo be a CGU and each CGU is revewed annualiy for indicators of impairment. [n assessing whether an
assot has beenimpared, the carrying amount of the CGU s compared to its recoveratle amount. The recoverable amount s the bigher of 1ts Fair
value loss costs to sell ("FWVLCS") and its value in use. In the abserce of any information about the far value of a CGU, the recoverable amount

s deemed tobe ts value inuze For the purposes of estmating the value in use of CGUs, management bave used o discountad cash flow approsch
The zalculations use cash flow projections based or the Following plans covering a five year period

The 2021/22 torecast shows that trading wi! continue to ve adversely impacted by the coronavirus panderic, nternational sales sre farecast to be dowr
by 75% and corporate sales down by 45% as people only s'owly start to return to work !t also assumes that consumer confidence viil take o while to return,
impacting sales with a reduction of 5% in H'and 2 5% in H2

The 2022:23 forecast shows some growth but this will remain affected by the "ssting impact of the pandernic. Interrational sales will be down by 15% and
carporate sales down by 20% a3 the expectation 5 that pecpie will wark from home mare reguiarly. -t s ther assumed that rerma’ trading will rosurme i
2023724, so wsking two years to fully recover from the pandem’c.

Otrer key 3ssumptions used by maragement 'n the value in use cycularans were as Follows

- The discour: rate 1s ossed on the Groug's we. gl‘\ ed average Cost c-:cap\t.ﬂ, which 1 used scross gl COULs due to ther sirn lar characterst cs,

The pre-tax d scount e s 6% %

- Along terr growith rate of 2% was used for cask “ows subsequent Lo the 2022723 bLdaer

“Fecaloustior o

ke calcu snar
provectors . Tenarted prer :
edge anc bistor cal nfarmatian. Geverrment suppert oy way of VAT reducton and

aoc.2 ba.e tnsic ass gﬂﬂd i o
y hsiobeer fuctored inio the ~ode’

cortmwed business raies hal d

Lh

Virere e walie roase i h gher than the :ﬁrw’.g amaunt of the CGJ, o further assessment s requirad —or COUs where tre s3'usir Lie s oner tran

L Carry rg 3ug fand st risk ol impa reaetl 5 2'uat or 27 the pre p riy s perorrred ts deterine VLIS, The oroperty ssluat oms are performed by

~ -
nE T up- = boase property expart warg 3 muluple of forecast =6 TOA e 1 number of casas, tne L slue of Lhe property dor vca carery from a0 ncome
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approach understates the underlying property value I these cases the expert has apphed a spot value to the property rather than a value denived
fram o multiple apphed to the income. The Group has sl obtaned va'uations for a subset of these CGUs from a third party property valuation expert.

The lair value valuation technique is Level 3 as 1t used an unobservable far value nput.

Impdirments are recognised where the property valuation 1s also lower than the CGU's carrying value fer those deterrmined to be at risk of
impairment. This i measured as the difference between the carrying value and the higher of FVLCS and its value in use Where the property
valualion exceeds the carrying value, nompairment 1s required.

During the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021, the Group recognised animpairment loss of £9.0 million (2020: £8 © millien] on property, plant and
equipment and £1.6 million (2020: £6.6 millizn) of mparment on night of-use gssets in respect of the wrie down of a number of ecnsed properties
where their asselva'ues exceeded the higher of fair value less costs to sell or their value in wse The impairment losses were driven principally by changes

in the local competitive enviranment in which the pubs are situated as well as the >ing|car\t impact corenavirus will continue 16 have on these pubs

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
The value in use calculations are sensitve to the assumptions used, The Directors conwidor a moverment of 15% in the discount rate and 0.5% in the
growth rate to e reascnable with reference to current market yield curves and the current ecanamic conditions. The impact = set out as follows:

Fit¥al IV
Impact on impairment of assets at risk - increase/ldecrease) Em
Increase discount rate by 1.5% 2213 13.6
Decrease discount rate by 15% (13.6) (24 5)
Increase growth rate by 0.5% (5.9) (6.3)
Decrease growth rate by 0.5% 7.0 50

The inerease in d scount rate and decrease in growth rate would lead to the CGUs represented by the value abave being subject ta further roview
by the Group The value in use calculation 1s also sensitve to vanations in the budgeted cash “lows, whech represents the rate of recavery fram
coronavirus Apphying the ‘downside case’ cashflow forecast, as discussed in the going concern disciosure within Note 1, Lo the value in use
caleulstion results in an increase to impairment by £2.9 millon, The CGUs represented by the “impact an impairment of assets at nisk™ would have
their FVLCS determined in order to conclude on whether an imparrment is required. A goneral decreasc in property values acress the portfolio
would have a similar effect to that set out above 1.e. any reduction in property values would lead Lo assets being at nisk of impairment. In the current
yoar, a decrease of 5% in the FVLCS would have led to an additional impairment of £7 2 mulhon for the CGUs where recover able amount has been

assessed on FVLCS.

Goodwill

Goodwll acquired through business combinations has been allocoted for impairmant testing on an estate and divisionsl CGU leval. This represents
the lowest level within the Group at which goodww” s momtared for internal Management purpascs Ananalysis of gooduwil by operating segment
isincluded within note 10, Recoverable amount 15 based on a calculation of value in use based upon the same cashflows as discussed under property,
plant and equipment. Cash flows beyond the budget pericd are extrapolated in perpetuity on the assumption that the growth rate does not exceed
the sverage long-term growth rate for the relevant markats. The same assumptions Lo caleulate the value in use are used for goodwill as those for
property, plant and equipment.

During the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2027, the Group recognised ar imparment loss of EQ 6 milion in refation to Jacomb Guinness Limited s the
recoverable amount being the value in use for those pubs of £0.6 milion could not support the carrying value.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
Maﬂdgelﬂeﬁt |']<]Ve COHS\dered reﬁﬁoﬂable C‘“dﬂgeg " key asﬁumptlcﬁﬁ U‘aed m ther CdlcUl;‘]L‘;OH\ OFVd'uC‘ M Usec. Aq \ﬁcrease OF ?{) N d|SCOUnt rute
would increase the imparment by £0.6 million, A decresse in growth rate by 0 5% would increase the impairment by EQ 6 eillion.

Investment Property
The Group considers each tradng outlet to be a CGU and each CGU s reviewed anncally for indicatars of mparment Durmg the 52 weeks ended
27 March 2027, the Group did nat impair any investment properties (2020: Enil), Refer to note 12

14. Other Financial Liabilities

Group o Company

2021 PR 201

Group and Company fm [ Em
Interest rate swaps (0.7 (mn 0.7)
Total financial liabilities within non-current liabilities 0.7} n {0.7)

Details of the interest rate swaps are provded 1n note 28¢ (1).
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15. Other Non-Current Assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cantinued

2021

Group and Company £m
Loans to custorrers duc afLer one yaar - A
16. Investments in Subsidiaries .

<t t 3
Company 2 B i
At 30 March 2019 122.5 02 1223
Additions 30.4 - 304
Return of capital (13 3 (13.3]
Disposals ;o - 130y
lrmpar ment - (4.0) 4.0
At 28 March 2020 1226 .23 1224
Raturn of capital (58 6o 02N
—Dvspos‘a‘s (0.4) 0.4
At 27 March 2021 120.8 (1.5) 109.3

Principal subsidiary undectakings

Halding

Propartion held

Matuce af business

Griffin Catering Serv-ces Limited

L1 ordinary shares

100% Gindirect)

Managed houses service company

George Gale & Company Limited Elordinary snares 100% Non-trading subsidiary
25p ‘A ardinary shares 100%
E30 preference shares 100%
FST Trustees Lirmited E1ardnary shares 100% Non-trading subsiarary
Falter Smith & Turner Estates Liruted L1 ordirary shares 100% Nen tradirg subsidiary
Rirgwaads Lim:ted £V ordinary shares 100% i Non-trading subsidiary
Gnffin Inns Liruted E1ordinary shares 100% mtrddmg subsidary
Jacomb Guirress Limited Elordinary shares 100% MNon-trading subsidiary

45 Woodhield Limited

Elordinary shares

100% (ndirect)

MNon trading subsidiary

Grand Canal ‘rad:ng Lirmited

Elordinary shases

100% (rdirect)

Nor-trading subsd-ary

BaD Country Irrs | Lirited

E1ord nary shares

100%

Holding company

B&D Country fnns Il Lim ted

ETordirary snares

100%

Holdirg company

BRD (Cookham) Limited

ETordinary skares

100% Lndirecl)

Non trading subsidiary

B&D (Farnhamr) Lirrited

Elordinary shares

100% (ndirect)

Non-trading subsidary

B&D (Kirgsclere] Limize Elordinasy shares 102% Gndrazt] MNon-trading subsidiary
380 (Odiham) Lim ted £ ordinary shares 100% [narrects Man-trading subsidiary -
B&D (Read ng; Limited Elardinary sha-es 100% lrdirect) Nor trading suosiciary
B&D (Win) Limited Elerdirary shares 100% Oind rect) Non-trad ng subs-diary

RSH 200 L mized

Ll ordinaryskares

“O0%

Hold ng company

Cotswo'd Irns & Hotsis Limizad

ETordinary shaces

100% Crdirect

Fote' and restaurant conership

Ths abo.e comparios are regs

& Turner BLC gt Per House, 58

cd smd operale

[

moZacand ara Walss Tre

G3Zuara on tre-Green, _endor, Englara, Wa 3NN
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17. Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Group s a lessee For leases where the Group i3 a lessor, see note 31,

a) Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Group Car Company
2021 LD 2021 ;
Group and Company Em £ fm F
Right-of-use assets .
Propertics 81.3 1051 80.8 Qa7
Equipment 0.2 0.8 0.2 08
Vehicles 0.4 17 0.4 11
81.9 1070 81.4 96.6
Lease liabilities
Current 6.7 39 6.5 75
Non-current 83.2 104.0 81.8 Q1.7
B9.9 123 88.3 996
Set out below are the carrying amaunts of night of-use gssets recognised and the movements during the period,
B ooty Ve g Laucver: Tita
Group L [ s T
Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 105 11 0.8 107.0
Additions 26 2&
Lease amendrents - rent concessicns (10.0) - - a0
Lease amendments - other! 13 (0.4} 01 10
Disposal =R - - R
Depreciation 76 FEGE) 36
Impairment  transferred From property, plant and equipment o (04) - 0.4
Impairment {1.6) 6)
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 81.3 0.4 0.2 81.9
T ALY Wk sl [ It L
Company £ ] - B
Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 54.7 1.1 0.8 96 6
Additions 26 - 2.5
Lease amendments - rent concessions (50} - Gl
Leasc amendments - other’ 13 (04 oN 1.C
Disposals 04 - - (0.4
Depreciation (73) (0.3] (0.7) (8.3}
Impairment - transferred from property, plant and equipment (0.4) - - (04}
|mp;1|rmeﬁt 07) (07}
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 80.8 0.4 0.2 814

1 Lease amendments include lease terminations, modifications, reassessments and extensiens to existing lease agreements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

17. Leases continued
Setout below are the Carrying amounts of lease lakb ities (ncluded under interest begr‘n% loars and bor(owmgs) and the moverments durmg the PEFIOd_

Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 129 996
Additions 26 26
Dispasal 10.5] -
Lease amendments  reat concessons (10.0) (9.0)
Ledse amendments - other 10 10
Accrenon of interest 31 3.0
Payments (5.2} (8.2}
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 89.9 88.3
A maturity analysis of grass lease haddity payments s included within note 28
b) Amounts Recognised in the Income Statement
52 weaks
ended
27 March
202
Group £m
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Properticy 7.6 98
Equiprent l 0.7 06
Vehicles 0.3 02
8.6 10.6
Interest experse [included in fnarce cost) 3.0 27
ngpf:mae relating 1o short tarm leases and low-vdlae assets (neluded in eperating costs) - 0.2 08
Expense relating 1o varianle lesse paymerts rotincluded in lease labiliues (nzinded in aperating costs) 0.9 20
Imparrmant ol rignt of-use assets I.; 66
Income from sub-leasing nght-of use assats - (c.%)
5.7 ne

Trne Group's total cash outflows for leases in 2021 were £9.3 milion (2020: £11.2 millior),

Variable fease payments

Some property legses contair varieble paymert terms that are linked to si'es generated fram a pub Varable paymert terms are used for a vanety
sf raasons ncludng munmis ng the Fred costs base for nevdy establishod pubs Varisble lease prymerts tha: depend an sales are recagn wed n
profit ar ioss i the penod inwh ch the corditian that tr ggers thase payments ocours Vanable lease payments recognised in the Incame Staterrent
ntne year cnded 27 March 2027 were £0.5 mullion (2020:£2 O rulion)
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18. Business Combinations
Durning the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021, there were no business combinations,

During the 52 weexs ended 28 March 2020, the Campany acquired 100% of the shares of Cotswold Inns & Hatels for total consideratior

ol £30 4 million, a business incorporated in the LK and consisting of scven premium hotels and two bars. The acquisition was completed on

31 October 2019 A further pub was bought for E3 7 million and treated as g business combination as it was operating as a business at the point
the Company acquired it

201
Pubsand ot - un

Restaurant & uie [ =
Number of pubs/hotelsirestaursnts purchased - 9 L cé
Fair value fm P £ =
Net assets acquired - 280 37 .
Goodwill - 24
Total consideration paid - 304 37
Net cutflow of cash T -
Cash corsideration pad - 304 37
Cash and cash equivalents acquired - 13 g
Net cash outflow from investing activities - 291 37 (BD
Repayment of third party 'oans on acquisiion - 84 %
Net cash outflow from Financing activities' - 8.4 - “
Net cash outflow in respect of purchase of businesses - 375 37

1 Included within repayment of bank loans in the Group cash flow staterment.

19. Inventories

Group Company Toerpany
2021 2021 )

Group and cquﬂnr £m gm -
Stock at pubs and hotels 21 2.1 35

Amounts recognised 1n profit or loss
Inventonias recognised as an expense during the year ended 27 March 2027 amounted to [15.8 millon (2020: £66.4 million). These were included
n operating costs. lnventory 1s stated net of a provision for ohsolete stock of £0 3 million {2020 £2.4 million).

20. Trade and Other Receivables

2021 7

Group £m J;/r;,
Trade recoivables 21 24
Other recaivables i 6.6 72
Prepayments and acerued income 2.8 3.0
1.5 126 '
=
2021 it S
Company fm Ur =
Trade recervables 21 24 %
Amaounts due from subsidiary underiakings - 75 g
Othker recervabies o 6.5 ? Q
Prepayments and accrued income 2.8 2.8
1.4 G4
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20. Trade and Cther Recelvables continued
Asat 28 March 2020, the Company amounts owed from subsidiary undertskings of E7.5 mihion b ad ng fixed repayment date Interest was payable
or tne balance at the h\gh—:‘r of either the Bank of Eﬂg‘and base rate p|u3 3% or 8% Durmg the year the subsidisries that owed the Company

smodnts were hived up INto the Compdny and s part of the restruztunng the intercompany balances were settled

Asat 27 March 2021, the GFCUP has accrued £4.0 million (2020 £09 million), shown 0 ather recevables. in relation to the CIRS. Alvo included in other
recenables s E0.8 mlhien (2020 £2 7 million) of lesse recevabie for subleases. £1.5 milion of tease recavabie was impared durng the yoar based on the
expected credit lows rradel and recarded ir separately disclosed items given its one o nature.

The trage recevables balance above s showr net of the loss allowance The Graup and Company proy de against trade recevab'es based on an
expacted creditloss model, calculated frem the probabiity of default for the remaning iz of the asset

Im measuring the expected credit ‘osses, the trade recevabies havz been assessed on a eallective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristies. They have beer groupcd basved on the aays past due and also accerding to the geographical lacation of customers which 1y the
sarme for all.

The expected loss sates are based on the paymert profile for wales over the past 24 months before the Balance Sheat date. The historical rates
are uv::‘justcc to raf'ezt carrent und forward |Ook|ng mazrocceromic factars arfcctmg the customers’ zlo\hty te settle the amount outstamdmg‘
the rrost signific snt faczor being the coronavirus pandermic, A financial asset s writter off when Lthere 1s no reasonable expectstion of recover.rg
the contractug cask flows

The moverrerts or tne loss allowance during the year are summarsed below,

2021 L
Graup and Campany Em s
Openmg balance 0.9 Ca
Increase in loss sllowance recogased in proft and 'oss 0.3 05
Amourts whtten of f duning the year (0.2)
Closing balance 1.0 9

The lass allowance for trade recarables s recarded in the accounts separately from the gross recarvable Tne contractual ageing of the trade
recewaples balarcos as follows:

Group Company iy
201 N 2021 SO0
Group and Company m tm -
gurrem 1.3 09 1.3 09
O verdue up Lo 30 days 0.4 12 04 12
Cuergue between 30 4rd 60 days 0.1 01 0.1 01
Cverdua between 60 and 90 days 0.1 03 041 a
Qverdue rrore than 90 days 1.2 08 1.2 0.8
Trada recersab'es bafore loss allowanze 3.1 3.3 3.4 33
Loss al owarce 7 (1.0) oR)! (1.0) 03
Trade receivables net of loss altowance 23 24 2.1 74

21. Discontinued Operations
On 7 Jure 2020, the Group sola ts supsidiary, Stable Pizza & Ciger om ted (The Stable’ ) 1o Sourdough South Limited T Tamee Joes §, for ar

erterprne vialoe of 0 S —licr an s

=bt free basisincludirg iry zash lefL r the busiress Accord nply trs ous ness bas been reparted as discentirued

operat amsin e Arrua’ Report for the 52 woeks ended 27 Marcn 2021

Qn 27 Apr | 2073, tha Group szic s entire Beer B usirass 1o Asaki Europe Lid ("AF
v I

sa Tnawhal gened suswdary of Asahn Groug Soldings Lid
Asan "L For anenterpr se salae of £250 0 milion or s scbi-free basis raiuding any cash leftin the busirsss

Thobu,rassazid corpr sed the cruret, o' Fulersbear o der srasoftdrrksbrow rgang graauenan, a ne whe osaing, 35 we'l as tre distrivutier

theresf and 550 udes the Gr in Brevery, Cormisk Orchards, Dark Star Brew rg ane Nectar i—ports reforred 03 35 the “Fuler’s Beer Buaress”)

HMcoorangly those d swens na.e been reported s discert rusd gpersions ¢ the Arnal Repors for the 32 nocks ended 23 Maron 2020

126

FULLER S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



N\BW\JS’\O

a) Financial Performance and Cash Flow

The francial performance and cash flow in“armat an presented for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 reflects the operstions for the penod ended
7 June 2020 The financial performance and cash fow presented lor the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 reflects the full year of The Stable and
the period ended 27 April 2012 for the Fullers Beer Business

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
£m
Revenue
Segment revenua - 26.4 &
Inter segment sales - 41) ;‘?
Revenue from third parties - 223 U(i
) -
Segment result (0.5} 0.5 2
Opcmtir\g thdI’dT_E‘ly disclosed items - (3.8]
Operating loss (0.5) 4.3)
Met finance costs - (0.3]
Loss from operating activities — discontinued operations (0.5) (£.6)
(Lowsligain on sale of disconunued operation' 0.9 162.4
Inceme tax on (loss)igan on sale of discontinued operation - - 9
(Loss)/profit before tax - discontinued operations (1.4) 157 8 §
Taxat:on - en ‘“g
Anglysed as: 5
Underlying trading - (SR}
Separately disclosed tems - -
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations (1.4) 1577
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (0.4) 1.5
Net cash inflow from investing activities 0.3 2245
Net cash autflow from financing activities 0.1 09
Net (decrease)/increase in cash generated by discontinued operations (0.2) 2251
Other segment information
Additons to property, plant and equipment - 0o
Depreciation and amortisation 0.3 16
Impairment - 3.4
(Loss)/earnings per share — discontinued operations
40p ‘A’and ‘C’ ordinary share
Basic {loss)fearnings per share (2.54) 28603
Diluted (loss)icarnings per share (2.54) 28542
Adjusted (oss)fearnings per share {0.91) (1.63)
Diluted adjusted (losslearmng per share (0.91) {163) 5
4p ‘B’ ordingry share =
mggs)—/é;’mngs per share - (0.25) 28.61 g
Oiluted Uoss)fearnings per share (0.25) 2854 3:
Adjusted (lowllenrnings per shure : (0.09) (C.6) g
Ciluted ﬂdJUHLE‘d (\os’u)/e;lrr\m‘g'pcr share . (0.09) (0.6) E’
5

T Thisis treated as 3 separately disclosed item.
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2). Discontinued Operations continued
b) Details of the Sale of the Subsidiary
52 weeks
End!d
27 March
2021
fm
Conswderation received
Cash 0.4
Cd"!’ymg amount of net assets sold 1.2
Loss on sale before income tax {G.8)
Transaction costs 0.1
Loss net of transaction costs {0.9)
Income Lax expense on loss -
Loss on sale after income tax (0.9)
22. Assets held for sale
Group Company
201 201
Assets held for sale at the start of the year 2.6 2.6
Assets disposed of dur'ng the year 3.1 3.1
Assets transferred from lnvestmert Properties 1.7 1.7
Assets transferred fram Property, Plant and Equipmen: 8.6 8.6
Impairment of gssets 0.2} (0.2)
Assets held for sale at the end of the year 9.6 9.6

AL 27 March 202117 properties have deen classi® ed 45 held for sale (2820, 2 properuies). Tne properbes are predarminately unicensed properties.

Sale s expected w thin 12 menths from the reperting date Animparmert of £0 2 millizn was recogn sed on reclyss.fy ng the property to held fo-

5'e 1o recagn se the assers at the 'ower of carrying smount ana fair value less cost Lo sell Vafuations performed are based on coservations of

trensactions invalving orogerties of a < mi s nature. lacal on ard cordit'or. Since this vsluation was performed using a sigf cant non-shservable

ipul. the fairvalue medsurerent can be categorsed as a Leve 3

23. Trade and Other Payables

Due within one year:

201 2
Group £m oo
Trade payables 12.7 126
E)Lhor tax and social securnity 1.6 5.1
Otner payables 57 67
Accruals 7.3 109
E:ommct hak hties 7 T 1.4 2.4
8.7 377
Due within one year:
20 Zle
Company £m :
Trace payabes 12.6 1.5
;\—n'-:wmts d.e tesubs @ary underiaargs - 1331 1322
Othe- Lix and sooia’ secor Ly 1.5 a2
Tither payables 5.7 53
,Zc:ru 1 7.3 4
Cortract b e 1.4 24
161.6 1652
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Company amounts due to subsidiary undertakings of £133 T million (2020 £132.2 miliion) have no Fixed repaymant date. Interest is payable on the
paance at 3% abave the Bank of England base rate. Compsny amourts due to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured

Contract habilities relate to deposits received from customers to secure boakings for events and accorrmaodation. The balance will umnwind and be

recognised as revenue in the following financial year.

ALZT March 2021, £0 millon has been recognised as deferred income within acerusly in relation to the CCFF, representing the favourable
conditions granted by the Government. Thes s being unwound over the term of the laan.

24. Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt
Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Group S Company
2021 201
£m B £m e
Cash at bank and in hand 171 203 16.9 19.2

For the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and inhand, ss above Cash at bank

carns imterest al floating rates.

Group Company O
2021 2021
Borrowings £m £m
Bank ioans 107.9 1717 107.9
CCFF 99.8 - 99.8
Debenture stock 259 259 259 258
Prefererce shares 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
Total borrowings 235.2 19%.2 235.2 199.2
Analysed as
Borrowings vathin current lablites 207.7 171.7 207.7 1717
Borrawings within non current habilines 275 275 275 275
235.2 1552 235.2 1992

All boreowings st botk year ends are denovinated in Sterling and where appropr ate are stated net of issue costs, Further information on borrowings
is given in note 28,

Bank Loans

Group and Company

The Group had facihities of £291.7 million at year end including the CCFF. Post year end, the CCFF expired on 12 May 2021 and was repaid on that
date. The remaining E191.7 million of the Company’s total existing main bank facilites were due to expire in August 2021 but on 20 Aprl 2027 the
bank facilities were amended and extended Lo February 2023,

At 27 March 2021, £83.7 milhen (2020 £53 O million) of the total of £291.7 million (2020: E225 0 million) commutted bank facility was available

and undrawn,

As a result of coronavirus and the temporary closure of the entire estate for o sgnificant portion of the penad, the twe man quarterly covenants,
being net debt to EBITDA (leveruge) and nat debt W linence charges, were waived for the wholc period and revised to a more appropnate test based
or liquidity for each of the quarters during the financial year The iquidity cavenants sre in place untl March 2022 and then will revert to the

l2verage and 'nterest coverage covenants from June 2022
The bank foars at 27 March 2021 are unsecured, and are repayable as shown i the tasle on tne following page. Interost s payable at LIBOR plus

a margm, which vanes dependenrt on the ratio of net debt to EBITDA but since the covenants were warved in Marcn 2020 and replaced with
aliquidity test the interest rate margir has been fixed until Marck 2022,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cont nued

24, Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt centinued
The bark loans and ZEFF are repayable as follows

2021 20T
Em e

On demand or within one year 208.0 1720
Less: bank loan arrangement fees o (0.1 03
Less. CCFF amorlisat'on fees and fair value adjustments 7 - (0.2) -
Current habilities 207.7 1717
Debenture Stock
The debentured stocks are secured on speciiied fixed and floating assets of the Company and are redeemable an maturity,
Debenture stock s repayable as follaws.

20N 20Tt
Group and Cempany Em g
In the third to fifth year ircluwve - 10.70% Tst Mortgage Debenture Stock 2023 6.0 50
I greater than f.ve years - 5 879% Debanture Stock 2028 (Tst f\o:itmg chargo) 20.0 200
Less discount on issue ) 0.1 00
Non-current liabilities 25.9 259

Preference Shares

The Compary~ prafarence shares are claswifred as debt. The shares are not redeemable and are included 1n borrowings within non current hab | tes
P )

See note 26 lor further detalls of the preference shares

Analysis of Net Debt

Group
At
_ 27 March
AN LT oAl N 201
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 L v v £m
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and short-term deposits 203 (3.2) - 17.1
0.2 (32 - 171
Financial liabilities:
Lease habilit s M2.3) 92z 13.8 (89.9)
(1129} 32 1328 {89.9)
Debt:
Bankloans- (7 64.0 02 {107.9)
CCF= - 594) (043 (99.8)
Debenture stock ' (255 - (25.9)
Proferonce shares o .6} - (1.6)
Total borrowings (199 2; (354) Ca) (235.2)
Net debt (2318] (29 4] 132 (308.0)
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52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 = " S m
Cash and cash equivalents: 7
Cash and short-term deposits n.o - S 3 - 203
n.0 3.3 - 203
Financial liabilities:
Lease liabihities o - aco4d) 12 ) (23.7) {1129)
o041 ne (237 mzo
Debt:
Bank loans” (2265 57.0 02 (171.7)
Other loans (02 - G2
Debenture stock (259) (259
Preference shares 0.el - (1.6
Total borrowings (256.2) 570 - (199,23
Net debt (243.2) (100.4) 775 (237) {2918}
1 Non-cash mavements relate to the amortisation of arrangement fees, arrangement fees accrued, movements in lease liabilities and corporate acquisitions.
2 Bank loans net of arrangement fees.
Company
Il At
Ar Mo h 27 March
2070 v NG 202
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 ] Cree Yin €m
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and shart-term deposits 192 (2.3 16.9
19.2 (2.3) 16.9
Financial liabilities:
Lease lubilities (99.6) 89 2.4 (88.3)
{99.6) 8.9 24 (238.3)
Debt:
Bank lcans” {171.7) 654.0 0.2 (107.9)
CCFF - (99 4) {04} (99.8)
Debenture stock (25.9) - (25.9)
Preference shdres (1.6) (1.6)
Total borrowings (199.2) (35.4) (0.6 (235.2)
Net debt (275.6) (25.8) 18 (306.6)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

24. Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt continued ,
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 m o E":
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and short-term deposits 9.2 - 10.C - 19.2

92 - 10.0 - 192
Financial habilities:
Lease habilities - (85.6) 107 (210 (99.6)

- (88.6) 101 (211 (99 6)

Debt:
Bank loars- [2285) 570 02 N7
Debenture stock (25 9] - - - (253)
Preference shares 186 (16)
Total borrowings (256 O) 570 0 2) 19923
Net debt (246.8) (n8.6] 771 (21.3) (279.6)

1 Non-cash movements relate to the amortisation DFarrangement fees, arrangement fees accrued and rmovements in lease liabilities.
2 Bank loans net of arrangement fees.

25. Pensions

a) Retirement Benefit Plans - Group and Company

The Group operates ore closed funded defined beneft pensian scherme, the Fuller Srith & Turmer Pension Plan, The plan 15 defined benefitin
rature, with assets held in separate professionally maraged, Trustee-administered funds, The Scheme s HM Revenue & Customns registeres pensior
plan and subject to standard United Kingdom pension and tax law. On 1 January 2015 the p an was ¢ osed to future acerua’.

“ke Group also operates three def'ned contribution stakenolder pensiar plans for its emp'oyess. The Fuller’s Stakehelder Pension Plarn was set

up for now emp oyees of the Parent Company after the closure of the Fuller, Smith & Turner Pensicn Plan to new ertrants on 1 August 2005

The Griffin Stakehclder Penvion Plan operates for thave emp oyees of a Group subsidisry. The Gales 2007 scheme was set up Fo“owmg tne closure
of tne Gales delined benefit scherme in 2007

The Greup offers workplace pensions Lo all employecs who are not merrbers of the three defined contribution stakenclder pension plans. The Group
offers Lhese pensions through the Nat-onal Emplaymert Savings Trust ("NEST™,

The Grouo also pays berefits, which are unfunded, to 3 number of former employees The Directors consider these bemelits to be deflined beneli
n nature and the full defined benefithability s recognised on the Balance Sheet,

52 weeks
endfd
27 March
201
Group and Company €m
Total ameunts charged in respect of pensicns in the year
Charged to Income Staternent:
Defined berefit scheme - netfinance caarge  separately disciosed irerrs 0.1 CE
Cefined contribution scremas ard NEST  tats! cperibing charge 1.7 21
1.8 27
Crargeilcreat) 1o equty:
Dafined berafit schemes - ret actuanal \oasesf{gawm] 1.0 59
Total pension charge/(credit) 2.8 57
P g

b) Defined Contribution Stakeholder Pension Plans — Group and Company

Thetota costcnarged to roomen respect of the cof red cont- butior stakebo der schemres 1 sncwr in the Lty coerazng charge aocus

c) Defined Benefit Plans - Group and Company

Tre Sznerme proades pensans srdinmp su=s to rmembers o0 rotremrant and Lo thar deperdants 00 goath,
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Trustees are appointed by Both the Company and the Scheme's membership and act in the interest of the Scheme and all relevant stskeholders,
including the members and the Campany The Trustees are alse responsible for the nvestment of the Scheme's asset s,

The Company pays tne costs as determined by regulur actuarial valuations The Trustees are required to use prudent assumptions Lo va'uc the
habilities and costs of the Scheme whereas the accounting assurptions must be best estimites.

QCaponmblhty far mdkmg good any deficit on the Scheme lies witn the Compuany and this introduces a number of rizks for the Company

The major risks are

- interost and investment rsk - The value of the Scheme's ascets are subject to valatiity 1in equity prices. The Seneme has diverafied its o
investments to reduce the impact of volatihity and vanable interest return rates ‘:2
- inflation risk = The detined berehit obligatian s inked to inflation so higher rates wauld resultin a higher defined benelt abligatian ey
- langevity risk - Arincrease over the assumpticns apphed wi'l ncrease the defined benefit obligation OZU
2
The Company and Trustees are aware of these nisks and manage them through appropriate investment and funaing strategies. The Trustees manage E
governance and operationadl risks through o nurber of internal control palicies -
The Scheme s Subject to regular actuarigl vinuations, which are u‘;ud”y cdarried out overy three YOl In Junc 2021, the 2019 triennial valuglion was
concluded and the Company have agreed t cont nue to pay inline with the ox sting recovery plan. Under this plan, defieit reduction eantributions
started at 27 millionin Ju|y 207G and increase perdnnumin line with CPI Sub\equeht to the yedr end, Mxed security over certain o the Compdny.s
freehold properties (with a net book value of £27 3 miilior), has been provided to the Scherc as additional security, the value of which wil be reviewea
at each trenmal valuation. The next trienninl valustion s dus on 30 July 2022
o
The figures in the foliowing disclosures were measured using the projected unit cred't method. %
3
Tke Scheme has not invested in any of the Gr@up'\ own financial instrumerts or in propa-tics or other assetls inuse by the Gfoup g
o

Key assumptions
The key assumptions usad in the 2021 valuation of the Scheme sre set out below

201
Mortality assumptions Years
Currer\t peﬁ%loner\ ['it 65) - rﬂd|£‘5 22-2 221
Current pensioners (at 653 - females 24.4 2473
Future pens.orers (st 5] males 23.5 23.4
Future pensioners (at 65) - females 259 25.8

The Scheme is now clesed to future accrual. The average uge of the members who were active at closure is 56 for males and 52 far females.
The average age of alt non-pensicners is 56.

Key financial assumptions used in the valuation of the Scheme 2021 2020
Rate of increasc in pensions in payment 3.35% 2 85%
Discount rate 1.95% 2.40%
Inflation dssurnption RPI 3.40% 2.85%
Inflation assumption - CPI (pre 2030/post 2030) 2.5%/3.4% 195%
The present value of the Scheme nabiities is sensitive to the assumptions used, as follaws: b
a
2021 g
Impact an Scheme liabilities - increase/{decrease)! fm L ::3
Increase discount rate by O 1% (2.6} (21 i
Increase nf auon assumption oy O 1% 23 1.8 3
Increase ife expactancies by 1year 73 57 g
>

1 The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption whilst holding all of the other assumption constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and changesin some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitvity to change. the same actuarial method has been applied as when caleulating the pension Labifity within
the Balance Sheet. Due to the Scheme closing to future accrual on 1 January 2015, there are no longer any active members in the Scheme. As the members who were
active at closure did not maintain a salary link on their past service benefits, the future salary increase assumptions no longer have an impact on the Scheme's habilities.

2 For members who were active at closure, their pensions now increase in deferment in line with CPlinflation.
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25. Pensions continued

27 March
201 .
Assets in the Scheme fm B
Corporate bonds 25.5 269

Index linked debt instrurments 28.3
Gt R 240
UK equities - 170
Querseas equitics 30.6 208
Alrernatives 53.7 305
Cash 1.9 05
Annuities V‘ 3.8 36
Total market value of assets 143.8 1228
1 Alternatives s composed of holdings in diversified growth investment funds. 2021 I
fm Fr
Fair value of Scheme assetsy 143.8 1238
Present va.ue of Schere lablitios (147.3) (128.5)
Deficit in the Scheme (3.9) (47)

Included within the tota: present vawe of Group and Company Scheme lisbhities of £147 3 million (2020 £123.5 millign) are liabhines of £2.1 milion
{2020, £2 4 muher) which are enurely unfunded

PR - B Mot g e named s e se

2021 Lol 2021

fm Lo Em Fer

Balance at beginning of the year (128.5) (148 3] 123.8 (K] (4.7} (36,4}
Included in profit and loss - R
Current service cost - - - E - -
Neinterest cont ' (3.0) (3.7 2.9 3] (0.1 0o

(3.0) 37 29 31 0.1 0.8
Included in Other Comprehensive Income
Actaaria gains/{osses) relating to:
Actual reture less expected return on Scheme’s assets - 19.5 {13 22 19.5 (13.2)
EXPEFI"C‘I’ICG ga ns/{lossas] arising on Scheme labikties (20.5) 191 - - (20.5) 191

(20.5) 191 19.5 (13.2) 1.0) 5.9
Other
Employer spec a cortrbutions - - 240 - 240
Erployer cantnbutions - - 2.3 24 23 24
écr‘wc‘rwts paid - 4.7 4 Z 4.7 (443 -
4.7 4.4 (2.4) 220 23 264

Balance at end of the year (147.3) 128 5) 143.8 12383 {3.5) a7
Tre weghted 1 erage duration o7 tne Scnerc’s hab [ ues at the erd of the peniog 15 17 pears (2020017 yoars)

e

Thetaracontt butigns o tne schame e the next 7 mancia. year sre sxpected wo be L2 3 mill on for tne Group and Company. Fo low ag the
conclusicn af the 2015 cniernia walustior o0 15 Lre 2027 1t was agread that the Company sacg cont rue to pay contnoLtcag e e st tne
cef et racc.ery piar ahochistarted at £2 1m0 onon July 2019 are inerease eath joarwoin CF L The mecover, delict plar w il oe renewed at the nose

t-enmal Laluonizn aren sdus or 30U, 2022 Naoforther pay moris are miade a5 the Schgme s now c'esed so Foture azzrual
b4 ¥

ler's Beer Busiress to Awak, Surcs

'mtne o7 or year folaang the sale of the = Ltd, vhien completed on 27 Ap- 207 the Group —sdo 5 spec 4l

3
onlcat o af

o
£24.0 mihior of net essk prazesas from the sa'e to the Screme
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26. Preference Share Capital

Group and Company
First 6% Secand 8%
cumulative cumulative
preference preference
share of share of
Eleach £1each Total
Authorised, issued and fully paid share capital Number Number Number
Number autherised and in issue: 000« 000s 00y
At 30 March 2019, 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021 400 1,200 1,600
Maonetary amount: fm E€m Em
At 30 March 2019, 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021 0.4 1.2 1.6

The firat 6% cumnulat ve preference shares of £1each are entitled to first payment of a fixed curnulatve dvidend and on winding up to s reture of pad

capital plus arrears of dvidends The second B% cumulative preference shares of ET cach arc enuitled to secand payment of 4 fixea cumulative dividend

and on winding up & return of canital paid up (plus a premium calculated by reference Lo an average quoted price on the Londan Steck Exchange for

the previous six months) plus arrcars of dividends.

Preference shareholders may only vote in imited circumstances: principally on winding up, a'teration of class rights or on unpaid preference dvidends,

Praeference shares cannol be redecrmed by the holders, other than on winding up.

27. Provisions

Lups sz Tararius gase

20;1 222 202 2007
Group and Company £m Em =
Batance at beginning of the year 4.1 4.2 - 26
Utilined (0.1 on - -
Fransterred to night of-usa awsety - - (2.6
Balance at end of the year 4.0 41 - -

2021 2028 7ol
Analysed as: fm im S
Due vathir one year 4.0 - -
Due inmore than sne year T -

4.0 41 - -

Further information has not been disclosed about the legal claim as 1t s an ongoing dispute.
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28. Financial Instruments
Detals of the Group's treasury funcuion greincluded in the Financial Revien's discuss.on of Ninanesl nisks and treasury pel cics on page 25

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Conunued

The accounting treatment of the Group's financal instrumments 1 detailed in note 1.

a) Capital Management — Group and Company

As desenibad in note 1, the Group considers its capta' to comprise the following:

2021 SRS
Group £m o,
Ordinary share capital 228 223
Share preraium 4.2 4.2
Capital rederrplion reserve 3.7 —;—37
Hedging reser ve {0.5) 09
Retained earnings 366.3 437"
Preference shares 1.6 1.6
398.1 448 5
201 7.z
Company m
Ordinary share cap-tal 228 228
Share oremium 4.2 47
Capital redemplion reserve 3.7 37
Hedging reserve {0.5} 09
Merger reserva (1.6)
Reta ned earnings 320.7 3733
Preference shares 1.6 16
350.9 4049

In rmanaging its cnpl'ﬁ‘. the privmary obJeche s Lo ensure that the Grcup 15 sble to cantnue Lo operile as d going concerr +nd to rmax mise reurn

to shareho'ders tirough 1 comb-natior of capital grove s, distributiors and the payment of preference dradends te its preference sharehclgers

The Group segks to maintar a ratio of debt and equity that balances risks and retures st an accepiable level and mainta ns sufficient funds te meet
warking capital targets, investnent requirements and comply vith lending covenants The Group did rot buy back any shares in the 52 weeks ended
27 March 2020 (2020: £0.5 milion) As a rmuromum, the Board reiews the Group's dividerd policy twice yearly and reviews tne treasury posiion

at every Baard meeung
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b) Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group's financial assets and labililies as recognised at the Balance Sheet date may alvo be categensed as follows:

20N

Group fm tr
Non-current assets
Financial assets at amortsed cost: -
Louns and other receivables in scope of IFRS @ - ol
Tolal nor current assets - aR| o
Current assets B
Trade and other receivables in scope of IFRS 9 2.1 2.4 0§
Total current assets 241 24 2
Total financial assets 2.1 2.5 8
Current liabilities -
Financial habil ties 4t arrortined cost:

Trade and other payables 1n scope of IFRS 9 254 300

Lease habilities 6.7 80

Loans 207.7 1717
Total carried at amortised cost 239.8 2106 o
Total current lishilities 235.8 2106 2
Non-current liabilities 5
Dervative financial instruments used for hedging 0.7 11 5
Financial habilities at amortised cost.

Lease habilities 83.2 104.0

Loans and debenture stock 259 259

Preference shares 1.6 16
Total carried at arnortised cost 10.7 1375
Total non current haoilit-es 1.4 1326
Total financial liabilities 351.2 3432

s ‘l‘\.'.l‘.ll".ﬂg

SIUS

UOIIELILIC [ |CUDIlppY
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

28. Finanaal Instruments continued

201 2527
Company Em i
Non-current assets
Financial assets at amortised cast:
Loans and ather recervables in scope of IFRS 9 - 0.1
Total non current assets - 01
Current assets
Trade and other receivables in scope of [FRS 9 21 99
Total current dssets 21 98
Total financial assets 21 100
Current liabilities
Financial habilit'cs at amortised cost
Trade and ather payables in scope of 'FRS 9 138.4 159.6
Lease habihtios 6.5 79
Loans 207.7 171.7
Totaicarried at amortised cost 372.6 3392
Total currert habilities 372.6 3392
Non-current liabilities
Dervative financia’ instruments used for hedg ng #—0\7 TT_
Finarcial labi'ines at amertised cost.
Leoase habil Lies 81.8 917
Lodns and deberture stocx 259 259
Prefercnce shares 1.6 16
Total carried at amortised cost 109.3 192
Total nor currant labilities 10.0 120.3
Total financial liabilities 482.6 4595

There s no set-off of financial ssets and habilkties as shown above.

¢) Financial Risks - Group and Company

The main risks associated with the Group's financial assets and iabiities sre set out below, as are the Group's policies for their management
Derivat ve nstruments are used to charge the ecorom ¢ charactenst'cs of financiaiirstruments i accordance w th Group palicy
i. Interest rate risk

The Graup manages its cost of borrow ngs using a mixture of fixec rates, vanan'e rates and interast rate swaps. Fixed raies do not expase the Group
to cash low interest raze nsx, but do nst enjoy a reductionin borrowﬂg costs ' markets where rates are falling, p’oatmg rate Dorrowrgs, 1\Lhougn

rot exposed o changas in e value, expose the Group to cash flow nsk fo'loa'ng rises ninterest rates and cost

The debentures tota'ing £25.6 mill n {2020 £259 = Lon) and the CCFF totang £99 8 mil 0n (2020, Enl), net of interest paid i ac wnze,

are st Fixed rates, The bark isars wotallng £1079 reihion 2020 171 7 mil orl. net of arrargemrent fees, are at floatrg <ates. At the year end, after
3

takirg account of intarest rate swaps, 1975 (2020 Wl aftha Group's bank loams ang 6375 (2020: 347) of grass porrowings were at fixed rates.
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Interest rate swaps

The Group has entered into interest rate swap agrecments, where the Group pays a fixed rale and receves one month or three month LIBOR, in
order to hedge the nisk of vaniation in interest cash flows on s borrewings. At the Balance Sheet date £20 O milhon of the Group and Company's
borrowings (2020 (40 0 million) were hedged by interest rate swaps at a blerded Fixed rate of 2 30% (2020: 2.42%). The swap active at 27 March
2021 expiresin 2022,

The interest rate swap s expected tompact the Income Statement in ine with the liquidity risk table shown in section (i) below. The interesi rate
SWdp cash Tow hcdge ineffect at 27 March 2027 was assessed as bcmg h\g)’ﬂy effective. Net unrealised g4in of £0.3 mrlion (2020: £0.2 million)
has been recordad in Gther Comprehensive Income. An interast rate swap for £20 O m [l on expired in August 2020 and resulted in £0.2 million

net real sed gain

Sensitivity - Group and Company
The Group borrows in Sterling at market rates. Three month Sterling LIBOR rate during the 52 waeks erded 27 March 2021 rarged between
0 09% and 0.58%. The Directors consider 1.00% to be 3 reasonable passible incresse in rates and 0.50% to be are sonable possible decrease

In rates, wath reference to market yield curves and the current econamic conditions.

The annuained effect of these changes tc interest rates on the floatng rate debt at the Balance Sheet date, all other vaniables being constant,

are as follows:

S el N LN 1 7
2021 2021 2T
Impact on post-tax profit and net equity - increase/(decrease) Em Em o
Decrease nterest rate by 0.5% 0.4 0.5 0% 11
Incredse interest rate by 1.0% (0.7) an (1.8) (2.1}

1 The Company has substantial interest bearing paysbles due to subsidiary companies {note 23).

ir. Credit risk
The risk of financiat loss due ta 2 counter party™s falure to homour its abligations arises principally in relatian to transactions where the Group
prowv-des goods and services on deferred paymant terms, deposits surplus cash and enters inta derrsalive contracts.

Group pohicies are aimed at rmin‘mising losses and deferred terms are only granted to customers whe demonstrate an appropniate payment history
and satisfy cred t worthiness procadures. Individual custemers are subject to credit hmits to control debt exposure and goods may also be sold on

3 cash with order basis,

Cash degosits with financial instizutions far sherl periods and der vative trarsactions are only permitted with financial instirutions approved by
the Board. Tnere are na significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. The maximum credit risk expasure relating to financial assets
is represented by their carrying vilue as at the Balance Sheet date,

Trade and other receivables
The Group records impairment losses on 1ts trade receivables separately from gross recewables. Further detail s ncluded in nate 20

Wi, Liquidity risk

The Group mimmises Fquidity r'ok by maraging cash generation, spplying trade receivables collection targets, mon.toring daily cask receipts and
payments and setting rolling cash forecasts Investments have cash payback periods applied as part of a ughtly controlled investment appraisal
pracess. The Groups ratirg with credit sgenc-es is excellent,

The Group has a mixture of long and short term borrowings and averdra’t facilities. 9% (2020 11%) of the Group's borrowings are repayable after
more than five years, 3% (2020, 76%) wathin the first to fifth years and 88% (2020: 13%) within one year,

The tables on the following page summarnise the maturity profile of the Group's financial habilites a1 27 March 2021 based on undiscounted
contractual cash flows, including interest payaole Floaling rate interest s estimated using Lthe prevaling snterest rate at the Balance Sheet date.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cont nued
28. Finanaal Instruments continued _ )
sovad ‘,a“: o ”,ik Total
Group at 27 March 2021 e Lo e fen Em
Interest bearing lcars ard borrewings' G3 2100 12.8 229 246.6
Prefcrence shares: - - [oN| a5 3.4 4.0
Trade and otner payan'cs ‘\2?7 87 4.0 - —j;
Lease habiliues 7.2 10.2 c.4 R0G 108.7
1 Bankloans are included after taking account of the following cash flows in relation to the interest rate swap held in respect of these borrowings:
Interest rate swaps - 01 03 Cc.Z 0.6
[
4T Total
Group at 28 March 2020 -T o In i fm
Interest bearing loans and berrowings Hslon! 12 299 243 215.5
“reference shares” 7 a 01 0.5 o 34 4.0
Trade and otker payables 1256 13.3 4.1 30.0
Lease habilies B 30 9 7 947 1485
1 Bank loans are included after taking account of the following cash Flows in relstion to the interest rate swap and cap held in respect of these borrowings:
Interest raze swaps 0z c3 0.4 - 09

2 The preference shares have no contractual repayment date. For the purposes of the table above interest payments have been shown for 20 years from the Balance Sheet

date but no further,

w

and therefore the balance should have been disclosed within the an demand bucket.

Tke Compamy F\gursx are as for the Group excent as ~allows:

The £160.7 million has been restated from the 1to 5 years bucket to the on demand bucket. Thisis because at the end of FY20 there was a technical breach of the covenants

PR e - o Total
Company at 27 March 2021 - i oo . : Em
Amounts due Lo subsidary urdertakings? 1337 - 1334
Trade and other payables 12.6 E 4.0 - 25.3
Loase habilties 71 95 102 79.5 106.7
Company at 8 March 2020

Amaunts due to subsidiary undertskings® 132 2 - - - 132.2
Trade and other payables B ns 1.8 41 - 274
Lease hablitias 27 2.1 36.3 85.0 1321

3 Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings have no fixed repayment date Interest is payable on the balance at 3% above the Bank of England base rate.

Security - Group ond Company

Trnc 10.7% deventurcy 2022 are secured ar proper:y. olant and ecu priert w tha ret book e of £11 6 mion (2020001 C millisr) Tre £.275%

deberturas 2028 are secured by s fleating charge over the assets o7 tne Comoany.
Covenants - Group and Company

o — ‘ .
ke Group ard Compiny are sab 2ot £2 a number of caverants mrelsuga to thar borraaing
124y bc—ccmmg immedately repayable These coemonts inz2- ala speci Py max ~um necdz

.

armzrusater, ard mirire om 2armings before teresy, 134, Cepreciabior ara xoriabor (S ntarest
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When it came apparent that av & result of caranavirus the Company's pubs and hotels would necd Lo tempora-ly close, Fulier's began discussions
with its lenders and formuilly spreed appropriaie amendments teits banking agreements with its landers: The revised covenants focus on hquidity
headroom metrics, which are mare appropriate under the current coranavirus conditons, The agrecment was initia'ly through to September 2020
and was later extended to March 2021 A part of the amend and extend of the facilities, as agreed on 20 April 2027, the covenants were waved
U’Vough to and mc|udmg March 2027 and replaced with the hgquidity test

d) Fair Value

[ERNTN I TR

20 e 5L 2021 220 V. L
Group £m v £m o !
Financial assets
Loans and other receivables due in more than one year n scope of IFRS 9 - a1 - 03 3
Financial liabilities
Ledse habilit e {89.9) mze (89.9) (112.9) 3
Fixed rate barrowings o {125.7) (259) 132.7) (33.4) 3
Floating rate borrawings (107.9) 077 (107.9) (171.7) 3
Preference shares (1.6} 0.6 (1.6) 2.0) 3
Interest rate swaps 0.7} O (0.7) n P
The Campany figures are as far the Group above except for:

ETR I ~5c.30

201 20200 20 IOV ALJH
Company Em Em in
Financial liabilities
Lease labilites (88.3) (99.6) (88.3) (99.6] 3

Level 1 Fair values are valuation techriques where inputs are quoted prices in active rmarkets for identical assels or liabdities that the entity can access

at messure data

Level 2 fair values dare valustian techmiques where a'linputs whick have a mgmﬁcant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or ndirectly, but are net derived directly frem quoted prices in active markets The Group bases its valuguions ominformation previded by financul
nsttutions, who use a varicty of estimation techmigues based on market conditions, such as interest rate expectatiors, exsting at each Bilance

Sheet date.

Level 3 fair values 4re valuation techniques for which all inputs that have s sigrificant effect an the recorded farr value are not observable.
Dervative fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, The fair values of borrewings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates. interest rates for Gorrowings range from 13% to 10.7%. The farr values of preference

shares have bean caledlated us ng Lhe market interest rates.

Management assessed Lhal the fair values of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables and othar recewsbles, and trade and other payablcs

epproximate therr carrying amounts largely due to the short-term matunities of these instruments.

There were no transfers between levels in the fair value heerarchy 55 at 27 March 2021 and 28 March 2020,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

29. Share Capital and Reserves
a) Share Capital

Authorised, issued and fully paid
Number in issue

At 30 March 2019

lssue of Share Capital - - - 552,318 552318
Reclassification to Oeferred shures - - (5523187 532,318 -

Carcellation of Deferred shares o D - (552,318)  (552.318)
Share conversians 42 42) - - -

At 28 March 2020 33,620 14,461 89,052 - - 137,133
Share conversions - - - -

At 27 March 2021 33,620 14,461 89,052 - - 137,133
Proportion of total equity shares at 27 March 2021 24.5% 10.6% 64.9% - - 100%
Monetary ameunt 2 o L o o ]
At 28 March 2020 134 S8 26 - - 228
Share conversion o - - o -

At 27 March 2021 13.4 5.8 3.6 - - 22.8

Share capital represents the norminal value procecds recoived on the sue of the Company's equity share copital, comprising 40p and 4p ordinary
shares The Company's preference shures are classified as nen curent habihities in accordance with '=RS (sec note 26).

The ardinary shareholders are ent.tied ta be paid ¢ dviderd out of any surplus profits and to participate in surplus assets on winding up in praportion
to the neming' value of gach class of share (B shares have one-tenth of the nominal value of ‘A and " C” shares)

Alequity shames in the Company carry ore vote per share, suve that shares held in treasury bave thairvoting r ghts suspended. The 'ATard 'C shares
have 3 40p nomins! value and the "B’ shares have a 4p nominal value sa that o ‘B share dradend will be paid ot 10% of the rate sppiying Lo A and 'C’
shiares Tre ‘A shares are hsted on the Landon Stack Exchange The *Cshares carry a nignt fer the holder Lo convert them to A shares by written
notice in the 30 day penod follswir g the half year and prelmirary annourcements The "B shares are not isted and have no conversion rights

In rmost Sircumstances the value of 2 °B share v deemed to be 10% of tha value of the lsied ‘A shares The Trustoe holding shaves for participants

of tne LT!P currently wa-ves dividends for sharcs held during the imitia! three year per od Disdends are not pad on shares held in treasury

The Articles inc'ude pravisiors relazing to the Company's ‘8 and ‘C' shares which prosde that sharencloers who wish Lo transfer ther shares may
on'y do wo.f tha trarsfer s to anather B or 'Cshareholder, or i the transler 1s to certan of that sharcholder's Family members or their executors
or administrators or, whera shares are ha'd by Trustees, to new Trustees, or to tne Trystecs of any employee shave scheme, or if the Company 15
unsble 1o idenufy anctner skarenolder of that class willing 1o purchase the shares within the specif.eq peried, to any persan.

The ‘D’ share with nominal value of G 1p were issued to the ardinary sharchelders in the followirg proparticns tan ‘D shares for sach ‘A ardinary

share and 'C ardinary share in issue ard one '0 share for each "B orainsry snarcin issue The "D shares were rec
subseauently cance'lad upor payrrent of s single 'O share diadend {note 9)

assified 34 a deferred shares and
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b) Own Shares

Own shares relate to shares held by independently managed ESOTs together with the Cornpany's holding of treasury shares. Shares are purchased
by the ESOTs in erder to satis®y potentisl awards under the LTIP and SIP Treasury shares are used, inter aha, to satisfy options under the Compary™
share options schemes, The LTIP ESOT has wi'ved its rights to dividends on the shares it holds. Treasury shares have votng and didend nights

suspended. All owr shares held, as below, are excluded from eacnings and nel assets per share calculations.

Tros iy saren TS o STESLC ot s
3 woray A anary ary
sv 4o S bas Alps .
Number STRNS e Tl 3
At 30 March 2019 1.567 4558 & 7 & 6,373
Shares purchased 49 91 - 140
Shares transferred 4an - _ _ 41
Shaures released (294) - (43) (337) - - (357)
At 28 March 2020 1,281 4,558 326 & 5 1,286 4 8384 & 6176
Shares relessed (7] - (7] - - (7
At 27 March 2021 1,274 4,558 326 6 5 1,279 4,884 6 6,169
Moretary amount O £ Fm Loy T v " " o
At 30 March 2019 149 4.6 0.2 ot - 149 4.8 01 1.8
Shares purchased 0.4 - 01 - 04 a1 0.5
Shares transferred {0.5) - 05 - -
Shares released (2.8 - - - {04 (3.2 32
At 28 March 2020 12.0 4.6 0.3 0.1 o) 121 4.9 (+}] 17.1
Shares released on - on (W)
At 27 March 2021 11.9 4.6 0.3 01 0.t 12.0 4.9 0.1 17.0
Market value at 27 March 2021 1.0 39 0.3 01 - 1.0 4.2 0.1 15.3

c) Other Capital Reserves

Share premium account

The balance in the share promium account represents the proceeds received sbove the nomina! value on the issue of the Company's equity share

capital. In the prior year, share premium was capitahised by £0.6 milion in order to ivsue "D’ sharas with tne nomingl value of 0.1p eacn to ordinary
sharcholders, The ‘D’ shares were reclass:led as a deferred share and subsequently cancelled uper payment of a single ‘D share d vidend (note 91,

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve balance arises from the buy-back of the Company™ own equity share capital

Hedging reserve

The Hedglng reserve contans the effective portion of the cash flow 'ﬂedge re|d:|omh\ps incurred at the Balance Sneet date, net of tax.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arises on the hive up of a subsidiary at market value with any difference between the reduction in investmant and the underlyng

assets being recognisedin this reserve,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Conunued i

30. Share Options and Share Schemes

The key points of each of the Group's share schemens for grants up 1o 27 March 2021 are summanised below Alfschemes are equity setiled

All disclosure relates to both Group end Company. For the purposes of option and LTIP schemes, "Adjusted EPS™ will normally be cong stent
with tho post Lax earnings per share excluding separately disclosed items as presented in the financial statements. However, the Rermmuneration
Carmmiltee s authorsed to make appropriate adJ;mtments to /\djusted EPS s dpphcd Lo these schemes.

Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE")

This scheme grants options over shares at a discount of 20'% on the average markel price over the three days immadiately pror to the date of offer
Employecs nust save a regular amount each month Savings sre made ouer three o five years, atthe participant's cho.ce. The nght to buy shares al the
discaunted price lasts for sk maonths after the cre of the SavPEs Contract. There are no performance conditions, other than continued employment.

Senior Executive Share Optien Scheme
This 15 ar unapproved Executive Share COpuion Scheme. No new grants have been made under this seheme since 2013 and all remaining options were
exercised during the year ended 28 March 2020,

Executive Share Option Scheme

This s ar approved Execut-ve Share Option Scheme. For the grants up to the yeur ended 28 March 2020 the opuens veslif growth in Adwustes
EPS exceads the growt‘w n RPI by 3% ar more. gver tre three year pechrrnr,mcc period of the option, From the grant made durmg the yzar endad
27 March 2021 onwards, the opticns vest if the «et pre Lax Adjusted EPS target s achioved. Trie aptions must then be exere sed within seven yaars
after the eng of the performance pericd,

LTIP
This plan swa-ds free shares, Up urtr the LT P grantea during the year ended 27 March 202Tvesting « conditienal on growth in Adjusted EFS
excecding growin in RP1 by 9% or mare over the trree vear initisl performance penod of the award, with vesting levels or J shding sea'e from 40%

up to 100%, \Fgrowth n Adjuxted EFS cxcoeds gr'owt‘ﬁ n RFI by 24% or more.

From the LTIF granted durng Lhe yoor ended 27 March 2027 vesting s corditienal upen pre tax Adwsied EPS targers with vesung lovels on
ashding scaie from 25% up to Y0C% dependent on thelevel of EPS achieved. Anindependent firem of 2dvisars verfes the vesting level sacn year.,
Theinitial vesting period i three years After this nme the shares may be passed to the plan participants, as long as vesting conditiors are met

SIP

This plan awards frec shares. An equal number of shares are awarded to each eligible emplayee. The moxmurm slue of the shares allowabie under the
scherme s £3.000 pe yoar, per persan with ot least fre mantks’ service a5 al 15 May cacn year The bisis of the awird was changed with effact from
the 2018 awird so that al eligible employee- recowe the same number of snares. There iz ro requirement for perfarmance targets (although there
may be tax corsequerces Fsaldwth'n five years of the award),

Share-based payment expense recognised in the year
The expense recognised far share -based payments in respect of emplayee services receved during the 52 weess ended 27 March 2021
S ED 3 muhon credit (2020 £0.5 millon charge) The whole of that expense anses from equity settied share based payrrent transazlions.

Market value
The market value of the shares at 27 March 2021 was £8.60 (2020 £6 500

Movements in the year
The following tables lluszrate the rumber src we ghied 4 erage cxercise prices (WAZF ) of, and movements in, eacn category of share instrument

du'-"lg the year.

Volatility

Tha expested .oanhty s based on the histoazal we ot |ty cver tne expected e of the r ghte.
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a) SAYE
2021
Number 2021 I
000s WAEP VAT
Outstanding at the beginming of the year 167 £7.98 485 £7.89
Granted 410 £4.35 - nia
Forfeited (78) £7.54 (129) £790C
Expred (38) £8.06 - - n/i
Exercised m £8.12 (159) L7830
Outstanding at the end of the year 460 £4.79 167 €798
Exercrsable at the end of the year 9 £8.51
Weighted average share price for oplions exercised in the year £8.99 {1013
Weighted average contractual life remaining for share epuiens outstanding at the year end 3. years 2 2 years
Weighted average share price {or optians granted in the year £5.59 nfa
Weighted average far value of opuions granted duning the year £1.38 nidi
Range of exercise prices [or options outstanding at the year end
from £4.35 £7270
- tc £8.70 £8.70
Outstanding sharc opticns granted to employees under the SAYE scheme are a5 fallows:
Mumber of
‘Al erdinary
shares under
option
2021
Exercisable at 000s 3
Septermber 2020 #.70 6 26
September 2020 812 3 40
Seplember 2021 774 17 33
September 2021 770 24 50
Seplember 2022 812 3 s
September 2023 770 4 0
November 2023 435 228
MNovember 2025 4.35 175 -
460 167
b) Share Option Schemes
SEMON _aZiut va Sare et oo b e e
2021 23T
MNumber 201 Mo ~iber 20270
000s WAEP 2LTs WA F
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - nfa 75 £7.00
Exercised - nfa (75) £7.00
Outstanding at the end of the year - nfa - rta
n/a F967

Waighted average share price for options exercised in the year
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Contunued

30. Share Options and Share Schemes continued

2021
Number 2021
000s WAEP
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 159 £9.69
Granted ) 163 £6.92
Lapsed_ ) H £10.24
Surrendered* (65) £9.71 - -
Exercived (1)) £5.78 2n £8.84
Outstanding at the end of the year 212 £7.46 58 £9.69
Excreisable at the end of the year 26 £9.03 47 £9.43
Weighted average share price For opticns cxercised in the year £7.36 £10.05
Weighred average corlractual life remairing for share aptions outstand rg at the year end 8.63 years £.93 years
Weighted average share price for optiors granted in the year £6.92 £9 70
Weighted aversge fair va'ue of options granted during the year £0.94 £0.84
Rarge of exercise prices for options outstanding at the year end
from £6.92 £5.78
- 1w £10.90 £10.90

Durlng the year ended 27 Mareh 2021, 65,073 options were surrendered and replacement options granted, shown within the number granted above. This was treated as
a madification of the original grants and as such the fair value recognised for the replacement options was reduced by the calculated fair value of the surrendered options
as st the date of surrender, the average of which was £0.35. The fair value calculation for the surrendered options was performed consistently with the inputs disclosed at
section e)(1) below except as follows, The expected remaining ife ranged from 2ta 6 years, the volatlity ranged from 17.7% to 20.9% and the risk-free interest rate used
ranged from -0.1% to 0.05%.

OutHldmdmg options which sre capable of being exercined between three and ten years from date of 1ssue and ther exercise prices are shown in the
table below:

e oLl Ap TYmaea

Number of

‘A ordinary

<= shares under

option

; 20

Exercisgble in/between < 000s
2013 und 2820 5.78 - 1
2014 300 2021 709 2 2
2015 and 2022 7.05 5 5
2016 5nd 2023 913 9 10
2017 4nd 2024 3.65 5 17
2018 and 2025 1095 5 13
2020 anc 2027 10.34 - 38
2021and 2025 945 19 42
2022 and 2029 A 4 31
2025 ard 2030 6552 163 -
212 159
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<) LTIP
2021 2021 PP
‘A shares ‘B’ sharex FANEUREE
Number Number o b
Shares 000s 000s Lol
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 288 Yyl 360 SN
Granted 220 549 175 288
Adjustment for ‘D’ shares impact - - 2 45
Lapscd (104) (261) (20%) (513)
Outstanding at the end of the year 404 1,009 288 721 L:ﬁ
g
ao
Weighted sverage share price for shares vested in the year nfa n/a nfd n/a %
For shares outstanding at the year end, the weighted average contractusl life remaining 1 1.91years 1.9Vyears 160 years 160 years *:J;
Weighted averoge share price for shares granted in the year £5.90 £0.59 £3.70 £097 -
We'ghted average fair value of shares granted during the year £5.75 £0.58 £R95 L0380
AL LTIPs have a vestung price of Emil LTIP shares do not receive dividends until vested.
d) SIP
20 v
Number b
000s BE G
<
5 ing ag t f i = e
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 150 254 3
Granted - 43 3
(]
Lapsed - {1 ®
Released (38) (146)
Outstanding at the end of the year 12 150
Weighted average share price for shares released in the year £7.22 £9.61
Far shares outstand.ng at the year end, the weighted average contractusl hfe remairing is 1.88 years  2.61 years
Weighted average share price for shares granted during the year - £10.34
Weighted average fair value of shares grarted during the year - £10.34

Outstanding SIP shares represent shares allocated and heald by the SHP Trustees on behalf of employess, which remain in the trust for between three
and five years. All SIPs have a vesting price of Enil. SIP shares receve dradends ance allocared.

=
o
o
=
a
z
R
=
g
g
E
=
o
)
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FINANCtAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

30. Share Opticns and Share Schemes continued

e) Fair Value of Grants

i. Equity-settled options and LTIPs

The fair value of equity -settled share oplisns granted is estimated as ot the daie of grant, taxing inia account the terms and conditions upon

which the awards were granted The following table hists the irputs to the model used for the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021 und 52 weeks ended
28 March 2020, except for exercise price and the weighted svarage share price for grants in the year, which are disclosed in sections a) to d) above.

IR ZAYE Eustotine 3 se pt 516 e
Fairvalue inputs 2021 2720 2021 2070 2021 PSP
Diwvidend yield (%] nil% 1.8% nil% nla nil% 1.8%
Expected share price valatihity (%) nfa nia 17.2%-19.0% n/a 18.7% 15.8%
Risk-free interest rate (%) (0.1%) 04% (0.1%) nfa (0.1%) 0.4%
Expected e of eption/award (years) 3 years 3 years 3 to S years nla 4 years 4 years
Model used Black Scholes  Blick Scholes  Black Scholes n/a  Black Scholes lack Schales

it. SIP free shares awarded
Tre fair valoe of free shares awarded under the 51215 the share price at the date of allacation. The total value of SIPs awardea s a Fxed rate based on the
Group's performance in the preceding finarcial year. The number of snares awarded i therefore dependent on the share price at the date of the award,

31 Guarantees and Commitments

a) Operating Lease Commitments

Operating leases where the Group is the lessor

“he Group earns rertal ‘ncome from two sources. Licensed property ncluded with.n propecty. plant and equipment is rented under 3greements
where lessees must a'sa purchase goods from the Graup. Additionslly there are a smaller number of agreements ir respect of investment properties
where there s no requiremart for tne fessce o purchuse goods.

Imvestment properties are et to th rd parties on leases that have remmaining terms of botwean ona ara fiftean yosrs

At 27 March 2027 future m mimum rertals recaivabe are as fol o

200 PP 2021 0
Group Em Em £
Within ane year 0.5 048 7.8 31
Between cne year ard five yess 0.7 1.0 1.2 4.8
Ofrer five years 0.3 05 0.8 3.3

1.5 2.3 19.8 M2
Company
Within one year 0.5 08 7.8 26
Between ane yosr and fue yoars 0.7 t0 1.2 4.7
After fiue years o 0.3 oS 0.8 48

1.5 2.3 19.8 121

Tre Group ara Compuany’s commercial lzases or preperty are princ paliy for lcersed outets, The terms of thel

csare rormdl y for aitner three,

fauror froe years The agreements a ow for annual inflationary increasas and full rents’ reviews occur or rerendl o the leaso

A 27 MParzh 2021 Future e e uer rartals rece vabie umcer ran canczllabla suz leasas roded ntke fizires sbove nere B8 rw o 12025 £5 A milliorl
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b) Other Commitments

2021 PN
Group and Cnmpany fm [
Capitsl commitments - authorised, contracted but not provided for 2.4 13

32. Related Party Transactions

Group and Company

Duning the current and prior years the Compuny provded various adrmimistratve services to the Fuller, Srith & Turner Pension Plan free of charge.
In addition, the Company settled costs totalling £368,000 (2020 £497 0007 relsting to the provision of actuanas, cansulting and administratve
Services l:y third PdFUC\ Lo the Fu”er, Srmith & Turner Pension Plan.

52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
Compensation of key management personnel {including Directors) fm L
Short-term employee benefits 3.0 4.3
Terrmination benefits 0.1 11
Post-employmert benefits 0.3 0.4
Share based payments - 0.2
3.4 6.0
Company Only
Curing the year the Company entered into the followng related party trarsactions:

Sales to Purchases  Interestdue  Interestdue Amountsdue Amounts due
related  from related  fram related to related torelated  from related
parties parties parties parties parties parties

52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 fm Em Em £m £m fm
Subsidiaries - 21.0 - 4.2 (133.1) -

EEREENTEN
frope ralaped

SATt

[ [, farss Lo, [

52 weeks ended 28 March 2020

Subsidiares 764 1.7 4.4 (132.2] 75

Interest is payable cn the majority of the smounts due to subsdianes at 3% above the Bank of England base rate. Al amounts outstanding are

unsecured and repayable on demand

The Company recaived rental income from subsidiaries of Enil during the year (20200 £O.3 milhan). The Company also incurred rental expenses
from subsidiaries of £0.3 millen (202C £10.7 million).

In addition, the Company has recharged an ameunt of Emil (2020: £1.4 million) to 1ts subsidianies and incurred £0.1 miflion (2020: £0.1 million)
of rechdrgei fram its subsidiarics durlﬂg the yedr.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

32. Related Party Transactions continued

Subsiaiares of parent compan &5 established within the Eurapean Feonomic frea are excript from an audit f @ guarantec » prowvided oy the parent for the
p P p & g Y P
subsidary liabilities and the sharehalders are :n unanmous sgreement, The Group will be exempting tne following companies from an audit in 202" for the

periad erded 27 March 2021 under Sectior 4797 of the Compame: Act 2006, all of which are f_u||y consalidated in these finanaal staterments

Company Company Number
Grffin Catering Services Limited 0577632

Jacomb Guinness Limited 02634979

George Gale & Compary Limited o 00026330

45 Woodfield Limited ' 04279254

Grard Caral Trading Limited Q4271734

B&D Country Inns | Lmited 07292333 )

B&D Country Inns | Limited 08025280

BAD (Cookharr) Limited ] 07320065 -
B&D (Odiham] Limitad 08377455

B&D (Reading} Limited 7309587

3&D (Wir) Lirized 37320245

B&D (Farnharm) Limited 08392963

B&D (< gsclere) Limitcd ' 08975762

RSH 200 Lim ted 12035987

Cotswo'd Inns and Hotels Lirited 0230977%

The Group wll be exempting the following companies from the preparavon and deliver ng of accounts to Companies House urder Secuion 3944,

of the Comparies Act 2008, all of which are fuly consclidated in these financial staterrents.

Company Company Number
Grffnlrms Limited 00465934
Ringwoods Limitad ' 00178536
FST. Trustee Lim ted 033480
Fuller, Srmith & Turrer Estates Limited 0'831674

33. Post Balance Sheet Events

Cn 31 March 2027, the Group agreed an Amend and Extend Refinancing of its existing gobt Tacilives with ity relat onship barks, estenaing the
matunity of the £192 mllien faciities ta "9 February 2023 and arending the firancial zavenants to 3 mnimurm hquidizy lesei of 10 milion to

31 March 2022,

O the same day 1twas also announcad that the Group prepesed placing nev A sharew up to approxamate’y 20% of exisung 1ssued ‘Al ordinary
<harg capital The ref nancing of the "aciibics was cond fonal on the successful eqQuILy rase On 20 Aprﬂ 2021 the eGUITY 13 52 was aporoned b),

rhe snareha'ders at the EGM and the ret proceads of £52 mill on were recered the same day

a3 May 2021, using the Greaos aualable facl tes and tne procescs of tne equity rane, the Graup repa d the COFE - full
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34. Prior year adjustment

The Group identilied an error within L assessment of deferred tax which dates back prior ta the earliest prior peried presented wathin these

financial statemnents, In ling with IAS B, the Group has restated balsnces as at 31 March 2013, and restated its financial results for the period ended

28 March 2020,

The ssue dentl ed as at 31 March 2019 reluted to how deferred tax was baing calculated on property. plant and equipment (PP&ET) and the
assumplions used for the intended manner of recovery of cach pub Management had understated the base cost of PP&E recoversble on a ssles
basis and ot recognised a deferred tax lisbilizy on s use bavs. Additonally, sn adjustment was recognised to goodwill for the scquisiticn of

Rel & The Dragon as a result of incorrect application of the mitial recogmition exemption

The Nivnial nepeact of the errors dentificd arc an follow:

4 Ao T 27
et 2. T
Group i tr
Deferred tax asset/{ab-hity) 71 40 {131 (92) 48 (4.4)
Retained earnings 40 (3.0 EAVAY (328.4) 4.0) (3324}
Corporation tax 62 02 6.0 2.8 28
Gaadwall 28.3 (08 275 264 (0.8) 286
Incamre Staterment for 52 weeks ended 28 March 2020:
drpirned  AdLuvin Rews
Profit before tax 166.2 - 166.2
Tax 4.3 0.0 53
Profit after tax 1619 1.0} 16089
Ay zs Marcr 2000 Ay 3 Maree 200%
Taparten Ad e et Thast o g Rer i Ad Lteers Rawsal
Campany Fn i L £ -
Deferred tax assel/(ability] (*4.4) 36 (10.8) (7.5} 4.4 31
Retained earnings (370 1) o (3.4) (3735) (3C03 3) a4 (3077)
Corparalion tax 6.1 0.2 59 -
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Directors
Chairman
Michae! Turner, FCA,

Nor Executive Chairman

Executive Directors

Siman Erreny, Chief Execusive
Adom Councel' ACMA

Fred Turner, ACA

Non-Executive Directors
Sir James Fullzr, Br

Richard Fuller

Helen Jones'

Robin Rowland”

Juhette Sia:ey, ACAS

.

Independent

Shareholder Privileges

Indiv aual shareholders with at "cast 5G0

Noer'Clordirry sharen or 5,000°B ardinary

shdres are eligible to rece've a sharcholder
o
b

{nndulgence card ennitl ng therm toa 15
d\bCOur’.t an FODd dnd drlnk% n f]ny OFOUI’

managed cubs and hozels inzluding 3=’ & The

Drager and Cotswolds -nns & Hotels 1t also

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholder Information
a5 At Ju[y 2021

President Stockbrokers

Anthony Fuller, CBE Nurmis Securties Limited

10 Paternoster Square

Charman from 1932 to 2007, Anthany Fuller Lendon ECAM 7LT

Auditors

offers a 12% discount on the Best Flex ble Rate E

- Company Secretariat on 020 3596 2105

or Stundard Flexble B&B Rare for Beauy iy’
Bedroormns by Fuller’s and Bel & The Drdgom
accommodation. There s currently no
accommodaticn discourt sval'able witn the
Snareha'der fnrndulgence Card at any of the
Cazswold Inns & Hotel sites

Information s avalable from tne Company
Secretanat on 020 8996 2705

ar 3t corpany.secretanat(@iiuliers couk

Redesignation of ‘C’ Shares
"Cordinary shares can be reges gnatad

a3 A erdinary snares vethin 30 days o the
prehim rary and hal year announcerants
by serding e your cort Nicates and 3 ar tten
FNITAnTIGn L rE0es gNatE BN 10 oF duning

the oar 2d o the Companys Registrars

orrp_tershare Iryostor Serazes L
The Paalions, bridgsater Road
Briswo 3355 4247

retired froem the Board in 2010 afier a iong
career with Fuller's and continues as President Reg\strars
Computershare Investor Services PLC

Secretary and Registered Office The Dawlions, Bridgwater Road

Rackc! Spencer | Bristol BS29 677

Pier House " Tel GB70 BRS 4096

RE-93 Strand-on the Green ‘

London W4 3NN © Flease nole Lnat you ¢ar advise

Tei, 020 B996 2000 Computershare of changes to your
Registered Number 2418532 address or set up a dvidend mardate arline

al www.computershare.comfirvestor/uk

Ernst & Young LLP
1 More London Place
Landon 521 2AF

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operazes
achanty share donation scheme for
sharchalders wth small parcels of shares whase
value makes turcconomic tosel' therr If you
have 5 small nurber of shares and would ke to
donate them to cnanty, detals of the scheme
car ce found on the ShareGifL website

o sharegﬁ‘org, cr by contacting the

Financial Calendar and Key Dates
23 September Z021
Annual General Mectng (1am )

18 Ngvernber 2021
FY22 7T yesr resolts snnouncomens

Jure 2022
FY22 Ful year resu'ls arnourcement
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Glossary

Adjusted earnings per share (“EPS™) - thi s carnings per share, adjusted for separately disclosed items. The Directors believe that this measure
rovides useful information for shareholders 45 to the performance of the Grou
P F P

Adjusted profits  this is profit before tax and before separately disclosed tems
CCFF - this s an HM Tregwury and Bank of England lending facility,

CJRS - this i clam for 80% of employees' wages plus any employer National lnsurance and pens.on contributions for staff an furlough through
the Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme.

Drinks, foed and accommedation like for like sales growth - thic s measured on the same bas » as "Managed Pubs and Horels invested iks for ke
sales growth”.

EBITDA thisis the ean'ngs before interest, tax, deprecistion, profit en dispasal of plant snd equipment, ang amortisation, adjusted for separately
disclosed toms

LTIP  Long Term Incentive Plan.

Managed Pubs and Hotels invested like for like sales growth - this s the sale- growth calculated to exclude those pubs which have not been trading
throughout the two years for the carresponding period in bath years. The principsl exclusions from this measure are: pubs purchased or sold in the
last 12 months; sites which are closed; and pubs which are transferred to tenancy The caleulation excludes The Stable sites,

Market capitalisation - only the Company's 40p ‘A ordinary shares are listed The Cormpany caleulates its marker capitalisation as the total of all
classes of ardinary shares; e listed 40p A ordinary shares, unlisted 4p ‘B’ ordinary shares and unlisted 40p *C" ordinary shares plus all potentially
awardable share options and LT!P awards less any shares held in treasury. For the purposes of the caleulation of market capitalisavon, a dp B’
ordinary share is treated as having 10% of the market value of 4 quoted 40 A ordinary share and 2 40p 'C' ordinary share s treated o5 having

ar equivaient value to  40p ‘A’ ardinary share.

Net debt - this comprises cash, bank loans, other loans, debenture stock and preference shares.

Operating profit — this s profitbefore finance costs and tax and profit an disposal of propert es.

SIP - Share Incentive Plan.

The disposal of the Fuller’s Beer Business — the salz of the entire issued share capital of The Fuller’s Beer Company (which was incarporated to
acquire certan of the assets and liabilities of the Fuler's Beer Business)

The Fuller’s Beer Business or the “Beer Business”  the cntirety of Fuller’s beer, cider and soft drinks brewing and production business, wine
wholesaling business, a5 well as the distribution thereof, snd also includes the Grffin Brewery, Cornish Orchards, The Dark Star Brewing Campany

and Nectar imports Limited,

Total annual dividend - the totsl snnual divdend for a financial year comprises interim dividends paid during the financidl year and the fina' dividend
proposed for approval by sharehalders at the Annudl General Meetng a'ter the completion of the financial year

TSA - Tranutional Services Agreement with Asshi subsequent to sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business

Woerking capital - calculsted s current assels (trade recevables and inventaryd less current habilities (trade and other payables).
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Five Years’ Progress

<zeTane Hostanea
2021 20 AN = v

Group Income Statement Em i T Lo L
Revenue and other income 73.4 319.7 3247 4036 3920
Cperatng profit before separately disclosed tems (40.3) 270 40.0 452 495
Finance costs before scparately diszlosed items (8.4} (76) (69 6 0) (6.6)
Adjusted profit before income tax (48.7) 154 331 432 426
Exceptional items and di~continued operations (10.5) 146.8 (8.4) 04 (3.0
Profit before income tax (59.2) 16862 247 436 359
Taxation T 9.6 53 (52 B8 (74
Profit after income tax (49.6) 1609 195 348 325
Non-controling interest - - (0.2) 1.0 02
Loss/profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company (49.6) 160.9 193 358 327
EBITDA' (13.1) 539 58,5 709 705
| Continuing operations only.
Assets employed
MNen current assets 702.5 75971 5953 623.7 6121
Irventorics ) 21 4.0 50 ) ?E 14.0
Other currert assets 15.5 186 24 229 216
Assets classified as held for »ale 9.6 256 B0 21 59
Cash and cash cquivalents 17.1 203 no .7 13.3

746.8 202.6 706.7 673.4 6689
Current borrowings (207.7) a71.7) (500) (300) 200
Cther currant habilizes (39.4) (207) (629) 78l (73.7)

499.7 380.2 5934 5716 575.2
Nor current borrow.ngs (27.5) 275y  (20e2) (183.4> (20141
Other nen-current Labilites (92.7) (1229; 43.1) (531 GRS
Net assets 379.5 4298 3385 3349 3097

2021 izl sl -

Per 40p ‘A’ ordinary share
Ad usted earnings (73.00}p 20.5Cp 62.78p 52 90p 613%p
Basic earnings (89.84)p 291389p 3512 6489 59.2%
Cividends (nterirm a~d proposed finall - 132.80p 2015 19 55p 18 800
Net assets £6.87 £7.40 616 £e 07 £5.81
Net debt (£ million)? (308.0) (2%18; (245.2) (2019) 2061;
Gross capital expenditure (£ million) 16.5 845 386 406 55.4
Average number of employees 4,219 51664 5,353 24915 L4722

2 2020 includes ‘D’ share dvidend.

3 Net debt from FY20 onwards includes armounts relsting to teases under IFRS 16,
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